
 
11749755.1 

 COMBINED QUARTERLY MEETING OF THE RETIREMENT BOARDS FOR THE 

EMPLOYEES AND RETIREES OF THE SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

9:00 A.M., WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2017 

REGIONAL TRANSIT AUDITORIUM 

1400 29
TH

 STREET, SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 
Website Address:   www.sacrt.com 

(29th St. Light Rail Station/Bus  38, 67, 68) 

 

MEETING NOTE: This is a joint and concurrent meeting of the five independent Retirement 

Boards for the pension plans for the employees and retirees of the Sacramento 

Regional Transit District.  This single, combined agenda designates which 

items will be subject to action by which board(s).  Members of each board may 

be present for the other boards’ discussions and actions, except during 

individual closed sessions. 

 

ROLL CALL  ATU Retirement Board:  Directors: Li, Morin, Niz, De La Torre  
       Alternates: Jennings, McGee Lee 
 
   IBEW Retirement Board: Directors: Li, Morin, Ohlson, Bibbs 
       Alternates: Jennings, Flanders 
 
   AEA Retirement Board: Directors: Li, Morin, Devorak, Robison 
       Alternates: Jennings, McGoldrick 
 
   AFSCME Retirement Board: Directors: Li, Morin, Mallonee, Parks 
       Alternates: Jennings, Guimond 
 
   MCEG Retirement Board: Directors: Li, Morin, Lonergan, Thorn    
       Alternates: Jennings, Sanchez-Ochoa 

 

 

PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS ON CONSENT AND MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA  
At this time the public may address the Retirement Board(s) on subject matters pertaining to Retirement Board business listed on 
the Consent Calendar, any Closed Sessions or items not listed on the agenda. Remarks may be limited to 3 minutes subject to 
the discretion of the Common Chair. Members of the public wishing to address one or more of the Boards may submit a “Public 
Comment Speaker Card” to the Assistant Secretary. While the Retirement Boards encourage your comments, State law prevents 
the Boards from discussing items that are not set forth on this meeting agenda. The Boards and staff take your comments very 
seriously and, if appropriate, will follow up on them. 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

  ATUIBEWAEAAFSCMEMCEG

1.  Motion: Approving the Minutes for the June 14, 2017 Quarterly Retirement 
Board Meeting (AEA). (Bonnel) 

     

      

2.  Motion: Approving the Minutes for the July 26, 2017 Special Retirement Board 
Meeting (AEA). (Bonnel) 

     

      

      

 

 

                                                              
Sacramento Regional Transit District 

Agenda   



 
11749755.1 

  ATU IBEW  AEA AFSCME MCEG 

3.  Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended June 
30, 2017 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). 
(Bernegger) 

    

       

4.  Motion: Adopting Regional Transit Retirement Boards 2018 Meeting Calendar 
(ALL). (Bonnel) 

    

      

5.  Motion: Approving the Minutes for the June 14, 2017 Quarterly Retirement 
Board Meeting (AFSCME). (Bonnel) 

    

       

6. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended June 
30, 2017 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). 
(Bernegger) 

    

      

7.  Motion: Adopting Regional Transit Retirement Boards 2018 Meeting Calendar 
(ALL). (Bonnel) 

    

      

8. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the June 14, 2017 Quarterly Retirement 
Board Meeting (ATU). (Bonnel) 

    

      

9.  Motion: Approving the Minutes for the July 26, 2017 Special Retirement Board 
Meeting (ATU). (Bonnel) 

    

      

10. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the August 21, 2017 Special Retirement 
Board Meeting (ATU). (Bonnel) 
 

    

      

11. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended June 
30, 2017 for the ATU Pension Plan (ATU). (Bernegger) 

    

      

12. Motion: Adopting Regional Transit Retirement Boards 2018 Meeting Calendar 
(ALL). (Bonnel) 

    

      

13. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the June 14, 2017 Quarterly Retirement 
Board Meeting (IBEW). (Bonnel) 

    

      

14. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the July 26, 2017 Special Retirement Board 
Meeting (IBEW). (Bonnel) 

    

      

15. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended June 
30, 2017 for the IBEW Pension Plan (IBEW). (Bernegger) 

    

      

16.  Motion: Adopting Regional Transit Retirement Boards 2018 Meeting Calendar 
(ALL). (Bonnel) 

    

      

17.  Motion: Approving the Minutes for the June 14, 2017 Quarterly Retirement 
Board Meeting (MCEG). (Bonnel) 

    

      

18.  Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended June 
30, 2017 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). 
(Bernegger) 

    

      

19.  Motion: Adopting Regional Transit Retirement Boards 2018 Meeting Calendar 
(ALL). (Bonnel) 

    

 

 

 



 
11749755.1 

NEW BUSINESS 

  ATU IBEW  AEA AFSCME MCEG 

20. Information: Investment Performance Review by Atlanta Capital for the ATU, IBEW, 
and Salaried Retirement Funds for the Domestic Small Cap Equity Asset 
Class for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2017 (ALL). (Bernegger) 
 

    

      

21. Information: Investment Performance Review by Boston Partners for the ATU/IBEW 
and Salaried Retirement Funds for the Domestic Large Cap Equity Class 
for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2017 (ALL). (Bernegger) 
 

    

      

22. Motion: Receive and File Investment Performance Results for the ATU, IBEW and 
Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended June 30, 
2017 (ALL). (Bernegger) 
 

    

      

23. Information:  Update on Roles and Responsibilities Related to Pension 
Administration (ALL). (Bonnel) 

    

      

24. Resolution:  Election of Governing Board Officers of the Retirement Plan for 
Sacramento Regional Transit District (District) Employees who are 
Members of AFSCME (AFSCME). (Bonnel) 

    

      

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES 

REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

ADJOURN 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
It is the policy of the Boards of Directors of the Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Plans to encourage participation in the meetings of the 
Boards of Directors. At each open meeting, members of the public shall be provided with an opportunity to directly address the Board on items of interest 
to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Boards.   
 

This agenda may be amended up to 72 hours prior to the meeting being held.  An agenda, in final form, is located by the front door of Regional Transit’s 
building at 1400 – 29th Street and posted to RT’s website at www.sacrt.com.  
 

Any person(s) requiring accessible formats of the agenda or assisted listening devices/sign language interpreters should contact the Human Resources 
Manager at 916-556-0280 or TDD 916/483-4327 at least 72 business hours in advance of the Board Meeting. 
 

Copies of staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business referred to on the agenda are on file with the Human Resources 
Administrative Technician at 916-556-0298 and/or Clerk to the Board of Directors of the Sacramento Regional Transit District and are available for public 
inspection at 1400 29th Street, Sacramento, CA. Any person who has questions concerning any agenda item may call the Human Resources 
Administrative Technician of Sacramento Regional Transit District to make inquiry.  



Item 13 

1 
   

13736221.1  

Sacramento Regional Transit District 
IBEW Retirement Board Meeting 

Wednesday, June 14, 2017 
MEETING SUMMARY 

 
 
 

ROLL CALL  
 
The Retirement Board was brought to order at 9:05 a.m. A quorum was present comprised as 
follows: Directors Li, Morin, Ohlson, and Alternate Flanders. Director Bibbs and Alternate 
Jennings were absent.  
 
This meeting was held as a common meeting of the five Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Retirement Boards.  
 
By IBEW Resolution No. 16-12-186 for calendar year 2017, the Governing Board Member in 
attendance served as Common Chair of this Retirement Board meeting.   
 
 
PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
None. 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR  
 
7. Motion:  Approving the Minutes for the March 22, 2017 Quarterly Retirement Board 

Meeting (IBEW). (Bonnel) 
 
8. Motion:  Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended March 31, 

2017 for the IBEW Pension Plan (IBEW). (Bernegger) 
 
Director Morin moved to adopt IBEW Retirement Board Items 7 through 8. Director Li seconded 
the motion. Items 7 through 8 were carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Li, 
Morin, Ohlson and Alternate Flanders. Noes: None. 
  
 
New Business: 
 
11. Information:  Investment Performance Review by AQR for the ATU, IBEW and Salaried 

Funds for the International Small Capitalization Equity Asset Class for the 
Quarter Ended March 31, 2017 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Iwan Djanali from AQR, who provided the performance results for 
the International Small Capitalization Equity Asset Class for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2017 
and was available for questions. 
 
Ms. Adelman asked how quickly AQR can respond to market changes. Mr. Djanali noted that 
AQR typically looks at the momentum for the last one to twelve months; if a category trends 
negative for six months or more AQR may change the weight of holdings in that category. 
 



Item 13 

2 
   

13736221.1  

 
12. Motion:  Receive and File the Investment Performance Results for the ATU, IBEW 

and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended March 31, 
2017 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman noted that the Retirement Boards are now invested with Pyrford as of June 1, 
2017. Pyrford’s activity will be included as of the September 2017 board meeting, for the last 
quarter of fiscal year 2017.    
 
Ms. Adelman introduced Uvan Tseng from Callan Associates, who provided a market overview 
for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2017 and was available for questions. 
 
Director Morin moved to adopt Item 12.  Director Li seconded the motion. Item 12 was carried 
unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Li, Morin, Ohlson and Alternate Flanders. Noes: 
None. 
 
13. Motion:  Receive and File Asset Allocation Study Review for the ATU, IBEW and 

Salaried Employees’ Retirement Plans (ALL). (Bernegger) 
 
Jamie Adelman introduced Gene Podkaminer from Callan Associates to present the Asset 
Allocation Study Review and to be available for questions.  
 
Director Li requested clarification on Attachment 1, Page 9. The Retirement Boards currently 
have an expected rate of investment returns assumption of 7.50% whereas Callan's expected 
return is 6.60%. Director Li asked if it is correct that the assumption have an almost 1% 
difference. Mr. Podkaminer responded in the affirmative.  
 
Director Li asked what would be the industrial average for risk tolerance. Mr. Podkaminer noted 
that pension plans' risk tolerance is based on their liabilities. The industry average can be 
misleading because it only takes into account the averages; it does not take into account what 
plans' assets are trying to support from a liability perspective. Mr. Podkaminer confirmed that a 
fixed income allocation of 30-35% is reasonable. Mr. Tseng noted that a lot of changes have 
been made to the Pension Plans' portfolio since the last asset liability study. The fixed income 
allocation was 40% at that time. Mr. Tseng noted that the current allocation of 35% in fixed 
income is an appropriate asset allocation at this time. Discussion ensued.   
 
Donna Bonnel noted that Graham Schmidt will be present at the September meeting to discuss 
the rate of return and inflation rate used for the Pension Plans' actuarial analyses.  
 
Ms. Adelman noted that she reached out to Mr. Schmidt after she saw the asset allocation study 
and talked about the projections from Callan Associates. Ms. Adelman noted that there are two 
sides to the assumed rate of return: inflation factor and the real rate of return. The main area of 
concern is the inflation factor. In September, Mr. Schmidt will discuss potentially adjusting the 
inflation factor, which would then effect the fiscal year 2019 actuarial valuation. 
  
Director Morin moved to adopt Item 13.  Director Li seconded the motion. Item 13 was carried 
unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Li, Morin, Ohlson and Alternate Flanders. Noes: 
None. 
 
 
14. Information:  Update on Roles and Responsibilities Related to Pension Administration 

(ALL). (Bonnel) 



Item 13 

3 
   

13736221.1  

Donna Bonnel provided an update on the roles and responsibilities of various District staff 
members and Legal Counsel related to the administration of the Pension Plans.  
 
15. Resolution:  Adopting Amended Retirement Board Member and Staff Education and 

Travel Policy (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Valerie Weekly presented agenda item #15.   
 
ATU Director Ralph Niz asked what the proposed $1,500 annual training budget would cover. 
Ms. Weekly noted that when reviewing the Staff Education and Travel Policy it was discovered 
that a budget of $1,500 was established for non-CALAPRS training. Staff is going to review the 
budget of $1,500 to make sure that it amount is adequate. 
 
Ms. Weekly noted that the education requirements have been revised. The policy now includes 
a goal of twenty-four educational hours in a two year period. Multi-day conferences are still an 
option. An email will be sent out from Staff detailing the procedural aspects of complying with 
the new policy, if adopted, including how staff intends to track hours reported and how staff will 
notify board members of training opportunities.  
 
Director Morin moved to adopt Item 15.  Director Li seconded the motion. Item 15 was carried 
unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Li, Morin, Ohlson and Alternate Flanders. Noes: 
None. 
 
 
REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES 
 
None. 
 
REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Donna Bonnel noted that there will be a Special Meeting on July 26, 2017. 
 
Ms, Bonnel reported that the last meeting for paper packages should be the July 26, 2017 
Special Meeting. As of the September 13, 2017 quarterly meeting, Staff will only distribute 
electronic packages. If any Board member needs an electronic device, they should contact Isis 
Humphrey, Administrative Technician. 
 
The meeting was adjourned by Assistant Secretary Bonnel at 10:28 a.m. 
 

 
    ________________________________________ 
               Russel Devorak, Chair 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
Sue Robison, Secretary 
 
 
By:___________________________________ 
      Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary 



Item 14 

 
13736218.2  

1 

Sacramento Regional Transit District 
IBEW Special Retirement Board Meeting 

Wednesday, July 26, 2017 
 

MEETING SUMMARY 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
The Retirement Board was brought to order at 9:02 a.m. A quorum was present comprised as 
follows: Directors Li, Morin, Ohlson, and Bibbs.  
 
This meeting was held as a common meeting of three of the five Sacramento Regional Transit 
District Retirement Boards.  
 
By IBEW Resolution No. 16-12-186 for calendar year 2017, the Governing Board Member in 
attendance served as Common Chair of this Retirement Board meeting. 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
The AEA Retirement Board and IBEW Retirement Boards recessed.  AEA Retirement Board 
members Devorak and Robison and IBEW Retirement Board members Ohlson and Bibbs left 
the meeting room at 9:04 a.m. 
 
IBEW Retirement Board members Ohlson and Bibbs returned to join Board members Li and 
Morin at 9:14 a.m. 
 
2.  Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation Significant Exposure to 

Litigation Pursuant to Government Code Section  54956.9(d)(2): One Potential 
Cases (IBEW)  

 
The IBEW Retirement Board met in closed session. 
 
The IBEW Retirement Board meeting recessed and Board members Ohlson and Bibbs left the 
meeting room at 9:19 a.m. 
 
 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 
 
IBEW Retirement Board members Ohlson and Bibbs returned to the meeting room and the 
IBEW Retirement Board meeting reconvened in Open Session at 9:30. 
 
CLOSED SESSION REPORT 
 
No reportable actions were taken in the closed sessions. 
 
 
4. Corrective Pension Payments (AEA/ATU/IBEW). (Bonnel) 
 
Director Morin moved to adopt IBEW Retirement Board Items 4. Director Li seconded the 
motion. Item 4 was carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Li, Morin, Ohlson and 
Bibbs. Noes: None. 
 
 



Item 14 

 
13736218.2  

2 

With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 9:32 a.m. 
 
 

                                                  _______________________________ 
      Eric Ohlson,  Chair 
 
 
ATTEST: 
     
Constance Bibbs, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
      Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary 
 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 3
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

09/13/17 Retirement Action 08/10/17

Subject: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2017 for the
IBEW Pension Plan (IBEW). (Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

FINAL 09/01/17
VP Finance/CFO Senior Accountant

ISSUE

Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2017 for the IBEW
Pension Plan (IBEW). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2017 for the
IBEW Pension Plan (IBEW). (Bernegger)

FISCAL IMPACT

None.

DISCUSSION

Unaudited Financial Statements

Attached hereto are unaudited financial statements for the quarter and the year-to-date ended
June 30, 2017.  The financial statements are presented on an accrual basis and consist of a
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position (balance sheet) (Attachment 1), a Statement of Changes
in Fiduciary Net Position (income statement) for the quarter ended June 30, 2017 (Attachment
2), and a year-to-date Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position (Attachment 3).

The Statement of Fiduciary Net Position includes a summary of fund assets showing the
amounts in the following categories: investments, prepaid assets, and other receivables.  This
statement also provides amounts due from/to the District and Total Fund Equity (net position).

The Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position includes activities in the following
categories: investment gains/losses, dividends, interest income, unrealized gains/losses,
benefit contributions/payouts, and investment management and administrative expenses.

Asset Rebalancing

Pursuant to Section IV, Asset Rebalancing Policy of the Statement of Investment Objectives
and Policy Guidelines for the ATU, IBEW and Salaried Employees’ Retirement Funds, the
Retirement Boards have delegated authority to manage pension plan assets in accordance
with the approved rebalancing policy to the District’s Director of Finance/Treasury.  The
Director is required to report asset rebalancing activity to the Boards at their quarterly
meetings.  Rebalancing can occur for one or more of the following reasons:

IHumphrey
Typewritten text


IHumphrey
Typewritten text
   15



REGIONAL TRANSIT Page 2 of 3
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

09/13/17 Retirement Action 08/10/17

Subject: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2017 for
the IBEW Pension Plan (IBEW). (Bernegger)

1. The Pension Plan ended the month with an accounts receivable or payable balance due
to the District.  A payable or receivable is the net amount of the monthly required
contribution (required contribution is the percentage of covered payroll determined by
the annual actuarial valuation) less the Plan’s actual expenses.

2. The Pension Plan hires or removes a Fund Manager, in which case securities must be
moved to a new fund manager.

3. The Pension Plan investment mix is under or over the minimum or maximum asset
allocation as defined in the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines.

Attached hereto as Attachment 4 is the IBEW Plan’s Schedule of Cash Activities for the three
months ended June 30, 2017. The schedule of cash activities includes a summary of Plan
activities showing the amounts in the following categories: District’s pension contributions to
the Plan, payments to retirees, and the Pension Plan’s cash expenditures paid.  This schedule
also lists the rebalancing activity that occurred for the three months ended June 30, 2017.  The
IBEW Plan transferred $151,297.30 to the District as the result of the net cash activity between
the pension plan expenses and the required pension contributions.

Attached hereto as Attachment 5 is the IBEW Plan’s Asset Allocation as of June 30, 2017. This
statement shows the IBEW Plan’s asset allocation as compared to targeted allocation
percentages as defined in the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines.

Attached hereto as Attachment 6 is a reconciliation between the Callan Performance Report
and the ATU, IBEW and Salaried Pension Plans’ unaudited financial statements.  The reports
differ in that the unaudited financial statements reflect both investment activities and the
pension fund’s inflows and outflows. Callan’s report only reflects the investment activities.  The
“Net Difference” amounts shown are the results of Callan and State Street using different
valuations for the same securities and/or litigation settlements received by the Plans.

Included also as Attachment 7 is a reconciliation between the Callan Performance Report and
the Schedule of Cash Activities for payments made from/to the District.  Callan’s report
classifies gains from trades and litigation income as “net new investments.”  Finance staff
classifies gains from trades and litigation income in the Pension Fund’s unaudited Statement of
Changes in Plan Net Position as “Other Income,” which is combined in the category of
“Interest, Dividend, & Other Inc”.

Attached hereto as Attachment 8 is a schedule reflecting Fund Managers’ quarterly investment
returns and their investment fees. Additionally, the schedule reflects annual rates of return on
investment net of investment fees for the one-year and three-year periods ended June 30,
2017 as compared to their benchmarks.

Attached hereto as Attachment 9 is a schedule reflecting all retirements that occurred, as well
as any transfer of employees or plan assets from the IBEW Plan to the Salaried Plan during
the three months ended June 30, 2017.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
   15



REGIONAL TRANSIT Page 3 of 3
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

09/13/17 Retirement Action 08/10/17

Subject: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2017 for
the IBEW Pension Plan (IBEW). (Bernegger)

On February 24, 2017, members of the ATU and the IBEW Retirement Boards met with District
staff and Graham Schmidt from Cheiron, the Plans’ actuary, to discuss a correction to the
splitting of the ATU and IBEW assets. The split allows the two Plans to maintain separate
accounting, which was a required corrective action in the IRS's Voluntary Compliance Program
(VCP) compliance statements for the ATU and IBEW Plans to maintain tax-qualified status.
Staff split the assets in July 2016, in accordance with the methodology set forth in the IRS VCP
compliance statements, which corresponds to the methodology that Cheiron uses to prepare
its actuarial valuations. Using that methodology, it was determined that 73.23%, or
$123,566,631, of the combined assets belonged to the ATU Plan and 26.77% or $45,171,087
belonged to the IBEW Plan. Staff split the assets accordingly and began allocating revenues
and expenses in accordance with the established Plan percentages. In December 2016, when
Cheiron was working on the July 2017 valuation and evaluating the census data and
associated liabilities for the two separate Plans, Cheiron discovered that the number of IBEW
transfers to the Salaried Plan exceeded the number of ATU Plan transfers.  Consequently,
Cheiron concluded that the original asset split percentages were inaccurate. Cheiron
determined that the correct percentage share for the two plans should have been 71.20% for
the ATU Plan and 28.80% for the IBEW Plan. Per approvals from the ATU Retirement Board
Chair on February 28, 2017, and the IBEW Retirement Board Chair on February 27, 2017,
staff instructed State Street Bank and Trust (asset custodian) to transfer $3,421,627.16 from
the ATU Plan to the IBEW Plan on June 15, 2017, to account for the correction.

This subsequent correction impacted the allocation of fiscal year 2017 revenues and
expenses. Based on the corrected percentage of assets owned by the two Plans, staff
reallocated all revenues and expenses (excluding actual payments to retirees and
contributions to the Plans) to determine what each Plan should have recognized. The net
difference resulted in an additional $430,199.64 (revenues less expenses) being due to the
IBEW Plan from the ATU Plan. The net transfer of fiscal year 2017 revenue and expense
correction was completed on June 22, 2017.

All asset transfers between the ATU and IBEW Plans related to the required asset split under
the IRS VCP have been successfully completed.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
  15





















REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 2
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

9/13/17 Retirement Action 8/16/17

Subject: Adoption of the Regional Transit District Retirement Boards 2018 Meeting Calendar
(ALL). (Bonnel)

Approved: Presented:

Final 9/6/17
VP, Finance / CFO Director, Human Resources

C:\Temp\2018 IP Retirement Board Schedule - Resos_24730453.doc

11716893.1

ISSUE
Adoption of the Regional Transit District (RT) Retirement Boards 2018 Meeting Calendar (ALL).
(Bonnel)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Adopt Resolution No. 17-09-___, Adopting the Regional Transit District Retirement Boards 2018
Meeting Calendar.

FISCAL IMPACT

None, as a result of this action.

DISCUSSION

The RT Retirement Boards have Regular meetings quarterly to review the performance of
investments in RT’s retirement funds by its fund managers and related business.  Special
meetings typically are called for items which require time for more lengthy discussions.

The proposed dates for Quarterly Retirement Board Meetings for the 2018 calendar year are:

 Wednesday, March 14th

 Wednesday, June 20th

 Wednesday, September 12th

 Wednesday, December 12th

In anticipation of several large projects and decisions coming before the Retirement Boards in
2018, staff is also proposing several tentative Special Meeting dates. If necessary, these dates
can be utilized for in-depth discussion of items that require attention in addition or prior to
regularly-scheduled Quarterly Retirement Board Meetings.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
  16



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 2 of 2
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

9/13/17 Retirement Action 8/16/17

Subject: Adopting the Regional Transit Retirement Boards 2018 Meeting Calendar (ALL).
(Bonnel)

8334876.1

The proposed dates for tentative Special Meetings for the 2018 calendar year are:

 Wednesday, February 7th

 Wednesday, April 18th

 Wednesday, July 25th

 Wednesday, October 24th

Staff recommends that the Board Members adopt a 9:00 a.m. start time for the 2018 meetings.

Staff recommends approval of the Regional Transit Retirement Boards 2018 Meeting Calendar,
marked as Exhibit A.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
 16



8334876.1

RESOLUTION NO. 17-09-_____

Adopted by the IBEW Retirement Board for the Retirement Plan for RT Employees
Who Are Members of IBEW Local Union 1245 on this date:

September 13, 2017

ADOPTING THE REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT RETIREMENT BOARDS 2018
MEETING CALENDAR

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE RETIREMENT BOARD FOR THE
RETIREMENT PLAN FOR RT EMPLOYEES WHO ARE MEMBERS OF IBEW AS
FOLLOWS:

THAT, the meeting schedule set out in attached Exhibit A for the meetings  of the Regional
Transit District IBEW Retirement Board for calendar year 2018, is hereby adopted.

A T T E S T:

Constance Bibbs, Secretary

By:

Eric Ohlson, Chair

Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary



        
                            Exhibit A 

 
 

 
 

2018 RETIREMENT BOARD CALENDAR 
 
 

SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT RETIREMENT BOARD  
REGIONAL TRANSIT AUDITORIUM (ROOM 114) – 1400 29TH STREET 

SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 
 
 

9:00 AM 
 
 
 

Wednesday…...………………………Regular Meeting……..………………March 14, 2018 
 
Wednesday…....……………….…......Regular Meeting….……….….………June 20, 2018 
 
Wednesday…………………………...Regular Meeting..……..…..…..September 12, 2018 
 
Wednesday…..……………………….Regular Meeting.……….………December 12, 2018 
 

 
Wednesday…...………………………Special Meeting……..……………*February 7, 2018 
 
Wednesday…....……………….…......Special Meeting….………….….……*April 18, 2018 
 
Wednesday…………………………...Special Meeting..……..…..………..…*July 25, 2018 
 
Wednesday…..……………………….Special Meeting.……….…………*October 24, 2018 
 
 
*Special Meeting dates are tentative. If necessary, these dates can be utilized for items that 
require attention prior to the scheduled quarterly Board Meeting.   



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 1
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

09/13/17 Retirement Information 08/10/17

Subject: Investment Performance Review by Atlanta Capital for the ATU, IBEW, and Salaried
Retirement Funds for the Domestic Small Cap Equity Asset Class for the Quarter
Ended June 30, 2017 (ALL). (Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

FINAL 08/28/17
VP Finance/CFO Senior Accountant

ISSUE

Investment Performance Review by Atlanta Capital for the ATU, IBEW, and Salaried
Retirement Funds for the Domestic Small Cap Equity Asset Class for the Quarter Ended June
30, 2017 (ALL). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Information Only.

FISCAL IMPACT

None.

DISCUSSION

Retirement funds are invested consistent with the Statement of Investment Objectives and
Policy Guidelines (Policy) adopted by each Retirement Board (Board). The Board shall meet
at least every eighteen (18) months with each investment manager to review the performance
of its investment, the adherence to the Policy, and any material changes to its organization.
The Policy also establishes the Retirement Funds’ asset allocation policy and the asset
classes in which the Plans funds are invested.  The asset classes established by the Policy are
(1) Domestic Large Capitalization Equity, (2) Domestic Small Capitalization Equity, (3)
International Large Capitalization Equity, (4) International Small Capitalization Equity (5)
International Emerging Markets, and (6) Domestic Fixed-Income.

Atlanta Capital is the Retirement Boards’ Domestic Small Capital Equity fund manager. Atlanta
Capital will be presenting performance results for the quarter ended June 30, 2017, shown in
Attachment 1, and answering any questions.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
20



Sacramento Regional Transit District
High Quality Small Cap

September 13, 2017
Portfolio Review

Michael Jaje, CFA
Investment Specialist & Principal
(404) 682-2498
michael.jaje@atlcap.com

Robert Allen, CFA
Senior Portfolio Administrator
(404) 682-2430
robert.allen@atlcap.com

Your Atlanta Capital Team

1075 Peachtree Street NE │ Suite 2100 │ Atlanta │ GA │ 30309

JAdelman
Text Box
Attachment #1



Small Cap
$2.1 bn │ 1992

SMID Cap
$11.5 bn │ 2004

Investment Franchises
($18.9 Billion)

Core Equity Management
($14.4 Billion)

Atlanta Capital Management Co., LLC
As of June 30, 2017

 Founded in 1969 in Atlanta, Georgia

 Singular focus on High Quality stocks and bonds

 Owned by employees & Eaton Vance Corporation

 Employ 41 professionals (19 are equity partners)

Growth Equity

Fixed Income

Core Equity

Assets under management │ inception date of strategy.

Select Equity
$751 mm │ 2006

2



Seasoned & Stable Investment Team

Matt Hereford, CFA
22 Yrs │ 2002

Bill Bell, CFA
22 Yrs │ 1999

Chip Reed, CFA
28 Yrs │ 1998

Michael Jaje, CFA
22 Yrs │ 2014

 Portfolio managers are generalists and serve as both research analyst and portfolio manager
 Our team does not rely on a research staff to generate ideas or perform fundamental research
 Each portfolio manager conducts his own research while decisions are made on a consensus basis

Portfolio Managers

Investment Specialist

A focused team that combines the benefit of conducting independent 
fundamental research with the ability to make timely investment decisions.

Years industry experience as of 6/30/17 │ year joined Atlanta Capital.

3



Consistent Growth & Stability in Earnings
Key Tenet of Our Investment Philosophy

Earnings Stability Avg. 5-Year CAGR Earnings Variability # Positive Periods # Negative Periods
Above-Average 6.9% 1.7% 120 or 100% 0 or 0%
Below-Average 3.8% 3.6% 101 or 84% 19 or 16%

*Time period: January 1, 1987 – December 31, 2016. The Above-Average Earnings Stability and Below-Average Earnings Stability portfolios are provided to compare the aggregate of all companies in the index with High Quality S&P Rankings
(B+ or Better) to those with Low Quality S&P Rankings (B or Below). The Earnings Stability portfolios are model portfolios formed and rebalanced monthly by Atlanta Capital. The universe includes all Russell 2000® Index constituents with S&P
Quality Rankings and prices greater than $1. Five-year historical earnings growth rates are calculated using a market capitalization-weighted methodology. The Russell 2000® Index is a widely-accepted measure of the U.S. small cap stock
market. Indexes are unmanaged and it is not possible to directly invest in an index. The Above-Average Earnings Stability and Below-Average Earnings Stability portfolios were derived in part from the Russell Index Data and Frank Russell
Company remains the source and owner of the Russell Index Data contained or reflected and all trademarks and copyrights. Sources: Russell, Standard & Poor’s, Wilshire Atlas, Atlanta Capital. The material is based upon information that
Russell, S&P, Wilshire and Atlanta Capital considers to be reliable, but neither Russell, S&P, Wilshire nor Atlanta Capital warrants its completeness, accuracy or adequacy and it should not be relied upon as such. This information is provided
for illustrative purposes only and does not reflect historical results for any particular Atlanta Capital investment strategy. Individual client results may vary. The material should not be considered investment advice or a recommendation to invest
in a particular strategy. Past performance does not predict future results. Reproduction or redistribution of this page in any form without express permission from Atlanta Capital is prohibited.

87 88 89 90 91 92 93 94 95 96 97 98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
(3%)

0%

3%

6%

9%

12%

15%

Russell 2000® Index by Earnings Stability
Five-Year Rolling CAGR of As Reported Earnings

Recession

4



Beta
HQ Small | R2000®

0.72 | 1.00 

DECLINING MARKETS
(33 Negative Quarters)

RISING MARKETS
(68 Positive Quarters)

SINCE INCEPTION*
(101 Total Quarters)

Standard Deviation
HQ Small | R2000®

15.1% | 19.5%

Upside Reward + Downside Protection = Long-Term Results

86%

55%

+3.4%

Investment Objective
April 1, 1992 – June 30, 2017

We seek to outperform over the long term by participating in rising markets 
and protecting capital during declining markets… 

…without the volatility typically associated with small cap investing.
*Inception date of the High Quality Small Capitalization Composite is April 1, 1992. For illustrative purposes only. The charts above illustrate the average (annualized) return of the High Quality Small Capitalization Composite during both rising and
declining markets and since inception. Rising markets are defined as quarters where the return of the Russell 2000® index was positive. Declining markets are defined as quarters where the return of the Russell 2000® index was negative. These
positive and negative quarters are separated out from the intervening quarters, cumulated across the period, and annualized. Composite performance is shown in US dollars and reflects reinvestment of all income and capital gains. Composite
performance is shown gross of investment advisory and custody fees; upside reward, downside protection and long-term results will be reduced by fees and other client expenses. Composite performance on a net-of-management fees basis was
12.0% for the period (after a maximum annual fee of 0.80% accrued monthly). Performance during certain periods reflects strong stock market performance that is not typical and may not be repeated. Individual client returns will vary due to fees,
client-imposed investment constraints and client inception date. Beta measures the historical sensitivity of portfolio excess returns to movements in the excess return of the market index. Standard Deviation is a measure of absolute volatility of
returns. The Russell 2000® index is unmanaged and does not incur management fees or other expenses associated with managed accounts. It is not possible to directly invest in an index. This material is supplemental to the GIPS® presentation
included at the end of this presentation. Please see the GIPS® composite presentation for important additional information and disclosure. Past performance does not predict or guarantee future results. Source: eVestment and Atlanta Capital.

5



Disciplined Investment Process
High Quality Small Cap Equity

 60 – 70 holdings
 5% max position sizes
 30% absolute sector weights
 10 – 15% turnover*
 Russell 2000® Index

Financial Strength

Overlooked &
Under-Followed

Innovative Business Model

Equity
Universe

$200 mm – $4 bn
Market Cap

(at initial purchase)

Exclude companies with:

Focus List
150 – 200

 Volatile earnings streams
 Short operating histories
 High levels of debt
Weak cash flow generation
 Low returns on capital

Shareholder-Oriented Management

 Prudent profit taking 
 Change in management or 

business strategy
 Deterioration of financial quality
 Excessive valuation

Step 1.
Create a ‘Focus List’ of High Quality Companies

Step 2.
Conduct Proprietary ‘Onsite’ Fundamental Research

Step 3.
Construct a Focused Yet
Well-Diversified Portfolio

Step 4.
Monitor Holdings &
Review Focus List

Attractive
Valuation

* 3-year average based on a single representative client portfolio for the strategy
and subject to change. Actual results may vary for each client.

6



Objective
 The objective is to provide small capitalization exposure for the two commingled retirement plans.
 Achieve a net of fee return which exceeds the Russell 2000 Index over a minimum three year period
 Achieve a gross of fee return which places above the median manager in a comparative universe of small capitalization equity 

managers.

Guidelines
 No more than 5% (at cost) may be invested in a single issuer of the portfolio and/or no more than 5% of a company’s total 

outstanding shares may be purchased.
 The sector weights of the portfolio must not exceed 30% absolute.
 No more than 25% of the market value of the portfolio will be invested in any single industry.
 Unless specifically authorized, the manager must not engage in transactions with stock option derivatives, short sales, 

purchases on margin, letter stocks, private placements, or commodities
 The manager is permitted to effect transactions in Russell 2000 Index Futures for the purpose of obtaining low cost temporary

market exposure.
 No more than 5% (at cost) of the portfolio may invest in American Depository Receipts (ADR’s). The use of other non-U.S. 

equity securities is prohibited.
 Investments in real estate investment trusts (REIT’s) is permitted.
 The cash holdings must not exceed 10% of the portfolio’s market value.

Trading
 Best execution.  

Proxy Voting
 The manager has sole responsibility for voting proxies of shares of companies in the portfolio.

Investment Policy Date: April 8, 2010

Summary of Guidelines 
Sacramento Regional Transit District

7



Since Inception*
QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs* 5 Yrs* 7 Yrs* 04/22/10 04/30/10
(%) (%) (%)  (%)  (%)  (%)  (%)  (%)

High Quality Small Cap (Gross) 3.62 5.46 16.09 11.19 15.55 17.26 14.58 14.88

High Quality Small Cap (Net) 3.42 5.04 15.18 10.32 14.64 16.34 N/A 13.98

Russell 2000® Index 2.46 4.99 24.60 7.36 13.70 14.35 11.07 11.49

Portfolio Inception Date: April 22, 2010

Net Investment Contributions: $6,347,634
Investment Dollars Earned: $18,438,707

Market Value (06/30/17): $24,786,341

Account Summary

Annualized Performance
As of June 30, 2017

Sacramento Regional Transit District

*Time periods greater than one year are annualized.
Performance reflects reinvestment of all income and capital gains (realized and unrealized).  
Results are based on the accrual method of accounting as well as trade date valuation.  
Returns are gross of fees unless otherwise noted.
Gross of fee returns do not reflect the deduction of management and custodial fees.  Net of fee returns reflect the deduction of the management fee accrued on a monthly basis.
Returns are based on the total assets of the client’s account, calculated on a daily basis, and geometrically linked to calculate returns for longer periods of time.  
The unmanaged indexes shown for comparative purposes do not reflect the subtraction of any fees or transaction costs.  It is not possible to directly invest in an index.
Past performance does not guarantee or predict future results.
Gross of fees inception date is 04/22/10. Net of fees inception date is 04/30/10.

8



Since Inception*
QTD YTD 1 Yr 3 Yrs* 5 Yrs* 7 Yrs* 04/22/10 04/30/10
(%) (%) (%)  (%)  (%)  (%)  (%)  (%)

High Quality Small Cap (Gross) 0.28 5.75 14.28 13.39 15.54 16.23 14.44 14.74

High Quality Small Cap (Net) 0.22 5.27 13.39 12.50 14.63 15.32 N/A 13.84

Russell 2000® Index 0.74 5.77 18.45 9.89 14.19 13.39 11.05 11.46

Annualized Performance
As of July 31, 2017

Sacramento Regional Transit District

Returns are preliminary
*Time periods greater than one year are annualized.
Performance reflects reinvestment of all income and capital gains (realized and unrealized).  
Results are based on the accrual method of accounting as well as trade date valuation.  
Returns are gross of fees unless otherwise noted.
Gross of fee returns do not reflect the deduction of management and custodial fees.  Net of fee returns reflect the deduction of the management fee accrued on a monthly basis.
Returns are based on the total assets of the client’s account, calculated on a daily basis, and geometrically linked to calculate returns for longer periods of time.  
The unmanaged indexes shown for comparative purposes do not reflect the subtraction of any fees or transaction costs.  It is not possible to directly invest in an index.
Past performance does not guarantee or predict future results.
Gross of fees inception date is 04/22/10. Net of fees inception date is 04/30/10.

9



Low Quality vs. High Quality Performance

Sources: FactSet

Advanced Micro Devices, Inc.
(AMD)

Manhattan Associates
(MANH)

10



Small Cap Transactions
July 1, 2016 – June 30, 2017

Purchases Sector

Second Quarter 2017
None

First Quarter 2017
None

Fourth Quarter 2016
None

Third Quarter 2016
ICU Medical, Inc. (ICUI) Health Care
Integra LifeSciences (IART) Health Care

Sales Sector

Second Quarter 2017
VCA (WOOF) Health Care

First Quarter 2017
CLARCOR (CLC) Discretionary

Fourth Quarter 2016
None

Third Quarter 2016
Monotype Imaging (TYPE) Technology
West Pharmaceutical (WST) Health Care

The specific securities identified are not representative of all of the securities purchased, sold or recommended for advisory clients. Actual holdings will vary for each client and there is no guarantee that a particular client’s account will
hold any or all of the securities listed. It should not be assumed that any of the above securities were or will be profitable. For a complete list of all recommendations made by Atlanta Capital for the High Quality Small Cap strategy during
the preceding 12 months, please contact the Performance Department at Atlanta Capital. This material is supplemental to the GIPS® presentation for the High Quality Small Capitalization Composite included at the end of this
presentation.

11



Sacramento Regional Transit District
High Quality Small Cap

Portfolio Characteristics
As of June 30, 2017

Metrics
Russell 2000® 

Index
Total 

Portfolio 0

# of Holdings 2,010 56 0
Wtd. Avg. Mkt. Cap (billions) $2.0 $3.3 $
Historical Earnings Growth 9% 6% %
Forecasted Earnings Growth 12% 11% %
Return on Equity 6% 16% %
Price/Earnings (NTM) 18.5x 22.8x x
Dividend Yield 1.3% 0.9% 0.0%

Top Ten Holdings %

Sector Exposure

Portfolio Metrics

Source: FactSet. Sector weight percentages shown are percentages of total equities.

Total Portfolio        S&P 500® Index        Russell 1000® Growth Index

Manhattan Associates 3.5
Blackbaud 3.2
AptarGroup 3.1
CoreLogic 3.1
Choice Hotels Int'l 2.8
Fair Isaac Corp. 2.7
Morningstar 2.7
WEX 2.7
Bio-Techne 2.4
Columbia Sportswear 2.4

24.0
20.2

15.7 14.7

7.3 7.2
5.2

1.2 1.1 0.0 0.0
3.5

14.6
17.1 18.1

12.5

2.7

15.1

4.4
7.5

3.6
0.9

3.7
0.0

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Industrials Information
Technology

Financials Consumer
Discretionary

Consumer
Staples

Health Care Materials Real Estate Energy Telecomm
Services

Utilities Cash

Total Portfolio Russell 2000® Index

12



Source: FactSet.

Current Portfolio Holdings
As of June 30, 2017

Sacramento Regional Transit District
High Quality Small Cap

High Quality Small Cap

Russell 2000® Index

Consumer Discretionary 14.7% 12.5% Health Care 7.2% 15.1%      Information Technology 20.2% 17.1%
     Bright Horizons (BFAM) 1.3%      Bio-Rad Labs (BIO) 1.7%      Blackbaud (BLKB) 3.2%
     Choice Hotels Int'l (CHH) 2.8%      Bio-Techne (TECH) 2.4%      Cass Information Sys (CASS) 1.1%
     Columbia Sportsw ear (COLM) 2.4%      ICU Medical (ICUI) 1.3%      CoreLogic (CLGX) 3.1%
     Dorman Products (DORM) 2.1%      Integra LifeSciences (IART) 1.8%      Fair Isaac Corp. (FICO) 2.7%
     Hibbett Sports (HIBB) 0.6% Industrials 24.0% 14.6%      Manhattan Associates (MANH) 3.5%
     Monro Muffler Brake (MNRO) 1.0%      AAON (AAON) 1.1%      National Instruments (NATI) 1.6%
     Pool Corp. (POOL) 1.9%      Advisory Board Co. (ABCO) 1.3%      Pow er Integrations (POWI) 1.4%
     Sally Beauty Hldgs. (SBH) 1.8%      Beacon Roofing Supply (BECN) 1.5%      ScanSource (SCSC) 0.9%
     Wolverine World Wide (WWW) 0.9%      Exponent (EXPO) 2.3%      WEX (WEX) 2.7%
Consumer Staples 7.3% 2.7%      Forw ard Air (FWRD) 1.8%      Materials 5.2% 4.4%
     Casey's General Stores (CASY) 2.3%      Graco (GGG) 1.5%      AptarGroup (ATR) 3.1%
     Inter Parfums (IPAR) 2.1%      HEICO Corp. A (HEI.A) 2.0%      Balchem Corp. (BCPC) 1.1%
     J&J Snack Foods Corp. (JJSF) 1.9%      Huron Consulting Group (HURN) 1.0%      Stepan Co. (SCL) 1.0%
     Lancaster Colony Corp. (LANC) 1.1%      Kirby Corp. (KEX) 2.2%      Real Estate 1.2% 7.5%
Energy 1.1% 3.6%      Knight Transportation (KNX) 2.0%      Universal Health Realty (UHT) 1.2%
     Dril-Quip (DRQ) 1.1%      Landstar System (LSTR) 1.7%      Telecommunication Services 0.0% 0.9%
Financials 15.7% 18.1%      Moog (MOG.A) 1.8%
     Artisan Partners (APAM) 1.1%      Raven Industries (RAVN) 1.4%      Utilities 0.0% 3.7%
     IBERIABANK Corp. (IBKC) 1.7%      UniFirst Corp. (UNF) 1.7%
     Morningstar (MORN) 2.7%      US Ecology (ECOL) 0.7%      Cash 3.5% 0.0%
     Navigators Group (NAVG) 1.8%
     Pinnacle Fin'l Partners (PNFP) 1.3%
     Prosperity Bancshares (PB) 1.5%
     RLI Corp. (RLI) 1.0%

Sector
Ending
Weight

13



Investment Outlook & Strategy
As of June 30, 2017

Outlook

Portfolio Positioning

 Low interest rates, positive economic growth, and generally solid corporate earnings drove small cap 
markets to all-time highs in the second quarter. 

 The Russell 2000® Index, a measure of the small cap segment of the U.S. equity universe, gained 
+2.5% in the second quarter, with growth-oriented sectors outperforming value.

 As small cap markets continue to make new highs, underlying valuations remain stubbornly rich. In 
times like these, when many stocks in the universe look expensive, we believe it is critical to focus on a 
portfolio of high quality stocks that should participate if markets move higher, and protect if markets face 
performance challenges. 

 During the 2nd quarter, we sold one portfolio holding after it received an offer to be acquired for a 
premium. We did not initiate any new positions.  

 At quarter end, the portfolio held 56 stocks representing nine of the eleven economic sectors in the 
Russell 2000®.

 Relative to the benchmark, the portfolio was overweight Industrials, Consumer Staples, Consumer 
Discretionary, and Technology.

 The portfolio was underweight Real Estate, Health Care, Financials, and Energy.  There are no positions 
in Utilities or Telecom Services.

High Quality Small Cap

14



GIPS Performance Information and Disclosure
High Quality Small Capitalization Composite (E7)

January 1, 2007 through June 30, 2017

Period Composite 
Gross  Return (%)

Composite
Net Return  (%)

Russell 2000®
Return  (%)

Composite 
3-yr Std. Dev. (%)

Russell 2000®
3-yr Std. Dev. (%)

Number of 
Portfolios

Internal
Dispersion (%)

Composite
Assets ($mil)

Firm
Assets ($mil)

2017(1) 5.31 4.90 4.99 12.10 15.17 52 0.14 1,529 18,907

2016 19.00 18.07 21.31 12.69 15.76 53 0.19 1,544 17,646

2015 5.12 4.29 -4.41 12.68 13.96 54 0.16 1,259 16,054

2014 3.60 2.78 4.89 10.52 13.12 56 0.24 1,235 16,707

2013 42.34 41.24 38.82 12.80 16.45 57 0.51 1,294 18,082

2012 12.24 11.36 16.35 16.63 20.20 60 0.22 996 14,235

2011 10.31 9.44 -4.18 21.88 24.99 60 0.25 1,023 11,964

2010 25.98 24.99 26.86 24.41 27.69 49 0.19 737 9,845

2009 27.17 26.18 27.17 21.69 24.83 36 0.34 639 7,748

2008 -19.41 -20.06 -33.79 16.62 19.85 38 0.34 494 6,199

2007 6.77 5.92 -1.57 10.66 13.17 37 0.25 551 8,828

Atlanta Capital Management Company, LLC claims compliance with the  Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS®) and has prepared and presented this report in compliance with the GIPS Standards.  Atlanta Capital 
Management has been independently verified for the periods January 1, 1999 through December 31, 2016.  

Verification assesses whether (1) the firm has complied with all the composite construction requirements of the GIPS standards on a firm-wide basis and (2) the firm’s policies and procedures are designed to calculate and present
performance in compliance with the GIPS standards. The High Quality Small Capitalization Composite has been examined for the periods January 1,1999 through December 31, 2016. The verification and performance examination
reports are available upon request.

Composite Description: The investment objective of this style is to seek long-term capital growth. Accounts in this composite invest in common stocks of companies having market capitalizations within the range of companies comprising the
Russell 2000®. Management seeks to invest in quality companies in strong financial condition whose equities are priced below their estimate of fair value. Characteristics of high quality companies include a history of sustained growth in earnings and
operating cash flow, high returns on capital, attractive profit margins and leading industry positions. Investments are determined based primarily on fundamental analysis of a company’s financial trends, products and services, and other factors.
Financial quality rankings provided by nationally-recognized rating services may be utilized as part of the investment analysis but are not solely relied upon. The portfolios are broadly diversified. All fully discretionary accounts that are managed in this
style and do not pay a bundled or SMA wrap fee are eligible for inclusion in the composite.
Benchmark: The benchmark for this composite is the Russell 2000® Index. The Index includes the smallest 2000 companies in the Russell 3000® and is a widely accepted measure of the small-cap segment of the U.S. equity universe. The index is
unmanaged and does not incur management fees, transaction costs or other expenses associated with managed accounts. It is not possible to directly invest in an index. Prior to July 1, 2005, the composite utilized two indexes as benchmarks, the
Russell 2000® and the Russell 2000® Value Index, the rationale being that the portfolio construction process produced both core and value characteristics. Our high quality investment philosophy tends to be defensive in nature and does consider
valuation metrics, but it is more consistent with the philosophy and process of a core manager than a value manager. In order to clarify our philosophy and process for potential clients, we determined that it is most appropriate to benchmark our
performance results against the Russell 2000® Index only. This change to the composite presentation was made as of July 1, 2005 and did not change the portfolio construction process.
Gross and Net Returns: Performance reflects reinvestment of all income and capital gains. Composite returns and market values are reported in U.S. dollars. Gross-of-fees performance returns are presented before management and custodial fees
but after all trading expenses. Returns are presented net of withholding taxes. Net-of-fees performance returns are calculated by deducting the highest management fee of 0.80% from the monthly gross-of-fees returns. Other expenses will reduce a
client’s returns. The annual fee schedule for this composite is as follows: 0.80% on the first $50 million in assets; 0.70% on the next $50 million in assets; 0.60% on the next $150 million. Actual management fees incurred by clients may vary.
Dispersion: The annual internal composite dispersion is calculated using the asset-weighted standard deviation of annual gross returns of those portfolios that were included in the composite for the entire year. The three-year annualized standard
deviation measures the variability of the composite and the benchmark returns over the preceding 36-month period.
Notes: The creation date of this composite is July 1992. Effective July 1, 2010, the composite was redefined to include both taxable and tax-exempt institutional accounts. The composite up to that time included only tax-exempt institutional
accounts. The change provides increased transparency to prospective clients by reducing the number of separate composites maintained for this strategy. There has been no change in investment objective or management style. Clients or
prospective clients should not assume that they will have an investment experience similar to that indicated by past performance results, as shown on the Schedule. Returns may vary based upon differences in account size, timing of transactions and
market conditions at the time of investment. Performance during certain time periods reflects the strong stock market performance and/or the strong performance of stocks held during those periods. This performance is not typical and may not be
repeated.
Firm Definition: Atlanta Capital Management Company, LLC (Atlanta Capital or the Firm) is an SEC-registered investment adviser located in Atlanta, Georgia. The Firm became a majority-owned subsidiary of Eaton Vance Corp. in 2001. Atlanta
Capital operates as an independent subsidiary of Eaton Vance and provides professional investment advisory services to a broad range of institutional and individual clients, and sub-advisory investment management to mutual funds and separately
managed sub-advisory account programs. Atlanta Capital includes all discretionary accounts under management in its composites; firm assets include nondiscretionary accounts as well. The Firm’s list of composite descriptions and policies for valuing
portfolios, calculating performance and preparing compliant presentations are available upon request. To request any additional information, please contact the Atlanta Capital Management Performance Department at 404-876-9411 or write to Atlanta
Capital Management Company, LLC, 1075 Peachtree Street NE, Suite 2100, Atlanta, Georgia 30309, Attention Performance Department.

(1) Period- 01/01/2017 through 06/30/2017.  Past performance does not predict or guarantee future results.

Annualized Returns (%) for Periods Ending June 30, 2017 Cumulative (%) 
Atlanta Capital High Quality Small Capitalization Composite 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 7 Years 10 Years Since Inception* Since Inception*
Composite Gross of Fees 15.78 11.23 15.68 17.32 12.08 12.85 2014.60
Composite Net of Fees 14.87 10.35 14.78 16.40 11.20 11.95 1629.36
Russell 2000® Index 24.60 7.36 13.70 14.35 6.92 9.48 885.35
*Inception date is April 1, 1992.
07.10.17

15



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 1
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

09/13/17 Retirement Information 08/15/17

Subject: Investment Performance Review by Boston Partners for the ATU, IBEW and
Salaried Retirement Funds for the Domestic Large Cap Equity Class for the Quarter
Ended June 30, 2017 (ALL). (Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

FINAL 08/28/17
VP Finance/CFO Senior Accountant

ISSUE

Investment Performance Review by Boston Partners for the ATU/IBEW and Salaried
Retirement Funds for the Domestic Large Cap Equity Class for the Quarter Ended June 30,
2017 (ALL). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Information Only.

FISCAL IMPACT

None.

DISCUSSION

Retirement funds are invested consistent with the Statement of Investment Objectives and
Policy Guidelines (Policy) adopted by each Retirement Board (Board). The Board shall meet
at least every eighteen (18) months with each investment manager to review the performance
of its investment, the adherence to the Policy, and any material changes to its organization.
The Policy also establishes the Retirement Funds’ asset allocation policy and the asset
classes in which the Plans funds are invested.  The asset classes established by the Policy are
(1) Domestic Large Capitalization Equity, (2) Domestic Small Capitalization Equity, (3)
International Large Capitalization Equity, (4) International Small Capitalization Equity (5)
International Emerging Markets, and (6) Domestic Fixed-Income.

Boston Partners is one of the Retirement Boards’ Domestic Large Capital Equity fund
managers. Boston Partners will be presenting performance results for the quarter ended June
30, 2017, shown in Attachment 1, and answering any questions.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
  21



September 13, 2017

Boston Partners Large Cap Value Equity

Prepared for Sacramento Regional Transit District

Carolyn M. Margiotti, CFA
Senior Portfolio Analyst
cmargiotti@boston-partners.com
+1 (415) 464-2882

JAdelman
Text Box
Attachment #1



Boston Partners   1

Who We Are
A Focused Investment Organization

• One philosophy and investment process that 
has been in place for 30 years

• All established disciplines have outperformed 
their benchmark since inception

• 150 employees:  Boston, New York, 
California, and London

* Data as of June 30, 2017.
Assets Under Management include:  Boston Partners ($90.2 B); WPG Partners ($1.2 B); and Redwood ($0.1 B).
Organizational information can be found in the appendix.

$91.5 Billion Assets Under Management*



Boston Partners   2

Boston Partners
"Three Circle" Stock Selection Criteria

We buy stocks that exhibit:

• Attractive value characteristics 

 and,

• Strong business fundamentals

 and,

• Catalyst for change

We sell stocks based on:

• Valuation:  Appreciation to price target

 or

• Weakening business fundamentals

 or

• Reversal of momentum

Portfolios with all three characteristics tend to outperform over time

BUSINESS
FUNDAMENTALS

What are we
buying?

VALUATION
How much are

we paying?

BUSINESS MOMENTUM
Is the business getting

better, staying the same,
or getting worse?



Boston Partners   3

Sacramento Regional Transit District
Statement of Changes:  Since Inception through June 30, 2017

Beginning Assets (6/29/05) $26.0 M

Net Cash Flows ($7.3 M)

Income Earned $7.4 M

Capital Appreciation $19.7 M

Ending Assets (6/30/17) $45.8 M



Boston Partners   4

Sacramento Regional Transit District
Investment Performance through June 30, 2017

Annualized Performance (%)

2Q
2017

YTD
2017

1
Year

3
Year

5
Year

7
Year

10
Year

Since 
Inception*

Sacramento Regional Transit District 2.7 6.8 20.9 7.8 14.9 15.3 7.8 9.4

Russell 1000® Value Index 1.3 4.7 15.5 7.4 13.9 14.3 5.6 7.4

Relative Performance 1.4 2.1 5.4 0.4 1.0 1.0 2.2 2.0

* Inception date is July 1, 2005.
Past performance is not an indication of future results.  Please refer to the appendix for other important disclosures.

2.7

6.8

20.9

7.8

14.9 15.3

7.8
9.4

1.3

4.7

15.5

7.4

13.9 14.3

5.6
7.4

0

5

10

15

20

25

2Q 2017 YTD 2017 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 7 Year 10 Year Since Inception*

Sacramento Regional Transit District Russell 1000® Value Index



Boston Partners   5

Boston Partners Market Observations
As of June 30, 2017

Discussions of securities returns and trends are not intended to be a forecast of future events or returns. The specifi c securities identifi ed and described do not represent all of the 
securities purchased, sold or recommended for advisory clients. It should not be assumed that investments in these sectors or securities were or will be profi table. Past performance is not 
an indication of future results. Please refer to the appendix for other important disclosures.

• Large cap value performance has rebounded sharply

 - Boston Partners Large Cap Value has outperformed the Russell 1000® Value Index by over 5% gross of fees for trailing 1 year period

 - Four consecutive quarters of outperformance vs. Russell 1000® Value Index

 - Our preference for high quality, inexpensive equities with positive business momentum while shunning expensive Utilities, REITs and 
Consumer Staples has propelled the rebound

• Global economic outlook continues to present challenges for investors

 - Soft data (surveys) improve while hard data (statistics) level out

 - Normalization of Fed Policy – raising rates and unwinding balance sheet – shows confi dence in economy while potentially slowing 
future growth

 - Wage infl ation will continue to be a key metric going forward

• We remain cautious and disciplined in this environment of heightened valuations

 - Proliferation of ETFs and indexing has created some valuation discrepancies in the market

 - High dividend yield stocks continue to appear expensive despite recent underperformance

 - Companies generating strong and growing cash fl ow that make smart capital allocation decisions continue to offer excellent 
investment opportunities

 — Airlines

 — Pharmaceuticals

 — Corporate restructurings 

 HP Enterprises/HP Inc./DXC Technology

 Dow/DuPont

 - Our time-tested, disciplined process has successfully navigated these diffi cult periods over the past 22 years



Boston Partners   6

Large Cap Value Relative Performance vs. Russell 1000® Value Index
The Rebound Since June 30, 2016

Source:  Boston Partners.
Performance results are gross of fees. This information is supplemental to the GIPS® compliant presentation herein. Past performance is not an indication of future results. Please refer to 
the last appendix for other important disclosures. 

1.03%

2.75%

3.67%

5.41%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

7/1/2016-9/30/2016 7/1/2016-12/31/2016 7/1/2016-3/31/2017 7/1/2016-6/30/2017

-8.0

-6.0

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

6/30/2016 9/30/2016 12/31/2016 3/31/2017 /2017

Quarterly Trailing Twelve Months
%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

Trailing Twelve Month Performance Impacted by 2Q'16 Low Vol Bubble



Boston Partners   7

Attractive Valuation & High Quality vs. Low Volatility
Which Would you Choose?

Source:  Factset.
Discussions of securities returns and trends are not intended to be a forecast of future events or returns. The securities identifi ed and described do not represent all of the securities 
purchased, sold or recommended for advisory clients. It should not be assumed that an investment in these securities was or will be profi table. Past performance in not an indication of 
future results.  Please refer to the appendix for other important disclosures.

-7.8

-2.0

3.0

53.0

31.9

23.9

1.2

11.5

2.5

61.7
66.1

11.0

6.2
3.7

5.6

27.0

76.1

-6.1

-20

-10

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Delta Airlines, Inc. Dow
Chemical

TE Connectivity AT&T Exxon
Mobil

Southern
Company

Increase in Net Debt, Total Dividends and Total Net Share Repurchases ($B) 
December 31, 2010-December 31, 2016

Change in Net Debt Total Dividends Paid Total Paid for Net Share Repurchases



Boston Partners   8

-18.1%

20.5%

-3.9%

38.1%

29.4%

24.2%

49.1%

31.4%

41.6%

-9.1%
-10.9%

-6.9%

-25.0%

-15.0%

-5.0%

5.0%

15.0%

25.0%

35.0%

45.0%

Delta Airlines, Inc. Dow
Chemical

TE Connectivity AT&T Exxon
Mobil

Southern
Company

Stock Price Performance

  9/30/2015 - 6/30/2016   7/1/2016 - 6/30/2017

Attractive Valuation & High Quality vs. Low Volatility
Which Would you Choose?

Source:  Bloomberg, Boston Partners.
Discussions of securities returns and trends are not intended to be a forecast of future events or returns. The securities identifi ed and described do not represent all of the securities 
purchased, sold or recommended for advisory clients. It should not be assumed that an investment in these securities was or will be profi table. Past performance in not an indication of 
future results.  Please refer to the appendix for other important disclosures.



Boston Partners   9

The Rise of the Benchmark

Source:  Bloomberg Intelligence, Sanford C. Bernstein, World Bank. Cash fl ows as of March 31, 2017; Graphic by Bloomberg BusinessWeek.



Boston Partners   10

....And Investors Have Chased Them, Unsuccessfully
U.S. Low-Volatility ETFs1 Annualized Relative Returns2 

Source:  Empirical Research.
1 Includes USMV, SPLV, and SPHD.
2 Money-weighted return approximates the return realized by actual investors, based on the timing of their allocations and withdrawals.
Calculation assumes all infl ows or outfl ows occur in the middle of each quarter. Benchmark is the S&P 500 Index.
Past performance is not an indication of future results. Please refer to the appendix for other important disclosures.

2011 Through April 2017

(1.5)

(1.0)

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

Money-Weighted Buy-and-Hold

%



Boston Partners   11

Russell 1000® Value Index eVestment Rank
January 1991 through December 2016 

1 year 3 year 5 year 10 year 20 year 25 year

Russell 1000® Value Index 68 53 49 79 75 72

Index Rankings in Large Cap Value Universe as of June 30, 2017

Top Quartile 1 Year Rank Subsequent Period eVestment Rank

Period eVestment Rank 1 year 3 year 5 year

4/92-3/93 14% 55% 58% 44%

7/92-6/93 19% 84% 83% 45%

10/92-9/93 23% 93% 82% 46%

1/97-12/97 17% 43% 56% 70%

4/97-3/98 22% 43% 67% 70%

7/97-6/98 24% 42% 73% 73%

1/06-12/06 15% 77% 88% 83%

4/06-3/07 22% 75% 85% 85%

10/11-9/12 23% 58% 56% – 

4/12-3/13 18% 63% 59% –

Average 20% 63% 71% 65%

1/16 - 12/16 24% ? ? ?

Data as of December 31, 2016.
Source:  eVestment Large Cap Value Universe quarterly observations.
eVestment Alliance, LLC and its affi liated entities (collectively, “eVestment”) collect information directly from investment management fi rms and other sources believed to be reliable, 
however, eVestment does not guarantee or warrant the accuracy, timeliness, or completeness of the information provided and is not responsible for any errors or omissions. Performance 
results may be provided with additional disclosures available on eVestment’s systems and other important considerations such as fees that may be applicable. Not for general distribution 
and limited distribution may only be made pursuant to client’s agreement terms. * All categories not necessarily included, Totals may not equal 100%. Copyright 2012-2016 eVestment 
Alliance, LLC. All Rights Reserved.



Boston Partners   12

The Case for Active Management
Boston Partners Large Cap Value Equity

$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

$60,000,000

$70,000,000

$80,000,000

$90,000,000

$100,000,000

1995 1997 1999 2001 2003 2005 2007 2009 2011 2013 2015

  Boston Partners LCV Net of Fees as of 6/30/2017

  Russell 1000® Value Index as of 6/30/2017

  S&P 500 Index as of 6/30/2017

Cumulative Growth of a $10 Million Investment June 1, 1995 to June 30, 2017 (Net of Fees)

$74.1 million

$91.9 million

$69.2 million

1 year 3 year 5 year 10 year 20 year 25 year

Boston Partners Large Cap Value 22 45 33 21 38 n/a

Russell 1000® Value Index 68 53 49 79 75 72

Index Rankings* in Large Cap Value Universe as of June 30, 2017

* Source:  eVestment Large Cap Value Universe quarterly observations. Please refer to the previous page for the full eVestment disclosure.
This is a hypothetical illustration of $10 million had it been invested in the Boston Partners Large Cap Value representative account since inception on June 1, 1995. The results of this 
illustration may be changed depending on investment guidelines and cash fl ow. This illustration is net of investment management fees.  This information is supplemental to the GIPS® 
compliant presentation herein. Past performance is not an indication of future results. Please refer to the appendix for other important disclosures.



Boston Partners   13

Sacramento Regional Transit District
Attractive Risk Adjusted Performance:  Since Inception* as of June 30, 2017

7.1

8.4

9.7

13.9 14.5 15.1

A
nn

ua
liz

ed
 R

at
e 

of
 R

et
ur

n

Annualized Standard Deviation

 Sacramento Regional Transit
  Russell 1000® Value Index
  S&P 500 Index
  Russell 1000® Growth Index

Ann. Return, Ann. Standard DeviationAnn. Return, Ann. Standard Deviation

* Inception data is July 1, 2005.
Returns are gross of fees and calculated on a monthly basis.  Past performance is not an indication of future results.  Please refer to the appendix for other important disclosures.

Sacramento Regional Transit 
(9.4%, 14.9%)

Russell 1000® Value Index (7.4%, 14.9%)

S&P 500 Index (8.4%, 14.1%)

Russell 1000® Growth 
Index (9.5%, 14.4%)

Risk/Return Analysis



Boston Partners   14

Sacramento Regional Transit District
Portfolio Characteristics:  June 30, 2017

* FCF Yield is reported as median excluding fi nancials.  
Portfolio characteristics are subject to change. Please refer to the appendix for other important disclosures.

Sacramento
RTD

R1000® 
Value S&P 500

OROA (5 Yr) 35.5% 27.0% 38.4%

ROE (5 Yr) 14.7% 10.8% 15.1%

LT EPS Gr. Rt. 13.6% 10.9% 12.4%

FundamentalsValuation

Sacramento
RTD

R1000® 
Value S&P 500

P/E (FY0) 15.4x 16.6x 18.6x

P/E (FY1) 13.6x 15.1x 16.7x

FCF Yield* 3.8% 2.9% 2.9%

Sacramento
RTD

Percent of companies 
with positive/neutral 
earnings momentum

86%

Business Momentum

"Three Circles" 

An attractive valuation, 

strong business 

fundamentals, 

and positive business 

momentum. Portfolios with 

all three characteristics tend 

to outperform over time. 


BUSINESS 

FUNDAMENTALS


BUSINESS MOMENTUM


VALUATION



Boston Partners   15

Sacramento Regional Transit District
Portfolio Characteristics:  June 30, 2017

Sector information is included solely for illustrative purposes regarding economic trends and conditions, or investment processes; and the specifi c securities identifi ed and described do
not represent all of the securities purchased, sold or recommended for advisory clients.  It should not be assumed that investments in these sectors or securities were or will be profi table. 
Please refer to the appendix for other important disclosures..

6.4

5.9

1.4

1.0

0.6

8.1

7.8

30.0

15.9

0.0

17.5

2.3

0.6

2.7

6.9

3.5

1.5

7.1

7.7

10.0

25.2

13.9

5.1

8.2

1.4

6.6

2.5

7.6

3.8

1.2

8.3

11.2

5.7

15.7

14.0

2.9

21.4

2.3

3.5

Basic Industries

Capital Goods

Communications

Consumer Durables

Consumer Non-Durables

Consumer Services

Energy

Finance

Health Care

REITs

Technology

Transportation

Utilities

Sacramento RTD Russell 1000®  Value Index S&P 500 Index

Sector Weightings (%)Largest Stock Holdings (%)

JPMorgan Chase & Co. 5.0

Bank of America Corporation 4.6

Citigroup Inc. 3.7

Berkshire Hathaway Inc. 3.7

Johnson & Johnson 3.2

Wells Fargo & Company 2.5

Chevron Corporation 2.5

Merck & Co., Inc. 2.4

Apple Inc. 2.3

Cisco Systems, Inc. 2.2

Total 32.1%

Weighted Average

Sacramento Regional Transit $141.9 B

Russell 1000® Value Index $108.9 B

S&P 500 Index $154.8 B

Market Capitalization



Boston Partners   

Boston Partners
Appendix



Boston Partners   17

Fund Flows have been to Areas of "Perceived Safety"

Assets YTD NCF TTM NCF
Equity MF $5.1 T -$43.7 B -$123 B     (Equity index funds are +$5B) 
Equity ETF $982 B $9.9 B $80 B* 

Equity ETF Fund Flows as of June 2016

Name 1-Mo QTD YTD 1-Yr
Vanguard 500 Index Fund 1,154 2,229 4,804 13,058
iShares Edge MSCI Min Vol USA 858 2,684 6,230 8,304
iShares Russell 1000 Value 646 1,095 (90) 2,694
Vanguard Small Cap Value Index Fund 579 1,037 1,310 1,614
iShares Core High Dividend 533 995 1,206 1,033
iShares Select Dividend 423 460 644 47
Vanguard High Dividend Yield Index Fund 421 869 2,043 2,751
SPDR® S&P Dividend ETF 384 92 (488) (126)
PowerShares S&P 500® High Div Low Vol 317 852 1,351 1,412
SPDR® Dow Jones Industrial Average ETF 272 (463) (1,191) 672
iShares S&P Mid-Cap 400 Value 252 319 507 583
Schwab US Dividend Equity ETF™ 249 519 512 991
Vanguard Dividend Appreciation Index 234 441 919 562
Vanguard Value Index Fund 206 1,308 2,201 2,965
PowerShares S&P 500 Low Volatility Port 205 579 1,247 2,086
First Trust Value Line® Dividend Fund 200 434 726 722
iShares S&P 500 Value 197 339 940 1,809
iShares Core S&P Total US Stock Mkt 182 328 1,037 1,623
Guggenheim S&P 500® Equal Weight ETF 171 383 (384) (1,374)
Vanguard Small Cap Index Fund 167 546 756 1,541
Vanguard Mid-Cap Value Index Fund 166 277 473 1,020
iShares Core S&P Small-Cap 165 356 285 1,582
Vanguard Large Cap Index Fund 162 815 893 1,510
Schwab US Large-Cap ETF™ 160 293 518 1,245
ProShares S&P 500 Dividend Aristocrats 153 531 924 1,203

Estimated Net Flow ($Mil)

Source: Morningstar, Inc.
Past performance is not an indication of future results. Please refer to the appendix for other important disclosures.



Boston Partners   18

Low Volatility Bubble?

“Stable” stocks have been bid up to very expensive levels; meanwhile the cheapest quintile of the market trades at the 
largest discount since the Tech Bubble

Source: The Leuthold Group 2016, J.P. Morgan & Factset Research Systems, Inc.
Leuthold 3000 Index is a custom index by The Leuthold Group that includes the largest 3,000 U.S. exchange traded equities, including approximately 2,600 common stocks and 400 
ADRs.  The Index is weighted by a tiered based system by Leuthold.  The Leuthold 3000 Low Volatility Index is the lowest decile (300 stocks) in terms of 12-month standard deviation of 
returns and is rebalanced monthly. 
Market is defi ned as the S&P 500 in Chart 2.
Past performance is not an indication of future results. Please refer to the appendix for other important disclosures.



Boston Partners   19

S&P 500 Sector Valuation
Consumer Staples and Utilities Appear Overvalued

Data as of June 2016.
Source:  Fundstrat Global Advisors.

t vs. Avg.
21.6

18.1 17.7

14.0

17.9
16.9

15.8
16.5

14.0

16.8

14.5

20.2 19.7 19.1

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

-15.0

-10.0

-5.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

Consumer
Staples

Utilities S&P 500 Financials Consumer
Discretionary

Technology Health Care

%
 Prem

ium
/Discount vs. Avg. 

Fo
rw

ar
d 

P/
E 

Ra
tio

Curent Forward P/E Ratio Avg. P/E since 1990 % Premium/Discount vs. Avg.



Boston Partners   20

Negative Sales Growth and EPS Growth, but Coca-Cola Stock Moves 
Higher

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Revenue $46,542 $48,086 $46,695 $45,953 $43,791

Y/Y Growth 3.3% -2.9% -1.6% -4.7%

P/E TTM 19.0x 18.4x 21.7x 26.4x 25.7x

Source: Factset Research Systems, Inc..
Discussions of securities returns and trends are not intended to be a forecast of future events or returns. The specifi c securities identifi ed and described do not represent all of the 
securities purchased, sold or recommended for advisory clients. It should not be assumed that investments in these sectors or securities were or will be profi table. Past performance is not 
an indication of future results. Please refer to the appendix for other important disclosures.



Boston Partners   21

Boston Partners Large Cap Value Performance
September 1, 2015 — June 30, 2016

Source: Factset Research Systems, Inc.
The information is supplemental to the GIPS® compliant presentation herein. Past performance is not an indication of future results. Please refer to the last appendix for other important 
disclosures.

Group R1000®V 
Return

BP Relative
Weight

Relative Contribution 
to BP Return

DY > 3% 19.5 -23.4   -2.31

DY < 3%   1.6 +23.4   -1.61

Total  8.9 -3.92

• High dividend yield 
has led the market

• Low P/E has not 
been rewarded

Dividend Yield

Group R1000®V 
Return

BP Relative
Weight

Relative Contribution 
to BP Return

P/E > 13.1  17.6 -17.1   -1.28

P/E < 13.1   -7.5 +17.1   -2.93

Total  8.9 -4.21

P/E FY1



Boston Partners   22

Boston Partners
Profi le:  June 30, 2017

* Key investment professionals have worked together since the founding of Boston Partners in 1995 and years before at a prior fi rm, where the investment philosophy was established.
Assets Under Management include:  Boston Partners ($90.2 B); WPG Partners ($1.2 B); and Redwood ($0.1 B).

Disciplines Assets ($ Millions)

Large Cap Value  $31,255 

Premium Equity (All Cap Value)  $12,611 

Mid Cap Value  $23,326 

Small Cap/Small Cap II/Small-Mid Cap  $4,355 

Domestic Long/Short  $8,874 

Global/International Equity  $8,043 

Global Long/Short  $1,539 

Emerging Markets Long/Short  $184 

 Value equity expertise founded in the early 1980s*


Consistent and repeatable investment 

philosophy across all disciplines 


Integrated bottom-up, fundamental and quantitative 

research


Expertise of a boutique with the depth of a

global fi rm

Investment Profi le $91.5 Billion Assets Under Management



Boston Partners   23

Boston Partners
Equity Investment Team

Mark Donovan, CFA
Large Cap Value Equity
36 years experience 

David Pyle, CFA
Large Cap Value Equity
22 years experience 

Martin MacDonnell, CFA
130/30 Large Cap Value
26 years experience 

Duilio Ramallo, CFA
Premium Equity
22 years experience 

Steven Pollack, CFA
Mid Cap Value
33 years experience 

David Dabora, CFA
Small/SMID Value
30 years experience 

George Gumpert, CFA
Small/SMID Value
18 years experience 

Robert Jones, CFA
Long/Short Equity
29 years experience 

Christopher Hart, CFA
Global, International, 
Global Long/Short
26 years experience 

Joshua Jones, CFA
Global, International, 
Global Long/Short
13 years experience 

Harry Rosenbluth, CFA
Senior Advisor 
36 years experience 

Portfolio Management and Portfolio Research

Todd Knightly
Director of Fundamental Research

Jessica Ballis, CFA
Retail, Apparel & Textiles

Brian Boyden, CFA
Healthcare Therapeutics,
Property REITs

Scott Burgess, CFA
Technology

Lawrence Chan, CFA
Internet Services,
Payment Services

David Cohen, CFA
Energy, Engineering & 
Construction

Paul Donovan, CFA
Basic Industries

Kevin Duggan, CFA
Banks, Transportation

Trevor Frankel, CFA
Global Generalist

Volkan Gulen, CFA
Consumer Staples, Business 
Services, Media & Advertising

David Hinton, CFA
Small Cap Generalist

Tim Horan
Industrials, Building & 
Construction, Autos

Ross Klein, CFA
Long/Short Generalist

Paul Korngiebel, CFA
Global Generalist

Stephanie McGirr
Health Care Services, Insurance, 
Restaurants

Edward Odre, CFA
Financial Services

Patrick Regan, CFA
Long/Short Generalist

Andrew Sherman, CFA
Utilities

Joshua White, CFA
Industrials
Global Generalist

Bruce Wimberly
Long/Short Generalist

Ronald Young, CFA
Aerospace & Defense, Gaming
& Lodging, Telecom & Cable

Fundamental and Quantitative Research

Mark Kuzminskas
Director of Equity Trading

Christopher Bowker
Senior Equity Trader 

Trading

Joseph Feeney, Jr., CFA
Chief Investment Offi cer
Long/Short Research 
32 years experience 

Paul Heathwood, CFA
Director of Portfolio Research
24 years experience

Daniel Farren
Senior Portfolio Analyst
23 years experience

John Forelli, CFA
Senior Portfolio Analyst
33 years experience

Carolyn Margiotti, CFA
Senior Portfolio Analyst
23 years experience

Michael McCune, CFA
Portfolio Analyst
23 years experience

Brandon Smith, CFA, CAIA
Portfolio Analyst
11 years experience

Michael Mullaney
Director of Global Markets Research
36 years experience

Christopher Eagan
Global Markets Analyst
32 years experience

Eric Connerly, CFA
Director of Quantitative
Research

Jason Bartlett, CFA
Quantitative Strategies

Pete Cady
Quantitative Strategies

Leo Fochtman
Quantitative Strategies

Rubina Moin
Quantitative Strategies

Maggy Pietropaolo, CFA
Quantitative Strategies

Joseph Urick
Quantitative Strategies

Carissa Wong, CFA
Quantitative Strategies

Thomas Walsh
Senior Equity Trader

Matthew Ender
Equity Trader

Ian Sylvetsky
Equity Trader

Christopher Spaziani
Equity Trading Assistant



Boston Partners   24

Boston Partners
Value Equity Investment Philosophy:  Three Core Principles

Value Discipline anchored in Three "Fundamental Truths":

• Low valuation stocks outperform high valuation stocks

• Companies with strong fundamentals (high returns on invested capital) 
outperform companies with poor fundamentals

• Stocks with positive business momentum (improving trends/rising earnings)
outperform stocks with negative momentum

"Characteristics-Based" Investment Approach:

• Valuation, fundamentals and momentum are analyzed using a bottom-up
blend of qualitative and quantitative inputs

Preservation of Capital:

• Laws of compounding mathematically dictate that protecting capital
is the only risk that matters

• “Win by not losing":  Keep pace in rising markets, outperform in falling
markets and diversify your exposure



Boston Partners   25

Your Boston Partners Team
Biographical and Contact Information for Sacramento Regional Transit District Relationship

Mark E. Donovan, CFA
Co-Chief Executive Offi cer and
Lead Portfolio Manager
mdonovan@boston-partners.com
+1 (617) 832-8246

Mr. Donovan is Co-Chief Executive Offi cer of Boston Partners and lead portfolio manager for 
BP Large Cap Value portfolios. He is responsible for strategic and tactical operating decisions 
affecting the fi rm.  He was one of the founding partners of Boston Partners Asset Management 
in 1995. He joined the fi rm from The Boston Company where he was Senior Vice President and 
equity portfolio manager. He also spent fi ve years as a consulting associate with Kaplan, Smith 
& Associates, and two years as a securities analyst for Value Line Inc. Mr. Donovan holds a B.S. 
degree in management from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute. He holds the Chartered Financial 
Analyst® designation. He has thirty-six years of investment experience.

David J. Pyle, CFA
Portfolio Manager
dpyle@boston-partners.com
+1 (415) 464-2892

Mr. Pyle is a portfolio manager for Boston Partners Large Cap Value portfolios. Prior to assuming 
this role, he was a research analyst covering the utility, insurance, leisure & lodging, packaging, 
publishing, and computer equipment & services sectors. Mr. Pyle joined the fi rm from State 
Street Research where he was a research analyst and associate portfolio manager in their 
equity value group. Prior to that, he spent fi ve years with Price Waterhouse. Mr. Pyle holds a 
B.S. degree in business administration from California State University, Chico, and an M.B.A. 
degree from the Kenan-Flagler School of Business at the University of North Carolina.  
Mr. Pyle holds the Chartered Financial Analyst® designation.  He has twenty-two years of 
investment experience.

Carolyn M. Margiotti, CFA
Senior Portfolio Analyst
cmargiotti@boston-partners.com
+1 (415) 464-2882

Ms. Margiotti is a senior portfolio analyst for Boston Partners and has extensive experience with 
all of the fi rm’s strategies.  She joined the fi rm in 2005 from PG&E Corporation where she was 
manager of investments for the company's more than $12 billion in pension, 401(k), and taxable 
trust assets.  Ms. Margiotti holds a B.S. degree from Purdue University and an M.B.A. degree 
from the University of San Francisco, McLaren School of Business. Ms. Margiotti is a member of 
the Financial Women’s Association of San Francisco and has served as an adjunct professor at 
the University of San Francisco and as an instructor for the CFA review program.  She holds the 
Chartered Financial Analyst® designation, FINRA licenses 7 and 63, and has twenty-three years 
of industry experience.

Kristin Butner
Client Service Associate
kbutner@boston-partners.com
+1 (213) 687-1676

Ms. Butner is a Client Service Associate at Boston Partners. She works with many of our key 
domestic and internationally focused clients. Prior to joining the fi rm in 2017, she was a Client 
Service Manager with Institutional Shareholder Services. She holds a B.A. degree in liberal arts 
from the University of Oklahoma. Ms. Butner has two years of industry experience.



Boston Partners   26

Sacramento Regional Transit District
Investment Guidelines and Objectives

Performance Objectives
  Over a minimum time horizon of three years, achieve a net of fee return that exceeds the 

Russell 1000® Value Index and a gross of fee return that ranks in the top half of a comparative 
universe of large cap value managers

Guidelines

Investable Universe

  U.S. equity securities

  International equity instruments* which trade on U.S.-based exchanges, including ADRs

  S&P 500 Stock Index Futures to obtain low cost temporary equity market exposure (not to be 
used to provide leveraged equity market exposure).  Futures transactions must be completed 
on a major U.S. exchange which guarantees contract compliance

  No stock options, short sales, purchases on margin, letter stocks, private placement securities 
or commodities

  No investment in securities issued by companies in the Tobacco Sub-Industry as defi ned by 
the Global Industry Classifi cation Standards (GICS), subject to the prudent investor rule as set 
forth in Article XVI Section 17 of the California Constitution

Diversifi cation

  Investment in the securities of a single issuer shall not exceed 5% (at cost) of the portfolio

  Investment in the securities of a single issuer shall not exceed 5% of the company’s total 
outstanding shares

  No individual economic sector will represent more than 35% of the portfolio (BP)

  No single industry shall represent more than 25% (at cost) of the portfolio market value

  International equity instruments and ADR’s will not comprise more than 5% of the total 
portfolio (at cost)

  Cash shall not exceed 10% of the portfolio market value

* International Equity Security (Non-U.S.) - refers to an issue of an entity, which is not organized under the laws of the United States and does not have its principal place 
of business within the United States.



Boston Partners   27

Constructing Your Total Portfolio - Large Cap Value Equity
Portfolio Characteristics Consistent with the Fundamental Truths

Portfolio risk controls can be customized to meet specifi c client guidelines.

Position Sizing

• % Upside

• Level of conviction

• Timing of catalyst

• Liquidity

Portfolio Construction

• 70 - 100 Securities

• Build portfolio stock by stock

•  Focus on attractive
characteristics

•  Opportunistic investment
across industries and sectors

Risk Controls

• Maximum position size: 
greater of 5% or benchmark 
weighting +1%

• Maximum sector weight 35%

• Typically cash < 5%

•  Compliance and Risk 
Committee oversight

Bottom-Up Research

• Minimum market cap $2B



Boston Partners   28

Boston Partners
Stock Selection Process

Quantitative
Analysis Fundamental Analysis

Investment Universe

Validate Positive 
Characteristics

FactSet:  Historical fi nancial 
statements, ratios, stock 
performance, earnings

revisions

Fundamental Research
Identify Catalyst

Determine Appropriate 
Valuation

Set Target Price

Investment
Decision

• • Statistical ranking based 
on composite score of 
three factors:

  Valuation: 
Multiples of earnings, 
cash fl ow, book value

  Momentum: 
Earnings surprise and 
estimate revisions

  Fundamentals: 
Operating returns on 
operating assets (OROA)

• • Target Rich
Environment

• • Valuation: 
How much are we paying?

  EV to Sales, Px to 
Earnings, EV to Cash 
fl ow, Px to Book, etc.

• • Momentum: 
Is the business improving
or deteriorating?

  Trend analysis: Profi t 
margins, asset turnover,  
working capital, debt 
structure

• • Business Fundamentals:
What are we buying?

  Sales and earnings 
growth, profi tability, 
liquidity, capital 
structure, intangible 
assets, ROIC/OROA

• • 10-Ks, 10-Qs, SEC fi lings

• • Press releases, 
Conference call 
transcripts, Street events

• • Management interviews

• • On-site company visits

• • Third-party research

• • Internal models/
projections

• • Channel/supplier checks

• • Construct portfolio

• • Monitor existing holdings

• • Evaluate company/
industry developments

• • Review/Adjust target 
prices



Boston Partners   29

Sacramento Regional Transit District
Investment Performance through July 31, 2017

Annualized Performance (%)

July 
2017

2Q
2017

YTD
2017

1
Year

3
Year

5
Year

7
Year

10
Year

Since 
Inception*

Sacramento Regional Transit District 1.4 2.7 8.2 18.9 8.6 15.0 14.5 8.3 9.5

Russell 1000® Value Index 1.3 1.3 6.1 13.8 8.5 14.0 13.5 6.2 7.4

Relative Performance 0.1 1.4 2.1 5.1 0.1 1.0 1.0 2.1 2.1

* Inception date is July 1, 2005.
Past performance is not an indication of future results.  Please refer to the appendix for other important disclosures.

1.4
2.7

8.2

18.9

8.6

15.0 14.5

8.3
9.5

1.3 1.3

6.1

13.8

8.5

14.0 13.5

6.2
7.4

0

5

10

15

20

Jul-17 2Q 2017 YTD 2017 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 7 Year 10 Year Since Inception*

Sacramento Regional Transit District Russell 1000® Value Index



Boston Partners   30

Tilting the Probabilities in Your Favor — The Results
Distribution of Rolling Three-Year Excess Returns as of June 30, 2017

The chart refl ects a ten-year time period.
Relative performance of the BP Large Cap Value is versus the Russell 1000® Value Index.  Returns refl ect composite results and individual portfolio results may vary. This information is 
supplemental to the GIPS® compliant presentation herein. Past performance is not an indication of future results. Please refer to the last appendix for other important disclosures.

Frequency
42 106
41 14
40
39
38
37 Dec-14
36 Nov-14
35 Sep-14
34 May-14
33 Mar-14
32 Feb-14
31 Jan-14
30 Dec-13
29 Nov-13
28 Sep-13
27 Aug-13
26 Jul-13
25 Oct-15 Nov-11
24 Aug-15 Sep-11
23 Jul-15 Aug-11 Jun-11
22 Jun-15 Jul-11 Apr-11
21 Jun-17 May-15 May-11 Mar-11
20 Apr-16 Mar-15 Dec-10 Feb-11
19 Mar-16 Feb-15 Nov-10 Jan-11
18 Feb-16 Jan-15 Oct-10 Jul-10
17 Jan-16 Oct-14 Sep-10 Jun-10
16 Dec-15 Aug-14 Aug-10 May-10
15 Nov-15 Jul-14 Jan-09 Apr-10
14 Sep-15 Jun-14 Dec-08 Mar-10
13 Apr-15 Apr-14 Nov-08 Feb-10
12 Mar-13 Oct-13 Oct-08 Jan-10
11 Feb-13 Jun-13 Sep-08 Dec-09
10 Jan-13 May-13 Jul-08 Nov-09
9 Mar-17 Dec-12 Apr-13 Jun-08 Oct-09
8 Feb-17 Nov-12 Mar-12 May-08 Sep-09
7 Jan-17 Oct-12 Jan-12 Apr-08 Aug-09
6 Dec-16 Sep-12 Dec-11 Feb-08 Jul-09
5 Oct-16 May-17 Aug-12 Oct-11 Jan-08 Jun-09
4 Sep-16 Apr-17 Jul-12 Aug-08 Dec-07 May-09
3 Aug-16 Nov-16 May-12 Mar-08 Nov-07 Apr-09
2 Jul-16 May-16 Apr-12 Sep-07 Oct-07 Mar-09
1 Jun-16 Jun-12 Feb-12 Jul-07 Aug-07 Feb-09

(8%+) (6-8%) (4-6%) (2-4%) (1-2%) (0-1)% 0-1% 1-2% 2-4% 4-6% 6-8% >8%

Relative Performance in percentage points

Periods Ahead of Benchmark
Periods Behind Benchmark

Boston Partners Large Cap Value Equity



Boston Partners   31

Boston Partners Large Cap Value Equity
Performance Traits throughout the Market's Cycles

63%

55%
58%

Large Cap Value Equity Has Preserved Capital and Compounded Returns for Favorable 10-Year Performance

Data as of June 30, 2017 for 10-year period.
Returns refl ect composite results and individual portfolio results may vary. This information is supplemental to the GIPS® compliant presentation herein. Past performance is not an 
indication of future results. Please refer to the last appendix for other important disclosures.

Percentage of the time that Large Cap Value Equity Composite has outperformed the Russell 1000® Value Index

• There have been 49 months in 
which the market has produced a 
negative return.

• Composite has outperformed the 
Index 63% of the time.

• There have been 71 months in 
which the market has produced a 
positive return.

• Composite has outperformed the 
Index 55% of the time.

• The entire period is 120 months.

• Composite has outperformed the 
Index 58% of the time.

"Down" Markets "Up" Markets Entire Period



Boston Partners   32

Boston Partners Large Cap Value Equity
Performance Attribution:  June 1, 1995 through June 30, 2017

0.
2

1.
3 2.
1

30
.3

33
.2

33
.2

8.
9

12
.2

6.
4

3.
9

10
.6 35
.1

1.
2

18
.6

8.
5

8.
2

4.
0 17

.4

-8
.3

4.
5

6.
1

5.
5

19
.4

0.
3

6.
9

9.
9

-20

0

20

40

60

Pe
rc

en
t  

(%
)

  Security Selection
  Sector Allocation

17
8.

6
10

1.
1

-100

-50

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Sectors are sorted from largest (+) overweight sector to largest (—) underweight sector relative to benchmark. Overweights and underweights represent averages over entire attribution 
period. Attribution is calculated using end of day security prices and returns shown are equity only and exclude cash. Results are from a representative account in the composite and are 
gross of fees. Individual portfolio results may vary. The information is supplemental to the GIPS® compliant presentation herein. Past performance is not an indication of future results. 
Please refer to the last appendix for other important disclosures.

Boston Partners Large Cap Value vs. Russell 1000® Value Index

Sector Allocation:  101.1% positive in 12 out of 13 sectors
Security Selection:  178.6% positive in 13 out of 13 sectors
Total Value Added:  279.7% positive in 13 out of 13 sectors

Total 18.8 9.8 10.3 34.3 50.6 24.9 13.4 18.3 11.9 23.3 10.9 42.1 11.1 279.7



Boston Partners   33

Calendar Year Performance (%)

2008201120142015 2009201020132016 20072012

Large Cap Value - Gross of Fees -32.951.2911.85-4.08 26.7513.7537.1414.74 5.1421.27

Large Cap Value - Net of Fees -33.170.8211.49-4.37 26.3013.3636.6414.40 4.8020.66

Russell 1000® Value Index -36.850.3913.45-3.83 19.6915.5132.5317.34 -0.1717.51

S&P 500 Index -37.002.1113.691.38 26.4615.0632.3911.96 5.4916.00

Boston Partners Large Cap Value Equity
Investment Performance through June 30, 2017

Annualized Performance (%)

3
Year

7
Year

5
Year

10
Year

Since
Inception*

1
Year

2Q
2017

YTD
2017

Large Cap Value - Gross of Fees 10.952.69 20.94 7.65 14.66 15.08 7.636.89

Large Cap Value - Net of Fees 10.562.61 20.58 7.32 14.27 14.66 7.256.73

Russell 1000® Value Index 9.491.34 15.53 7.36 13.94 14.31 5.574.66

S&P 500 Index 9.153.09 17.90 9.61 14.63 15.41 7.189.34

* Inception date is June 1, 1995.
Boston Partners has prepared and presented this report in compliance with the GIPS®. Returns refl ect composite results and individual portfolio results will vary.  Past performance is not 
an indication of future results. Please refer to the appendix for other important disclosures.



Boston Partners   34

Boston Partners
Equity Investment Performance through June 30, 2017

Performance (%)

2Q
2017

YTD
2017

1
Year

3
Year

5
Year

7
Year

10
Year

Since 
Inception* 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Large Cap Value - Gross of Fees 2.69 6.89 20.94 7.65 14.66 15.08 7.63 10.95 14.74 -4.08 11.85 37.14 21.27 1.29 13.75 26.75 -32.95 5.14

Large Cap Value - Net of Fees 2.61 6.73 20.58 7.32 14.27 14.66 7.25 10.56 14.40 -4.37 11.49 36.64 20.66 0.82 13.36 26.30 -33.17 4.80

Russell 1000® Value Index 1.34 4.66 15.53 7.36 13.94 14.31 5.57 9.49 17.34 -3.83 13.45 32.53 17.51 0.39 15.51 19.69 -36.85 -0.17

S&P 500 Index 3.09 9.34 17.90 9.61 14.63 15.41 7.18 9.15 11.96 1.38 13.69 32.39 16.00 2.11 15.06 26.46 -37.00 5.49

130/30 Large Cap Value
- Gross of Fees 2.71 7.86 22.53 8.51 15.86 15.98 8.36 8.92 14.05 -3.69 14.52 38.71 21.67 2.06 12.90 25.46 -29.44 3.51*

130/30 Large Cap Value - 
Net of Fees 2.65 7.73 22.25 8.27 15.62 15.72 7.89 8.42 13.79 -3.90 14.31 38.46 21.40 1.82 12.37 24.24 -30.16 2.66*

Russell 1000® Value Index 1.34 4.66 15.53 7.36 13.94 14.31 5.57 6.03 17.34 -3.83 13.45 32.53 17.51 0.39 15.51 19.69 -36.85 0.13*

Premium Equity - Gross of Fees 2.95 8.34 22.35 10.46 16.84 16.00 9.47 13.33 15.73 1.71 13.22 39.73 16.27 -1.01 14.78 33.16 -26.62 2.49

Premium Equity - Net of Fees 2.81 8.04 21.65 9.86 16.23 15.39 8.89 12.77 15.08 1.15 12.65 39.04 15.72 -1.55 14.18 32.45 -27.05 2.01

Russell 3000® Value Index 1.29 4.32 16.21 7.32 13.89 14.24 5.59 9.53 18.40 -4.13 12.70 32.69 17.55 -0.10 16.23 19.76 -36.25 -1.01

S&P 500 Index 3.09 9.34 17.90 9.61 14.63 15.41 7.18 9.15 11.96 1.38 13.69 32.39 16.00 2.11 15.06 26.46 -37.00 5.49

Mid Cap Value - Gross of Fees 2.16 6.74 19.68 10.70 17.90 18.31 11.01 13.82 16.29 2.84 14.37 41.04 19.78 1.68 24.79 42.04 -31.84 6.24

Mid Cap Value - Net of Fees 2.07 6.57 19.27 10.33 17.44 17.73 10.39 13.13 15.90 2.49 14.00 40.48 18.90 0.88 23.93 41.13 -32.36 5.57

Russell Midcap® Value Index 1.37 5.18 15.93 7.46 15.14 15.29 7.23 11.58 20.00 -4.78 14.75 33.46 18.51 -1.38 24.75 34.21 -38.45 -1.42

Small/Mid Cap Value -
Gross of Fees 2.02 4.18 25.65 7.89 15.27 15.13 8.31 11.75 25.35 -3.06 5.34 35.33 23.97 -1.57 18.07 43.89 -30.65 -6.69

Small/Mid Cap Value - 
Net of Fees 1.86 3.85 24.84 7.17 14.50 14.32 7.49 10.93 24.51 -3.71 4.65 34.37 23.08 -2.31 17.05 42.69 -31.31 -7.53

Russell 2500™ Value Index 0.32 1.95 18.36 6.21 13.69 14.10 6.52 10.31 25.20 -5.49 7.11 33.32 19.21 -3.36 24.82 27.67 -31.99 -7.27

Russell 2500™ Index 2.13 5.97 19.84 6.93 14.04 14.78 7.42 9.72 17.59 -2.90 7.07 36.80 17.88 -2.51 26.71 34.38 -36.79 1.38

* Inception dates are as follows:  Large Cap Value is June 1, 1995; 130/30 Large Cap Value is March 1, 2007;  Premium Equity is June 1, 1995; Mid Cap Value is May 1, 1995;
and Small/Mid Cap Value is April 1, 1999.
Boston Partners has prepared and presented this report in compliance with the GIPS®. Returns refl ect composite results and individual portfolio results will vary.
Past performance is not an indication of future results.  Please refer to the last appendix for other important disclosures.



Boston Partners   35

Boston Partners
Equity Investment Performance through June 30, 2017 (continued)

Performance (%)

2Q
2017

YTD
2017

1
Year

3
Year

5
Year

7
Year

10
Year

Since 
Inception* 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Small Cap Value - Gross of Fees 2.27 3.11 25.22 7.09 14.78 14.83 8.70 13.53 25.63 -3.77 4.76 35.27 22.85 -2.13 22.50 44.74 -30.18 -5.18

Small Cap Value - Net of Fees 2.09 2.73 24.29 6.26 13.89 13.92 7.81 12.62 24.69 -4.53 3.93 34.21 21.85 -2.93 21.45 43.49 -30.82 -6.00

Russell 2000® Value Index 0.67 0.54 24.86 7.02 13.39 13.50 5.92 10.32 31.74 -7.47 4.22 34.52 18.05 -5.50 24.50 20.56 -28.92 -9.78

Russell 2000® Index 2.46 4.99 24.60 7.36 13.70 14.35 6.92 9.03 21.31 -4.41 4.89 38.82 16.35 -4.18 26.85 27.16 -33.79 -1.56

Small Cap Value Equity II
- Gross of Fees 2.13 2.51 24.81 8.09 15.43 15.25 8.73 12.87 27.35 -3.27 5.35 36.53 24.54 -2.29 20.32 49.82 -33.80 -5.71

Small Cap Value Equity II
- Net of Fees 1.90 2.05 23.70 7.09 14.37 14.14 7.65 11.70 26.21 -4.19 4.37 35.28 23.42 -3.45 19.09 48.31 -34.53 -6.77

Russell 2000® Value Index 0.67 0.54 24.86 7.02 13.39 13.50 5.92 8.44 31.74 -7.47 4.22 34.52 18.05 -5.50 24.50 20.56 -28.92 -9.78

Long/Short Equity - Gross of Fees -3.09 -2.94 10.37 6.33 9.36 13.13 12.91 13.50 25.71 1.15 7.16 10.37 15.40 8.68 29.54 85.95 -20.03 -1.71

Long/Short Equity - Net of Fees -3.33 -3.42 9.10 5.18 8.16 11.75 11.20 10.85 24.03 0.17 6.04 9.17 14.06 7.39 26.55 81.74 -21.71 -3.77

S&P 500 Index 3.09 9.34 17.90 9.61 14.63 15.41 7.18 6.77 11.96 1.38 13.69 32.39 16.00 2.11 15.06 26.46 -37.00 5.49

Long/Short Research
- Gross of Fees 1.28 4.32 10.37 5.71 10.07 10.52 7.90 8.07 5.21 3.02 8.68 19.70 14.73 5.35 9.33 18.67 -8.46 9.85

Long/Short Research
- Net of Fees 0.97 3.69 9.02 4.41 8.71 9.16 6.57 6.74 3.91 1.74 7.34 18.23 13.32 4.05 7.98 17.22 -9.60 8.49

S&P 500 Index 3.09 9.34 17.90 9.61 14.63 15.41 7.18 7.19 11.96 1.38 13.69 32.39 16.00 2.11 15.06 26.46 -37.00 5.49

* Inception dates are as follows:  Inception dates are as follows:  Small Cap Value is July 1, 1995; Small Cap Value Equity II is July 1, 1998; 
Long/Short Equity is August 1, 1997; and Long/Short Research is April 1, 2002. 
Boston Partners has prepared and presented this report in compliance with the GIPS®. Returns refl ect composite results and individual portfolio results will vary.
Past performance is not an indication of future results. Please refer to the last appendix for other important disclosures.



Boston Partners   36

Boston Partners
Equity Investment Performance through June 30, 2017 (continued)

Performance (%)

2Q
2017

YTD
2017

1
Year

3
Year

5
Year

7
Year

Since 
Inception1 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Global Equity 
- Gross of Fees 3.98 10.03 19.88 7.18 14.09 14.41 8.36 9.47 1.89 5.54 35.12 17.26 -1.77 13.46 29.62

Global Equity
- Net of Fees 3.79 9.63 19.00 6.38 13.24 13.54 7.53 8.65 1.11 4.74 34.11 16.37 -2.55 12.56 28.60

MSCI World Index 4.21 11.02 18.86 5.83 12.01 12.00 6.34 8.15 -0.32 5.50 27.37 16.53 -5.01 12.34 30.79

MSCI ACWI Index 4.45 11.82 19.42 5.40 11.14 11.07 5.83 8.49 -1.84 4.71 23.45 16.78 -6.87 13.20 35.41

International Equity
- Gross of Fees 6.43 13.14 20.19 2.95 11.36 11.25 4.57 0.76 3.54 -3.65 31.47 18.67 -6.20 10.63 27.88

International Equity
- Net of Fees 6.24 12.74 19.33 2.19 10.54 10.42 3.77 0.01 2.77 -4.37 30.51 17.79 -6.90 9.73 26.87

MSCI EAFE Index 6.37 14.23 20.83 1.61 9.18 8.40 2.89 1.51 -0.39 -4.49 23.29 17.90 -11.75 8.21 32.46

MSCI ACWI Ex US Index 4.81 13.18 19.65 0.89 7.46 6.97 2.37 5.01 -5.25 -3.44 15.78 17.39 -13.33 11.60 42.14

Global Long/Short
- Gross of Fees 0.78 3.10 6.77 6.02 — — 7.39 4.34 8.73 4.36 8.961 — — — —

Global Long/Short
- Net of Fees 0.28 2.08 4.66 3.97 — — 5.37 2.28 6.59 2.55 8.021 — — — —

MSCI World Index 4.21 11.02 18.86 5.83 — — 10.27 8.15 -0.32 5.50 17.081 — — — —

Emerging Markets Long/Short
- Gross of Fees 5.44 15.94 20.52 — — — 8.40 8.08 -3.671 — — — — — —

Emerging Markets Long/Short
- Net of Fees2 4.93 14.75 17.95 — — — 6.03 5.69 -5.471 — — — — — —

MSCI Emerging Markets Index 6.38 18.59 24.15 — — — 3.74 11.59 -17.671 — — — — — —

1 Inception dates are as follows:  Global Equity USA is July 1, 2008; International Equity is July 1, 2008; Global Long/Short Equity is July 1, 2013; and Emerging Markets Long/Short 
Equity is March 1, 2015. 
2 Net of fees is calculated using a model fee of 2.25% annually calculated on a month-end basis.
Boston Partners has prepared and presented this report in compliance with the GIPS®. Returns refl ect composite results and individual portfolio results will vary.
Returns are shown in USD. Past performance is not an indication of future results. Please refer to the last appendix for other important disclosures.



Boston Partners   37B P

Boston Partners
Performance Disclosures

Boston Partners Global Investors, Inc. ("Boston Partners") is an 
Investment Adviser registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940. Boston 
Partners is a subsidiary of Robeco Groep N.V. (“Robeco”), a Dutch 
investment management fi rm headquartered in Rotterdam, the 
Netherlands. Boston Partners updated its fi rm description as of 
January 1, 2015 to refl ect changes in its divisional structure. 
Boston Partners is comprised of three divisions, Boston Partners, 
Weiss, Peck & Greer Partners (“WPG”), and Redwood Equity 
(“Redwood”). 
Boston Partners claims compliance with the Global Investment 
Performance Standards (GIPS®) and has prepared and presented 
this report in compliance with the GIPS® standards. Boston 
Partners has been independently verifi ed for the periods 2007 
through 2015. Verifi cation assesses whether (1) the Firm has 
complied with all the composite construction requirements of 
the GIPS® standards on a fi rm-wide basis and (2) the Firm’s 
policies and procedures are designed to calculate and present 
performance in compliance with the GIPS® standards. 
The composites have been examined per the following periods:  
Boston Partners Large Cap Value Equity,1995 to 2015; Boston 
Partners Alpha Extension Large Cap Value Equity, 2012 to 2015; 
Boston Partners Premium Equity, 1995 to 2015; Boston Partners 
Mid Cap Value Equity, 1995 to 2006 and 2010 to 2015; Boston 
Partners Small/Mid Cap Value Equity, 1999 to 2015; Boston 
Partners Small Cap Value Equity, 1995 to 2015; Boston Partners 
Small Cap Value II Equity, 1998 to 2015; Boston Partners Long/
Short Research, 2011 to 2015; Boston Partners Global Equity 
II, 2012 to 2015; Boston Partners International Equity II, 2008 
to 2015; Boston Partners Global Long/Short, 2013 to 2015. The 
verifi cation and performance examination reports are available 
upon request.
Past performance is not indicative of future results. This 
document is not an offering of securities nor is it intended 
to provide investment advice. It is intended for information 
purposes only.

Composite Construction(s)
Performance results attained at Boston Partners have been linked 
to the results achieved at BPAM beginning on January 1, 2007 
in compliance with the GIPS® standards on performance record 
portability. Composites include all separately managed and 
commingled vehicles, fully discretionary, fee-paying accounts 
under management with a similar investment mandate and an 
account market value greater than $1 million with the exception 
of Boston Partners Small Cap Value Equity and Small Cap Value 
II Equity which have an account market value greater than $5 
million. Prior to January 1, 2007 the minimum account size 
for inclusion in the composite was $5 million. The composites 
contain proprietary assets. 

The inception and creation date of the Boston Partners Large 
Cap Value Equity composite is June 1, 1995. The strategy is 
composed of securities with market capitalizations primarily 
greater than $3 billion and is benchmarked against the S&P 500 
Index and the Russell 1000® Value Index. Prior to December 
1, 1995, there was no minimum market value requirement 
for inclusion in the Boston Partners Large Cap Value Equity 
composite. Accounts that did not meet the newly established 
minimum balance requirement were removed on that date. 
The inception date and creation date of the Boston Partners 
Alpha Extension Large Cap Value Equity composite is March 
1, 2007.  The strategy is an actively managed Large Cap Value 
strategy that utilized long and short equity position to generate 
alpha.  The strategy is permitted to short 30% of the portfolio 
and reinvests the proceeds of those shorts into the securities that 
the manager fi nds attractive, creating a 130% long portfolio and 
a 30% short portfolio.  The strategy is benchmarked against the 
Russell 1000® Value Index.  
The inception and creation date of the Boston Partners Premium 
Equity composite is June 1, 1995. The strategy is a hybrid of 
Boston Partners’ other equity products.  It has the fl exibility 
to invest across the capitalization spectrum and to invest in 
securities with equity-like return and risk profi les. Boston 
Partners Premium Equity is benchmarked against the S&P 500 
Index and the Russell 3000® Value Index. 
The inception and creation date of the Boston Partners Mid Cap 
Value Equity composite is May 1, 1995. Effective March 1, 2006, 
the Mid Cap Value Equity strategy is composed of securities 
primarily in the same market capitalization range, at time of 
purchase, as the Russell Midcap® Value Index. Effective January 
1, 2005 the Boston Partners Mid Cap Value composite revised its 
benchmark from the Russell 2500™ Value Index to the Russell 
Midcap® Value Index. The Russell Midcap® Value Index has less 
of a bias toward smaller capitalization stocks and thus more 
accurately refl ects the composition of Boston Partners holdings. 
The inception and creation date of the Boston Partners Small/
Mid Cap Value Equity composite is April 1, 1999.  The strategy 
is composed of securities primarily in the $100 million to $10 
billion market capitalization range and is benchmarked against 
the Russell 2500™ Value Index. 
The inception and creation date of the Boston Partners Small 
Cap Value Equity composite is July 1, 1995.  The strategy is 
composed of securities primarily in the $100 million to $1.5 
billion market capitalization range and is benchmarked against 
the Russell 2000® Value Index.
The inception date of the Boston Partners Small Cap Value II 
Equity composite is July 1, 1998. The composite was created 
in 2000. The strategy is composed of securities primarily in 

the $10 million to $1 billion market capitalization range and is 
benchmarked against the Russell 2000® Value Index.  
The inception date and creation date of the Boston Partners 
Long/Short Equity composite is August 1, 1997.  The strategy 
is an absolute return product that balances long and short 
portfolio strategies and seeks to achieve stable absolute returns 
with approximately half the risk of the S&P 500.  However, this 
product is not risk neutral.  It is exposed to style, capitalization, 
sector and short-implementation risks. Use of the S&P 500 Index 
is for comparative purposes only since investment returns are 
not correlated to equity market returns.  Prior to October 1, 
1998, the composite was managed on a non-fee paying basis.  
Participant results would have been substantially different 
if fee waivers were not applied.  Commencing on October 1, 
1998 and continuing each quarter thereafter, the net of fee 
calculation includes a model fee for each commingled account 
included in the composite, and when applicable, the actual 
fees assessed for each separately managed portfolio included 
in the composite.  The model fee, which is comprised of an 
investment management fee and performance fee, represents the 
deduction of the highest fee that could have been earned based 
on actual results during the performance period. In addition, 
other expenses typically borne by the commingled accounts, 
as defi ned in the applicable offering documents, have been 
applied. However, from time-to-time the commingled accounts 
may have placed a ceiling on the amount of expenses it had 
incurred.  Although performance fees are paid annually when 
earned, for presentation of net returns, performance fees, similar 
to management fees and expenses, are accrued for on a monthly 
basis.  Actual fees may vary. The composite is benchmarked 
against the S&P 500 Index and the Russell 3000® Value/Russell 
3000® Growth for comparative purposes only since the strategy 
is not correlated to equity market returns. 
The inception and creation date of the Boston Partners Research 
Equity composite is April 1, 2002. This strategy is an absolute 
return product that balances long and short portfolio strategies 
and seeks to achieve stable absolute returns with approximately 
half the risk of the S&P 500 Index. The strategy is benchmarked 
against the S&P 500 Index. 
The inception and creation date of the Boston Partners 
Global Equity II composite is July 1, 2008.  This strategy is 
unconstrained and primarily invests in equity securities in the 
global market without using hedges on currency. 
The inception date and creation date of the Boston Partners 
International Equity II composite is July 1, 2008.  This strategy is 
unconstrained and primarily invests in non-us markets without 
using currency hedges.  The strategy is benchmarked against 
the MSCI EAFE Index. From July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2010 the 



Boston Partners   38

Boston Partners
Performance Disclosures (continued)

primary benchmarks was MSCI EAFE Value Index and on July 1, 
2010 the primary benchmark change to the MSCI EAFE.
This change to the MSCI EAFE Index was made retroactively to 
July 1, 2008.  
The inception and creation date of the Boston Partners Global 
Long/Short Equity composite is July 1, 2013.  The strategy is 
composed of securities with market capitalizations primarily 
greater than $50 million and is benchmarked against the MSCI 
World Index.
The inception and creation date of the Boston Partners Europe 
Equity composite is May 1, 2015.  This strategy is unconstrained 
and primarily invests in equity securities in the European market 
without using hedges on currency.
The Inception and creation of the Boston Partners Emerging 
Markets Long/Short composite is March 1, 2015. The strategy 
is composed of securities with market capitalizations primarily 
greater than $25 million and is benchmarked against the MSCI 
Emerging Markets Index.

Benchmarks
Index returns are provided for comparison purposes only to 
show how the composite’s returns compare to a broad-based 
index of securities, as the indices do not have costs, fees, or other 
expenses associated with their performance.
In addition, securities held in either index may not be similar to 
securities held in the composite’s accounts. The S&P 500 Index is 
an unmanaged index of the common stocks of 500 widely held 
U.S. companies. All Russell® Indices are registered trademarks of 
the Frank Russell Company.  The Russell® Value Indices typically 
measure the performance of universes of stocks displaying low 
price-to-book ratios and low forecasted growth values.  The 
Russell® Growth Indices typically measure the performance of 
universes of stocks displaying high price-to-book ratios and high 
forecasted growth values. The Russell 1000® Index measures 
the performance of the 1,000 largest companies in the Russell 
3000® Index. The Russell 3000® Index measures performance 
of the 3,000 largest U.S. companies based on total market 
capitalization. The Russell 2500™, and 2000® Indices measure 
performance of the 2,500 and 2,000 smallest companies in the 
Russell 3000® Index respectively. The Russell Midcap® Index 
measures the performance of the 800 smallest companies in the 
Russell 1000® Index. The MSCI World Index covers the full range 
of developed, emerging and All Country MSCI International 
Equity Indices across all size segmentations. MSCI uses a 
two-dimensional framework for style segmentation in which 
value securities are categorized using a multi-factor approach, 
which uses three variables to defi ne the value investment style 
characteristics and fi ve variables to defi ne the growth investment 

style characteristics including forward looking variables. The 
objective of the index design is to divide constituents of an 
underlying MSCI Equity Index into respective value and growth 
indices, each targeting 50% of the free fl oat adjusted market 
capitalization of the underlying market index. The MSCI EAFE 
Index is broadly recognized as the pre-eminent benchmark for 
U.S. investors to measure international equity performance. It 
comprises the MSCI country indexes capturing large and mid-
cap equities across developed markets in Europe, Australasia 
and the Far East, excluding the U.S. and Canada. 
The MSCI Europe Index is a free fl oat‐adjusted market 
capitalization weighted index that is designed to measure the 
equity market performance of the developed markets in Europe. 

The MSCI World Index represents large and mid-cap equity 
performance across 23 developed markets countries, covering 
approximately 85% of the free fl oat-adjusted market 
capitalization in each. This index offers a broad global equity 
benchmark, without emerging markets exposure.
MSCI Emerging Markets Standard Index (net return): The 
MSCI Emerging Markets indices are designed to measure 
the type of returns foreign portfolio investors might receive 
from investing in emerging market stocks that are legally 
and practically available to them. Constituents for the MSCI 
series are drawn from the MSCI stock universe based on size, 
liquidity, and their legal and practical availability to foreign 
institutional investors. 

The MSCI World Small Cap Value Index captures small cap 
securities exhibiting overall value style characteristics across 
23 Developed Markets countries. The value investment style 
characteristics for index construction are defi ned using three 
variables:  book value to price, 12-month forward earnings 
to price and dividend yield. With 2,582 constituents, the 
index targets 14% coverage of the free fl oat-adjusted market 
capitalization in each country. 

Calculation Methodology
Account returns are market value weighted and calculated on 
a total return basis using trade date valuations. Returns refl ect 
the reinvestment of dividends and other earnings, and are net of 
commissions and transaction costs. Performance is expressed in 
U.S. Dollars.  Short sales are an integral part of the investment 
strategy and constitute the use of leverage.  Accounts are 
temporarily removed from the composite when a signifi cant cash 
fl ow occurs, which is typically defi ned as a fl ow that is greater 
than 10% of the account value that exceeds a threshold of +/- 
20 basis points from daily performance of the representative 
account and a similar account of the same strategy.  An 

account is generally added back to the composite as of the 
fi rst full month following the signifi cant cash fl ow.  Additional 
information regarding policies for valuing portfolios, calculating 
performance, and presenting compliant presentations is available 
upon request.

Fees and Expenses
Composite returns are provided on a gross and net of fees basis. 
Account returns will be reduced by any fees and expenses 
incurred in the management of the account. In general, actual 
fees may vary depending on the applicable fee schedule and 
portfolio size. Net of fees returns for commingled vehicles that 
are members of a composite are calculated using a model fee that 
is the highest tier in the separate account fee schedule for the 
strategy. Fees are applied to gross returns at month end.
Returns refl ect the reinvestment of dividends and other 
earnings, and are net of commissions and transaction 
costs. Performance is expressed in U.S. Dollars. Additional 
information regarding policies for valuing portfolios, 
calculating performance, and presenting compliant 
presentations is available upon request. 
Investment advisory fees are listed herein and are fully described 
in Boston Partners’ Form ADV, Part II. 

Composite Dispersion
The measurement of composite dispersion is calculated by the 
weighted average standard deviation of the annual account 
returns within the composite. Dispersion in composites with 
less than fi ve accounts included for the entire year is not 
considered meaningful and is denoted with “N/A”. Prior to 
January 1, 2007, the measurement of composite dispersion was 
calculated by determining the difference between the highest 
and lowest annual account returns within the composite. 
The three-year annualized standard deviation measures the 
variability of the composite and the benchmark returns over 
the preceding 36-month period.  



Boston Partners   39

Boston Partners
Performance Disclosures (continued)

Small Cap Value Equity:
# of Portfolios

in Composite

Total Assets in

Composite

% of Firm

AUM

Composite 

Dispersion
2015: 19 $1.0 bn 1% 0.19%
2014: 18 $1.1 bn 2% 0.26%
2013: 16 $1.1 bn 2% 0.56%
2012: 16 $957 mm 3% 0.20%
2011: 17 $923 mm 4% 0.08%
2010: 16 $682 mm 4% 0.16%
2009: 14 $698 mm 4% 0.90%
2008: 14 $560 mm 5% 0.20%
2007: 15 $856 mm 3% 0.10%
2006: 15 $1.1 bn 9% 0.85%

Small Cap Value Equity II:
# of Portfolios

in Composite

Total Assets in

Composite

% of Firm

AUM

Composite 

Dispersion
2015: 3 $478 mm 1% N/A
2014: 4 $444 mm 1% N/A
2013: 4 $370 mm 1% N/A
2012: 4 $304 mm 1% N/A
2011: 5 $272 mm 1% 0.10%
2010: 6 $300 mm 2% 0.24%
2009: 6 $239 mm 1% 0.98%
2008: 7 $161 mm 1% 0.20%
2007: 7 $320 mm 1% 0.06%
2006: 7 $505 mm 4% 0.47%

Long/Short Equity:
# of Portfolios

in Composite

Total Assets in

Composite

% of Firm

AUM

Composite 

Dispersion
2015: 2 $687 mm 1% N/A
2014: 2 $958 mm 1% N/A
2013: 2 $965 mm 2% N/A
2012: 2 $829 mm 3% N/A
2011: 2 $626 mm 3% N/A
2010: 2 $440 mm 2% N/A
2009: 2 $189 mm 1% N/A
2008: 2 $36 mm 0% N/A
2007: 2 $75 mm 0% N/A
2006: 3 $156 mm 1% N/A

Small/Mid Cap Value Equity:
# of Portfolios

in Composite

Total Assets in

Composite

% of Firm

AUM

Composite 

Dispersion
2015: 13 $814 mm 1% 0.14%
2014: 10 $499 mm 1% 0.08%
2013: 7 $481 mm 1% 0.13%
2012: 7 $367 mm 1% 0.08%
2011: 7 $327 mm 2% 0.10%
2010: 7 $384 mm 2% 0.04%
2009: 7 $350 mm 2% 0.32%
2008: 5 $200 mm 2% 0.18%
2007: 5 $299 mm 1% 0.02%
2006: 4 $343 mm 3% 0.06%

Long/Short Research:
# of Portfolios

in Composite

Total Assets in

Composite

% of Firm

AUM

Composite 

Dispersion
2015: 1 $7.2 bn 9% N/A
2014: 1 $6.0 bn 8% N/A
2013: 1 $2.9 bn 6% N/A
2012: 1 $492 mm 2% N/A
2011: 1 $97 mm 0% N/A
2010: 1 $9 mm 0% N/A
2009: 1 $5 mm 0% N/A
2008: 1 $3 mm 0% N/A
2007: 1 $4 mm 0% N/A
2006: 1 $3 mm 0% N/A

Global Equity:
# of Portfolios

in Composite

Total Assets in

Composite

% of Firm

AUM

Composite 

Dispersion
2015: 3 $438 mm 1% N/A
2014: 1 $27 mm 0% N/A
2013: 2 $66 mm 0% N/A
2012: 2 $18 mm 0% N/A
2011: 1 $8 mm 0% N/A
2010: 1 $9 mm 0% N/A
2009: 1 $8 mm 0% N/A

*2008: 1 $6mm 0% N/A
* 2008 performance period is from July 1.

International Equity:
# of Portfolios

in Composite

Total Assets in

Composite

% of Firm

AUM

Composite 

Dispersion
2015: 1 $261 mm 0% N/A
2014: 2 $33 mm 0% N/A
2013: 2 $20 mm 0% N/A
2012: 2 $18 mm 0% N/A
2011: 1 $6 mm 0% N/A
2010: 1 $6 mm 0% N/A
2009: 1 $6 mm 0% N/A

*2008: 1 $4 mm 0% N/A
* 2008 performance period is from July 1.

Global Long/Short Equity:
# of Portfolios

in Composite

Total Assets in

Composite

% of Firm

AUM

Composite 

Dispersion
2015: 1 $629 mm 1% N/A
2014: 1 $125 mm 0% N/A

*2013: 1 $3 mm 0% N/A
* 2013 performance period is from July 1.

Mid Cap Value Equity:
# of Portfolios

in Composite

Total Assets in

Composite

% of Firm

AUM

Composite 

Dispersion
2015: 37 $15.3 b 20% 0.01%
2014: 29 $11.6 b 16% 0.12%
2013: 16 $7.6 b 15% 0.24%
2012: 9 $2.9 b 10% 0.01%
2011: 4 $1.0 b 5% N/A
2010: 3 $306 mm 2% N/A
2009: 3 $127 mm 1% N/A
2008: 3 $85 mm 1% N/A
2007: 2 $86 mm 0% N/A
2006: 1 $35 mm 0% N/A

Premium Equity:
# of Portfolios

in Composite

Total Assets in

Composite

% of Firm

AUM

Composite 

Dispersion
2015: 35 $3.3 bn 4% 0.09%
2014: 29 $3.1 bn 4% 0.14%
2013: 29 $2.7 bn 5% 0.53%
2012: 26 $2.2 bn 7% 0.17%
2011: 24 $2.0 bn 9% 0.19%
2010: 27 $2.1 bn 12% 0.43%
2009: 26 $2.1 bn 12% 0.49%
2008: 23 $1.3 bn 11% 0.30%
2007: 15 $677 mm 3% 0.12%
2006: 11 $1.7 bn 14% 0.37%

130/30 Large Cap Equity:
# of Portfolios

in Composite

Total Assets in

Composite

% of Firm

AUM

Composite 

Dispersion
2015: 2 $933 mm 1% N/A
2014: 2 $1.2 bn 2% N/A
2013: 1 $845 mm 2% N/A
2012: 3 $636 mm 2% N/A
2011: 3 $463 mm 2% N/A
2010: 1 $17 mm 0% N/A
2009: 1 $6 mm 0% N/A
2008: 1 $5 mm 0% N/A
2007: 1 $7 mm 0% N/A

Large Cap Value Equity:
# of Portfolios

in Composite

Total Assets in

Composite

% of Firm

AUM

Composite 

Dispersion
2015: 167 $24.6 bn 31% 0.16%
2014: 151 $25.2 bn 34% 0.11%
2013: 129 $16.5 bn 32% 0.62%
2012: 105 $8.6 bn 30% 0.24%
2011: 99 $5.1 bn 24% 0.23%
2010: 89 $4.8 bn 26% 0.15%
2009: 83 $3.5 bn 20% 0.38%
2008: 70 $2.1 bn 18% 0.21%
2007: 68 $3.4 bn 13% 0.14%
2006: 45 $3.4 bn 27% 0.83%



Boston Partners   40

Boston Partners
Performance Disclosures (continued)

Annual Fee Schedules
Large Cap:  70 basis points ("bp") on the fi rst $10 million in 
assets; 50 bp on the next $40 million; 40 bp on the next $50 
million; 30 bp thereafter. 130/30 Large Cap:  100 basis points 
("bp") on the fi rst $10 million in assets; 80 bp on the next 
$40 million; 70 bp on the next $50 million; 60 bp thereafter. 
Premium Equity:  80 bp on the fi rst $25 million of assets; 60 
bp on the next $25 million; 50 bp on the next $50 million; 40 
bp thereafter. Mid Cap:  80 bp on the fi rst $25 million of assets; 
60 bp thereafter. Small/Mid Cap, Small Cap, and Small Cap II:  
100 bp on the fi rst $25 million of assets; 80 bp thereafter. Long/
Short:  100 bp on total assets under management; plus 20% 
profi t participation. Long/Short Research:  150 basis points. 

Global Equity and International Equity are:  75 basis points 
("bp") on the fi rst $25 million in assets; 65 bp on the next $25 
million; 55 bp on the next $50 million; 50 bp thereafter.  Global 
Long/Short:  200 bp on total assets under management. Europe 
Equity:  75 basis points ("bp") on the fi rst $25 million in assets; 
65 bp on the next $25 million; 55 bp on the next $50 million; 50 
bp thereafter.  Emerging Markets Long/Short:  225 bp on total 
assets under management.

Corporate Information
Boston Partners Global Investors, Inc. (“Boston Partners”) is 
affi liated with listed corporations through common ownership. 
Robeco services may be offered in the U.S. through Robeco 
Institutional Asset Management, U.S., an SEC Registered 
Investment Adviser registered under the Investment Advisers 
Act of 1940. Transtrend products may be offered in the U.S. 
through Boston Partners Securities, LLC, member FINRA, SiPC. 
Harbor Capital Advisers products are distributed by Harbor Funds 
Distributors, Inc.

Firm Assets:
Year Assets (mm) Year Assets (mm)
2015: $78,363 2010: $18,418
2014: $73,250 2009: $17,207
2013: $52,333 2008: $11,540
2012: $29,023 2007: $26,554
2011: $21,098 2006: $12,456

2005 through 2006 fi rm assets represents BPAM assets under 
management prior to merger into Boston Partners.

Other Disclosures
Boston Partners has adjusted the S&P and Russell sector 
classifi cations to group stocks according to similar business 
product lines and correlation of stock returns. Boston Partners’ 
classifi cations are similar to the major market indices in terms 
of breadth but may differ in terms of composition. All product 
characteristics and sector weightings are calculated using a 
representative portfolio. 
Risk statistics are calculated using composite data. Portfolio 
composition is subject to change and information contained in 
this publication may not be representative of the current portfolio. 
Effective January 1, 2011; Boston Partners adopted a signifi cant 
cash fl ow policy for this composite in accordance with the Global 
Investment Performance Standards. If an external cash fl ow is 
greater than or equal to 10.0% of the beginning market value of 
the portfolio on the day of the fl ow, and greater than or equal to 
10.0% of the beginning market value of the composite for that 
month then the portfolio is removed from the composite for the 
month that the fl ow occurred. The portfolio is then placed back 
into the composite in accordance with Firm’s inclusion policies 
and procedures.
Boston Partners changed the names of its composites in August 
2016 after the fi rm changed its name.
Boston Partners participates in Initial Public Offerings (IPOs) 
as described in its Form ADV, Part II. IPO contributions to 
performance vary from year to year depending on availability 
and prevailing market conditions. IPO contributions may have 
a signifi cant positive effect on performance when initially 
purchased. Such positive performance should not be expected for 
future performance periods. 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 2
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

09/13/17 Retirement Action 08/15/17

Subject: Receive and File Investment Performance Results for the ATU, IBEW and Salaried
Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2017 (ALL).
(Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

VP Finance/CFO Senior Accountant

ISSUE

Receive and File Investment Performance Results for the ATU, IBEW and Salaried Employee
Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2017 (ALL). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Motion: Receive and File Investment Performance Results for the ATU, IBEW and Salaried
Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2017 (ALL). (Bernegger)

FISCAL IMPACT

None

DISCUSSION

Pension funds are invested consistent with the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy
Guidelines adopted by each Retirement Board. Attached are the two investment performance
reports prepared by the Boards’ pension investment consultants. The first report is the Second
Quarter 2017 Market Update (Attachment 1) and the second is the Investment Measurement
Service Quarterly Review as of June 30, 2017 (Attachment 2). These reports provide a
detailed analysis of the performance of each of the investment managers retained by the
Retirement Boards to manage the Retirement Funds for the quarter ended June 30, 2017. The
second report compares the performance of each investment manager with benchmark
indices, other fund managers of similarly invested portfolios and other indices.

At the February 1, 2017 Special Retirement Board meeting, the Boards made the decision to
terminate fund manager JP Morgan and invest in the New Hampshire Investment Trust vehicle
offered by Pyrford International PLC (Pyrford). Funds were transferred out of JP Morgan on
5/15/2017 and transferred into Pyrford on 5/31/2017. Partial quarter performance is not
disclosed at the fund manager level, so there will be no disclosure for either JP Morgan or
Pyrford for the quarter ending June 30, 2017. However, the returns from both managers are
included in the total plan composite returns.

Investment Compliance Monitoring
In accordance with the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines for the
Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Plans (Investment Policy), State Street Bank
performs daily investment compliance monitoring on the Plans’ three (3) actively managed
funds. As of June 30, 2017, there were no compliance warnings or alerts to be reported;

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
22

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
Final 8/30/17



REGIONAL TRANSIT Page 2 of 2
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

09/13/17 Retirement Action 08/15/17

Subject: Receive and File Investment Performance Results for the ATU, IBEW and
Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2017 (ALL).
(Bernegger)

therefore, the investments are in compliance with the Investment Policy. The final attached
report includes the monitoring summary (Attachment 3).

The table below provides an overview of the quarter performance, quarter ending June 30,
2017 – gross of investment management fees:

Investment Manager - Description - Benchmark Benchmark
Index

ATU, IBEW
& Salaried

Fund

Investment
Gains/

(Losses)

Pension Fund
Contributions/
(Withdrawals)

Boston Partners (large cap value) Russell 1000 Value 1.34% 2.66% $1,190,464 -
S&P 500 Index (large cap value) S&P 500 3.09% 3.09% $1,398,488 $(1,149,059)
Atlanta Capital  (small cap)  Russell 2000 2.46% 3.62% $866,462 -
Brandes  (international equities)  MSCI EAFE* - - $355 -
JPMorgan  (international equities)  MSCI EAFE - - $1,301,436 $(25,953,819)

Pyrford (international equities) MSCI EAFE - - $(356,976) $25,953,819

MSCI EAFE Index (international equities) MSCI EAFE 6.12% 6.30% $621,321 -

AQR (small cap international equities) MSCI EAFE SC 8.10% 7.86% $974,860 -

Dimensional Fund Advisors (emerging markets) MSCI EM 6.38% 4.83% $690,798 -

Metropolitan West (fixed income) Barclays Agg. 1.45% 1.48% $1,289,873 -

Totals 3.34% 3.07% $7,977,082 $(1,149,059)
Bold – fund exceeding respective benchmark

*The investments held in Brandes are foreign tax reclaim receivables. Currently, staff and the custodian do not
have an estimated time of receipt. Until receipt of funds, Brandes will remain as a fund manager.

The table below provides an overview of the year to date performance, as of June 30, 2017 –
net of investment management fees:

Investment Manager - Description - Benchmark Benchmark
Index

ATU, IBEW
& Salaried

Fund

Investment
Gains/(Loss)

Pension Fund
Contributions/
(Withdrawals)

Boston Partners (large cap value) Russell 1000 Value 15.53% 20.41% $7,870,196 $(1,188,913)
S&P 500 Index (large cap value) S&P 500 17.90% 17.91% $7,152,867 $(2,220,019)
Atlanta Capital  (small cap)  Russell 2000 24.60% 15.18% $3,254,732 $(607,068)
Brandes (international equities)  MSCI EAFE - - $71 -
JPMorgan  (international equities)  MSCI EAFE - - $4,611,067 $(25,953,819)
Pyrford (international equities) MSCI EAFE** - - $(371,694) $25,953,819
MSCI EAFE Index (international equities) MSCI EAFE 20.27% 20.57% $2,124,503 $(12,201,601)
AQR (small cap international equities) MSCI EAFE SC** - - $1,497,410 $12,201,601
Dimensional Fund Advisors (emerging markets) MSCI EM 24.17% 21.88% $2,680,399 $137,839
Metropolitan West (fixed income) Barclays Agg. (0.31)% 0.42% $371,304 $(277,837)

Totals 12.71% 12.09% $29,190,855 $(4,155,998)
Bold – fund exceeding respective benchmark
**Manager has not had investment activity for a full year. Information will be included when appropriate data is

available.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
22



Sacramento Regional  
Transit District 

Second Quarter 2017 
Market Update 

September 13, 2017 

Anne Heaphy  
Fund Sponsor Consulting 

Uvan Tseng, CFA 
Fund Sponsor Consulting 

JAdelman
Text Box
Attachment #1



2 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.  Quarterly Performance Review  

Economic Commentary 
Second Quarter 2017 

Source: Bureau of Economic Analysis Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics 

● Growth in the U.S. continues to be positive but low. 
– Real U.S. GDP  accelerates to 2.6% in the second quarter, up from the (revised) 1.4% reported in Q1. 
– Outside the U.S., Eurozone GDP revised upwards to 2.3% from 1.7%. 
– In China, annual growth exceeded expectations with a 6.9% annual growth pace in the first quarter.  

● Unemployment picture continues to improve 
– In the U.S., unemployment fell to a 15-year low of 4.3%. 
– Eurozone unemployment dropped to 9.3%, the lowest since 2009. 

● Inflation data pulled back during the quarter to 1.4%, the lowest level in six months, and remains below the Fed’s 2% target. 

● The U.S. Dollar has sold off dramatically since the “Trump-induced” peak in January. 
 

 

-10%
-8%
-6%
-4%
-2%
0%
2%
4%
6%
8%

97 98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 97 98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17
-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

1.6% - CPI-U
3.3% - PPI

Quarterly Real GDP Growth (20 Years) Inflation Year-Over Year 



3 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.  Quarterly Performance Review  

Asset Class Performance    

YTD as of 09/12/17: 

S&P 500:  

Russell 2000:  

MSCI EAFE:  

MSCI EM:  

Blmbg Aggregate:  

Blmbg TIPS:  

 

Periods Ended June 30, 2017 

 

(5.0)

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

for Periods Ended June 30, 2017
Asset Class Performance 

Last Quarter Last Year Last 5 Years Last 10 Years

R
et

ur
ns

S&P 500 Russell 2000 MSCI EAFE

MSCI Emerging Mkts Bloomberg Aggregate Bloomberg US TIPS

3.1

17.9

14.6

7.2

2.5

24.6

13.7

6.96.1

20.3

8.7

1.0

6.4

24.2

4.3

2.21.4

(0.3)

2.2

4.5

(0.4) (0.6)

0.3

4.3

  



4 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.  Quarterly Performance Review  

U.S. Equity 
Second Quarter 2017 

Source: Russell Investment Group 

Second Quarter Index Returns 

Russell 3000: 3.0% 

S&P 500: 3.1% 

Russell Mid Cap: 2.7% 

Russell 2000:  2.5% 

Russell 3000 Sector Returns 

Source: Russell Investment Group 

97 98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

30%

Rolling One-Year Relative Returns (versus Russell:1000 Index)

0.0 - Russell 1000
2.0 - Russell 1000 Growth

-2.1 - Russell 1000 Value

Information Technology

Health Care

Consumer Discretionary

Materials

Utilities

Consumer Staples

Industrials

Real Estate

Financials

Telecommunications

Energy

4.22%

2.82%

3.74%

4.19%

2.97%

-7.58%

7.37%

1.23%

-6.56%

2.23%

2.47%



5 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.  Quarterly Performance Review  

U.S. Equity Style Returns 

● U.S. stocks continued to inch higher during the second quarter, despite an increase in interest rates and turbulent events in the 
news, including disruptions within the Trump administration and terrorist attacks in the U.K.  

● In a repeat of last quarter – large cap stocks outperformed smaller caps and growth led value across market capitalizations. The 
dispersion in style returns was generally uniform, as growth outpaced value by 3.5% in large caps and by 3.7% in small caps. 

Periods Ended June 30, 2017 

 

Large Cap Core is represented by the Russell Top 200 Index, Large Cap Value is represented by the Russell Top 200 Value Index and Large Cap Growth is represented by the Russell Top 200 
Growth Index. Mid Cap Core is represented by the Russell Mid Cap Index, Mid Cap Value is represented by the Russell Mid Cap Value Index and Mid Cap Growth is represented by the Russell Mid 
Cap Growth Index. Small Cap Core is represented by the Russell 2000 Index, Small Cap Value is represented by the Russell 2000 Value Index and Small Cap Growth is represented by the Russell 
2000 Growth Index. 

 

Value Core Growth Value Core Growth
2Q 2017

1.3% 3.2% 4.8%

1.4% 2.7% 4.2%

24.9% 24.6% 24.4%0.7% 2.5% 4.4%

Annualized 1 Year Returns

15.4% 18.7% 21.6%

15.9% 16.5% 17.1%

Large 

Mid 

Small 



6 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. Second Quarter – Performance is Preliminary 

Non-U.S. Equity 

● Non-U.S. developed equity outperformed U.S. for the second consecutive quarter, fueled by economic recovery in Europe and 
market-friendly outcomes in European elections.  

● The U.S. dollar lost 7% versus the euro and 5% versus a broad basket of currencies. This weakness helped overseas returns for 
U.S. investors. The MSCI ACWI ex USA jumped 5.8% for the quarter.  

● Regionally, gains were broad-based. Emerging Markets were propelled by Technology companies in China, South Korea, and 
Taiwan. Meanwhile, Europe topped performance, on the back of hawkish comments from ECB coupled with improving European 
economic indicators. 

Second Quarter 2017 

Source: MSCI 

MSCI ACWI ex USA

MSCI World ex USA

MSCI Emerging Markets

MSCI Europe

MSCI Japan

MSCI Pacific ex Japan

MSCI China

Regional Quarterly Performance (U.S. Dollar)

5.78%

5.63%

6.27%

7.37%

5.19%

1.54%

10.57%



7 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. Second Quarter – Performance is Preliminary 

Fixed Income 

● The Fed, viewing inflation weakness as temporary, raised rates by 25 basis points to a range of 1.00-1.25%, in line with 
expectations. The June hike marked the third consecutive quarter with a 25 basis point increase; one additional hike is anticipated 
before year end.   

● The treasury yield curve flattened during the quarter, as short-term treasuries rose, consistent with the Fed hike, while longer-term 
issues fell. 

● The 10-year U.S. Treasury yield closed the quarter at 2.31%, down from 2.40% as of 3/31, though it hit a 2017 low of 2.12% earlier 
in June. The 2-year U.S. Treasury yield climbed 11 bps to close at 1.38%. The 10-year breakeven spread (difference between 
nominal and real yields) ended the quarter at 1.73%, down from 1.97% in prior quarter. 

Second Quarter 2017 

Source: Bloomberg Source: Bloomberg 

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

0 5 10 15 20 25 30
Maturity (Years) 

June 30, 2017 March 31, 2017 June 30, 2016

U.S. Treasury Yield Curves 

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

2Q07 2Q08 2Q09 2Q10 2Q11 2Q12 2Q13 2Q14 2Q15 2Q16 2Q17

U.S. 10-Year Treasury Yield 10-Year TIPS Yield

Breakeven Inflation Rate

Historical 10-Year Yields 



Sacramento Regional  
Transit District 

Total Fund Overview 



9 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.  Quarterly Performance Review  

RT Asset Allocation 
As of June 30, 2017 

Actual Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
34%

Small Cap Equity
9%

International Large Cap
13%

International Small Cap
5%

Emerging Equity
6%

Domestic Fixed Income
33%

Target Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
32%

Small Cap Equity
8%

International Large Cap
14%

International Small Cap
5%

Emerging Equity
6%

Domestic Fixed Income
35%

$000s Weight Percent $000s
Asset Class Actual Actual Target Dif f erence Dif f erence
Large Cap Equity          91,410   33.9%   32.0%    1.9%           5,004
Small Cap Equity          24,787    9.2%    8.0%    1.2%           3,185
International Large Cap          36,089   13.4%   14.0% (0.6%) (1,713)
International Small Cap          13,788    5.1%    5.0%    0.1%             287
Emerging Equity          15,448    5.7%    6.0% (0.3%) (753)
Domestic Fixed Income          88,495   32.8%   35.0% (2.2%) (6,011)
Total         270,018  100.0%  100.0%



10 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.  Quarterly Performance Review  

Total Fund 
Performance Attribution 

Relative Attribution Effects for Quarter ended June 30, 2017

Ef f ectiv e Ef f ectiv e Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Asset Relativ e

Asset Class Weight Weight Return Return Ef f ect Allocation Return
Large Cap Equity 34% 32% 2.88% 3.09% (0.07%) (0.01%) (0.08%)
Small Cap Equity 9% 8% 3.62% 2.46% 0.10% (0.05%) 0.05%
International Large Cap 13% 14% 5.16% 6.12% (0.13%) (0.04%) (0.16%)
International Small Cap 5% 5% 7.86% 8.10% (0.01%) (0.00%) (0.02%)
Emerging Equity 6% 6% 4.83% 6.38% (0.09%) (0.02%) (0.10%)
Domestic Fixed Income 33% 35% 1.48% 1.45% 0.01% 0.03% 0.04%

Total = + +3.07% 3.34% (0.18%) (0.08%) (0.26%)

One Year Relative Attribution Effects

Ef f ectiv e Ef f ectiv e Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Asset Relativ e

Asset Class Weight Weight Return Return Ef f ect Allocation Return
Large Cap Equity 34% 32% 19.45% 17.90% 0.49% 0.05% 0.54%
Small Cap Equity 9% 8% 16.10% 24.60% (0.75%) 0.02% (0.72%)
International Large Cap 13% 14% 20.62% 20.27% 0.02% (0.15%) (0.13%)
International Small Cap 4% 5% 14.01% 16.09% (0.10%) (0.02%) (0.12%)
Emerging Equity 5% 6% 22.62% 24.17% (0.08%) (0.09%) (0.17%)
Domestic Fixed Income 34% 35% 0.69% (0.31%) 0.39% 0.02% 0.41%

Total = + +12.52% 12.71% (0.02%) (0.17%) (0.18%)



11 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.  Quarterly Performance Review  

Total Fund 
Performance as of June 30, 2017 

 
Performance vs CAI Public Fund Sponsor - Mid (100M-1B) (Gross)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years Last 15 Years Last 23-1/4
Year Years

(42)(28)

(48)(39)

(56)(56)

(41)
(51)

(40)
(56)

(8)
(51)

(17)
(45)

(6)

(69)

10th Percentile 3.65 14.77 6.35 10.09 10.72 6.14 7.89 8.75
25th Percentile 3.37 13.34 5.72 9.54 10.09 5.85 7.31 8.53

Median 3.01 12.50 5.18 8.42 9.22 5.36 6.79 8.00
75th Percentile 2.63 10.82 4.53 7.86 8.09 4.78 6.39 7.46
90th Percentile 2.20 10.14 3.66 6.83 7.48 3.93 5.88 6.51

Total Fund 3.07 12.52 5.07 8.93 9.57 6.22 7.54 8.95

Target 3.34 12.71 5.05 8.39 9.12 5.29 6.84 7.58



12 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.  Quarterly Performance Review  

Total Fund 
Manager Asset Allocation 

June 30, 2017 March 31, 2017
Market Value Net New Inv. Inv. Return Market Value

Consolidated Plan

Domestic Equity $116,196,519 $(1,149,059) $3,455,415 $113,890,163

 Large Cap $91,409,611 $(1,149,059) $2,588,953 $89,969,717
Boston Partners 45,850,408 0 1,190,464 44,659,944
SSgA S&P 500 45,559,203 (1,149,059) 1,398,488 45,309,773

 Small Cap $24,786,908 $0 $866,462 $23,920,446
Atlanta Capital 24,786,908 0 866,462 23,920,446

International Equity $65,326,150 $0 $3,231,794 $62,094,356

  International Large Cap $36,089,475 $0 $1,566,137 $34,523,338
Brandes 9,297 0 355 8,942
JP Morgan 0 (25,953,819) 1,301,436 24,652,383
SSgA EAFE 10,483,335 0 621,321 9,862,013
Pyrford 25,596,843 25,953,819 (356,976) -

  International Small Cap $13,788,329 $0 $974,860 $12,813,469
AQR 13,788,329 0 974,860 12,813,469

  Emerging Equity $15,448,346 $0 $690,798 $14,757,549
DFA Emerging Markets 15,448,346 0 690,798 14,757,549

Fixed Income $88,495,034 $0 $1,289,873 $87,205,161
Metropolitan West 88,495,034 0 1,289,873 87,205,161

Total Plan - Consolidated $270,017,704 $(1,149,059) $7,977,082 $263,189,680



13 Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.  Quarterly Performance Review  

Total Fund 
Manager Returns as of June 30, 2017 

*Current quarter target = 35% Bloomberg Barclays  Agg, 32% S&P 500, 14% MSCI EAFE, 8% Russell 2000, 6% MSCI Emerging Markets Index, and 5% MSCI EAFE Small Cap  

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  7

Quarter Year Years Years Years
Domestic Equity 3.04% 18.73% 9.24% 14.96% 15.69%

  Domestic Equity  Benchmark** 2.98% 19.30% 9.25% 14.51% 15.27%

Large Cap Equity 2.88% 19.45% 8.72% 14.76% 15.29%
Boston Partners 2.66% 20.96% 7.75% 14.82% 15.25%
  Russell 1000 Value Index 1.34% 15.53% 7.36% 13.94% 14.31%
SSgA S&P 500 3.09% 17.97% 9.68% 14.68% -
  S&P 500 Index 3.09% 17.90% 9.61% 14.63% 15.41%

Small Cap Equity 3.62% 16.10% 11.28% 15.55% 17.30%
Atlanta Capital 3.62% 16.10% 11.28% 15.55% 17.30%
  Russell 2000 Index 2.46% 24.60% 7.36% 13.70% 14.35%

International Equity 5.58% 20.30% 1.48% 7.96% 7.18%
  Custom International Benchmark*** 5.85% 20.43% 0.80% 8.14% 7.52%

International Large Cap 5.16% 20.62% 1.60% - -
SSgA EAFE 6.30% 20.69% 1.50% 8.96% -
  MSCI EAFE Index 6.12% 20.27% 1.15% 8.69% 7.91%

International Small Cap 7.86% - - - -
AQR 7.86% - - - -
  MSCI EAFE Small Cap Index 8.10% 23.18% 5.60% 12.94% 11.40%

Emerging Markets Equity 4.83% 22.62% 2.26% - -
DFA Emerging Markets 4.83% 22.62% 2.26% - -
  MSCI Emerging Mkts Index 6.38% 24.17% 1.44% 4.33% 4.22%

Domestic Fixed Income 1.48% 0.69% 2.66% 3.11% 4.29%
Met West 1.48% 0.69% 2.66% 3.11% 4.29%
  Blmbg Aggregate Index 1.45% (0.31%) 2.48% 2.21% 3.19%

Total Plan 3.07% 12.52% 5.07% 8.93% 9.57%
  Target* 3.34% 12.71% 5.05% 8.39% 9.12%



June 30, 2017

Sacramento Regional Transit District

Retirement Plans

Investment Measurement Service

Quarterly Review

The following report was prepared by Callan Associates Inc. ("CAI") using information from sources that include the following: fund trustee(s); fund

custodian(s); investment manager(s); CAI computer software; CAI investment manager and fund sponsor database; third party data vendors; and other outside

sources as directed by the client. CAI assumes no responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of the information provided, or methodologies employed, by

any information providers external to CAI. Reasonable care has been taken to assure the accuracy of the CAI database and computer software. Callan does

not provide advice regarding, nor shall Callan be responsible for, the purchase, sale, hedge or holding of individual securities, including, without limitation

securities of the client (i.e., company stock) or derivatives in the client’s accounts. In preparing the following report, CAI has not reviewed the risks of individual

security holdings or the conformity of individual security holdings with the client’s investment policies and guidelines, nor has it assumed any responsibility to do

so. Advice pertaining to the merits of individual securities and derivatives should be discussed with a third party securities expert. Copyright 2017 by Callan

Associates Inc.

JAdelman
Text Box
Attachment #2

JAdelman
Text Box




Table of Contents
June 30, 2017

Executive Summary 1

Capital Markets Review 3

Combined Plan

Actual vs Target Asset Allocation 20

Quarterly Total Plan Attribution 21

Cumulative Total Plan Attribution 22

Total Fund Performance 24

Historical Asset Allocation 25

Asset Growth Summary 27

Investment Manager Performance 28

Domestic Equity

Domestic Equity 34

Large Cap 38

SSgA S&P 500 42

Boston Partners 46

Atlanta Capital 55

International Equity

International Equity 65

SSgA EAFE 70

AQR 76

DFA Emerging Markets 84

Domestic Fixed Income

Metropolitan West Asset Management 93

Definitions 98

Callan Research/Education 101

Disclosures 104



E
x
e

c
u

tiv
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

Executive Summary



*Current quarter target = 35% Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate Index, 32% S&P 500 Index, 8% Russell 2000 Index, 14% MSCI 
EAFE Index, 5% MSCI EAFE Small Cap Index, and 6% MSCI Emerging Markets Index. 
 

Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Executive Summary for Period Ending June 30, 2017 

 
 
 
Asset Allocation 
 

Actual Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
34%

Small Cap Equity
9%

International Large Cap
13%

International Small Cap
5%

Emerging Equity
6%

Domestic Fixed Income
33%

  

Target Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
32%

Small Cap Equity
8%

International Large Cap
14%

International Small Cap
5%

Emerging Equity
6%

Domestic Fixed Income
35%

 
         
 
Performance 

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  7

Quarter Year Years Years Years
 

   

   
 

     
  

    

   
 

    

 
    

   
 

 
    

  
  

     

  
 

    

 
  

 

   

 
    

  
 

     
  

    

  
 

    

 
    

  
 

    

  

      

  
  

     

  
 

    

Total Plan 3.07% 12.52% 5.07% 8.93% 9.57%
  Target* 3.34% 12.71% 5.05% 8.39% 9.12%  

 
 
Recent Developments 
N/A 
 
Organizational Issues 
N/A 
 
Manager Performance 
 
  Peer Group Ranking 
Manager Last Year Last 3 Years Last 7 Years 
Boston Partners 23 43 26 
Atlanta Capital 96 8 19 
AQR [63] [41] [44] 
DFA 67 64 [69] 
MetWest 90 85 76 

Brackets indicate performance linked with manager's composite 

 Watch List 
• JP Morgan was on the watch list. They were replaced by Pyrford in June.  
 
 
Items Outstanding 
N/A 
 
 



C
a

p
ita

l M
a

rk
e

ts
 R

e
v
ie

w

Capital Markets Review



 

Ηαππψ Χαmπερσ  

ΠΡΙςΑΤΕ ΕΘΥΙΤΨ

Α βυχολιχ συmmερ ηασ 

φαϖορεδ τηε πριϖατε εθυιτψ 

mαρκετ, ωιτη mοδερατε 

ινχρεασεσ αχροσσ τρανσαχτιοναλ 

mεασυρεσ ανδ λιθυιδιτψ ρεmαινινγ 

hearty. Fundraising inished the 
θυαρτερ αηεαδ οφ λαστ ψεαρ, βυψουτ 

ινϖεστmεντ σηοωεδ λαργε γαινσ, ανδ 

ϖεντυρε ινϖεστmεντ τιχκεδ υπ.

Ασ τηε Wορλδ Χηυρνσ, 

Dεσπαχιτο 

ΗΕDΓΕ ΦΥΝDΣ

Τηε Χρεδιτ Συισσε 

Ηεδγε Φυνδ Ινδεξ ροσε 

0.8%, ωηιλε τηε mεδιαν 

mαναγερ ιν τηε Χαλλαν Ηεδγε Φυνδ−

οφ−Φυνδσ Dαταβασε αδϖανχεδ 

0.9%. Γροωτη ιν Ευροπε ανδ ϑαπαν 

τηισ θυαρτερ προϖιδεδ α φριενδλψ σετ−

τινγ φορ ηεδγε φυνδσ σεεκινγ αλτερ−

νατιϖε ρισκσ.

Βεστ Ρετυρν φορ DΧ 

Ινδεξ Σινχε 2013

DΕΦΙΝΕD ΧΟΝΤΡΙΒΥΤΙΟΝ

Τηε Χαλλαν DΧ Ινδεξ� 

climbed 4.7% in the irst 
θυαρτερ, ιτσ ηιγηεστ θυαρ−

τερλψ ρετυρν σινχε τηε ενδ οφ 2013, 

αφτερ αν 8.0% γαιν ιν 2016. Βυτ τηε 

DΧ Ινδεξ διδ mαρκεδλψ λαγ τηε Αγε 

45 Ταργετ Dατε Φυνδ (+5.6%). Πλαν 

βαλανχεσ γρεω 4.74%, πριmαριλψ 

δριϖεν βψ ινϖεστmεντ ρετυρνσ. 

Σοmε Ποσιτιϖε Σιγνσ 

Εmεργινγ

ΡΕΑΛ ΕΣΤΑΤΕ

Τηε ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Προπερτψ 

Ινδεξ ρεβουνδεδ φροm 

λαστ θυαρτερ�σ σεϖεν−ψεαρ 

λοω ρετυρν ωηιλε τηε ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Οπεν 

End Diversiied Core Equity 
Ινδεξ σετ α νεω σεϖεν−ψεαρ λοω. 

Υ.Σ. ΡΕΙΤσ υνδερπερφορmεδ γλοβαλ 

ΡΕΙΤσ, βυτ στιλλ mαναγεδ το γενερ−

ατε ποσιτιϖε ρετυρνσ.

Μανψ Φυνδσ �Ρισκ Υπ� 

φορ Ρετυρνσ

ΦΥΝD ΣΠΟΝΣΟΡ

Μανψ φυνδ σπονσορσ φεελ 

χοmπελλεδ το τακε ον 

συβσταντιαλ mαρκετ ρισκ 

το αττεmπτ το χλοσε α φυνδινγ γαπ ορ 

mεετ σπενδινγ νεεδσ ωιτηουτ εροδ−

ινγ τηε χορπυσ. Φυνδ σπονσορσ αρε 

further focusing on diversiication 
ωιτηιν εαχη ασσετ χλασσ το ηελπ mιτι−

γατε τηειρ οϖεραλλ ρισκ.

Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Σεχονδ Θυαρτερ 2017

Why Is Inlation  
Σο Λοω?

ΕΧΟΝΟΜΨ

Βοτη πριχε ανδ ωαγε 

inlation remain subdued, 
εϖεν αφτερ ειγητ ψεαρσ οφ 

recovery, when inlationary pres−

συρεσ τψπιχαλλψ βυιλδ. Wηψ? Τηερε 

ισ νο χονσενσυσ ον τηε χαυσε, βυτ 

βοτη ισσυεσ ωειγη ηεαϖιλψ ον τηε 

Φεδ ασ ιτ χηαρτσ φυτυρε ρατε ηικεσ 

ανδ υνωινδσ ιτσ βαλανχε σηεετ.

2
Π Α Γ Ε

13
Π Α Γ Ε

Μανψ Σηοχκσ, βυτ Νο 

Σιγνσ οφ Σλοωινγ

ΕΘΥΙΤΨ

Υ.Σ. στοχκσ ινχηεδ 

ηιγηερ, δεσπιτε τυρβυλεντ 

εϖεντσ ιν τηε νεωσ, ανδ 

τηε Σ&Π 500 Ινδεξ ηιτ α ρεχορδ ηιγη 

δυρινγ τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ. Νον−Υ.Σ. 

δεϖελοπεδ εθυιτψ ουτπερφορmεδ ιτσ 

Υ.Σ. χουντερπαρτ, ηελπεδ βψ α ωεακ 

Υ.Σ. δολλαρ, ωηιλε εmεργινγ mαρκετσ 

ουτπαχεδ δεϖελοπεδ mαρκετσ.

4
Π Α Γ Ε

Ον τηε Ηυντ φορ Μορε 

Ψιελδ Γλοβαλλψ

ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ 

Ιν τηειρ χοντινυεδ ηυντ 

φορ σταβλε ψιελδσ, ινϖεσ−

τορσ γραϖιτατεδ το χορπο−

ρατε βονδσ ιν τηε Υ.Σ., ανδ φαϖορεδ 

mυνιχιπαλ βονδσ οϖερ Τρεασυριεσ. 

Υνηεδγεδ νον−Υ.Σ. βονδσ γοτ ηελπ 

φροm τηε ωεακ δολλαρ, ωηιλε εmεργ−

ing market ixed income saw strong 
δεmανδ φροm ψιελδ−ηυνγρψ ινϖεστορσ.

9
Π Α Γ Ε

6
Π Α Γ Ε

14
Π Α Γ Ε

15
Π Α Γ Ε

11
Π Α Γ Ε

ΧΑΛΛΑΝ 
ΙΝΣΤΙΤΥΤΕ Χαπιταλ 

Μαρκετ  
Ρεϖιεω

Βροαδ Μαρκετ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ

+5.8% +1.4%+3.0% +3.5%

U.S. Equity
Ρυσσελλ 3000

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ Ινχοmε
Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Αγγ

Non-U.S. Equity
ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ

Νον−Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ Ινχοmε
Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Γβλ εξ ΥΣ

Sources: Bloomberg Barclays, MSCI, Russell Investment Group



2

Why Is Inlation So Low? 
ΕΧΟΝΟΜΨ |  ϑαψ Κλοεπφερ

Wε αρε νοω ειγητ ψεαρσ ιντο τηε εχονοmιχ ρεχοϖερψ ιν τηε Υ.Σ., 

αργυαβλψ τηε λαττερ σταγεσ οφ α mατυρε εξπανσιον ανδ ατ α ποιντ 

where inlationary pressures typically begin to build. Yet price 
and wage inlation remain stubbornly subdued. Headline and 
particularly core inlation have drifted down over the past sev−

eral months. Headline inlation (the CPI – All Urban) climbed 
αβοϖε 2% ιν Dεχεmβερ 2016 ανδ σταψεδ νεαρ 2.5% υντιλ Μαψ 

2017, ωηεν ιτ βεγαν το εββ. Τηε Ινδεξ ωασ υνχηανγεδ ιν ϑυνε, 

meaning zero inlation month to month; the year-over-year 
change is now 1.6%. The Fed’s targeted measure of core inla−

τιον (περσοναλ χονσυmπτιον εξπενδιτυρεσ (ΠΧΕ) λεσσ φοοδ ανδ 

ενεργψ) σλιππεδ το α ψεαρ−οϖερ−ψεαρ γαιν οφ ϕυστ 1.4% ιν Μαψ 

and will likely show a lattening similar to the CPI-U in June. 
This decline in core inlation is both bafling and frustrating to 
τηε Φεδ, ανδ ιτ προϖιδεσ α ηεαδωινδ το ιτσ εφφορτσ το βρινγ ιντερεστ 

ρατεσ βαχκ το �νορmαλ.�

Λοω ωαγε γροωτη ισ αλσο α mψστερψ ιν τηε Υ.Σ., ωηερε ιτ ηασ 

ρεmαινεδ βελοω 3% φορ ψεαρσ ωηιλε τηε υνεmπλοψmεντ ρατε ηασ 

φαλλεν το α 16−ψεαρ λοω οφ 4.4% ιν ϑυνε, ανδ στοριεσ οφ τιγητ λαβορ 

mαρκετσ αβουνδ ιν ινδυστριεσ αρουνδ τηε χουντρψ.

The explanations for persistent low inlation are varied, but 
τηερε ισ νο χονσενσυσ ον τηε χαυσε. Τηε mοστ πλαυσιβλε ρεα−

sons include: 1) lackluster global growth; 2) excess industrial 
capacity, much of it in China, pushing down goods prices; and 
3) technology, speciically product and process innovations that 
σλαση προδυχτιον χοστσ.

Wεακ ωαγε γροωτη ισ mορε οφ α χονυνδρυm, εσπεχιαλλψ ιν εχον−

οmιεσ συχη ασ τηε Υ.Σ. τηατ αππεαρ το βε ατ φυλλ εmπλοψmεντ. 

Wηψ ηασν�τ τηε ϕοβ mαρκετ πρεσσυρε πυσηεδ υπ οϖεραλλ ωαγεσ? 

Μορε πλαυσιβλε εξπλανατιονσ ινχλυδε: 1) α λαργε ποολ ρεmαινσ 

of workers not properly captured in the oficial unemployment 
data (discouraged workers, the long-term unemployed); 2) the 
ρεπλαχεmεντ οφ ρετιρινγ ηιγηερ−ωαγε βαβψ βοοmερσ ωιτη λοωερ−

wage young workers, skewing the average wage downward; 

3) ποορ προδυχτιϖιτψ γροωτη, παιρεδ ωιτη 4) υσε οφ τεχηνολογψ 

το ρεπλαχε ωορκερσ ωιτη χαπιταλ, παρτιχυλαρλψ ιν λοω−ωαγε, λοω−

skilled jobs; and 5) a related shift in market power from labor to 
χαπιταλ. Νονε οφ τηεσε φαχτορσ αλονε εξπλαιν τηε περσιστενχε οφ 

low inlation and low wage growth, but the interaction of these 
φαχτορσ τελλσ α βελιεϖαβλε στορψ.

02 0397 98 99 00 01 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

-10%

-8%

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

Θυαρτερλψ Ρεαλ ΓDΠ Γροωτη (20 Years)

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

PPI (All Commodities)CPI (All Urban Consumers)

02 039798 99 00 01 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

Inlation Year-Over-Year

Source: Bureau of  Labor Statistics

Source: Bureau of  Economic Analysis



3Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Υ.Σ. ΕΧΟΝΟΜΨ (Χοντινυεδ)

In addition to the conundrum of low inlation, the state of 
γροωτη ωειγησ ηεαϖιλψ ον τηε Φεδ�σ δελιβερατιονσ ον τηε πατη 

το φυτυρε ιντερεστ ρατε ηικεσ ανδ τηε σιζε οφ ιτσ βαλανχε σηεετ. 

Σεχονδ θυαρτερ ΓDΠ γροωτη χαmε ιν ατ 2.6%, ρουγηλψ ιν λινε 

with expectations. The solid (if unspectacular) igure built on 
the upward revision to disappointing data in the irst quarter, 
ωηιχη ωασ αδϕυστεδ υπ φροm 0.7% το 1.2%. Χονσυmερ σπενδ−

ινγ, ϕοβ γροωτη, ανδ χαπιταλ σπενδινγ ηαϖε βεεν στρονγ ενουγη 

το εναβλε τηε Υ.Σ. εχονοmψ το αmβλε ον ατ α ρεασοναβλε ιφ 

υνσπεχταχυλαρ (αλτηουγη σοmετιmεσ ηαλτινγ) παχε φορ ειγητ 

ψεαρσ. Χονσυmερ σπενδινγ ηασ βεεν τηε ενγινε φορ γροωτη, 

ινχρεασινγ φαστερ τηαν ΓDΠ (2.8% ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ), ανδ 

συππορτεδ βψ γαινσ ιν εmπλοψmεντ, δισποσαβλε ινχοmε, ανδ 

ηουσεηολδ ωεαλτη. Τηε χοmβινατιον οφ α στρονγ ϕοβ mαρκετ, 

χοντινυεδ στοχκ mαρκετ γαινσ, ανδ τηε εξπεχτατιον φορ ταξ χυτσ 

χοmινγ φροm τηε Τρυmπ αδmινιστρατιον ανδ τηε Ρεπυβλιχαν 

Congress has fueled consumer conidence, and with it spend−

ing, since the start of 2017—although conidence did take a 
βρεατηερ ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ.

Business ixed investment enjoyed a strong irst quarter with a 
7.2% γαιν, δριϖεν βψ χλοσε το 15% γροωτη ιν στρυχτυρεσ (ινχλυδ−

ινγ οιλ ανδ γασ mινινγ), ανδ φολλοωεδ ωιτη ανοτηερ 5% γαιν ιν τηε 

σεχονδ θυαρτερ. Τηε ρεβουνδ ιν τηε οιλ ανδ γασ σεχτορ συγγεστσ 

τηε σπενδινγ ον χαπιταλ ηασ βυιλτ σοmε mοmεντυm.

Ρεσιδεντιαλ ηουσινγ σπενδινγ τοοκ α ηιτ ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ, 

falling by 6.8%, somewhat in deiance of the laws of economics 
ασ τηε συππλψ οφ ηοmεσ φορ σαλε ισ νοτ κεεπινγ υπ ωιτη δεmανδ. 

Τηε νατιον−ωιδε αϖεραγε πριχε φορ α νεω ηοmε ρεαχηεδ αν 

all-time high in May, topping $400,000. High prices should be 
δριϖινγ βυιλδερσ το βυιλδ, βυτ τηε περmιτσ ανδ σταρτσ φορ βοτη 

σινγλε−φαmιλψ ανδ mυλτι−φαmιλψ ηοmεσ δεχλινεδ ιν Μαψ βεφορε 

ρεχοϖερινγ σοmεωηατ ιν ϑυνε. Τηε ρεστραιντ ον χονστρυχτιον 

αχτιϖιτψ mαψ στεm φροm τιγητενεδ στανδαρδσ ον χοmmερχιαλ 

ρεαλ εστατε λοανσ, παρτιχυλαρλψ ον mυλτι−φαmιλψ ηοmεσ, ανδ ρισινγ 

ιντερεστ ρατεσ.

Τηε Λονγ−Τερm ςιεω  

2017

2νδ Θτρ

Περιοδσ ενδεδ Dεχ. 31, 2016

Ινδεξ Ψεαρ 5 Ψρσ 10 Ψρσ 25 Ψρσ

U.S. Equity
Ρυσσελλ 3000 3.02 12.74 14.67 7.07 9.29

Σ&Π 500 3.09 11.96 14.66 6.95 9.15

Ρυσσελλ 2000 2.46 21.31 14.46 7.07 9.69

Non-U.S. Equity
ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ 5.78 4.50 5.00 0.96 –

ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ 6.27 11.19 1.28 1.84 –

ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ Σmαλλ Χαπ 8.07 3.78 9.67 3.03 6.70

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Αγγ 1.45 2.65 2.23 4.34 5.63

90−Dαψ Τ−Βιλλ 0.20 0.33 0.12 0.80 2.71

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Λονγ Γ/Χ 4.39 6.67 4.07 6.85 7.58

Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Γλ Αγγ εξ ΥΣ 3.55 1.49 −1.39 2.44 4.73

Ρεαλ Εστατε

ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Προπερτψ 1.75 7.97 10.91 6.93 8.63

ΦΤΣΕ ΝΑΡΕΙΤ Εθυιτψ 1.52 8.52 12.01 5.08 11.13

Αλτερνατιϖεσ

CS Hedge Fund 0.76 1.25 4.34 3.75 –

Χαmβριδγε ΠΕ∗ – 9.20 12.78 9.40 15.39

Βλοοmβεργ Χοmmοδιτψ −3.00 11.77 −8.95 −5.57 2.55

Γολδ Σποτ Πριχε −0.71 8.63 −5.97 6.08 4.82

Inlation – CPI-U 0.47 2.07 1.36 1.81 2.26

*Most recent quarterly data not available.

Sources: Bloomberg Barclays, Bloomberg, Credit Suisse, FTSE, MSCI, NCREIF, 

Russell Investment Group, Standard & Poor’s, Thomson Reuters/Cambridge, Bureau 

of  Economic Analysis.

Ρεχεντ Θυαρτερλψ Εχονοmιχ Ινδιχατορσ

2Θ17 1Θ17 4Θ16 3Θ16 2Θ16 1Θ16 4Θ15 3Θ15

Employment Cost–Total Compensation Growth 2.4% 2.4% 2.2% 2.3% 2.3% 1.9% 2.0% 2.0%

Nonfarm Business–Productivity Growth 1.3%∗ 0.0% 1.8% 3.3% −0.1% −0.7% −2.0% 1.8% 

ΓDΠ Γροωτη 2.6% 1.2% 1.8% 2.8% 2.2% 0.6% 0.5% 1.6%

Μανυφαχτυρινγ Χαπαχιτψ Υτιλιζατιον 75.5% 75.3% 75.1% 74.9% 75.1% 75.4% 75.4% 75.7%

Χονσυmερ Σεντιmεντ Ινδεξ (1966=100)  96.4  97.2  93.2  90.3  92.4  91.5  91.3  90.8

*Estimate.

Sources: Bureau of  Economic Analysis, Bureau of  Labor Statistics, Federal Reserve, IHS Economics, Reuters/University of  Michigan.



4

Μανψ Φυνδσ �Ρισκ Υπ� φορ Ρετυρνσ 

ΦΥΝD ΣΠΟΝΣΟΡ |  Τοδδ Χαραβασι, Τοm Σηινγλερ

Φυνδ σπονσορσ αρε βεγιννινγ το χοmε το γριπσ ωιτη λοωερ 

χαπιταλ mαρκετ ρετυρν εξπεχτατιονσ. Πενσιον φυνδσ αρε ρεδυχ−

ινγ αχτυαριαλ ρετυρν ασσυmπτιονσ, ανδ ενδοωmεντσ ανδ φουν−

δατιονσ αρε δισχυσσινγ ανδ mακινγ αδϕυστmεντσ το σπενδινγ 

ρυλεσ. Σοmε φυνδσ αρε αδδρεσσινγ τηισ ισσυε βψ τακινγ ον συβ−

σταντιαλ mαρκετ ρισκ (80%−85% ιν ρισκψ ασσετσ) το αττεmπτ το 

χλοσε α φυνδινγ γαπ ορ mεετ σπενδινγ νεεδσ ωιτηουτ εροδινγ 

the corpus. Fund sponsors are further focusing on diversiica−

τιον ωιτηιν εαχη ασσετ χλασσ το ηελπ mιτιγατε τηειρ οϖεραλλ ρισκ.

Φυνδ σπονσορσ φαχε τηε χηαλλενγε οφ λοοκινγ φορ ινϖεστmεντσ 

ωιτη αττραχτιϖε ρεαλ ρετυρν εξπεχτατιονσ ωηιλε σεεκινγ ατ λεαστ 

some diversiication to the beta of equities to smooth the ride 
within the growth allocation. By focusing on diversiiers, funds 
χαν χονσιδερ αδδινγ ινϖεστmεντσ λικε ηιγη ψιελδ, λοω−ϖολατιλιτψ 

εθυιτψ, ηεδγε φυνδσ, mυλτι−ασσετ χλασσ φυνδσ, ανδ οπτιονσ−

βασεδ στρατεγιεσ. Τηισ αλσο αλλοωσ φορ νεω στρατεγιεσ το βε 

brought into the fold, based on anticipated diversiication ben−

eits or return enhancement. This broadening of growth assets 

0%

2%

4%

6%

  Public Corporate Endow/Fndn Taft-Hartley
  Database Database Database Database

 10th Percentile 3.57 4.45 3.67 3.25

 25th Percentile 3.31 3.81 3.34 2.94

 Median 3.04 3.20 3.04 2.67

 75th Percentile 2.62 2.67 2.68 2.34

 90th Percentile 2.23 2.07 2.26 2.05

Χαλλαν Φυνδ Σπονσορ Ρετυρνσ φορ τηε Θυαρτερ

Source: Callan

U.S. Fixed 

Non-U.S. Fixed

Global Balanced

Real Estate

Hedge Funds

Other Alternatives

Cash

U.S. Balanced

U.S. Equity

Non-U.S. Equity

Global Equity1.6%

1.7%

Public

3.04%*

35.7%

16.0%

26.2%

1.6%

2.4%

6.7%
0.9%

4.1%

2.7%

1.3%

Endowment/

Foundation

3.04%*

34.8%

18.1%

18.9%

1.9%

0.9%

0.6%

7.1%

2.1%

6.1%

1.9%

Taft-Hartley

2.67%*

0.4%

Corporate

3.20%*

0.5%

2.0%

0.4% 0.6%

36.9%

25.9%

11.8%

0.6%

4.2%

11.8%

4.0%

14.4%

2.3%

28.0%

39.2%

2.3%

0.6%

0.7%
3.1%

4.1%

3.6%

Χαλλαν Φυνδ Σπονσορ Αϖεραγε Ασσετ Αλλοχατιον

*Latest median quarter return.

Note: charts may not sum to 100% due to rounding.

Source: Callan

can lead to a sharper focus on reining ixed income exposure 
το γαιν α �πυρερ� εξποσυρε το ιντερεστ ρατε σενσιτιϖιτψ ανδ το 

σερϖε ασ αν ανχηορ το τηε πορτφολιο ιν α βεαρ mαρκετ (ε.γ., αλλο−

cating the ixed income portfolio to long-duration Treasuries).



5Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

ΦΥΝD ΣΠΟΝΣΟΡ (Χοντινυεδ)

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

07 08 09 10 11 12 13

U.S. Fixed 

Non-U.S. Fixed

Global Balanced

Real Estate

Hedge Funds

Other Alternatives

Cash

U.S. Balanced

U.S. Equity

Non-U.S. Equity

Global Equity

14 15 16 17

Χαλλαν Πυβλιχ Φυνδ Dαταβασε Αϖεραγε Ασσετ Αλλοχατιον (10 Years)

Source: Callan. Callan’s database includes the following groups: public deined beneit, corporate deined beneit, endowments/foundations, and Taft-Hartley plans. 

Approximately 10% to 15% of  the database constituents are Callan’s clients. All database group returns presented gross of  fees. Past performance is no guarantee of  future 

results. Reference to or inclusion in this report of  any product, service, or entity should not be construed as a recommendation, approval, ailiation, or endorsement of  such 

product, service, or entity by Callan.

Ατ τηε σαmε τιmε, ωιτη Υ.Σ. εθυιτιεσ χοντινυινγ τηειρ υνπρεχ−

εδεντεδ ποσιτιϖε ρυν, φυνδ σπονσορσ αρε ασκινγ τηε θυεστιον 

�Wηψ διϖερσιφψ?� Τηε ανσωερ: Wηιλε ρεσυλτσ ιν νον−Υ.Σ. εθυιτψ, 

ρεαλ ασσετσ, ανδ αλτερνατιϖεσ ηαϖε λαγγεδ Υ.Σ. εθυιτιεσ ιν τηε 

last ive years, their longer-term diversifying characteristics 
ωαρραντ χονσιδερατιον.

Τηε αχτιϖε/πασσιϖε δισχυσσιον χοντινυεσ το λοοm λαργε. Τηε 

αργυmεντ το ρεταιν αχτιϖε mαναγερσ το προτεχτ ιν α δοων mαρ−

κετ ανδ βε νιmβλε ιν α ϖολατιλε, λοω−ρετυρν ενϖιρονmεντ ισ χοm−

πελλινγ το σοmε, βυτ mανψ φυνδ σπονσορσ αρε ωεαρψ οφ ηιστοριχαλ 

υνδερπερφορmανχε βψ αχτιϖε εθυιτψ mαναγερσ. Αδδιτιοναλλψ, τηε 

υσε οφ πασσιϖε mαναγεmεντ ηελπσ χοντρολ χοστσ.

Callan has observed the following trends over the last ive 
ψεαρσ:

 – The U.S. ixed income allocations for corporate plan spon−

σορσ ηασ ινχρεασεδ οϖεραλλ ανδ ηασ βεχοmε mορε ωιδελψ δισ−

περσεδ ασ πλανσ τακε διφφερεντ στεπσ το δε−ρισκ πλαν ασσετσ.

 – Μανψ πυβλιχ φυνδσ ηαϖε ινχρεασεδ τηειρ αλλοχατιον το νον−Υ.Σ. 

εθυιτψ, ρεαλ εστατε, ανδ οτηερ αλτερνατιϖεσ ατ τηε εξπενσε 

of ixed income and U.S. equity. Simultaneously, some of 
the ixed income exposure has become more equity-like in 
νατυρε, ωιτη αλλοχατιονσ το αρεασ λικε ηιγη ψιελδ.

 – Ενδοωmεντσ ανδ φουνδατιονσ ηαϖε χοντινυεδ το mοϖε 

assets from ixed income to asset classes with expectations 
φορ ηιγηερ ρετυρνσ, συχη ασ γλοβαλ εθυιτψ ανδ ρεαλ εστατε.

Α 60% Σ&Π 500/40% Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Υ.Σ. Αγγρεγατε 

Βονδ Ινδεξ πορτφολιο ρετυρνεδ 10.4% οϖερ τηε ψεαρ ενδεδ 

ϑυνε 30, 2017. Αλλ οφ τηε βροαδ φυνδ σπονσορ γρουπσ τραχκεδ ιν 

Χαλλαν�σ δαταβασε τοππεδ τηε 60/40 πορτφολιο οϖερ τηατ περιοδ. 

Ενδοωmεντσ ανδ φουνδατιονσ υνδερπερφορmεδ οτηερ φυνδ 

sponsor groups over the past three, ive, and ten years. But 
τηεψ διδ ηαϖε τηε βεστ περφορmανχε οϖερ τηε λαστ ψεαρ.

Taft-Hartley plans were the best-performing group over the 
past three and ive years. Corporate plans beat other groups 
οϖερ τηε λαστ 10 ψεαρσ.



6

+3.0%
ΡΥΣΣΕΛΛ 3000

Υ.Σ. Στοχκσ: Σηοχκσ, βυτ Νο Σλοωινγ

Dεσπιτε αν ινχρεασε ιν ιντερεστ ρατεσ 

ανδ τυρβυλεντ εϖεντσ ιν τηε νεωσ, 

ινχλυδινγ δισρυπτιονσ ωιτηιν τηε Τρυmπ 

αδmινιστρατιον ανδ τερροριστ ατταχκσ ιν 

τηε Υ.Κ., Υ.Σ. στοχκσ χοντινυεδ το ινχη ηιγηερ δυρινγ τηε σεχονδ 

θυαρτερ. Αmιδ τηισ ϖολατιλε mαχρο βαχκδροπ, Σ&Π 500 χοmπα−

νιεσ ρεπορτεδ τηε στρονγεστ θυαρτερλψ εαρνινγσ γροωτη ρατε ιν σιξ 

years (70% reported proits above expectations), and the Σ&Π 

500 Ινδεξ ηιτ α ρεχορδ ηιγη δυρινγ τηε θυαρτερ.

Λαργε χαπ στοχκσ ουτπερφορmεδ mιδ ανδ σmαλλ χαπσ (Σ&Π 500 

Index: +3.1%; Ρυσσελλ 2000 Ινδεξ: +2.5%). Στρονγ εαρνινγσ 

ρεπορτσ ουτ οφ λαργε χαπ στοχκσ χοντριβυτεδ το τηειρ λεγ υπ 

οϖερ σmαλλ χαπ. Λαργε χαπ ωασ αλσο βυοψεδ βψ τηε χοντινυεδ 

low of assets into passively managed strategies, especially 
ΕΤΦ ϖεηιχλεσ.

Σmαλλ χαπ ϖαλυατιονσ κεπτ στρετχηινγ ηιγηερ ανδ, ασ α ρεσυλτ, 

investors continued to take proits following a boon year in 
2016. Τηε χοντινυεδ εξπανσιον ιν σmαλλ χαπ mυλτιπλεσ mαψ βε 

γιϖινγ σοmε ινϖεστορσ παυσε, παρτιχυλαρλψ ασ τηε χυρρεντ εχο−

νοmιχ υπτυρν ισ νεαρινγ νινε ψεαρσ.

Global Equity 

Γροωτη ουτπερφορmεδ ϖαλυε αχροσσ λαργε ανδ σmαλλ χαπσ 

(Ρυσσελλ 1000 Γροωτη: +4.7% ϖσ. Ρυσσελλ 1000 ςαλυε: +1.3%; 
Ρυσσελλ 2000 Γροωτη: +4.4% ϖσ. Ρυσσελλ 2000 ςαλυε: +0.7%). 

Τηε στρονγ−περφορmινγ �ΦΑΑΜΓ� στοχκσ (Φαχεβοοκ, Αmαζον, 

Αππλε, Μιχροσοφτ, ανδ Γοογλε) χοmπρισεδ 22% οφ τηε Σ&Π 500�σ 

return in the second quarter versus 32% in the irst. Investors 
χοντινυεδ το βε δραων το τηε τοπ−λινε γροωτη προσπεχτσ ανδ mαρ−

ket share gains at these large, established irms.

Ινϖεστορ σεντιmεντ βροαδενεδ αχροσσ σεχτορσ ιν τηε σεχονδ 

quarter compared to the irst, as a wider range of irms reported 
positive results. Top sectors in the S&P 500 included Health 
Χαρε (+7.1%), ωηιχη ραλλιεδ ον τηε Τρυmπ αδmινιστρατιον�σ προσ−

pect of change to the Affordable Care Act; Industrials (+4.7%), 
which beneited from declining commodity prices; Financials 
(+4.2%), σπυρρεδ βψ τηε Φεδ�σ αννουνχεmεντ τηατ 34 οφ τηε 

λαργεστ βανκσ πασσεδ τηειρ στρεσσ τεστσ, τηε λαργεστ χοηορτ το δο 

so since the tests began; and Tech (+4.1%), on the continued 
ρισε οφ τηοσε ΦΑΑΜΓ στοχκσ.

Ενεργψ (−6.4%) ανδ Τελεχοm (−7.0%) ωερε τηε λαγγαρδσ. Χρυδε 

οιλ πριχεσ φελλ δυε το αν ινχρεασε ιν συππλψ, τηε ρεσυλτ οφ α mιλδερ 

winter. In addition, improving eficiency within the U.S. fracking 

Russell 1000 Russell 2000

EnergyUtilitiesConsumer 

Staples

Consumer 

Discretionary

Materials & 

Processing

TechnologyFinancial 

Services

Producer 

Durables

Health Care

7.1%

9.0%

4.6%
3.6% 1.5% 3.7% 4.0%

3.2%

-1.4%

3.0%
2.3%

1.1%

-2.8%
-1.7%

4.5%

-7.0%

-17.8%

4.2%

Θυαρτερλψ Περφορmανχε οφ Σελεχτ Σεχτορσ 

Source: Russell Investment Group



7Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

ινδυστρψ ιmπαχτεδ πριχεσ. Wιτηιν Τελεχοm, χοmπετιτιον φορ mαρ−

ket share intensiied in the increasingly commoditized (and con−

σολιδατεδ) σπαχε.

ςαλυε στοχκσ ωερε ηυρτ βψ Χονσυmερ Σταπλεσ χοmπανιεσ ρε−

σεττινγ το mορε σενσιβλε ϖαλυατιονσ φολλοωινγ τηε στρονγ ραλλψ ιν 

2016 τηατ ρεσυλτεδ φροm τηε �ψιελδ τραδε,� ασ ινϖεστορσ σουγητ τηε 

σαφετψ οφ στρονγ διϖιδενδσ ανδ λοωερ−ϖολατιλιτψ στοχκσ.

 

Φροm α φαχτορ περσπεχτιϖε, Μοmεντυm (+7.9%) ωασ τηε τοπ−

περφορmινγ φαχτορ ωηιλε Ενηανχεδ ςαλυε (ωειγητεδ το τηε 

forward price-earnings ratio, enterprise value/cash low from 
οπερατιονσ, ανδ πριχε−το−βοοκ ϖαλυε οφ στοχκσ ιν τηε φαχτορ) 

φαρεδ ωορστ (+1.3%). Μοmεντυm ωασ φαϖορεδ ασ ινϖεστορσ 

σουγητ στοχκσ ωιτη δεmονστρατεδ εαρνινγσ γροωτη.

Νον−Υ.Σ. Στοχκσ: Ευροπε�σ Ρεχοϖερψ α Βοοστ

Νον−Υ.Σ. δεϖελοπεδ εθυιτψ ουτπερ−

φορmεδ τηε Υ.Σ. φορ τηε σεχονδ χον−

σεχυτιϖε θυαρτερ, φυελεδ βψ εχονοmιχ 

ρεχοϖερψ ιν Ευροπε ανδ mαρκετ−

φριενδλψ ουτχοmεσ ιν Ευροπεαν ελεχ−

τιονσ. Τηε ΜΣΧΙ Ευροπε Ινδεξ ϕυmπεδ 7.4% ανδ τηε ΜΣΧΙ 

Wορλδ εξ ΥΣΑ Ινδεξ νοτχηεδ α 5.6% γαιν, χοmπαρεδ το τηε 

3.1% ρισε ιν τηε Σ&Π 500.

Γαινσ ωερε βροαδ−βασεδ ανδ ηελπεδ βψ ωεακνεσσ ιν τηε Υ.Σ. 

δολλαρ, ωηιχη λοστ αβουτ 7% ϖερσυσ τηε ευρο ανδ 5% ϖερσυσ α 

βροαδ βασκετ οφ χυρρενχιεσ.

Τηε ευρο ραλλιεδ ασ α ρεσυλτ οφ ηαωκιση χοmmεντσ φροm τηε 

Ευροπεαν Χεντραλ Βανκ, χουπλεδ ωιτη ιmπροϖινγ Ευροπεαν εχο−

nomic and sentiment indicators. European Financials beneited 
φροm εξπεχτατιονσ οφ ηιγηερ ρατεσ, ανδ Ευροπεαν Ινδυστριαλσ 

ωερε προππεδ υπ βψ στρονγερ εχονοmιχ εξπεχτατιονσ.

Ενεργψ ανδ Τελεχοm Σερϖιχεσ ωερε τηε ονλψ σεχτορσ ιν δεϖελ−

οπεδ mαρκετσ ωιτη νεγατιϖε σεχονδ θυαρτερ ρετυρνσ. Ενεργψ φελλ 

ασ οιλ πριχεσ χοντινυεδ το λανγυιση δυε το αν ιmβαλανχε βετωεεν 

συππλψ ανδ δεmανδ�δεσπιτε ΟΠΕΧ�σ εφφορτσ το χυτ προδυχτιον. 

Τελεχοm Σερϖιχεσ ωερε βυφφετεδ βψ πριχινγ πρεσσυρε.

Wιτηιν τηε ΜΣΧΙ ινδιχεσ, Ευροπε εξ−Υ.Κ. ωασ υπ 8.4%, τηε Υ.Κ 

γαινεδ 4.7%, ανδ ϑαπαν ρετυρνεδ 5.2%. Σmαλλ χαπσ ουτπερ−

formed; the ΜΣΧΙ ΕΑΦΕ Σmαλλ Χαπ Ινδεξ ροσε 8.1%.

Λοοκινγ ατ τηε γλοβαλ πιχτυρε φορ στοχκσ, τηε ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ Ινδεξ 

γαινεδ 4.3%, ανδ δεϖελοπεδ ανδ εmεργινγ mαρκετσ ουτπερ−

φορmεδ τηε Υ.Σ. (ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ εξ ΥΣΑ Ινδεξ: +5.8%), δυε 

λαργελψ το βροαδ−βασεδ ωεακνεσσ ιν τηε Υ.Σ. δολλαρ.

Russell 2000

Russell 2500

Russell Midcap

S&P 500

Russell 1000 Value

Russell 1000 Growth

Russell 1000

Russell 3000

15.5%

16.5%

18.0%

18.5%

17.9%

19.8%

20.4%

24.6%

Russell 2000

Russell 2500

Russell Midcap

S&P 500

Russell 1000 Value

Russell 1000 Growth

Russell 1000

Russell 3000

1.3%

2.7%

3.1%

3.0%

3.1%

2.1%

4.7%

2.5%

U.S. Equity: Quarterly Returns 

U.S. Equity: One-Year Returns 

Sources: Russell Investment Group and Standard & Poor’s

Sources: Russell Investment Group and Standard & Poor’s

+5.8%
ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ ΕΞ ΥΣΑ

ΓΛΟΒΑΛ ΕΘΥΙΤΨ (Χοντινυεδ)



8

Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ: Τεχη Τριυmπησ

Εmεργινγ mαρκετσ ουτπαχεδ τηε 

δεϖελοπεδ mαρκετσ φορ τηε σεχ−

ονδ στραιγητ θυαρτερ, προπελλεδ βψ 

Τεχηνολογψ χοmπανιεσ ιν Χηινα, 

Σουτη Κορεα, ανδ Ταιωαν. Τηε ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ 

Ινδεξ γαινεδ 6.3%. Ινδυστρψ λεαδερσ ιν ονλινε ανδ mοβιλε χοm−

mερχε, παψmεντσ, διγιταλ mεδια, χλουδ χοmπυτινγ, ανδ σmαρτ−

πηονεσ αρε mονοπολιζινγ τηε mαρκετσ. Τηατ ινχλυδεσ Τενχεντ 

and Alibaba in China; Samsung in South Korea; and Taiwan 
Σεmιχονδυχτορ Μανυφαχτυρινγ ιν Ταιωαν.

 

Ποσιτιϖε εχονοmιχ mοmεντυm ανδ Ευροπεαν ελεχτιον ρεσυλτσ 

placed Greece (+33.8%) and Hungary (+19.4%) as the top two 
περφορmινγ χουντριεσ ιν εmεργινγ mαρκετσ. Χηινα ροσε 10.6%, 

ωηιλε Ινδια�σ γαιν ωασ mυτεδ ατ +2.9%, τηουγη ιτ ρεmαινσ α 

τοπ περφορmερ ψεαρ−το−δατε (+21%). Τηε τηρεε ωορστ−περφορmινγ 

χουντριεσ ωερε Θαταρ (−10.9%), Ρυσσια (−10.0%), ανδ Βραζιλ 

(−6.7%). Θαταρ ωασ ηιτ αφτερ φουρ Αραβ νατιονσ (Σαυδι Αραβια, 

τηε Υνιτεδ Αραβ Εmιρατεσ, Εγψπτ, ανδ Βαηραιν) ιmποσεδ αν 

εmβαργο, αχχυσινγ τηε χουντρψ οφ βαχκινγ τερρορισm. Ρυσσια 

σλυmπεδ βεχαυσε οφ δεχλινινγ οιλ πριχεσ ανδ λοοmινγ νεω 

σανχτιονσ. Ανδ χοντινυινγ πολιτιχαλ ινσταβιλιτψ ιν Βραζιλ (ινχλυδ−

ινγ Πρεσιδεντ Μιχηελ Τεmερ�σ βριβερψ σχανδαλ) ανδ χοmmοδιτψ 

πριχεσ ωειγηεδ ον τηε χουντρψ.

Θυαλιτψ, γροωτη, ανδ mοmεντυm φαχτορσ δοmινατεδ τηε mαρκετ 

γιϖεν τηε ρετυρνσ οφ λαργε χαπ τεχηνολογψ χοmπανιεσ. 

Νον−Υ.Σ. Σmαλλ Χαπ: Αλλ Οϖερ τηε Μαπ

Dεϖελοπεδ νον−Υ.Σ. σmαλλ χαπ στοχκσ 

ουτπερφορmεδ λαργε χαπ εθυιτψ, ασ 

τηεψ ωερε βεττερ ποσιτιονεδ φορ τηε 

λοχαλ εχονοmιχ ρεχοϖερψ ιν Ευροπε. 

Βυτ σmαλλ χαπ εθυιτψ λαγγεδ λαργε χαπ ιν εmεργινγ mαρκετσ, 

δυε το τηε περφορmανχε οφ τηε λαργε χαπ τεχη χοmπανιεσ. Τηε 

ΜΣΧΙ Wορλδ εξ ΥΣΑ Σmαλλ Χαπ Ινδεξ χλιmβεδ 7.3% ωηιλε τηε 

ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ Σmαλλ Χαπ Ινδεξ ινχρεασεδ 2.6%. 

Ενεργψ ωασ τηε ωορστ−περφορmινγ σεχτορ ιν δεϖελοπεδ ανδ 

εmεργινγ mαρκετσ δυε το δεχλινινγ οιλ πριχεσ, ωηιχη αλσο χαυσεδ 

γροωτη το ουτπερφορm ϖαλυε ιν δεϖελοπεδ σmαλλ χαπ. Φινανχιαλσ, 

the top performing sector for the quarter, offset Energy; on the 
ηεελσ οφ ποσιτιϖε εχονοmιχ δατα ανδ ελεχτιον ρεσυλτσ, Εαστερν 

Ευροπεαν Φινανχιαλσ ραλλιεδ.

32.2%

18.2%

20.5%

20.3%

21.3%

19.5%

18.8%

24.4%

13.3%

19.2%

23.7%

19.2%

19.4%

MSCI ACWI ex USA Small Cap

MSCI ACWI

MSCI ACWI ex USA

MSCI World ex USA Small Cap

MSCI World ex USA

MSCI World

MSCI Europe ex UK

MSCI UK

MSCI Japan

MSCI Pacific ex Japan

MSCI Emerging Markets

MSCI China

MSCI Frontier Markets

10.6%

4.0%

5.8%

6.2%

7.3%

5.6%

4.3%

8.4%

4.7%

5.2%

6.3%

6.1%

1.5%

MSCI ACWI ex USA Small Cap

MSCI ACWI

MSCI ACWI ex USA

MSCI World ex USA Small Cap

MSCI World ex USA

MSCI World

MSCI Europe ex UK

MSCI UK

MSCI Japan

MSCI Pacific ex Japan

MSCI Emerging Markets

MSCI China

MSCI Frontier Markets

Non-U.S. Equity: Quarterly Returns (Υ.Σ. Dολλαρ) Non-U.S. Equity: One-Year Returns (Υ.Σ. Dολλαρ)

Source: MSCI Source: MSCI

+6.3%
ΜΣΧΙ ΕΜ

+6.2%
ΜΣΧΙ ΑΧWΙ ΕΞ ΥΣ ΣΧ

ΓΛΟΒΑΛ ΕΘΥΙΤΨ (Χοντινυεδ)



9Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Γλοβαλ Φιξεδ Ινχοmε

Υ.Σ. Βονδσ: Ον τηε Ηυντ φορ Ψιελδ

Χορπορατε βονδσ περφορmεδ βεστ ιν 

τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ ον στρονγ δεmανδ. 

Ινϖεστορσ χοντινυεδ τηειρ ηυντ φορ στα−

βλε ψιελδσ τηατ αρε ηιγηερ τηαν ωηατ ισ 

αϖαιλαβλε φορ λικε−δυρατιον γοϖερνmεντ βονδσ. Τηε Βλοοmβεργ 

Βαρχλαψσ ΥΣ Χορπορατε Βονδ Ινδεξ ωασ υπ 2.5% (+3.8% 

ψεαρ το δατε), ωηιλε τηε Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ ΥΣ Αγγρεγατε 

Βονδ Ινδεξ rose 1.4% (+2.3% YTD). Credit fundamentals 
ρεmαινεδ στρονγ ωιτη σολιδ εαρνινγσ γροωτη ανδ α mοδεστ (βυτ 

acceptable) economic growth environment; corporate balance 
σηεετσ αππεαρεδ το βε ιν γοοδ σηαπε. Ανδ αλτηουγη ρατεσ 

ηαϖε mοϖεδ ηιγηερ ον τηε φροντ ενδ, οϖεραλλ τηε χυρϖε ηασ 

lattened; the demand for yield is providing support for spread 
σεχτορσ βροαδλψ.

Τηε Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Χορπορατε Ηιγη Ψιελδ Ινδεξ 

ινχρεασεδ 2.2%. Λοω ιντερεστ ρατεσ χοντινυεδ το βε α χαταλψστ 

πυσηινγ ινϖεστορσ ουτ τηε ρισκ σπεχτρυm ιν σεαρχη οφ ηιγηερ 

ψιελδσ. Dεφαυλτ εξπεχτατιονσ αρε λοω αχροσσ mοστ σεχτορσ, προ−

ϖιδινγ σοmε χοmφορτ το ινϖεστορσ. Ενεργψ ωασ τηε ονλψ ηιγη−

ψιελδ σεχτορ το δεχλινε (−0.66%). Ρισινγ ινϖεντοριεσ ανδ χον−

χερν οϖερ ΟΠΕΧ πολιχψ πυτ πρεσσυρε ον οιλ πριχεσ, ωηιχη ηαϖε 

φαλλεν αππροξιmατελψ 17% σο φαρ τηισ ψεαρ.

Ιν τηε γοϖερνmεντ mαρκετ, mυνιχιπαλ βονδσ ουτπερφορmεδ 

Τρεασυριεσ. Τηε Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Μυνιχιπαλ Βονδ 

Ινδεξ ωασ υπ 2.0%, χοmπαρεδ το τηε Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ 

ΥΣ Τρεασυρψ Ινδεξ (+1.2%). Ρεσυλτσ ωερε βολστερεδ βψ λοω−

ερεδ εξπεχτατιονσ φορ ταξ ρεφορm ανδ φαϖοραβλε συππλψ/δεmανδ 

technicals. The Fed, viewing inlation weakness as temporary, 
ραισεδ ρατεσ βψ 25 βασισ ποιντσ, ασ εξπεχτεδ. Τηε ψιελδ χυρϖε 

lattened over the quarter, with short rates rising and longer 

Υ.Σ. Τρεασυρψ Ψιελδ Χυρϖεσ

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

Maturity (Years)

June 30, 2017 March 31, 2017 June 30, 2016

302520151050

Source: Bloomberg

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ Ινχοmε: Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ Ινχοmε: Ονε−Ψεαρ Ρετυρνσ

4.4%

0.8%

0.9%

0.3%

1.5%

2.2%

-0.4%

1.4%

Bloomberg Barclays Gov/Credit 1-3 Yr

Bloomberg Barclays Interm Gov/Credit

Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate

Bloomberg Barclays Long Gov/Credit

Bloomberg Barclays Universal

CS Leveraged Loans

Bloomberg Barclays Corp. High Yield

Bloomberg Barclays US TIPS

-1.1%

7.5%

-0.2%

0.3%

0.9%

12.7%

-0.6%

-0.3%

Bloomberg Barclays Gov/Credit 1-3 Yr

Bloomberg Barclays Interm Gov/Credit

Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate

Bloomberg Barclays Long Gov/Credit

Bloomberg Barclays Universal

CS Leveraged Loans

Bloomberg Barclays Corp. High Yield

Bloomberg Barclays US TIPS

Sources: Bloomberg Barclays and Credit Suisse Sources: Bloomberg Barclays and Credit Suisse

+1.4%
ΒΒ ΑΓΓΡΕΓΑΤΕ



10

ρατεσ φαλλινγ. Τηε 10−ψεαρ Υ.Σ. Τρεασυρψ ψιελδ χλοσεδ τηε θυαρ−

τερ ατ 2.31%, δοων φροm 2.40% ασ οφ Μαρχη 31, τηουγη ιτ ηιτ α 

2017 λοω οφ 2.12% εαρλιερ ιν ϑυνε. Τηε 2−ψεαρ Υ.Σ. Τρεασυρψ 

ψιελδ χλιmβεδ 11 βπσ το χλοσε ατ 1.38%.

TIPS underperformed as expectations for inlation sank, a rever−
sal from the previous quarter; the Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ ΥΣ 

ΤΙΠΣ Ινδεξ φελλ 0.4%. Τηε 10−ψεαρ βρεακεϖεν σπρεαδ (τηε διφφερ−

ενχε βετωεεν νοmιναλ ανδ ρεαλ ψιελδσ) ωασ 1.73% ασ οφ θυαρτερ−

end, down from 1.97% at the end of the irst quarter, as inlation 
χαmε ιν βελοω εξπεχτατιονσ φορ τηε τηιρδ χονσεχυτιϖε mοντη.

 

Νον−Υ.Σ. Βονδσ: Ουρ Παιν, Τηειρ Γαιν

Α ωεακερ Υ.Σ. δολλαρ ηελπεδ υνηεδγεδ 

νον−Υ.Σ. βονδσ ανδ ηινδερεδ ηεδγεδ 

βονδσ. Τηε Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ 

Γλοβαλ Αγγρεγατε εξ−ΥΣ Βονδ 

Ινδεξ (υνηεδγεδ) ϕυmπεδ 3.5%, ωηιλε τηε ηεδγεδ Ινδεξ ροσε 

ονλψ 0.6%. Τηε Υ.Σ. δολλαρ λοστ νεαρλψ 7% ϖερσυσ τηε ευρο ανδ 

αλmοστ 5% ϖερσυσ α βροαδ βασκετ οφ δεϖελοπεδ mαρκετ χυρ−

ρενχιεσ. Ποσιτιϖε εχονοmιχ γροωτη ανδ ηαωκιση ρηετοριχ φροm 

τηε Ευροπεαν Χεντραλ Βανκ (ΕΧΒ) ανδ τηε Βανκ οφ Ενγλανδ 

δροϖε στρονγ ρεσυλτσ ιν τηε ευρο ανδ τηε Βριτιση πουνδ χοm−

παρεδ το τηε Υ.Σ. δολλαρ. Τηε θυαρτερ χλοσεδ ωιτη αν υπβεατ 

ασσεσσmεντ οφ τηε ευρο ζονε�σ ρεχοϖερψ φροm τηε πρεσιδεντ οφ 

τηε ΕΧΒ, Μαριο Dραγηι, φυελινγ σπεχυλατιον τηατ τηε ταπερινγ 

οφ ΕΧΒ ασσετ πυρχηασεσ mαψ βε ον τηε ηοριζον. Τηισ χηανγε 

ιν τονε σποοκεδ ινϖεστορσ ανδ σεντ γλοβαλ ψιελδσ ηιγηερ ανδ 

στοχκσ λοωερ γοινγ ιντο θυαρτερ−ενδ.

Dεσπιτε γροωινγ γεοπολιτιχαλ τενσιον ανδ πρεσσυρε ον ενεργψ 

ανδ χοmmοδιτψ πριχεσ, τηε δεmανδ φορ ψιελδ δροϖε ρετυρνσ ιν 

εmεργινγ mαρκετ (ΕΜ) δεβτ αmιδ α στρονγ τεχηνιχαλ χλιmατε 

supported by robust investor lows. The dollar-denominated 
JPM EMBI Global Diversiied Index ωασ υπ 2.2%, ανδ τηε 

λοχαλ χυρρενχψ−δενοmινατεδ JPM GBI-EM Global Diversiied 
Ινδεξ ϕυmπεδ εϖεν mορε σηαρπλψ, ρισινγ 3.6%. Τηε ωεακερ 

Υ.Σ. δολλαρ ανδ ρελατιϖελψ ηιγηερ λοχαλ ψιελδσ πυσηεδ ΕΜ λοχαλ 

δεβτ ρετυρνσ ηιγηερ φορ τηε θυαρτερ ανδ τηε ψεαρ, χοντινυινγ τηε 

ποστ−ελεχτιον ρεβουνδ.

Νον−Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ Ινχοmε: Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ Νον−Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ Ινχοmε: Ονε−Ψεαρ Ρετυρνσ

3.5%

3.6%

1.0%

2.6%

2.2%

2.9%

1.7%

3.2%

Bloomberg Barclays Global Aggregate

Bloomberg Barclays Global Agg (hdg)

Bloomberg Barclays Global High Yield

Bloomberg Barclays Global Agg ex US

JPM EMBI Global Diversified

JPM GBI-EM Global Diversified

JPM EMBI Gl Div / JPM GBI-EM Gl Div

JPM CEMBI

-3.8%

6.4%

-0.4%

-2.2%

6.0%

6.3%

7.0%

11.9%

Bloomberg Barclays Global Aggregate

Bloomberg Barclays Global Agg (hdg)

Bloomberg Barclays Global High Yield

Bloomberg Barclays Global Agg ex US

JPM EMBI Global Diversified

JPM GBI-EM Global Diversified

JPM EMBI Gl Div / JPM GBI-EM Gl Div

JPM CEMBI

Sources: Bloomberg Barclays and JP Morgan Sources: Bloomberg Barclays and JP Morgan

-9 bps

14 bps

12 bps

14 bps

2 bps

Germany

U.S. Treasury

U.K.

Canada

Japan

Χηανγε ιν 10−ψεαρ Γλοβαλ Γοϖερνmεντ Βονδ Ψιελδσ

1Θ17 το 2Θ17

Source: Bloomberg Barclays

+3.5%
ΒΒ ΓΒΛ ΑΓΓ ΕΞ ΥΣ

ΓΛΟΒΑΛ ΦΙΞΕD ΙΝΧΟΜΕ (Χοντινυεδ)



11Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Σοmε Ποσιτιϖε Σιγνσ Εmεργινγ

ΡΕΑΛ ΕΣΤΑΤΕ |  Κεϖιν Ναγψ

Τηε ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Προπερτψ Ινδεξ αδϖανχεδ 1.8% δυρινγ τηε σεχ−

ονδ θυαρτερ (1.2% φροm ινχοmε ανδ 0.6% φροm αππρεχιατιον). 

Τηισ mαρκεδ τηε 34τη χονσεχυτιϖε θυαρτερ οφ ποσιτιϖε ρετυρνσ φορ 

τηε Ινδεξ. Αππρεχιατιον ρετυρν ινχρεασεδ φροm τηε πρεϖιουσ θυαρ−

ter, the irst such gain since the irst quarter of 2015.

Ινδυστριαλ (+3.1%) ωασ τηε βεστ−περφορmινγ σεχτορ φορ τηε 

ifth consecutive quarter with Hotel (+1.8%), Ofice (+1.6%), 
Ρεταιλ (+1.5%), ανδ Απαρτmεντσ (+1.5%) αλσο γαινινγ. Τηε 

Wεστ ρεγιον ωασ τηε στρονγεστ περφορmερ φορ τηε τηιρδ θυαρτερ 

ιν α ροω, ρετυρνινγ 2.2%, ανδ τηε Μιδωεστ λαγγεδ ωιτη α 1.3% 

ρετυρν. Τρανσαχτιον ϖολυmε ινχρεασεδ το ∃7.7 βιλλιον, υπ 11% 

from the irst quarter but down 14.5% from the second quar−
τερ οφ 2016. Αππραισαλ χαπιταλιζατιον ρατεσ ινχρεασεδ το 4.5%, 

σλιγητλψ υπ φροm λαστ θυαρτερ. Τρανσαχτιον χαπιταλιζατιον ρατεσ φελλ 

το 6.1% φροm λαστ θυαρτερ�σ 12−θυαρτερ ηιγη οφ 6.3%. Τηε σπρεαδ 

βετωεεν αππραισαλ ανδ τρανσαχτιον ρατεσ δεχρεασεδ το 1.6 περ−

χενταγε ποιντσ.

Οχχυπανχψ ρατεσ φελλ φορ τηε σεχονδ χονσεχυτιϖε θυαρτερ το 

92.8%. Απαρτmεντ ανδ Ρεταιλ οχχυπανχψ ρατεσ ινχρεασεδ σλιγητλψ 

while Industrial and Ofice rates decreased. 

Τηε NCREIF Open End Diversiied Core Equity Index 

ροσε 1.7% (1.1% φροm ινχοmε ανδ 0.6% φροm αππρεχιατιον), 

a decline from the irst quarter and the lowest since 2010. 
Ινχοmε ρετυρνσ ινχρεασεδ σλιγητλψ ανδ αππρεχιατιον φελλ το α νεω 

σεϖεν−ψεαρ λοω. 

Γλοβαλ ρεαλ εστατε ινϖεστmεντ τρυστσ (ΡΕΙΤσ), τραχκεδ βψ τηε 

ΦΤΣΕ ΕΠΡΑ/ΝΑΡΕΙΤ Dεϖελοπεδ ΡΕΙΤ Ινδεξ (ΥΣD), ποστεδ α 

3.1% ρετυρν, ουτπαχινγ Υ.Σ. ΡΕΙΤσ, ωηιχη γαινεδ 1.5% ασ mεα−

συρεδ βψ τηε FTSE NAREIT Equity REITs Index. 

In the U.S., REITs rebounded in June after being relatively lat 
ιν Απριλ ανδ νεγατιϖε ιν Μαψ. Ρεταιλ (−7.6%) ωασ αγαιν τηε ωορστ 

περφορmερ, δεπρεσσεδ βψ ωεακ εαρνινγσ ρεσυλτσ φροm λαργε ρεταιλ−

ερσ ανδ τηε γροωινγ mαρκετ σηαρε οφ ε−χοmmερχε. Σελφ−Στοραγε 

(-2.7%), Specialty (-0.6%), and Timber (-0.1%) also fell. Health 
Χαρε (+5.3%) ρεmαινεδ στρονγ ασ εφφορτσ το οϖερτυρν τηε 

Αφφορδαβλε Χαρε Αχτ φαλτερεδ. Ινδυστριαλ (+12.0%), Dατα Χεντερσ 

(+9.2%), Ινφραστρυχτυρε (+8.8%), ανδ Ρεσιδεντιαλ (+6.0%) αλλ 

εξπεριενχεδ στρονγ γαινσ. 

Ευροπε, ασ ρεπρεσεντεδ βψ τηε ΦΤΣΕ ΕΠΡΑ/ΝΑΡΕΙΤ Ευροπε 

Ινδεξ, ωασ τηε στρονγεστ περφορmινγ ρεγιον, ρετυρνινγ 10.6% 

ιν Υ.Σ. δολλαρ τερmσ. Τηε ευρο�σ αππρεχιατιον αγαινστ τηε δολλαρ 

was a major driver of returns, as was strong, diversiied growth 
αχροσσ τηε mαϕοριτψ οφ τηε ρεγιον�σ εχονοmιεσ. Τηε συχχεσσφυλ 

τακεοϖερ οφ σεϖεραλ Σπανιση ανδ Ιταλιαν βανκσ βοοστεδ χον−

τινενταλ Ευροπεαν στοχκσ ανδ ηελπεδ τηεm ουτπερφορm τηειρ 

Υ.Κ. πεερσ. 

Ρολλινγ Ονε−Ψεαρ Ρετυρνσ

-60%

-30%

0%

30%

60%

90%

120%

REIT Style Global REIT StylePrivate Real Estate Database

02 0397 98 99 00 01 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

*Index subreturns are calculated separately from index return and may not total.

Source: Callan



12

The Asia-Paciic region outperformed the U.S. but lagged 
Europe. Singapore and Hong Kong again provided the stron−

γεστ ρεγιοναλ περφορmανχε ωηιλε Αυστραλια λαγγεδ βεηινδ, ηυρτ 

βψ α ωεακ ρεταιλ σεχτορ. ϑαπανεσε ΡΕΙΤσ συφφερεδ νεγατιϖε 

ρετυρνσ τηισ θυαρτερ, βυτ στρονγ ρεσυλτσ φροm ϑαπανεσε δεϖελοπ−

ερσ ωερε ενουγη το πυση τηε αγγρεγατε ρεαλ εστατε ινδεξ το α 

ποσιτιϖε ρετυρν.

ΡΕΑΛ ΕΣΤΑΤΕ (Χοντινυεδ)

ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Τρανσαχτιον ανδ Αππραισαλ Χαπιταλιζατιον Ρατεσ

0%

3%

6%

9%

Appraisal Capitalization RatesTransaction Capitalization Rates

07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

Χοmmερχιαλ mορτγαγε−βαχκεδ σεχυριτιεσ (ΧΜΒΣ) ισσυανχε 

φορ τηε θυαρτερ ινχρεασεδ το ∃20.2 βιλλιον, α 79% ινχρεασε οϖερ 

$13.9 billion in the irst quarter. This also represented a 44.1% 
ινχρεασε οϖερ τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ οφ 2016 (∃11.3 βιλλιον).

Source: NCREIF

Note: Transaction capitalization rate is equal weighted.

ΝΧΡΕΙΦ Χαπιταλιζατιον Ρατεσ βψ Προπερτψ Τψπε

0%

3%

6%

9%

IndustrialApartment RetailOffice

07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

Source: NCREIF

Note: Capitalization rates are appraisal-based.



13Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Private Equity Performance Database (%)  (Pooled Horizon IRRs through March 31, 2017*)
Στρατεγψ 3 Μοντησ Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ 20 Ψεαρσ

Αλλ ςεντυρε 3.17 6.77 12.30 14.35 9.71 7.66 21.22 

Γροωτη Εθυιτψ 4.16 12.02 9.70 11.51 10.34 11.37 13.60 

Αλλ Βυψουτσ 4.34 14.55 10.29 12.76 9.19 13.54 12.56 

Μεζζανινε 2.83 9.47 8.13 9.70 8.83 9.52 9.06 

Dιστρεσσεδ 3.37 14.72 6.83 10.55 9.29 10.83 10.70 

All Private Equity 3.95 12.61 10.07 12.52 9.39 11.70 13.15 

Σ&Π 500 6.07 17.17 10.37 13.30 7.51 7.09 7.86 

Ρυσσελλ 3000 5.74 18.07 9.76 13.18 7.54 7.44 8.11 

Private equity returns are net of  fees. 

Sources: Standard & Poor’s and Thomson Reuters/Cambridge 

*Most recent data available at time of  publication.

Ηαππψ Χαmπερσ       

ΠΡΙςΑΤΕ ΕΘΥΙΤΨ |  Γαρψ Ροβερτσον

Φυνδσ Χλοσεδ ϑανυαρψ 1 το ϑυνε 30, 2017

Στρατεγψ Νο. οφ Φυνδσ Amt ($mm) Περχεντ

ςεντυρε Χαπιταλ 282 16,421 10%

Βυψουτσ 220 120,352 73%

Συβορδινατεδ Dεβτ 26 7,326 4%

Dιστρεσσεδ Dεβτ 13 7,189 4%

Σεχονδαρψ ανδ Οτηερ 23 5,249 3%

Φυνδ−οφ−φυνδσ 65 8,945 5%

Τοταλσ 629 165,481 100%

Source: Private Equity Analyst

Figures may not total due to rounding.

Note: Transaction count and dollar volume igures across all private equity measures are preliminary igures and are subject to update in subsequent versions of  Capital Market 

Review and other Callan publications.

Νεω πριϖατε εθυιτψ παρτνερσηιπ χοmmιτmεντσ τοταλεδ ∃85.5 βιλ−

λιον ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ, ωιτη 319 νεω παρτνερσηιπσ φορmεδ, 

αχχορδινγ το Πριϖατε Εθυιτψ Αναλψστ. Τηε νυmβερ οφ φυνδσ 

increased 3% from 310 in the irst quarter, and the dollar volume 
ροσε 7% φροm ∃80.0 βιλλιον. Απολλο ΙΞ ραισεδ τηε mοστ χαπιταλ ιν 

τηε θυαρτερ, ∃23.5 βιλλιον, ανδ συβσεθυεντλψ τοππεδ υπ το ∃24.6 

billion for the inal close—the largest buyout fund ever raised. 
Τηε λαργεστ Ευροπεαν (ΧςΧ ςΙΙ: ∃19 βιλλιον) ανδ Ασιαν (ΚΚΡ 

Ασια ΙΙΙ: ∃9.3 βιλλιον) φυνδσ ωερε αλσο χλοσεδ τηισ θυαρτερ.

Ινϖεστmεντσ βψ φυνδσ ιντο χοmπανιεσ τοταλεδ 127 δεαλσ, υπ 69% 

φροm 75 ιν τηε πριορ θυαρτερ, αχχορδινγ το Βυψουτσ νεωσλεττερ. 

Τηε αννουνχεδ τοταλ ϖολυmε ωασ ∃72 βιλλιον, υπ 177% φροm ∃26 

billion in the irst quarter. Fifteen deals with announced values 
οφ ∃1 βιλλιον ορ mορε χλοσεδ ιν τηε θυαρτερ.

Νεω ινϖεστmεντσ ιν ϖεντυρε χαπιταλ χοmπανιεσ τοταλεδ 1,963 

rounds of inancing with $21.8 billion of announced value, 
αχχορδινγ το τηε Νατιοναλ ςεντυρε Χαπιταλ Ασσοχιατιον. Τηε 

number of rounds closely mirrored the 1,954 in the irst 
θυαρτερ, βυτ αννουνχεδ δολλαρ ϖαλυε ινχρεασεδ 36% φροm  

∃16.0 βιλλιον.

Βυψουτσ ρεπορτσ τηερε ωερε 161 πριϖατε Μ&Α εξιτσ οφ βυψουτ−

βαχκεδ χοmπανιεσ, ωιτη 41 δεαλσ δισχλοσινγ ϖαλυεσ τοταλινγ 

$18.3 billion. The M&A exit count was lat with the prior quarter’s 
162, βυτ τηε αννουνχεδ ϖαλυε ινχρεασεδ 15% φροm ∃15.9 βιλλιον. 

Τηερε ωερε σεϖεν βυψουτ−βαχκεδ ΙΠΟσ ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρτερ 

(α τωο−ψεαρ ηιγη), ραισινγ αν αγγρεγατε ∃2.0 βιλλιον. Τηε νυm−

ber increased from ive the prior quarter, but the total proceeds 
δεχρεασεδ φροm ∃3.1 βιλλιον.

ςεντυρε−βαχκεδ εξιτσ (βοτη πριϖατε σαλεσ ανδ ΙΠΟσ) τοταλεδ 156 

τρανσαχτιονσ, ανδ δισχλοσεδ ϖαλυε τοταλεδ ∃10.5 βιλλιον. Εξιτσ 

declined 19% from the irst quarter’s 192, and the dollar volume 
δεχλινεδ 28% φροm ∃14.6 βιλλιον.

Πλεασε σεε ουρ υπχοmινγ ισσυε οφ Πριϖατε Μαρκετσ Τρενδσ φορ 

mορε ιν−δεπτη χοϖεραγε.



14

Callan Database Median and Index Returns* for Periods ended June 30, 2017

Θυαρτερ ΨΤD Ψεαρ 3 Ψεαρσ 5 Ψεαρσ 10 Ψεαρσ 15 Ψεαρσ

Ηεδγε Φυνδ−οφ−Φυνδσ Dαταβασε 0.94 3.26 8.12 1.78 5.39 2.90 4.88

CS Hedge Fund Index 0.76 2.85 5.84 1.54 4.47 3.18 5.84

ΧΣ Εθυιτψ Μαρκετ Νευτραλ 0.36 2.50 1.38 −0.40 1.89 −3.18 0.42

ΧΣ Χονϖερτιβλε Αρβιτραγε 0.21 2.46 6.82 1.90 3.53 3.42 4.67

ΧΣ Φιξεδ Ινχοmε Αρβιτραγε 1.62 3.97 8.66 3.26 4.62 3.44 4.11

ΧΣ Μυλτι−Στρατεγψ 2.29 5.11 9.05 5.53 7.41 4.88 7.02

ΧΣ Dιστρεσσεδ 1.64 3.90 10.58 0.28 5.90 3.45 7.25

ΧΣ Ρισκ Αρβιτραγε 2.73 3.97 7.19 1.89 3.18 3.23 3.95

ΧΣ Εϖεντ−Dριϖεν Μυλτι−Στρατεγψ 0.76 3.67 8.73 −2.05 4.09 2.83 6.30

ΧΣ Λονγ/Σηορτ Εθυιτψ 3.06 6.62 8.40 2.97 7.00 3.73 6.49

ΧΣ Γλοβαλ Μαχρο −1.77 −1.54 3.58 1.43 2.79 4.85 7.47

ΧΣ Μαναγεδ Φυτυρεσ −3.40 −4.38 −12.70 1.26 0.06 1.49 4.07

ΧΣ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ 2.67 7.05 11.25 4.30 5.91 3.47 8.10

*Returns less than one year are not annualized. Sources: Callan and Credit Suisse. 

Ασ τηε Wορλδ Χηυρνσ, Dεσπαχιτο

ΗΕDΓΕ ΦΥΝDΣ |  ϑιm ΜχΚεε

Στοχκ λοϖερσ εmβραχεδ τηε σλοωλψ σηιφτινγ ναρρατιϖε οφ γλοβαλ 

γροωτη αππεαρινγ ιν Ευροπε ανδ ϑαπαν ιν τηε σεχονδ θυαρ−

τερ. Φιξεδ ινχοmε mαρκετσ ωερε υνσεττλεδ ωηεν τηε Ευροπεαν 

Χεντραλ Βανκ ηιντεδ ατ ποτεντιαλλψ ταπερινγ ιτσ βονδ πυρχηασε 

προγραm.

Τηε θυαρτερ�σ mαρκετ χονδιτιονσ προϖιδεδ α φριενδλψ σεττινγ φορ 

ηεδγε φυνδσ σεεκινγ αλτερνατιϖε ρισκσ. Ιλλυστρατινγ ραω ηεδγε 

φυνδ περφορmανχε ωιτηουτ ιmπλεmεντατιον χοστσ, τηουγη νετ οφ 

υνδερλψινγ ηεδγε φυνδ φεεσ, τηε Χρεδιτ Συισσε Ηεδγε Φυνδ 

Ινδεξ (CS HFI) rose 0.8%. As a live hedge fund portfolio, net 
οφ αλλ φεεσ ανδ εξπενσεσ, τηε mεδιαν mαναγερ ιν τηε Χαλλαν 

Ηεδγε Φυνδ−οφ−Φυνδσ Dαταβασε αδϖανχεδ 0.9%. 

Within the CS HFI, Λονγ/Σηορτ Εθυιτψ (+3.1%) ρεπεατεδ ασ 

τηε βεστ−περφορmινγ στρατεγψ φορ τηε σεχονδ στραιγητ θυαρτερ. 

Ρισκ Αρβιτραγε ραλλιεδ 2.7% ωηιλε Dιστρεσσεδ αππρεχιατεδ 1.6%. 

Χονϖερτιβλε Αρβ (+0.2%) ανδ Εθυιτψ Μαρκετ Νευτραλ (+0.4%) 

εξπεριενχεδ mορε mοδεστ γαινσ. Ιν λαστ πλαχε φορ τηε σεχονδ 

στραιγητ θυαρτερ, Μαναγεδ Φυτυρεσ λοστ 3.4%. Εϖεν τηε mορε 

δισχρετιοναρψ Γλοβαλ Μαχρο (−1.8%) λοστ ιτσ φοοτινγ ωιτη τηε 

υνεξπεχτεδ τυρν οφ τοπ−δοων τηεmεσ.

Wιτηιν Χαλλαν�σ Ηεδγε Φυνδ−οφ−Φυνδσ Dαταβασε, τηε mεδιαν 

Χαλλαν Λονγ/Σηορτ Εθυιτψ ΦΟΦ (+1.3%) ουτπαχεδ τηε Χαλλαν 

Αβσολυτε Ρετυρν ΦΟΦ (+0.9%). Wιτη διϖερσιφψινγ εξποσυρεσ το 

βοτη νον−διρεχτιοναλ ανδ διρεχτιοναλ στψλεσ, τηε Core Diversiied 
ΦΟΦ γαινεδ 0.6%.

  Absolute Return Core Diversified Long/Short Eq
  FOF Style FOF Style FOF Style

 10th Percentile 1.70 1.57 3.00

 25th Percentile 1.65 1.16 2.66

 Median 0.87 0.57 1.28

 75th Percentile -0.18 0.22 0.20

 90th Percentile -1.18 -0.26 -0.34
   

 T-Bill + 5% 1.42 1.42 1.42

-2%

0%

2%

4%

Χαλλαν Στψλε Γρουπ Θυαρτερλψ Ρετυρνσ

Sources: Callan and Merrill Lynch



15Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

The Callan DC Index is an equally weighted index tracking the cash lows 
ανδ περφορmανχε οφ νεαρλψ 90 πλανσ, ρεπρεσεντινγ mορε τηαν ονε mιλλιον 

DΧ παρτιχιπαντσ ανδ οϖερ ∃135 βιλλιον ιν ασσετσ. Τηε Ινδεξ ισ υπδατεδ 

θυαρτερλψ ανδ ισ αϖαιλαβλε ον Χαλλαν�σ ωεβσιτε, ασ ισ τηε θυαρτερλψ DΧ 

Οβσερϖερ νεωσλεττερ.

The Callan DC Index™ climbed 4.7% in the irst quarter, its 
ηιγηεστ θυαρτερλψ ρετυρν σινχε τηε ενδ οφ 2013. Τηισ περφορmανχε 

βυιλδσ ον ρεσυλτσ φορ 2016, ωηεν τηε Ινδεξ ροσε 8.0%. Βυτ τηε DΧ 

Ινδεξ διδ mαρκεδλψ λαγ τηε Αγε 45 Ταργετ Dατε Φυνδ (+5.6%). Ιν 

ρισινγ mαρκετσ ταργετ δατε φυνδσ (ΤDΦσ) τενδ το ουτπερφορm τηε 

DΧ Ινδεξ βεχαυσε τηε αϖεραγε ΤDΦ ηασ α ηιγηερ αλλοχατιον το 

equities than the average deined contribution (DC) plan.

During the quarter, plan balances grew 4.74%; investment 
ρετυρνσ αχχουντεδ φορ τηε ϖαστ mαϕοριτψ (4.67% ϖσ. 0.07% φορ 

χοντριβυτιονσ). Σινχε ινχεπτιον οφ τηε Ινδεξ, πλαν σπονσορ ανδ 

παρτιχιπαντ χοντριβυτιονσ ηαϖε αχχουντεδ φορ αβουτ α θυαρτερ οφ 

ιτσ γροωτη. 

Εmεργινγ mαρκετ στοχκσ, ωηιλε α σmαλλ παρτ οφ DΧ πλανσ, ρεπ−

resented the sole equity asset class to witness inlows. This is 
νοτ συρπρισινγ γιϖεν τηειρ στρονγ σηοωινγ δυρινγ τηε περιοδ�DΧ 

lows often chase performance. Most other asset classes saw 
outlows in the irst quarter, with the exception of TDFs, which 
dominated inlows as usual. In the irst quarter, TDFs attracted 
οϖερ 88 χεντσ οφ εϖερψ δολλαρ τηατ mοϖεδ ωιτηιν DΧ πλανσ. 

Τυρνοϖερ (ι.ε., νετ τρανσφερ αχτιϖιτψ ωιτηιν DΧ πλανσ) ωασ λοω τηισ 

θυαρτερ (0.42%) χοmπαρεδ το τηε ηιστοριχαλ αϖεραγε (0.64%).

Τηε Χαλλαν DΧ Ινδεξ�σ εθυιτψ αλλοχατιον ενδεδ τηε θυαρτερ ατ 

69%, ωελλ βελοω τηε αϖεραγε εθυιτψ αλλοχατιον οφ τηε Αγε 45 

Ταργετ Dατε Φυνδ (76%) βυτ αβοϖε τηε Ινδεξ�σ ηιστοριχαλ αϖερ−

αγε (67%).

Wηεν ΤDΦσ αρε ηελδ ωιτηιν α DΧ πλαν, τηεψ νοω αχχουντ φορ 

32% οφ πλαν ασσετσ. Τηε νεξτ λαργεστ πλαν ηολδινγ, Υ.Σ. λαργε 

χαπ εθυιτψ φυνδσ, αχχουντ φορ λεσσ τηαν 23% οφ πλαν ασσετσ.

Βεστ Ρετυρν φορ DΧ Ινδεξ Σινχε 2013

DΕΦΙΝΕD ΧΟΝΤΡΙΒΥΤΙΟΝ |  Τοm Σζκωαρλα

Net Cash Flow Analysis (First Quarter 2017) 
(Τοπ Τωο ανδ Βοττοm Τωο Ασσετ Γατηερερσ)

Ασσετ Χλασσ

Φλοωσ ασ % οφ

Τοταλ Νετ Φλοωσ

Ταργετ Dατε Φυνδσ 88.69%

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ Ινχοmε 7.25%

Χοmπανψ Στοχκ −15.92%

Σταβλε ςαλυε −36.49%

Total Turnover** 0.42%

Data provided here is the most recent available at time of  publication. 

Source: Callan DC Index

Note: DC Index inception date is January 2006.

*  The Age 45 Fund transitioned from the average 2030 TDF to the 2035 TDF in  

June 2013.

** Total Index “turnover” measures the percentage of  total invested assets (transfers 

only, excluding contributions and withdrawals) that moved between asset classes. 

Ινϖεστmεντ Περφορmανχε

Γροωτη Σουρχεσ

First Quarter 2017

Age 45 Target Date* Total DC Index

4.67%

5.57%5.74%

Annualized Since 

Inception

5.57%

4.67%

6.48%

Year-to-Date

First Quarter 2017

% Net Flows % Return Growth% Total Growth

7.84%

Annualized Since 

Inception

2.11%

0.07%0.07%

5.73%

4.74% 4.67%4.74% 4.67%

Year-to-Date



C
o

m
b

in
e

d
 P

la
n

Combined Plan



Actual vs Target Asset Allocation
As of June 30, 2017

The top left chart shows the Fund’s asset allocation as of June 30, 2017. The top right chart shows the Fund’s target asset
allocation as outlined in the investment policy statement. The bottom chart ranks the fund’s asset allocation and the target
allocation versus the CAI Public Fund Sponsor - Mid (100M-1B).

Actual Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
34%

Small Cap Equity
9%

International Large Cap
13%

International Small Cap
5%

Emerging Equity
6%

Domestic Fixed Income
33%

Target Asset Allocation

Large Cap Equity
32%

Small Cap Equity
8%

International Large Cap
14%

International Small Cap
5%

Emerging Equity
6%

Domestic Fixed Income
35%

$000s Weight Percent $000s
Asset Class Actual Actual Target Difference Difference
Large Cap Equity          91,410   33.9%   32.0%    1.9%           5,004
Small Cap Equity          24,787    9.2%    8.0%    1.2%           3,185
International Large Cap          36,089   13.4%   14.0% (0.6%) (1,713)
International Small Cap          13,788    5.1%    5.0%    0.1%             287
Emerging Equity          15,448    5.7%    6.0% (0.3%) (753)
Domestic Fixed Income          88,495   32.8%   35.0% (2.2%) (6,011)
Total         270,018  100.0%  100.0%

Asset Class Weights vs CAI Public Fund Sponsor - Mid (100M-1B)

W
e

ig
h

ts

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Domestic Domestic Intl
Broad Eq Fixed Income Equity

(23)
(36)

(15)
(14)

(14)(11)

10th Percentile 50.32 37.56 25.29
25th Percentile 42.49 31.08 21.99

Median 35.50 26.09 19.07
75th Percentile 30.28 20.14 15.43
90th Percentile 23.65 12.97 10.29

Fund 43.03 32.77 24.19

Target 40.00 35.00 25.00

% Group Invested 96.92% 98.46% 90.77%

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Blmbg Aggregate, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 14.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index, 6.0% MSCI EM Gross and 5.0%

MSCI EAFE Small Cap.

 20
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Quarterly Total Fund Relative Attribution - June 30, 2017

The following analysis approaches Total Fund Attribution from the perspective of relative return. Relative return attribution
separates and quantifies the sources of total fund excess return relative to its target. This excess return is separated into two
relative attribution effects: Asset Allocation Effect and Manager Selection Effect. The Asset Allocation Effect represents the
excess return due to the actual total fund asset allocation differing from the target asset allocation. Manager Selection Effect
represents the total fund impact of the individual managers excess returns relative to their benchmarks.

Asset Class Under or Overweighting

(3%) (2%) (1%) 0% 1% 2% 3% 4%

Large Cap Equity 1.94

Small Cap Equity 1.06

International Large Cap (0.68 )

International Small Cap 0.01

Emerging Equity (0.35 )

Domestic Fixed Income (1.98 )

Large Cap Equity

Small Cap Equity

International Large Cap

International Small Cap

Emerging Equity

Domestic Fixed Income

Total

Actual vs Target Returns

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10%

2.88

3.09

3.62

2.46

5.16

6.12

7.86

8.10

4.83

6.38

1.48

1.45

3.07

3.34

Actual Target

Relative Attribution by Asset Class

(0.40%) (0.30%) (0.20%) (0.10%) 0.00% 0.10% 0.20% 0.30%

(0.07 )
(0.01 )

(0.08 )

0.10
(0.05 )

0.05

(0.13 )
(0.04 )

(0.16 )

(0.01 )
(0.00 )

(0.02 )

(0.09 )
(0.02 )

(0.10 )

0.01
0.03
0.04

(0.18 )
(0.08 )

(0.26 )

Manager Effect Asset Allocation Total

Relative Attribution Effects for Quarter ended June 30, 2017

Effective Effective Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Asset Relative

Asset Class Weight Weight Return Return Effect Allocation Return
Large Cap Equity 34% 32% 2.88% 3.09% (0.07%) (0.01%) (0.08%)
Small Cap Equity 9% 8% 3.62% 2.46% 0.10% (0.05%) 0.05%
International Large Cap 13% 14% 5.16% 6.12% (0.13%) (0.04%) (0.16%)
International Small Cap 5% 5% 7.86% 8.10% (0.01%) (0.00%) (0.02%)
Emerging Equity 6% 6% 4.83% 6.38% (0.09%) (0.02%) (0.10%)
Domestic Fixed Income 33% 35% 1.48% 1.45% 0.01% 0.03% 0.04%

Total = + +3.07% 3.34% (0.18%) (0.08%) (0.26%)

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Blmbg Aggregate, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 14.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index, 6.0% MSCI EM Gross and 5.0%

MSCI EAFE Small Cap.

 21
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Cumulative Total Fund Relative Attribution - June 30, 2017

The charts below accumulate the Total Fund Attribution Analysis (shown earlier) over multiple periods to examine the
cumulative sources of excess total fund performance relative to target. These cumulative results quantify the longer-term
sources of total fund excess return relative to target by asset class. These relative attribution effects separate the cumulative
sources of total fund excess return into Asset Allocation Effect and Manager Selection Effect.

One Year Relative Attribution Effects

(1%) 0% 1%

Large Cap Equity

Small Cap Equity

International Large Cap

International Small Cap

Emerging Equity

Domestic Fixed Income

Total

Manager Effect Asset Allocation Total

Cumulative Relative Attribution Effects

(0.60%)

(0.50%)

(0.40%)

(0.30%)

(0.20%)

(0.10%)

0.00%

0.10%

0.20%

0.30%

0.40%

2016 2017

Manager Effect

Asset Allocation

Total

One Year Relative Attribution Effects

Effective Effective Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Asset Relative

Asset Class Weight Weight Return Return Effect Allocation Return
Large Cap Equity 34% 32% 19.45% 17.90% 0.49% 0.05% 0.54%
Small Cap Equity 9% 8% 16.10% 24.60% (0.75%) 0.02% (0.72%)
International Large Cap 13% 14% 20.62% 20.27% 0.02% (0.15%) (0.13%)
International Small Cap 4% 5% 14.01% 16.09% (0.10%) (0.02%) (0.12%)
Emerging Equity 5% 6% 22.62% 24.17% (0.08%) (0.09%) (0.17%)
Domestic Fixed Income 34% 35% 0.69% (0.31%) 0.39% 0.02% 0.41%

Total = + +12.52% 12.71% (0.02%) (0.17%) (0.18%)

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Blmbg Aggregate, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 14.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index, 6.0% MSCI EM Gross and 5.0%

MSCI EAFE Small Cap.

 22
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Cumulative Total Fund Relative Attribution - June 30, 2017

The charts below accumulate the Total Fund Attribution Analysis (shown earlier) over multiple periods to examine the
cumulative sources of excess total fund performance relative to target. These cumulative results quantify the longer-term
sources of total fund excess return relative to target by asset class. These relative attribution effects separate the cumulative
sources of total fund excess return into Asset Allocation Effect and Manager Selection Effect.

Three Year Annualized Relative Attribution Effects

(0.4%) (0.2%) 0.0% 0.2% 0.4% 0.6%

Large Cap Equity

Small Cap Equity

International Large Cap

International Small Cap

Emerging Equity

Domestic Fixed Income

Total

Manager Effect Asset Allocation Total

Cumulative Relative Attribution Effects

(0.6%)

(0.4%)

(0.2%)

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

1.0%

2014 2015 2016 2017

Manager Effect

Asset Allocation

Total

Three Year Annualized Relative Attribution Effects

Effective Effective Total
Actual Target Actual Target Manager Asset Relative

Asset Class Weight Weight Return Return Effect Allocation Return
Large Cap Equity 32% 31% 8.72% 9.61% (0.27%) 0.01% (0.26%)
Small Cap Equity 8% 8% 11.28% 7.36% 0.28% (0.03%) 0.25%
International Large Cap 16% 17% 1.60% 1.15% 0.07% (0.04%) 0.02%
International Small Cap 1% 2% - - (0.03%) (0.01%) (0.04%)
Emerging Equity 5% 6% 2.26% 1.44% 0.04% 0.01% 0.04%
Domestic Fixed Income 36% 36% 2.66% 2.48% 0.06% (0.06%) (0.00%)

Total = + +5.07% 5.05% 0.14% (0.12%) 0.02%

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Blmbg Aggregate, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 14.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index, 6.0% MSCI EM Gross and 5.0%

MSCI EAFE Small Cap.

 23
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Total Fund
Period Ended June 30, 2017

Investment Philosophy
* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Blmbg Aggregate, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 14.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index,
6.0% MSCI EM Gross and 5.0% MSCI EAFE Small Cap.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Total Fund’s portfolio posted a 3.07% return for the quarter placing it in the 42 percentile of the CAI Public Fund
Sponsor - Mid (100M-1B) group for the quarter and in the 48 percentile for the last year.

Total Fund’s portfolio underperformed the Target by 0.26% for the quarter and underperformed the Target for the year
by 0.18%.

Performance vs CAI Public Fund Sponsor - Mid (100M-1B) (Gross)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years Last 15 Years Last 23-1/4
Year Years

(42)(28)

(48)(39)

(56)(56)

(41)
(51)

(40)
(56)

(8)

(51)

(17)
(45)

(6)

(69)

10th Percentile 3.65 14.77 6.35 10.09 10.72 6.14 7.89 8.75
25th Percentile 3.37 13.34 5.72 9.54 10.09 5.85 7.31 8.53

Median 3.01 12.50 5.18 8.42 9.22 5.36 6.79 8.00
75th Percentile 2.63 10.82 4.53 7.86 8.09 4.78 6.39 7.46
90th Percentile 2.20 10.14 3.66 6.83 7.48 3.93 5.88 6.51

Total Fund 3.07 12.52 5.07 8.93 9.57 6.22 7.54 8.95

Target 3.34 12.71 5.05 8.39 9.12 5.29 6.84 7.58

Relative Return vs Target

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

10 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 17

Total Fund

CAI Public Fund Sponsor - Mid (100M-1B) (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

0 2 4 6 8 10 12
0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

Total Fund
Target

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 24
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Actual vs Target Historical Asset Allocation

The Historical asset allocation for a fund is by far the largest factor explaining its performance. The charts below show the
fund’s historical actual asset allocation, and the fund’s historical target asset allocation.

Actual Historical Asset Allocation

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 17

Domestic Fixed Income

International Equity

Domestic Equity

Target Historical Asset Allocation

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 17

Sm Cap Dev ex-US

Emerging Markets

Small Cap Broad Eq

Large Cap Broad Eq

Domestic Fixed Income

International Equity

Domestic Equity

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Blmbg Aggregate, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 14.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index, 6.0% MSCI EM Gross and 5.0%

MSCI EAFE Small Cap.

 25
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Investment Manager Asset Allocation

The table below contrasts the distribution of assets across the Fund’s investment managers as of June 30, 2017, with the
distribution as of March 31, 2017. The change in asset distribution is broken down into the dollar change due to Net New
Investment and the dollar change due to Investment Return.

Asset Distribution Across Investment Managers

June 30, 2017 March 31, 2017

Market Value Net New Inv. Inv. Return Market Value
Consolidated Plan

Domestic Equity $116,196,519 $(1,149,059) $3,455,415 $113,890,163

 Large Cap $91,409,611 $(1,149,059) $2,588,953 $89,969,717
Boston Partners 45,850,408 0 1,190,464 44,659,944
SSgA S&P 500 45,559,203 (1,149,059) 1,398,488 45,309,773

 Small Cap $24,786,908 $0 $866,462 $23,920,446
Atlanta Capital 24,786,908 0 866,462 23,920,446

International Equity $65,326,150 $0 $3,231,794 $62,094,356

  International Large Cap $36,089,475 $0 $1,566,137 $34,523,338
Brandes 9,297 0 355 8,942
JP Morgan 0 (25,953,819) 1,301,436 24,652,383
SSgA EAFE 10,483,335 0 621,321 9,862,013
Pyrford 25,596,843 25,953,819 (356,976) -

  International Small Cap $13,788,329 $0 $974,860 $12,813,469
AQR 13,788,329 0 974,860 12,813,469

  Emerging Equity $15,448,346 $0 $690,798 $14,757,549
DFA Emerging Markets 15,448,346 0 690,798 14,757,549

Fixed Income $88,495,034 $0 $1,289,873 $87,205,161
Metropolitan West 88,495,034 0 1,289,873 87,205,161

Total Plan - Consolidated $270,017,704 $(1,149,059) $7,977,082 $263,189,680

 26
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Sacramento Regional Transit District
Asset Growth

Ending June 30, 2017
($ Thousands)

Ending
Market
Value =

Beginning
Market
Value +

Net New
Investment +

Investment
Return

Total Plan
1/4 Year Ended 6/2017 270,017.7 263,189.7 (1,149.1) 7,977.1
1/4 Year Ended 3/2017 263,189.7 253,159.1 (930.2) 10,960.7

1/4 Year Ended 12/2016 253,159.1 251,635.0 (1,139.0) 2,663.2
1/4 Year Ended 9/2016 251,635.0 244,029.2 (937.8) 8,543.5
1/4 Year Ended 6/2016 244,029.2 240,502.3 (684.5) 4,211.5
1/4 Year Ended 3/2016 240,502.3 238,289.7 (450.0) 2,662.6

1/4 Year Ended 12/2015 238,289.7 232,085.4 (816.4) 7,020.7
1/4 Year Ended 9/2015 232,085.4 246,970.5 (534.9) (14,350.2)
1/4 Year Ended 6/2015 246,970.5 247,920.3 (766.8) (183.0)
1/4 Year Ended 3/2015 247,920.3 243,017.9 (295.4) 5,197.8

1/4 Year Ended 12/2014 243,017.9 238,642.3 (1,001.3) 5,377.0
1/4 Year Ended 9/2014 238,642.3 241,859.7 (632.5) (2,584.9)
1/4 Year Ended 6/2014 241,859.7 235,305.8 (752.1) 7,306.0
1/4 Year Ended 3/2014 235,305.8 233,171.6 (781.9) 2,916.1

1/4 Year Ended 12/2013 233,171.6 222,071.8 (913.1) 12,012.9
1/4 Year Ended 9/2013 222,071.8 212,659.5 (1,311.0) 10,723.3
1/4 Year Ended 6/2013 212,659.5 212,527.3 (1,129.6) 1,261.9
1/4 Year Ended 3/2013 212,527.3 202,131.0 (1,047.2) 11,443.5

1/4 Year Ended 12/2012 202,131.0 199,766.3 (1,446.2) 3,810.9
1/4 Year Ended 9/2012 199,766.3 190,468.1 (1,283.9) 10,582.1

 27
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended June 30,
2017. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first
set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended June 30, 2017

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  7

Quarter Year Years Years Years

Domestic Equity 3.04% 18.73% 9.24% 14.96% 15.69%
  Domestic Equity Benchmark** 2.98% 19.30% 9.25% 14.51% 15.27%

Large Cap Equity 2.88% 19.45% 8.72% 14.76% 15.29%
Boston Partners 2.66% 20.96% 7.75% 14.82% 15.25%
  Russell 1000 Value Index 1.34% 15.53% 7.36% 13.94% 14.31%
SSgA S&P 500 3.09% 17.97% 9.68% 14.68% -
  S&P 500 Index 3.09% 17.90% 9.61% 14.63% 15.41%

Small Cap Equity 3.62% 16.10% 11.28% 15.55% 17.30%
Atlanta Capital 3.62% 16.10% 11.28% 15.55% 17.30%
  Russell 2000 Index 2.46% 24.60% 7.36% 13.70% 14.35%

International Equity 5.58% 20.30% 1.48% 7.96% 7.18%
  Custom International Benchmark*** 5.85% 20.43% 0.80% 8.14% 7.52%

International Large Cap 5.16% 20.62% 1.60% - -
SSgA EAFE 6.30% 20.69% 1.50% 8.96% -
  MSCI EAFE Index 6.12% 20.27% 1.15% 8.69% 7.91%

International Small Cap 7.86% - - - -
AQR 7.86% - - - -
  MSCI EAFE Small Cap Index 8.10% 23.18% 5.60% 12.94% 11.40%

Emerging Markets Equity 4.83% 22.62% 2.26% - -
DFA Emerging Markets 4.83% 22.62% 2.26% - -
  MSCI Emerging Mkts Index 6.38% 24.17% 1.44% 4.33% 4.22%

Domestic Fixed Income 1.48% 0.69% 2.66% 3.11% 4.29%
Met West 1.48% 0.69% 2.66% 3.11% 4.29%
  Blmbg Aggregate Index 1.45% (0.31%) 2.48% 2.21% 3.19%

Total Plan 3.07% 12.52% 5.07% 8.93% 9.57%
  Target* 3.34% 12.71% 5.05% 8.39% 9.12%

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Blmbg Aggregate, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 14.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index,
6.0% MSCI EM Gross and 5.0% MSCI EAFE Small Cap.
** Domestic Equity Benchmark = 80% S&P500, 20% Russell 2000 as of 5/1/2015
*** Custom International Benchmark = MSCI EAFE until 6/30/2013, MSCI ACWI ex US until 7/31/2016, and MSCI ACWI ex US IMI
thereafter.

 28
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended June 30,
2017. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first
set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended June 30, 2017

Last Last Last Last
 10  15  20 23-1/4

Years Years Years Years

Domestic Equity 8.06% 9.15% 7.67% -
  Domestic Equity Benchmark** 7.23% 8.67% 7.59% 9.89%
  Russell 1000 Value Index 5.57% 8.09% 7.69% 9.84%
  S&P 500 Index 7.18% 8.35% 7.15% 9.67%
  Russell 2000 Index 6.92% 9.19% 7.98% 9.19%

International Equity 0.89% 6.96% 8.23% -
  MSCI EAFE Index 1.03% 6.31% 4.29% 5.08%

Domestic Fixed Income 6.03% 5.86% 6.06% -
Met West 6.03% 5.86% - -
  Blmbg Aggregate Index 4.48% 4.48% 5.24% 5.56%

Total Plan 6.22% 7.54% 7.51% 8.95%
  Target* 5.29% 6.84% 6.38% 7.58%

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Blmbg Aggregate, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 14.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index,
6.0% MSCI EM Gross and 5.0% MSCI EAFE Small Cap.
** Domestic Equity Benchmark = 80% S&P500, 20% Russell 2000 as of 5/1/2015

 29
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods. Negative returns
are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first set of returns for each
asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

12/2016-
6/2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Domestic Equity 7.50% 14.58% 0.06% 10.85% 36.44%
  Domestic Equity Benchmark** 8.48% 13.85% 0.26% 12.07% 33.61%

Large Cap Equity 8.06% 13.38% (1.17%) 12.81% 34.96%
Boston Partners 6.78% 14.71% (3.75%) 11.87% 37.52%
  Russell 1000 Value Index 4.66% 17.34% (3.83%) 13.45% 32.53%
SSgA S&P 500 9.35% 12.03% 1.46% 13.77% 32.36%
  S&P 500 Index 9.34% 11.96% 1.38% 13.69% 32.39%

Small Cap Equity 5.46% 19.17% 5.14% 3.49% 41.51%
Atlanta Capital 5.46% 19.17% 5.14% 3.49% 41.51%
  Russell 2000 Index 4.99% 21.31% (4.41%) 4.89% 38.82%

International Equity 15.69% 2.55% (4.17%) (3.72%) 16.66%
  Custom International Benchmark*** 14.30% 4.29% (5.66%) (3.87%) 20.07%

International Large Cap 14.02% 1.35% (1.17%) (4.41%) 20.27%
SSgA EAFE 14.13% 1.37% (0.56%) (4.55%) 22.80%
  MSCI EAFE Index 13.81% 1.00% (0.81%) (4.90%) 22.78%

International Small Cap 16.52% - - - -
AQR 16.52% - - - -
  MSCI EAFE Small Cap 16.72% 2.18% 9.59% (4.95%) 29.30%

Emerging Markets Equity 19.35% 12.99% (14.33%) (0.28%) -
DFA Emerging Markets 19.35% 12.99% (14.33%) (0.28%) -
  MSCI Emerging Mkts Index 18.60% 11.60% (14.60%) (1.82%) (2.27%)

Domestic Fixed Income 2.44% 2.87% 0.51% 6.37% (1.03%)
Met West 2.44% 2.87% 0.51% 6.37% (1.03%)
  Blmbg Aggregate Index 2.27% 2.65% 0.55% 5.97% (2.02%)

Total Plan 7.56% 7.65% (0.97%) 5.61% 17.71%
  Target* 7.99% 7.43% (0.69%) 5.84% 16.00%

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Blmbg Aggregate, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 14.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index,
6.0% MSCI EM Gross and 5.0% MSCI EAFE Small Cap.
Returns are for annualized calendar years.
** Domestic Equity Benchmark = 80% S&P500, 20% Russell 2000 as of 5/1/2015
*** Custom International Benchmark = MSCI EAFE until 6/30/2013, MSCI ACWI ex US until 7/31/2016, and MSCI ACWI ex US IMI
thereafter.

 30
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Sponsor’s investment managersover various time periods. Negative returns
are shown in red, positive returns in black.Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first set of returns for each
asset classrepresents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Domestic Equity 19.19% 2.08% 15.93% 32.93% (36.27%)
  Domestic Equity Benchmark** 16.09% 0.94% 17.33% 28.02% (36.92%)
Boston Partners 21.95% 1.27% 13.61% 27.06% (32.69%)
  Russell 1000 Value Index 17.51% 0.39% 15.51% 19.69% (36.85%)
  S&P 500 Index 16.00% 2.11% 15.06% 26.47% (37.00%)
  Russell 2000 Index 16.35% (4.18%) 26.85% 27.17% (33.79%)

International Equity 17.28% (10.64%) 6.51% 28.99% (39.41%)
  MSCI EAFE Index 17.32% (12.14%) 7.75% 31.78% (43.38%)

Domestic Fixed Income 9.48% 6.10% 12.52% 19.88% (3.11%)
Met West 9.48% 6.10% 12.52% 19.88% (3.11%)
  Blmbg Aggregate Index 4.21% 7.84% 6.54% 5.93% 5.24%

Total Plan 14.80% 1.22% 12.70% 26.91% (23.45%)
  Target* 11.68% 1.52% 11.85% 20.02% (23.33%)

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Blmbg Aggregate, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 14.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index,
6.0% MSCI EM Gross and 5.0% MSCI EAFE Small Cap.
Returns are for annualized calendar years.
** Domestic Equity Benchmark = 80% S&P500, 20% Russell 2000 as of 5/1/2015

 31
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended June 30,
2017. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first
set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended June 30, 2017

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  7

Quarter Year Years Years Years

Net of Fee Returns

Domestic Equity 2.94% 18.29% - - -

Large Cap Equity 2.81% 19.15% - - -
Boston Partners 2.53% 20.41% 7.20% 14.22% 14.65%
  Russell 1000 Value Index 1.34% 15.53% 7.36% 13.94% 14.31%
SSgA S&P 500 3.08% 17.91% 9.62% 14.63% -
  S&P 500 Index 3.09% 17.90% 9.61% 14.63% 15.41%

Small Cap Equity 3.42% 15.18% - - -
Atlanta Capital 3.42% 15.18% 10.39% 14.64% 16.40%
  Russell 2000 Index 2.46% 24.60% 7.36% 13.70% 14.35%

International Equity 5.41% 19.59% - - -

International Large Cap 5.04% 20.02% - - -
SSgA EAFE 6.27% 20.57% 1.39% 8.85% -
  MSCI EAFE Index 6.12% 20.27% 1.15% 8.69% 7.91%

International Small Cap 7.61% - - - -
AQR 7.61% - - - -
  MSCI EAFE Small Cap Index 8.10% 23.18% 5.60% 12.94% 11.40%

Emerging Markets Equity 4.68% 21.88% - - -
DFA Emerging Markets 4.68% 21.88% 1.63% - -
  MSCI Emerging Mkts Index 6.38% 24.17% 1.44% 4.33% 4.22%

Domestic Fixed Income 1.41% 0.42% - - -
Met West 1.41% 0.42% 2.38% 2.83% 4.01%
  Blmbg Aggregate Index 1.45% (0.31%) 2.48% 2.21% 3.19%

Total Plan 2.97% 12.09% 4.71% 8.55% 9.13%
  Target* 3.34% 12.71% 5.05% 8.39% 9.12%

* Current Quarter Target = 35.0% Blmbg Aggregate, 32.0% S&P 500 Index, 14.0% MSCI EAFE, 8.0% Russell 2000 Index,
6.0% MSCI EM Gross and 5.0% MSCI EAFE Small Cap.

 32
Sacramento Regional Transit District



D
o

m
e

s
tic

 E
q

u
ity

Domestic Equity



Domestic Equity
Period Ended June 30, 2017

Investment Philosophy
Domestic Equity Benchmark = 80% S&P500, 20% Russell 2000 as of 5/1/2015

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Domestic Equity’s portfolio posted a 3.04% return for the quarter placing it in the 55 percentile of the Fund Spnsr-
Domestic Equity group for the quarter and in the 56 percentile for the last year.

Domestic Equity’s portfolio outperformed the Domestic Equity Benchmark by 0.06% for the quarter and underperformed
the Domestic Equity Benchmark for the year by 0.57%.

Performance vs Fund Spnsr- Domestic Equity (Gross)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years

A(55)
B(58)(62)

A(56)
B(62)

(41)

A(24)
B(31)

(24)

A(16)
B(35)(39)

A(12)
B(29)(32)

10th Percentile 4.05 22.07 9.65 15.25 15.76
25th Percentile 3.51 20.32 9.21 14.77 15.39

Median 3.08 18.94 8.67 14.32 14.97
75th Percentile 2.82 17.81 7.99 13.73 14.41
90th Percentile 2.49 16.36 7.11 13.06 13.73

Domestic Equity A 3.04 18.73 9.24 14.96 15.69
Russell 3000 Index B 3.02 18.51 9.10 14.58 15.34

Domestic
Equity Benchmark 2.98 19.30 9.25 14.51 15.27

Relative Returns vs
Domestic Equity Benchmark

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(2.0%)

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

10 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 17

Domestic Equity

Fund Spnsr- Domestic Equity (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

8 10 12 14 16 18 20
6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

22%

24%

Domestic Equity

Domestic Equity Benchmark

Russell 3000 Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 34
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Domestic Equity
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last chart illustrates the manager’s ranking
relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs Fund Spnsr- Domestic Equity (Gross)

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

12/16- 6/17 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

B(52)
A(86)

(66)

A(16)
B(42)

(24)

B(44)
A(57)(51)

B(16)
A(56)

(26)

A(17)
B(60)(59)

A(5)
B(38)(47)

A(20)
B(38)(40)

10th Percentile 11.00 15.25 2.11 12.93 37.29 18.09 3.11
25th Percentile 9.93 13.79 1.17 12.10 35.69 16.86 1.63

Median 8.96 12.41 0.31 11.13 34.07 16.00 0.42
75th Percentile 8.14 10.38 (0.82) 9.78 32.52 14.79 (1.16)
90th Percentile 7.18 8.50 (2.17) 8.33 30.64 13.75 (2.76)

Domestic Equity A 7.50 14.58 0.06 10.85 36.44 19.19 2.08
Russell 3000 Index B 8.93 12.74 0.48 12.56 33.55 16.42 1.03

Domestic
Equity Benchmark 8.48 13.85 0.26 12.07 33.61 16.09 0.94

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Domestic Equity Benchmark

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(4%)

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Domestic Equity Russell 3000 Index Plan- Dom Equity

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Domestic Equity Benchmark
Rankings Against Fund Spnsr- Domestic Equity (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

(2.5)

(2.0)

(1.5)

(1.0)

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

Alpha Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio

A(17)
B(25)

A(16)
B(21)

A(12)
B(24)

10th Percentile 0.82 1.29 0.29
25th Percentile 0.19 1.23 0.10

Median (0.54) 1.16 (0.15)
75th Percentile (1.26) 1.10 (0.38)
90th Percentile (2.06) 1.02 (0.64)

Domestic Equity A 0.46 1.26 0.25
Russell 3000 Index B 0.20 1.24 0.11

 35
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
Domestic Equity
As of June 30, 2017

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market capitalization and style score of the
portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the current portfolio and index
weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The middle chart illustrates the
total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total growth, value, and "combined
Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style weights within each sector.

Style Map vs Plan- Dom Equity
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Domestic Equity

Russell 3000 Index

Domestic Equity

Russell 3000 Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

30.9% (105) 21.5% (99) 17.0% (100) 69.4% (304)

4.5% (81) 7.0% (95) 5.9% (56) 17.4% (232)

1.1% (7) 7.3% (23) 4.7% (13) 13.1% (43)

0.1% (1) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.1% (1)

36.6% (194) 35.8% (217) 27.6% (169) 100.0% (580)

27.6% (104) 21.9% (98) 25.4% (104) 74.8% (306)

4.9% (175) 6.7% (237) 5.5% (206) 17.2% (618)

2.1% (344) 2.9% (490) 2.2% (398) 7.2% (1232)

0.3% (281) 0.3% (347) 0.2% (199) 0.9% (827)

34.9% (904) 31.8% (1172) 33.3% (907) 100.0% (2983)

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Value Core Growth

36.6%

(194)

34.9%

(904)

35.8%

(217)

31.8%

(1172)

27.6%

(169) 33.3%

(907)

Bar #1=Domestic Equity (Combined Z: -0.16 Growth Z: -0.04 Value Z: 0.13)

Bar #2=Russell 3000 Index (Combined Z: -0.01 Growth Z: 0.00 Value Z: 0.01)

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU PUBUTL RAWMAT REALES TECH

0.9
2.0

11.4
12.6

5.9
8.0

5.7 5.6

21.3

14.9
13.7 14.0

12.6
10.8

1.5
3.2

5.0
3.4

1.4

4.1

20.6 21.4

Bar #1=Domestic Equity

Bar #2=Russell 3000 Index

Value

Core

Growth

 36
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Historical Holdings Based Style Analysis
Domestic Equity
For Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

This page analyzes the historical investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
average actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the average historical market capitalization and style score of
the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the average historical portfolio
and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The next two style
exposure charts illustrate the actual quarterly cap/style and style only segment exposures of the portfolio through history.

Average Style Map vs Plan- Dom Equity
Holdings for Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Russell 3000 Index

Domestic Equity

Average Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings for Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

26.8% (85) 24.5% (94) 16.0% (88) 67.3% (267)

5.2% (82) 6.5% (80) 5.9% (58) 17.6% (220)

1.8% (10) 8.1% (27) 4.9% (15) 14.8% (52)

0.1% (1) 0.1% (1) 0.0% (0) 0.3% (2)

33.9% (178) 39.3% (202) 26.8% (161) 100.0% (541)

25.1% (92) 24.8% (103) 23.5% (104) 73.4% (299)

5.4% (175) 6.3% (216) 6.3% (208) 17.9% (599)

2.3% (342) 3.1% (481) 2.3% (379) 7.6% (1202)

0.4% (291) 0.4% (370) 0.3% (208) 1.0% (869)

33.1% (900) 34.6% (1170) 32.3% (899) 100.0% (2969)

Domestic Equity Historical Cap/Style Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Micro-Growth

Micro-Core

Micro-Value

Small-Growth

Small-Core

Small-Value

Mid-Growth

Mid-Core

Mid-Value

Large-Growth

Large-Core

Large-Value

Domestic Equity Historical Style Only Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Growth

Core

Value

 37
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Large Cap
Period Ended June 30, 2017

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Large Cap’s portfolio posted a 2.88% return for the quarter placing it in the 59 percentile of the CAI Large Capitalization
group for the quarter and in the 48 percentile for the last year.

Large Cap’s portfolio underperformed the S&P 500 Index by 0.20% for the quarter and outperformed the S&P 500
Index for the year by 1.56%.

Performance vs CAI Large Capitalization (Gross)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years

(59)(50)

(48)

(61)

(55)
(38)

(44)(48)
(48)(43)

10th Percentile 6.22 24.98 11.53 16.42 16.90
25th Percentile 4.94 22.01 10.43 15.56 16.01

Median 3.09 19.14 8.95 14.52 15.19
75th Percentile 2.07 16.69 7.57 13.69 14.31
90th Percentile 1.23 14.43 6.72 12.81 13.26

Large Cap 2.88 19.45 8.72 14.76 15.29

S&P 500 Index 3.09 17.90 9.61 14.63 15.41

Relative Return vs S&P 500 Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

10 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 17

Large Cap

CAI Large Capitalization (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22
10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

22%

S&P 500 Index

Large Cap

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 38
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Large Cap
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last chart illustrates the manager’s ranking
relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Large Capitalization (Gross)

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

12/16- 6/17 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

(65)(53)
(29)(35)

(67)
(51)

(49)(31)

(47)
(76)

(5)
(55)

(55)(30)

10th Percentile 16.90 17.33 8.55 15.48 38.91 20.00 5.06
25th Percentile 13.70 14.30 5.50 14.07 36.97 17.50 2.58

Median 9.55 10.20 1.43 12.73 34.62 16.19 0.36
75th Percentile 6.74 4.68 (2.03) 11.28 32.46 14.24 (2.70)
90th Percentile 4.77 1.67 (4.20) 9.24 30.90 12.62 (4.54)

Large Cap 8.06 13.38 (1.17) 12.81 34.96 21.29 (0.03)

S&P 500 Index 9.34 11.96 1.38 13.69 32.39 16.00 2.11

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs S&P 500 Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(5%)

(4%)

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Large Cap CAI Large Capitalization

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs S&P 500 Index
Rankings Against CAI Large Capitalization (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

(4)

(3)

(2)

(1)

0

1

2

Alpha Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio

(48)

(40)

(50)

10th Percentile 1.31 1.37 0.38
25th Percentile 0.48 1.30 0.16

Median (0.93) 1.18 (0.05)
75th Percentile (2.21) 1.07 (0.34)
90th Percentile (2.87) 1.00 (0.57)

Large Cap (0.75) 1.23 (0.06)

 39
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
Large Cap
As of June 30, 2017

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market capitalization and style score of the
portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the current portfolio and index
weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The middle chart illustrates the
total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total growth, value, and "combined
Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Large Capitalization
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Large Cap

S&P 500 Index

Large Cap

S&P 500 Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

39.1% (105) 27.1% (99) 21.6% (100) 87.8% (304)

4.4% (78) 5.7% (90) 1.9% (47) 12.0% (215)

0.1% (3) 0.2% (1) 0.0% (1) 0.3% (5)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

43.6% (186) 33.0% (190) 23.4% (148) 100.0% (524)

33.4% (103) 26.5% (97) 30.1% (96) 90.0% (296)

3.4% (75) 4.2% (87) 2.3% (45) 10.0% (207)

0.0% (2) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (2)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

36.8% (180) 30.7% (184) 32.4% (141) 100.0% (505)

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Value Core Growth

43.6%

(186)

36.8%

(180)

33.0%

(190)

30.7%

(184)

23.4%

(148)
32.4%

(141)

Bar #1=Large Cap (Combined Z: -0.26 Growth Z: -0.05 Value Z: 0.21)

Bar #2=S&P 500 Index (Combined Z: -0.03 Growth Z: 0.00 Value Z: 0.03)

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU PUBUTL RAWMAT REALES TECH

1.1
2.1

10.4
12.3

5.4

9.0
7.0 6.0

22.6

14.5 15.4 14.5

9.4 10.3

1.9
3.2

4.9
2.8

1.5
2.9

20.5
22.3

Bar #1=Large Cap

Bar #2=S&P 500 Index

Value

Core

Growth

 40
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Historical Holdings Based Style Analysis
Large Cap
For Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

This page analyzes the historical investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
average actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the average historical market capitalization and style score of
the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the average historical portfolio
and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The next two style
exposure charts illustrate the actual quarterly cap/style and style only segment exposures of the portfolio through history.

Average Style Map vs CAI Large Capitalization
Holdings for Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Large Cap
S&P 500 Index

Average Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings for Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

34.1% (88) 31.4% (98) 20.7% (92) 86.2% (278)

5.6% (83) 4.6% (78) 3.0% (53) 13.3% (214)

0.2% (4) 0.2% (2) 0.1% (2) 0.6% (8)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

39.9% (175) 36.3% (178) 23.8% (147) 100.0% (500)

30.8% (91) 30.3% (100) 28.0% (94) 89.1% (285)

4.0% (82) 3.9% (77) 3.0% (53) 10.8% (212)

0.0% (3) 0.0% (1) 0.0% (1) 0.1% (5)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

34.8% (176) 34.2% (178) 31.0% (148) 100.0% (502)

Large Cap Historical Cap/Style Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Micro-Core

Micro-Value

Small-Growth

Small-Core

Small-Value

Mid-Growth

Mid-Core

Mid-Value

Large-Growth

Large-Core

Large-Value

Large Cap Historical Style Only Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Growth

Core

Value

 41
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA S&P 500
Period Ended June 30, 2017

Investment Philosophy
SSGA believes that their passive investment strategy can provide market-like returns with minimal transaction costs.
Returns prior to 6/30/2012 are linked to a composite history.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
SSgA S&P 500’s portfolio posted a 3.09% return for the
quarter placing it in the 35 percentile of the CAI Large Cap
Core group for the quarter and in the 56 percentile for the
last year.

SSgA S&P 500’s portfolio outperformed the S&P 500 Index
by 0.01% for the quarter and outperformed the S&P 500
Index for the year by 0.07%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $45,309,773

Net New Investment $-1,149,059

Investment Gains/(Losses) $1,398,488

Ending Market Value $45,559,203

Performance vs CAI Large Cap Core (Gross)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years

(35)(35)

(56)(56)

(33)(35)

(47)(48)
(43)(43)

10th Percentile 4.30 23.56 10.58 16.11 16.57
25th Percentile 3.43 21.29 10.03 15.45 15.96

Median 2.90 18.62 9.13 14.52 15.17
75th Percentile 2.31 16.36 7.94 13.63 14.17
90th Percentile 1.57 14.26 6.89 12.78 13.34

SSgA S&P 500 3.09 17.97 9.68 14.68 15.46

S&P 500 Index 3.09 17.90 9.61 14.63 15.41

Relative Return vs S&P 500 Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(0.04%)

(0.02%)

0.00%

0.02%

0.04%

0.06%

0.08%

10 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 17

SSgA S&P 500

CAI Large Cap Core (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

9 10 11 12 13 14 15
12%

13%

14%

15%

16%

17%

18%

S&P 500 IndexSSgA S&P 500

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 42
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA S&P 500
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last chart illustrates the manager’s ranking
relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Large Cap Core (Gross)

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

12/16- 6/17 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

(46)(46)
(21)(21)

(48)(51)

(47)(48)

(77)(77)

(48)(48)

(35)(36)

(42)(42)

(50)(50)

10th Percentile 11.67 13.93 4.08 16.01 37.59 18.38 6.19 18.65 34.96
25th Percentile 10.67 11.55 3.01 15.12 35.85 17.07 4.38 16.40 32.58

Median 9.26 10.42 1.40 13.63 34.49 15.89 1.46 14.20 26.51
75th Percentile 8.10 8.50 (1.10) 12.82 32.61 14.41 (1.59) 13.41 23.00
90th Percentile 7.08 7.67 (2.41) 11.14 31.14 11.41 (3.64) 10.96 21.04

SSgA S&P 500 9.35 12.03 1.46 13.77 32.36 16.07 2.14 15.14 26.57

S&P 500 Index 9.34 11.96 1.38 13.69 32.39 16.00 2.11 15.06 26.47

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs S&P 500 Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

SSgA S&P 500 CAI Large Cap Core

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs S&P 500 Index
Rankings Against CAI Large Cap Core (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

(4)

(3)

(2)

(1)

0

1

2

Alpha Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio

(44)

(35) (1)

10th Percentile 1.17 1.39 0.59
25th Percentile 0.66 1.35 0.26

Median (0.14) 1.27 (0.09)
75th Percentile (2.01) 1.11 (0.45)
90th Percentile (2.85) 1.04 (0.61)

SSgA S&P 500 0.05 1.33 1.31

 43
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA S&P 500
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against CAI Large Cap Core
as of June 30, 2017

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Price/Fore- Price/Book Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap casted Earnings Earnings Growth Yield Combined Z-Score

(32)(32)

(42)(42)

(30)(30)

(49)(49)

(22)(22)

(50)(50)

10th Percentile 100.24 18.78 3.24 14.78 2.12 0.21
25th Percentile 88.90 18.11 3.00 13.80 2.00 0.11

Median 81.78 17.20 2.92 12.52 1.83 (0.03)
75th Percentile 57.53 16.41 2.71 11.53 1.69 (0.10)
90th Percentile 34.86 15.57 2.35 10.71 1.42 (0.17)

SSgA S&P 500 87.36 17.65 2.96 12.61 2.01 (0.03)

S&P 500 Index 87.36 17.65 2.96 12.61 2.01 (0.03)

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. Diversification by number and concentration of holdings are also compared to the benchmark
and peer group. Issue Diversification represents by count, and Diversification Ratio by percent, the number of holdings that
account for half of the portfolio’s market value.

Sector Allocation
June 30, 2017

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Information Technology
22.3
22.3

23.9

Financials
14.5
14.5

15.9

Health Care
14.5

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

14.5
15.1

Consumer Discretionary
12.3
12.3
12.4

Industrials
10.3
10.3
10.6

Consumer Staples
9.0
9.0

8.2

Energy
6.0
6.0

5.6

Utilities
3.2
3.2

2.2

Real Estate
2.9
2.9

1.6

Materials
2.8
2.8
3.0

Telecommunications
2.1
2.1

1.5

SSgA S&P 500 S&P 500 Index CAI Large Cap Core

Sector Diversification
Manager 2.91 sectors

Index 2.91 sectors

Diversification
June 30, 2017

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Number of Issue
Securities Diversification

(1)

(5)

10th Percentile 200 44
25th Percentile 122 29

Median 73 20
75th Percentile 53 17
90th Percentile 39 12

SSgA S&P 500 505 55

S&P 500 Index 505 55

Diversification Ratio
Manager 11%

Index 11%

Style Median 29%

 44
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
SSgA S&P 500
As of June 30, 2017

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market capitalization and style score of the
portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the current portfolio and index
weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The middle chart illustrates the
total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total growth, value, and "combined
Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Large Cap Core
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

S&P 500 IndexSSgA S&P 500

SSgA S&P 500

S&P 500 Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

33.4% (103) 26.5% (97) 30.1% (96) 90.0% (296)

3.4% (75) 4.2% (87) 2.3% (45) 10.0% (207)

0.0% (2) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (2)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

36.8% (180) 30.7% (184) 32.4% (141) 100.0% (505)

33.4% (103) 26.5% (97) 30.1% (96) 90.0% (296)

3.4% (75) 4.2% (87) 2.3% (45) 10.0% (207)

0.0% (2) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (2)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

36.8% (180) 30.7% (184) 32.4% (141) 100.0% (505)

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Value Core Growth

36.8%

(180)

36.8%

(180)

30.7%

(184)

30.7%

(184)
32.4%

(141)

32.4%

(141)

Bar #1=SSgA S&P 500 (Combined Z: -0.03 Growth Z: 0.00 Value Z: 0.03)

Bar #2=S&P 500 Index (Combined Z: -0.03 Growth Z: 0.00 Value Z: 0.03)

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU PUBUTL RAWMAT REALES TECH

2.1 2.1

12.3 12.3

9.0 9.0

6.0 6.0

14.5 14.5 14.5 14.5

10.3 10.3

3.2 3.2 2.8 2.8 2.9 2.9

22.3 22.3

Bar #1=SSgA S&P 500

Bar #2=S&P 500 Index

Value

Core

Growth

 45
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners
Period Ended June 30, 2017

Investment Philosophy
Boston Partners attempts to implement a disciplined investment process designed to find undervalued securities issued by
companies with sound fundamentals and positive business momentum. Boston Partners was funded 6/27/05. The first full
quarter for this portfolio is 3rd quarter 2005.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Boston Partners’s portfolio posted a 2.66% return for the
quarter placing it in the 24 percentile of the CAI Large Cap
Value group for the quarter and in the 23 percentile for the
last year.

Boston Partners’s portfolio outperformed the Russell 1000
Value Index by 1.32% for the quarter and outperformed the
Russell 1000 Value Index for the year by 5.43%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $44,659,944

Net New Investment $0

Investment Gains/(Losses) $1,190,464

Ending Market Value $45,850,408

Performance vs CAI Large Cap Value (Gross)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years Last 12 Years
Year

B(13)
A(24)(69)

A(23)

B(49)

(76)

B(8)
A(43)(60)

A(29)
B(34)(56)

B(22)
A(26)(62)

A(11)
B(18)

(79)

A(9)
B(36)(75)

10th Percentile 3.18 27.25 9.23 16.27 15.96 8.14 9.48
25th Percentile 2.64 20.66 8.66 15.05 15.31 6.99 8.72

Median 1.85 17.82 7.59 14.06 14.54 6.19 8.05
75th Percentile 1.18 15.73 6.70 13.43 14.05 5.63 7.32
90th Percentile 0.70 13.11 5.47 12.72 12.65 4.57 6.54

Boston Partners A 2.66 20.96 7.75 14.82 15.25 7.82 9.55
S&P 500 Index B 3.09 17.90 9.61 14.63 15.41 7.18 8.36

Russell 1000
Value Index 1.34 15.53 7.36 13.94 14.31 5.57 7.37

Relative Return vs Russell 1000 Value Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(4%)

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

10 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 17

Boston Partners

CAI Large Cap Value (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

8 10 12 14 16 18
10%

11%

12%

13%

14%

15%

16%

17%

Boston Partners
Russell 1000 Value Index

S&P 500 Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 46
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last chart illustrates the manager’s ranking
relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Large Cap Value (Gross)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

12/16- 6/17 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

B(5)
A(31)73

A(59)
B(85)

27
B(3)
A(68)70

B(27)
A(62)

31

A(20)
B(75)71

A(5)
B(59)35

B(32)
A(42)53

B(35)
A(44)

28

A(24)
B(31)75

A(9)
B(63)61

10th Percentile 8.75 21.11 0.43 15.03 40.21 21.13 4.61 18.13 34.49 (32.84)
25th Percentile 7.02 17.78 (1.15) 13.73 36.88 19.12 2.42 16.02 26.82 (34.74)

Median 5.96 15.25 (2.56) 12.54 34.59 16.79 0.61 14.27 22.39 (35.88)
75th Percentile 4.41 13.79 (4.58) 11.36 32.38 15.10 (2.48) 12.55 19.67 (38.62)
90th Percentile 3.29 11.53 (6.38) 8.99 30.80 12.71 (5.19) 11.75 15.46 (44.92)

Boston Partners A 6.78 14.71 (3.75) 11.87 37.52 21.95 1.27 14.54 27.06 (32.69)
S&P 500 Index B 9.34 11.96 1.38 13.69 32.39 16.00 2.11 15.06 26.47 (37.00)

Russell 1000
Value Index 4.66 17.34 (3.83) 13.45 32.53 17.51 0.39 15.51 19.69 (36.85)

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Russell 1000 Value Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Boston Partners S&P 500 Index CAI Large Cap Value

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Russell 1000 Value Index
Rankings Against CAI Large Cap Value (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

(3)

(2)

(1)

0

1

2

3

Alpha Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio

B(11)

A(48)

B(10)
A(49)

B(23)
A(29)

10th Percentile 2.27 1.32 0.54
25th Percentile 0.90 1.21 0.37

Median 0.12 1.12 0.10
75th Percentile (0.56) 1.05 (0.12)
90th Percentile (1.64) 0.99 (0.54)

Boston Partners A 0.20 1.13 0.31
S&P 500 Index B 2.20 1.32 0.39

 47
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners
Risk Analysis Summary

Risk Analysis
The graphs below analyze the risk or variation of a manager’s return pattern. The first scatter chart illustrates the
relationship, called Excess Return Ratio, between excess return and tracking error relative to the benchmark. The second
chart shows Up and Down Market Capture. The last two charts show the ranking of the manager’s risk statistics versus the
peer group.

Risk Analysis vs CAI Large Cap Value (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

0.5 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.5 4.0 4.5 5.0 5.5 6.0
(4 )

(3 )

(2 )

(1 )

0

1

2

3

Boston Partners

Tracking Error

E
x
c
e

s
s
 R

e
tu

rn

Market Capture vs Russell 1000 Value Index
Rankings Against CAI Large Cap Value (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

60%
70%
80%
90%

100%
110%
120%
130%
140%

Up Market Down
Capture Market Capture

(21)
(45)

10th Percentile 119.65 124.70
25th Percentile 109.25 112.60

Median 100.07 98.65
75th Percentile 95.14 88.41
90th Percentile 88.77 75.55

Boston Partners 109.84 102.90

Risk Statistics Rankings vs Russell 1000 Value Index
Rankings Against CAI Large Cap Value (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

0%
2%
4%
6%
8%

10%
12%
14%
16%

Standard Downside Tracking
Deviation Risk Error

(29)

(54)
(44)

10th Percentile 14.32 3.42 4.39
25th Percentile 13.54 2.61 3.78

Median 12.79 1.98 2.89
75th Percentile 12.08 1.54 2.32
90th Percentile 11.22 1.21 1.99

Boston
Partners 13.39 1.93 3.03

0.85

0.90

0.95

1.00

1.05

1.10

1.15

Beta R-Squared

(29)

(54)

10th Percentile 1.11 0.98
25th Percentile 1.06 0.97

Median 1.01 0.96
75th Percentile 0.95 0.93
90th Percentile 0.89 0.90

Boston Partners 1.05 0.95

 48
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against CAI Large Cap Value
as of June 30, 2017

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Forecasted Price/ Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap P/E Book Value Growth in Earnings Yield Combined Z-Score

B(13)
A(19)

(50)

B(4)

A(76)

(26)

B(3)

A(65)(67)

A(32)

B(41)

(59)

B(80)

A(94)

(29)

B(1)

A(40)

(75)

10th Percentile 97.33 17.26 2.56 15.88 2.81 (0.23)
25th Percentile 81.59 16.05 2.33 13.86 2.54 (0.43)

Median 65.52 15.38 2.12 12.27 2.23 (0.58)
75th Percentile 45.39 14.59 1.89 9.72 2.06 (0.75)
90th Percentile 34.83 13.34 1.72 8.67 1.91 (0.86)

Boston Partners A 83.90 14.56 2.00 13.31 1.88 (0.49)
S&P 500 Index B 87.36 17.65 2.96 12.61 2.01 (0.03)

Russell 1000 Value Index 65.49 16.04 1.96 10.67 2.45 (0.75)

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. Diversification by number and concentration of holdings are also compared to the benchmark
and peer group. Issue Diversification represents by count, and Diversification Ratio by percent, the number of holdings that
account for half of the portfolio’s market value.

Sector Allocation
June 30, 2017

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40%

Financials
30.8

25.5
26.2

Information Technology
18.7

8.0
12.9

Health Care
16.3

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

14.2
13.6

Industrials
8.5
8.7

10.9

Consumer Discretionary
8.5

6.9
8.1

Energy
8.0

10.6
10.4

Materials
6.9

2.7
3.3

Consumer Staples
1.7

9.2
7.7

Utilities
0.6

6.1
3.4

Telecommunications 3.1
2.0

Real Estate 5.0
1.5

Boston Partners Russell 1000 Value Index

CAI Large Cap Value

Sector Diversification
Manager 2.03 sectors

Index 2.98 sectors

Diversification
June 30, 2017

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Number of Issue
Securities Diversification

(27)

(41)

10th Percentile 150 33
25th Percentile 91 25

Median 62 19
75th Percentile 46 15
90th Percentile 33 12

Boston Partners 87 20

Russell 1000
Value Index 718 47

Diversification Ratio
Manager 23%

Index 7%

Style Median 32%

 49
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
Boston Partners
As of June 30, 2017

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market capitalization and style score of the
portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the current portfolio and index
weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The middle chart illustrates the
total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total growth, value, and "combined
Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Large Cap Value
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

S&P 500 Index

Russell 1000 Value Index

Boston Partners

Boston Partners

S&P 500 Index

Russell 1000 Value Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

44.9% (29) 27.8% (22) 12.8% (16) 85.6% (67)

5.3% (9) 7.2% (10) 1.4% (3) 14.0% (22)

0.2% (1) 0.3% (1) 0.0% (1) 0.5% (3)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

50.4% (39) 35.4% (33) 14.2% (20) 100.0% (92)

33.4% (103) 26.5% (97) 30.1% (96) 90.0% (296)

3.4% (75) 4.2% (87) 2.3% (45) 10.0% (207)

0.0% (2) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (2)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

36.8% (180) 30.7% (184) 32.4% (141) 100.0% (505)

52.8% (103) 22.9% (75) 3.0% (30) 78.7% (208)

9.3% (162) 7.8% (176) 2.2% (70) 19.4% (408)

1.1% (50) 0.7% (33) 0.2% (17) 2.0% (100)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

63.2% (315) 31.4% (284) 5.4% (117) 100.0% (716)

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

140%

Value Core Growth

50.4%

(39)

36.8%

(180)

63.2%

(315)

35.4%

(33)

30.7%

(184)

31.4%

(284)

14.2%

(20)
32.4%

(141)

5.4%

(117)

Bar #1=Boston Partners (Combined Z: -0.49 Growth Z: -0.09 Value Z: 0.40)

Bar #2=S&P 500 Index (Combined Z: -0.03 Growth Z: 0.00 Value Z: 0.03)

Bar #3=Russell 1000 Value Index (Combined Z: -0.75 Growth Z: -0.28 Value Z: 0.47)

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU PUBUTL RAWMAT TECH COMMUN REALES

8.5

12.3

6.9

1.7

9.0 9.2
8.0

6.0

10.6

30.8

14.5

25.5

16.3
14.5 14.2

8.5
10.3

8.7

0.6

3.2

6.1 6.9

2.8 2.7

18.7

22.3

8.0

0.0
2.1

3.1

0.0

2.9
5.0

Bar #1=Boston Partners

Bar #2=S&P 500 Index

Bar #3=Russell 1000 Value Index

Value

Core

Growth

 50
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Historical Holdings Based Style Analysis
Boston Partners
For Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

This page analyzes the historical investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
average actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the average historical market capitalization and style score of
the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the average historical portfolio
and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The next two style
exposure charts illustrate the actual quarterly cap/style and style only segment exposures of the portfolio through history.

Average Style Map vs CAI Large Cap Value
Holdings for Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Boston Partners
S&P 500 Index

Russell 1000 Value Index

Average Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings for Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

37.2% (24) 32.3% (25) 13.9% (14) 83.4% (63)

7.1% (11) 5.4% (9) 3.0% (5) 15.6% (25)

0.4% (1) 0.4% (1) 0.2% (1) 1.0% (3)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

44.7% (36) 38.1% (35) 17.2% (20) 100.0% (91)

30.8% (91) 30.3% (100) 28.0% (94) 89.1% (285)

4.0% (82) 3.9% (77) 3.0% (53) 10.8% (212)

0.0% (3) 0.0% (1) 0.0% (1) 0.1% (5)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

34.8% (176) 34.2% (178) 31.0% (148) 100.0% (502)

48.9% (88) 24.6% (75) 5.1% (30) 78.6% (193)

10.1% (160) 6.7% (147) 2.2% (59) 19.0% (366)

1.4% (62) 0.9% (48) 0.2% (15) 2.5% (125)

0.0% (1) 0.0% (1) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (2)

60.4% (311) 32.1% (271) 7.5% (104) 100.0% (686)

Boston Partners Historical Cap/Style Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Micro-Core

Small-Growth

Small-Core

Small-Value

Mid-Growth

Mid-Core

Mid-Value

Large-Growth

Large-Core

Large-Value

Boston Partners Historical Style Only Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Growth

Core

Value

 51
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners vs Russell 1000 Value Index
Domestic Equity Daily Performance Attribution
One Quarter Ended June 30, 2017

Return Sources and Timing
The charts below illustrate the timing and cumulative paths of the manager’s performance, as well as attributing relative
performance to three sources: Sector Concentration, Security Selection, and Asset Allocation. The first chart shows the
cumulative absolute return paths for the manager and index. The second chart shows the cumulative relative return path of
the manager and the attributed sources of that value-added. The bottom table breaks the annualized attribution factors down
to the sector level for more insight into sources of return.

Cumulative Manager and Benchmark Returns

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

201704 201705 201706

2.66%

1.34%
1.32%

Boston Partners

Russell 1000 Value Index

Relative Return

Cumulative Attribution Effects vs. Russell 1000 Value Index

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

201704 201705 201706

0.79%
0.60%

(0.06%)

1.32%

Sector Concentration

Security Selection

Asset Allocation Effect

Value Added

Attribution Effects by Sector vs. Russell 1000 Value Index
One Quarter Ended June 30, 2017

Sector

Manager

Eff Weight

Index

Eff Weight

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Sector

Concentration

Security

Selection

Asset

Allocation

Consumer Discretionary 8.57% 4.64% (0.28)% 2.84% 0.03% (0.27)% -

Consumer Staples 1.23% 8.63% 5.69% 1.14% 0.02% 0.07% -

Energy 9.01% 11.82% (4.47)% (7.09)% 0.24% 0.26% -

Financials 28.22% 26.25% 2.58% 3.79% 0.15% (0.33)% -

Health Care 16.10% 11.33% 5.96% 6.24% 0.28% (0.04)% -

Industrials 8.07% 9.90% 8.80% 3.19% (0.04)% 0.43% -

Information Technology 20.80% 9.99% 2.78% 0.71% (0.08)% 0.45% -

Materials 7.36% 2.90% 0.63% 0.10% (0.07)% 0.04% -

Real Estate 0.00% 4.66% 0.00% 1.57% (0.01)% 0.00% -

Telecommunications 0.00% 3.49% 0.00% (7.09)% 0.30% 0.00% -

Utilities 0.63% 6.39% 0.43% 2.17% (0.05)% (0.01)% -

Non Equity 2.37% 0.00% - - - - (0.06)%

Total - - 2.66% 1.34% 0.79% 0.60% (0.06)%

Manager Return

2.66%
=

Index Return

1.34%

Sector Concentration

0.79%

Security Selection

0.60%

Asset Allocation

(0.06%)

 52
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners vs Russell 1000 Value Index
Domestic Equity Daily Performance Attribution
One Year Ended June 30, 2017

Return Sources and Timing
The charts below illustrate the timing and cumulative paths of the manager’s performance, as well as attributing relative
performance to three sources: Sector Concentration, Security Selection, and Asset Allocation. The first chart shows the
cumulative absolute return paths for the manager and index. The second chart shows the cumulative relative return path of
the manager and the attributed sources of that value-added. The bottom table breaks the annualized attribution factors down
to the sector level for more insight into sources of return.

Cumulative Manager and Benchmark Returns

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

201609 201612 201703 201706

20.96%

15.53%

5.43%

Boston Partners

Russell 1000 Value Index

Relative Return

Cumulative Attribution Effects vs. Russell 1000 Value Index

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

201609 201612 201703 201706

4.16%

1.81%

(0.53%)

5.43%
Sector Concentration

Security Selection

Asset Allocation Effect

Value Added

Attribution Effects by Sector vs. Russell 1000 Value Index
One Year Ended June 30, 2017

Sector

Manager

Eff Weight

Index

Eff Weight

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Sector

Concentration

Security

Selection

Asset

Allocation

Real Estate 0.04% 3.96% (0.63)% (1.55)% 0.68% 0.03% -

Miscellaneous 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% -

Consumer Discretionary 8.15% 4.61% 18.19% 17.41% 0.16% (0.12)% -

Consumer Staples 1.88% 8.58% 1.58% 5.96% 0.59% (0.17)% -

Energy 11.67% 12.84% (2.54)% (4.62)% 0.30% 0.19% -

Financials 26.19% 26.11% 36.68% 35.84% 0.13% 0.16% -

Health Care 16.18% 11.09% 6.39% 11.36% 0.03% (0.99)% -

Industrials 9.13% 9.96% 31.83% 22.68% 0.02% 0.72% -

Information Technology 17.75% 9.80% 37.71% 26.06% 0.64% 1.84% -

Materials 7.45% 2.87% 23.04% 19.32% 0.13% 0.26% -

Telecommunications 0.65% 3.77% (12.06)% (9.19)% 0.75% (0.04)% -

Utilities 0.92% 6.41% (7.37)% 2.70% 0.73% (0.08)% -

Non Equity 2.72% 0.00% - - - - (0.53)%

Total - - 20.96% 15.53% 4.16% 1.81% (0.53)%

Manager Return

20.96%
=

Index Return

15.53%

Sector Concentration

4.16%

Security Selection

1.81%

Asset Allocation

(0.53%)

 53
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Boston Partners vs Russell 1000 Value Index
Domestic Equity Top 10 Contribution Holdings
One Quarter Ended June 30, 2017

Manager Holdings with Largest (+ or -) Contribution to Performance

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Manager

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

Citigroup Inc Financials 3.14% 91 1.48% 11.88% 12.10% 0.38% 0.19%

JPMorgan Chase & Co Financials 4.75% 91 2.78% 4.65% 4.65% 0.22% 0.07%

Oracle Corp Information Technology 1.74% 91 1.07% 12.88% 12.88% 0.22% 0.08%

Alphabet Inc Cl A Information Technology 2.01% 91 - 9.56% - 0.22% 0.20%

Johnson & Johnson Health Care 3.24% 91 2.55% 6.91% 6.91% 0.20% 0.03%

Discover Finl Svcs Financials 1.44% 91 0.15% (8.46)% (8.62)% (0.18)% (0.17)%

Anthem Inc Health Care 1.24% 91 0.31% 14.15% 14.15% 0.17% 0.11%

Cisco Sys Inc Information Technology 2.35% 91 1.49% (6.59)% (6.59)% (0.16)% (0.07)%

Delta Air Lines Inc Del Industrials 0.90% 91 0.08% 17.42% 17.42% 0.15% 0.13%

Cigna Corporation Health Care 1.07% 91 0.22% 14.27% 14.27% 0.15% 0.11%

Index Holdings with Largest (+ or -) Contribution to Performance

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Index

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

At&t Inc Telecommunications - - 2.19% - (8.10)% (0.18)% 0.21%

Johnson & Johnson Health Care 3.24% 91 2.55% 6.91% 6.91% 0.18% 0.03%

Citigroup Inc Financials 3.14% 91 1.48% 11.88% 12.10% 0.18% 0.19%

General Electric Co Industrials - - 1.80% - (8.61)% (0.16)% 0.18%

Schlumberger Energy - - 0.91% - (15.08)% (0.15)% 0.16%

Oracle Corp Information Technology 1.74% 91 1.07% 12.88% 12.88% 0.14% 0.08%

JPMorgan Chase & Co Financials 4.75% 91 2.78% 4.65% 4.65% 0.12% 0.07%

Medtronic Plc Shs Health Care - - 1.03% - 10.17% 0.10% (0.09)%

Cisco Sys Inc Information Technology 2.35% 91 1.49% (6.59)% (6.59)% (0.10)% (0.07)%

Anadarko Petroleum Corp Energy - - 0.28% - (26.80)% (0.08)% 0.09%

Positions with Largest Positive Contribution to Excess Return

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Manager

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

At&t Inc Telecommunications - - 2.19% - (8.10)% - 0.21%

Alphabet Inc Cl A Information Technology 2.01% 91 - 9.56% - 0.22% 0.20%

Citigroup Inc Financials 3.14% 91 1.48% 11.88% 12.10% 0.38% 0.19%

General Electric Co Industrials - - 1.80% - (8.61)% - 0.18%

Schlumberger Energy - - 0.91% - (15.08)% - 0.16%

Delta Air Lines Inc Del Industrials 0.90% 91 0.08% 17.42% 17.42% 0.15% 0.13%

Unitedhealth Group Health Care 1.04% 91 - 13.52% - 0.13% 0.12%

Anthem Inc Health Care 1.24% 91 0.31% 14.15% 14.15% 0.17% 0.11%

Cigna Corporation Health Care 1.07% 91 0.22% 14.27% 14.27% 0.15% 0.11%

Koninklijke Philips N V Ny Reg Sh N Industrials 0.85% 91 - 14.38% - 0.12% 0.10%

Positions with Largest Negative Contribution to Excess Return

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Manager

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

Discover Finl Svcs Financials 1.44% 91 0.15% (8.46)% (8.62)% (0.18)% (0.17)%

Twenty First Centy Fox Inc Cl A Consumer Discretionary 1.07% 91 0.08% (12.81)% (12.50)% (0.13)% (0.13)%

Marathon Oil Corp Energy 0.46% 91 0.11% (24.70)% (24.74)% (0.13)% (0.10)%

Diamondback Energy Inc Energy 0.64% 91 0.06% (14.37)% (14.37)% (0.10)% (0.09)%

Barrick Gold Corp Materials 0.47% 91 - (16.06)% - (0.08)% (0.09)%

Medtronic Plc Shs Health Care - - 1.03% - 10.17% - (0.09)%

Caterpillar Industrials - - 0.46% - 16.79% - (0.07)%

Cisco Sys Inc Information Technology 2.35% 91 1.49% (6.59)% (6.59)% (0.16)% (0.07)%

Capital One Finl Corp Financials 1.09% 91 0.35% (4.28)% (4.19)% (0.07)% (0.07)%

Csx Corp Industrials - - 0.40% - 17.64% - (0.06)%

 54
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital
Period Ended June 30, 2017

Investment Philosophy
Atlanta believes that high quality companies produce consistently increasing earnings and dividends, thereby providing
attractive returns with moderate risk over the long-term. Returns prior to 6/30/2010 are linked to a composite history.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Atlanta Capital’s portfolio posted a 3.62% return for the
quarter placing it in the 32 percentile of the CAI Small
Capitalization group for the quarter and in the 96 percentile
for the last year.

Atlanta Capital’s portfolio outperformed the Russell 2000
Index by 1.16% for the quarter and underperformed the
Russell 2000 Index for the year by 8.50%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $23,920,446

Net New Investment $0

Investment Gains/(Losses) $866,462

Ending Market Value $24,786,908

Performance vs CAI Small Capitalization (Gross)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years

(32)
(48)

(96)

(39)

(8)

(60)

(34)
(70)

(19)

(77)

10th Percentile 6.40 29.03 10.96 17.27 17.76
25th Percentile 4.32 26.14 9.75 16.11 16.90

Median 2.33 23.16 8.07 14.83 15.67
75th Percentile 0.66 20.83 6.27 13.21 14.45
90th Percentile (0.37) 17.94 3.82 11.49 13.26

Atlanta Capital 3.62 16.10 11.28 15.55 17.30

Russell 2000 Index 2.46 24.60 7.36 13.70 14.35

Relative Return vs Russell 2000 Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(8%)

(6%)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 17

Atlanta Capital

CAI Small Capitalization (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24 26
8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

22%

24%

Atlanta Capital

Russell 2000 Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 55
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last chart illustrates the manager’s ranking
relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Small Capitalization (Gross)

(60%)

(40%)

(20%)

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

12/16- 6/17 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

4750
5242

4
70

6958

5769

8151 1
67

6764 6969

1
29

10th Percentile 14.61 30.59 3.80 10.35 52.61 22.74 5.11 35.52 49.82 (29.59)
25th Percentile 10.02 25.41 (0.08) 8.22 46.90 19.51 1.82 31.48 44.51 (33.01)

Median 5.07 19.97 (2.32) 5.65 42.43 16.47 (1.76) 28.25 33.93 (37.46)
75th Percentile 1.91 11.36 (5.11) 2.28 37.60 13.27 (5.70) 24.97 25.06 (42.30)
90th Percentile (0.28) 5.81 (8.08) (2.43) 34.66 10.51 (8.62) 22.04 17.68 (46.47)

Atlanta Capital 5.46 19.17 5.14 3.49 41.51 11.96 10.81 26.10 27.17 (19.41)

Russell
2000 Index 4.99 21.31 (4.41) 4.89 38.82 16.35 (4.18) 26.85 27.17 (33.79)

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Russell 2000 Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Atlanta Capital CAI Small Capitalization

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Russell 2000 Index
Rankings Against CAI Small Capitalization (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

(2)

(1)

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Alpha Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio

(4)

(3)
(20)

10th Percentile 3.87 1.07 0.91
25th Percentile 2.57 0.99 0.48

Median 1.70 0.93 0.28
75th Percentile 0.35 0.83 0.02
90th Percentile (1.01) 0.74 (0.18)

Atlanta Capital 5.21 1.23 0.56

 56
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital
Risk Analysis Summary

Risk Analysis
The graphs below analyze the risk or variation of a manager’s return pattern. The first scatter chart illustrates the
relationship, called Excess Return Ratio, between excess return and tracking error relative to the benchmark. The second
chart shows Up and Down Market Capture. The last two charts show the ranking of the manager’s risk statistics versus the
peer group.

Risk Analysis vs CAI Small Capitalization (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

0 5 10 15
(6 )

(4 )

(2 )

0

2

4

6

8

10

Atlanta Capital

Tracking Error

E
x
c
e

s
s
 R

e
tu

rn

Market Capture vs Russell 2000 Index
Rankings Against CAI Small Capitalization (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%
110%
120%
130%
140%

Up Market Down
Capture Market Capture

(81)

(99)

10th Percentile 128.52 111.65
25th Percentile 116.61 102.12

Median 105.75 91.48
75th Percentile 94.58 84.66
90th Percentile 83.48 76.09

Atlanta Capital 91.81 59.37

Risk Statistics Rankings vs Russell 2000 Index
Rankings Against CAI Small Capitalization (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Standard Downside Tracking
Deviation Risk Error

(97)

(51)
(43)

10th Percentile 19.14 5.28 7.63
25th Percentile 17.90 4.17 6.26

Median 16.92 3.20 4.95
75th Percentile 16.09 2.21 3.97
90th Percentile 15.07 1.68 3.14

Atlanta Capital 13.93 3.17 5.30

0.75

0.80

0.85

0.90

0.95

1.00

1.05

1.10

1.15

Beta R-Squared

(95)

(59)

10th Percentile 1.09 0.97
25th Percentile 1.03 0.95

Median 0.99 0.92
75th Percentile 0.93 0.87
90th Percentile 0.87 0.82

Atlanta Capital 0.80 0.91

 57
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against CAI Small Capitalization
as of June 30, 2017

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Forecasted Price/ Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap P/E Book Value Growth in Earnings Yield Combined Z-Score

(2)

(71)

(38)

(30)
(34)

(62)

(79)

(60)
(56)

(34)
(41)

(52)

10th Percentile 3.07 37.65 4.04 20.12 1.83 0.85
25th Percentile 2.74 27.22 3.50 17.96 1.44 0.65

Median 2.24 19.84 2.33 14.50 1.11 0.07
75th Percentile 1.81 17.08 1.89 10.94 0.54 (0.29)
90th Percentile 1.35 15.69 1.62 8.94 0.35 (0.48)

Atlanta Capital 3.36 22.84 3.06 10.58 0.93 0.23

Russell 2000 Index 1.86 26.11 2.10 12.91 1.34 0.01

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. Diversification by number and concentration of holdings are also compared to the benchmark
and peer group. Issue Diversification represents by count, and Diversification Ratio by percent, the number of holdings that
account for half of the portfolio’s market value.

Sector Allocation
June 30, 2017

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Industrials
24.8

14.5
17.7

Information Technology
21.0

17.1
20.3

Financials
16.3

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

18.2
18.4

Consumer Discretionary
15.3

12.5
13.3

Consumer Staples
7.5

2.6
2.4

Health Care
7.4

15.0
15.5

Materials
5.3

4.4
4.4

Real Estate
1.3

7.5
4.5

Energy
1.1

3.5
2.7

Utilities 3.7
0.6

Telecommunications 0.9

Atlanta Capital Russell 2000 Index CAI Small Capitalization

Sector Diversification
Manager 2.26 sectors

Index 2.99 sectors

Diversification
June 30, 2017

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Number of Issue
Securities Diversification

(87)

(84)

10th Percentile 294 73
25th Percentile 150 44

Median 99 32
75th Percentile 71 25
90th Percentile 53 18

Atlanta Capital 56 19

Russell 2000 Index 2010 373

Diversification Ratio
Manager 35%

Index 19%

Style Median 33%

 58
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
Atlanta Capital
As of June 30, 2017

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market capitalization and style score of the
portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the current portfolio and index
weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The middle chart illustrates the
total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total growth, value, and "combined
Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Small Capitalization
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Atlanta Capital

Russell 2000 Index

Atlanta Capital

Russell 2000 Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

5.0% (3) 12.0% (5) 20.9% (9) 37.9% (17)

4.9% (4) 34.3% (22) 22.2% (12) 61.5% (38)

0.6% (1) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.6% (1)

10.5% (8) 46.3% (27) 43.2% (21) 100.0% (56)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

2.4% (12) 3.2% (17) 5.6% (31) 11.3% (60)

20.1% (294) 32.6% (451) 24.7% (365) 77.4% (1110)

3.8% (281) 4.5% (347) 3.0% (199) 11.3% (827)

26.3% (587) 40.3% (815) 33.3% (595) 100.0% (1997)

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

Value Core Growth

10.5%

(8)

26.3%

(587)

46.3%

(27)

40.3%

(815)
43.2%

(21)

33.3%

(595)

Bar #1=Atlanta Capital (Combined Z: 0.23 Growth Z: 0.02 Value Z: -0.21)

Bar #2=Russell 2000 Index (Combined Z: 0.01 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: -0.03)

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU RAWMAT REALES TECH COMMUN PUBUTL

15.3

12.5

7.5

2.7
1.1

3.6

16.3
18.0

7.4

15.0

24.8

14.6

5.3 4.4

1.3

7.5

21.0

17.1

0.0 0.9 0.0

3.7

Bar #1=Atlanta Capital

Bar #2=Russell 2000 Index

Value

Core

Growth

 59
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Historical Holdings Based Style Analysis
Atlanta Capital
For Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

This page analyzes the historical investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
average actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the average historical market capitalization and style score of
the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the average historical portfolio
and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The next two style
exposure charts illustrate the actual quarterly cap/style and style only segment exposures of the portfolio through history.

Average Style Map vs CAI Small Capitalization
Holdings for Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Atlanta Capital

Russell 2000 Index

Average Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings for Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

3.5% (2) 13.2% (6) 16.0% (7) 32.8% (15)

7.3% (5) 36.5% (24) 22.2% (13) 66.0% (42)

0.5% (0) 0.7% (1) 0.1% (0) 1.2% (1)

11.3% (7) 50.4% (31) 38.3% (20) 100.0% (58)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

1.6% (8) 2.8% (15) 5.1% (24) 9.5% (47)

20.6% (278) 31.3% (422) 25.5% (349) 77.4% (1049)

4.5% (290) 5.3% (368) 3.3% (207) 13.1% (865)

26.8% (576) 39.3% (805) 33.9% (580) 100.0% (1961)

Atlanta Capital Historical Cap/Style Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Micro-Growth

Micro-Core

Micro-Value

Small-Growth

Small-Core

Small-Value

Mid-Growth

Mid-Core

Mid-Value

Atlanta Capital Historical Style Only Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Growth

Core

Value

 60
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital vs Russell 2000 Index
Domestic Equity Daily Performance Attribution
One Quarter Ended June 30, 2017

Return Sources and Timing
The charts below illustrate the timing and cumulative paths of the manager’s performance, as well as attributing relative
performance to three sources: Sector Concentration, Security Selection, and Asset Allocation. The first chart shows the
cumulative absolute return paths for the manager and index. The second chart shows the cumulative relative return path of
the manager and the attributed sources of that value-added. The bottom table breaks the annualized attribution factors down
to the sector level for more insight into sources of return.

Cumulative Manager and Benchmark Returns

(4%)

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

201704 201705 201706

3.62%

2.46%

1.16%

Atlanta Capital

Russell 2000 Index

Relative Return

Cumulative Attribution Effects vs. Russell 2000 Index

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

201704 201705 201706

(0.35%)

1.60%

(0.09%)

1.16%

Sector Concentration

Security Selection

Asset Allocation Effect

Value Added

Attribution Effects by Sector vs. Russell 2000 Index
One Quarter Ended June 30, 2017

Sector

Manager

Eff Weight

Index

Eff Weight

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Sector

Concentration

Security

Selection

Asset

Allocation

Consumer Discretionary 15.52% 12.39% (1.79)% 2.73% 0.01% (0.71)% -

Consumer Staples 7.67% 2.89% (2.45)% (4.56)% (0.34)% 0.17% -

Energy 1.18% 3.16% (10.54)% (19.50)% 0.42% 0.13% -

Financials 15.94% 19.07% 0.42% 0.80% 0.08% (0.07)% -

Health Care 8.89% 13.11% 15.07% 8.97% (0.36)% 0.55% -

Industrials 24.59% 14.30% 5.65% 2.58% 0.01% 0.73% -

Information Technology 19.92% 17.72% 4.86% 4.29% 0.01% 0.14% -

Materials 5.18% 4.92% 8.37% (0.48)% 0.00% 0.45% -

Real Estate 1.11% 7.89% 24.38% 3.50% (0.08)% 0.22% -

Telecommunications 0.00% 0.77% 0.00% 14.86% (0.08)% 0.00% -

Utilities 0.00% 3.77% 0.00% 2.92% (0.02)% 0.00% -

Non Equity 2.54% 0.00% - - - - (0.09)%

Total - - 3.62% 2.46% (0.35)% 1.60% (0.09)%

Manager Return

3.62%
=

Index Return

2.46%

Sector Concentration

(0.35%)

Security Selection

1.60%

Asset Allocation

(0.09%)

 61
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital vs Russell 2000 Index
Domestic Equity Daily Performance Attribution
One Year Ended June 30, 2017

Return Sources and Timing
The charts below illustrate the timing and cumulative paths of the manager’s performance, as well as attributing relative
performance to three sources: Sector Concentration, Security Selection, and Asset Allocation. The first chart shows the
cumulative absolute return paths for the manager and index. The second chart shows the cumulative relative return path of
the manager and the attributed sources of that value-added. The bottom table breaks the annualized attribution factors down
to the sector level for more insight into sources of return.

Cumulative Manager and Benchmark Returns

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

201609 201612 201703 201706

16.10%

24.60%

(8.50%)

Atlanta Capital

Russell 2000 Index

Relative Return

Cumulative Attribution Effects vs. Russell 2000 Index

(14%)

(12%)

(10%)

(8%)

(6%)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

201609 201612 201703 201706

1.26%

(9.52%)

(0.23%)

(8.50%)Sector Concentration

Security Selection

Asset Allocation Effect

Value Added

Attribution Effects by Sector vs. Russell 2000 Index
One Year Ended June 30, 2017

Sector

Manager

Eff Weight

Index

Eff Weight

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Sector

Concentration

Security

Selection

Asset

Allocation

Real Estate 0.89% 6.66% 34.54% 4.81% 0.86% 0.32% -

Consumer Discretionary 15.98% 12.72% 4.29% 16.41% (0.25)% (2.04)% -

Consumer Staples 7.96% 2.98% 1.79% 2.39% (1.18)% (0.10)% -

Energy 1.33% 3.28% (16.48)% (5.99)% 0.64% (0.23)% -

Financials 16.69% 20.03% 17.57% 32.40% (0.12)% (2.38)% -

Health Care 8.26% 13.12% 35.85% 31.04% (0.16)% 0.24% -

Industrials 25.07% 14.32% 25.48% 27.47% 0.39% (0.67)% -

Information Technology 18.92% 17.46% 11.23% 34.91% 0.17% (4.24)% -

Materials 4.89% 4.85% 22.17% 31.61% 0.03% (0.41)% -

Telecommunications 0.00% 0.78% 0.00% 11.69% 0.14% 0.00% -

Utilities 0.00% 3.81% 0.00% 7.68% 0.74% 0.00% -

Non Equity 2.41% 0.00% - - - - (0.23)%

Total - - 16.10% 24.60% 1.26% (9.52)% (0.23)%

Manager Return

16.10%
=

Index Return

24.60%

Sector Concentration

1.26%

Security Selection

(9.52%)

Asset Allocation

(0.23%)

 62
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Atlanta Capital vs Russell 2000 Index
Domestic Equity Top 10 Contribution Holdings
One Quarter Ended June 30, 2017

Manager Holdings with Largest (+ or -) Contribution to Performance

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Manager

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

Integra Lifesciences Hldgs C Health Care 1.59% 91 0.15% 29.39% 29.39% 0.43% 0.35%

Aptargroup Inc Materials 2.99% 91 - 13.27% - 0.38% 0.30%

Blackbaud Inc Information Technology 3.08% 91 0.20% 12.01% 12.01% 0.36% 0.26%

Graco Inc Industrials 1.98% 91 - 16.49% - 0.33% 0.29%

Knight Transn Inc Industrials 1.85% 91 0.12% 18.39% 18.39% 0.32% 0.26%

Bio-Techne Corp Health Care 2.09% 91 - 15.96% - 0.32% 0.26%

National Instrs Corp Information Technology 1.40% 91 - 24.25% - 0.31% 0.28%

Bio Rad Labs Inc Cl A Health Care 2.35% 91 - 13.60% - 0.30% 0.27%

Manhattan Associates Information Technology 3.63% 91 - (7.67)% - (0.30)% (0.40)%

Monro Muffler Brake Inc Consumer Discretionary 1.26% 91 0.09% (19.57)% (19.57)% (0.25)% (0.26)%

Index Holdings with Largest (+ or -) Contribution to Performance

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Index

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

Oasis Pete Inc New Energy - - 0.15% - (43.55)% (0.08)% 0.08%

Puma Biotechnology Inc Health Care - - 0.08% - 134.95% 0.07% (0.07)%

Xpo Logistics Inc Industrials - - 0.24% - 29.63% 0.07% (0.06)%

Straight Path Communicatns I Cl B Telecommunications - - 0.06% - 399.44% 0.07% (0.07)%

Take-Two Interactive Sof Information Technology - - 0.31% - 22.96% 0.07% (0.07)%

Universal Display Corp Information Technology - - 0.19% - 36.45% 0.07% (0.06)%

Parexel International Health Care - - 0.19% - 37.71% 0.07% (0.06)%

Exact Sciences Corp Health Care - - 0.17% - 49.75% 0.07% (0.06)%

duPont Fabros Technology Inc Real Estate - - 0.19% - 31.50% 0.06% (0.05)%

Wayfair Inc Cl A Consumer Discretionary - - 0.08% - 90.12% 0.06% (0.05)%

Positions with Largest Positive Contribution to Excess Return

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Manager

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

Integra Lifesciences Hldgs C Health Care 1.59% 91 0.15% 29.39% 29.39% 0.43% 0.35%

Aptargroup Inc Materials 2.99% 91 - 13.27% - 0.38% 0.30%

Graco Inc Industrials 1.98% 91 - 16.49% - 0.33% 0.29%

National Instrs Corp Information Technology 1.40% 91 - 24.25% - 0.31% 0.28%

Bio Rad Labs Inc Cl A Health Care 2.35% 91 - 13.60% - 0.30% 0.27%

Knight Transn Inc Industrials 1.85% 91 0.12% 18.39% 18.39% 0.32% 0.26%

Bio-Techne Corp Health Care 2.09% 91 - 15.96% - 0.32% 0.26%

Blackbaud Inc Information Technology 3.08% 91 0.20% 12.01% 12.01% 0.36% 0.26%

Universal Health Rlty Incm T Sh Ben Real Estate 1.08% 91 0.05% 24.38% 24.38% 0.25% 0.21%

Forward Air Corp Industrials 1.72% 91 0.08% 12.34% 12.34% 0.20% 0.15%

Positions with Largest Negative Contribution to Excess Return

Issue Sector

Manager

Eff Wt

Days

Held

Index

Eff Wt

Manager

Return

Index

Return

Contrib

Manager

Perf

Contrib

Excess

Return

Manhattan Associates Information Technology 3.63% 91 - (7.67)% - (0.30)% (0.40)%

Monro Muffler Brake Inc Consumer Discretionary 1.26% 91 0.09% (19.57)% (19.57)% (0.25)% (0.26)%

Hibbett Sports Inc Consumer Discretionary 0.74% 91 0.03% (29.66)% (29.66)% (0.25)% (0.25)%

Caseys General Stores Consumer Staples 2.49% 91 - (4.38)% - (0.11)% (0.17)%

Dril-Quip Inc Energy 1.15% 91 0.02% (10.54)% 0.31% (0.13)% (0.16)%

Kirby Corp Industrials 2.06% 91 - (5.00)% - (0.11)% (0.15)%

Prosperity Bancshares Inc Financials 1.64% 91 0.22% (7.38)% (10.24)% (0.13)% (0.14)%

Rli Corp Financials 1.12% 91 0.12% (8.65)% (8.65)% (0.10)% (0.12)%

Exponent Inc Industrials 2.47% 91 0.08% (1.76)% (1.76)% (0.04)% (0.10)%

Pinnacle Finl Partners Inc Financials 1.39% 91 0.15% (5.29)% (7.62)% (0.08)% (0.09)%

 63
Sacramento Regional Transit District



In
te

rn
a

tio
n

a
l E

q
u
ity

International Equity



International Equity
Period Ended June 30, 2017

Investment Philosophy
*** Custom International Benchmark = MSCI EAFE until 6/30/2013, MSCI ACWI ex US until 7/31/2016, and MSCI ACWI ex
US IMI thereafter.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
International Equity’s portfolio posted a 5.58% return for the quarter placing it in the 85 percentile of the CAI Non-US
Equity group for the quarter and in the 57 percentile for the last year.

International Equity’s portfolio underperformed the Custom International Benchmark by 0.27% for the quarter and
underperformed the Custom International Benchmark for the year by 0.14%.

Performance vs CAI Non-US Equity (Gross)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years Last 17 Years
Year

B(80)
A(85)

(80)

B(56)
A(57)

(56)

A(74)
B(78)(84)

A(87)
B(91)

(84)
A(92)
B(94)

(89)

B(84)
A(92)(93)

A(54)
B(85)

(94)

10th Percentile 8.83 26.38 4.97 11.69 11.05 4.82 7.46
25th Percentile 7.90 23.72 3.92 10.74 10.11 3.61 6.32

Median 6.75 21.05 2.63 9.57 8.99 2.33 5.25
75th Percentile 6.07 18.04 1.44 8.58 8.15 1.65 4.41
90th Percentile 5.26 15.35 0.24 7.64 7.41 1.10 3.59

International Equity A 5.58 20.30 1.48 7.96 7.18 0.92 5.15
MSCI ACWI

ex US IMI B 5.85 20.43 1.14 7.58 6.94 1.38 4.14

Custom International
Benchmark 5.85 20.43 0.80 8.14 7.52 0.77 3.13

Relative Returns vs
Custom International Benchmark

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(2.5%)

(2.0%)

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

10 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 17

International Equity

CAI Non-US Equity (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22
2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

Custom International Benchmark

International Equity

MSCI ACWI ex US IMI

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 65
Sacramento Regional Transit District



International Equity
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last chart illustrates the manager’s ranking
relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Non-US Equity (Gross)

(80%)
(60%)
(40%)
(20%)

0%
20%
40%
60%
80%

12/16- 6/17 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

A(40)
B(67)67 B(19)

A(35)
20 A(86)

B(89)93
A(48)
B(50)50

A(85)
B(89)

67 A(70)
B(75)70

A(41)
B(79)

60

B(43)
A(88)84

B(20)
A(76)60

A(21)
B(73)52

10th Percentile 19.24 6.18 4.92 (0.31) 28.92 23.79 (6.44) 17.43 48.53 (36.67)
25th Percentile 17.00 3.39 2.70 (2.06) 26.07 21.76 (9.55) 15.06 41.34 (40.10)

Median 15.18 1.49 0.47 (3.88) 22.49 19.26 (11.29) 11.62 33.83 (43.20)
75th Percentile 13.93 (0.44) (2.53) (5.66) 18.59 16.97 (13.96) 9.02 29.20 (46.54)
90th Percentile 12.14 (3.78) (4.74) (7.82) 15.52 14.91 (16.61) 6.25 25.29 (49.30)

International
Equity A 15.69 2.55 (4.17) (3.72) 16.66 17.28 (10.64) 6.83 28.99 (39.41)

MSCI ACWI
ex US IMI B 14.30 4.41 (4.60) (3.89) 15.82 17.04 (14.31) 12.73 43.60 (45.99)

Custom International
Benchmark 14.30 4.29 (5.66) (3.87) 20.07 17.32 (12.14) 7.75 31.78 (43.38)

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Custom International Benchmark

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

International Equity MSCI ACWI ex US IMI CAI NonUS Eq

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Custom International Benchmark
Rankings Against CAI Non-US Equity (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

(2)

(1)

0

1

2

3

4

5

Alpha Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio

A(92)
B(95)

A(88)
B(94) A(95)

B(97)

10th Percentile 3.51 0.75 0.96
25th Percentile 2.56 0.68 0.72

Median 1.46 0.60 0.43
75th Percentile 0.69 0.54 0.18
90th Percentile (0.10) 0.48 (0.03)

International Equity A (0.32) 0.49 (0.20)
MSCI ACWI ex US IMI B (0.72) 0.46 (0.41)

 66
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
International Equity
As of June 30, 2017

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various regional and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is segmented
quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight
fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market
capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays
the current portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style segment of the market. The
middle chart illustrates the total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total
growth, value, and "combined Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style
weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI NonUS Eq
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

International Equity

Custom International Be

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

17.5% (250) 19.5% (246) 22.9% (286) 59.9% (782)

0.0% (2) 0.0% (9) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (11)

7.3% (295) 6.3% (291) 14.2% (257) 27.8% (843)

2.8% (1783) 4.6% (1527) 4.9% (1013) 12.3% (4323)

27.6% (2330) 30.4% (2073) 42.0% (1556) 100.0% (5959)

13.8% (446) 13.6% (518) 15.7% (526) 43.1% (1490)

1.7% (91) 3.2% (133) 1.9% (92) 6.8% (316)

8.9% (567) 8.4% (589) 8.8% (534) 26.1% (1690)

8.0% (928) 7.1% (866) 8.8% (879) 23.9% (2673)

32.4% (2032) 32.4% (2106) 35.2% (2031) 100.0% (6169)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging/

FM

Total

Value Core Growth Total

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Value Core Growth

27.6%

(2330) 32.4%

(2032)

30.4%

(2073)
32.4%

(2106) 42.0%

(1556)

35.2%

(2031)

Bar #1=International Equity (Combined Z: 0.08 Growth Z: 0.04 Value Z: -0.04)

Bar #2=  Custom International Be (Combined Z: -0.02 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.01)

Europe/Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging/FM

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU MISC PUBUTL RAWMAT REALES TECH

0.0 0.0

3.6 4.5

14.4

11.8

9.0 9.3

4.3
5.8

20.2
21.4

12.5

7.9

14.5
13.3

0.0 0.0 0.2

3.1

8.5 8.0

2.7
4.2

10.0 10.8

Bar #1=International Equity

Bar #2=  Custom International Be

Value

Core

Growth

 67
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Historical Holdings Based Style Analysis
International Equity
For Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

This page analyzes the historical investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
average actual exposures to various region and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the
eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the average
historical market capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure
matrix displays the average historical portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style
segment of the market. The next two style exposure charts illustrate the actual quarterly region/style and style only segment
exposures of the portfolio through history.

Average Style Map vs CAI NonUS Eq
Holdings for Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Custom International Be

International Equity

Average Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings for Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

14.6% (147) 15.8% (159) 22.8% (214) 53.2% (520)

0.0% (1) 0.0% (2) 0.0% (1) 0.1% (4)

8.0% (169) 8.5% (196) 9.7% (193) 26.2% (558)

7.0% (1119) 7.1% (1170) 6.3% (666) 20.5% (2955)

29.7% (1436) 31.5% (1527) 38.8% (1074) 100.0% (4037)

14.7% (186) 14.5% (204) 20.1% (259) 49.3% (649)

1.8% (38) 2.3% (45) 1.6% (38) 5.7% (121)

8.2% (219) 9.8% (242) 9.3% (247) 27.3% (708)

5.8% (350) 5.8% (326) 6.2% (346) 17.7% (1022)

30.4% (793) 32.3% (817) 37.3% (890) 100.0% (2500)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging/

FM

Total

Value Core Growth Total

International Equity Historical Region/Style Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Emerging/FM-Growth

Emerging/FM-Core

Emerging/FM-Value

Pacific-Growth

Pacific-Core

Pacific-Value

N. America-Growth

N. America-Core

N. America-Value

Europe/Mid East-Growth

Europe/Mid East-Core

Europe/Mid East-Value

International Equity Historical Style Only Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Growth

Core

Value

 68
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Country Allocation
International Equity VS MSCI ACWI ex US IMI Index (USD Net Div)

Country Allocation
The chart below contrasts the portfolio’s country allocation with that of the index as of June 30, 2017. This chart is useful
because large deviations in country allocation relative to the index are often good predictors of tracking error in the
subsequent quarter. To the extent that the portfolio allocation is similar to the index, the portfolio should experience more
"index-like" performance. In order to illustrate the performance effect on the portfolio and index of these country allocations,
the individual index country returns are also shown.

Country Weights as of June 30, 2017

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25%

Australia
0.3

4.8

Austria 0.2

Belgium
0.1

0.9

Brazil
0.2

1.5

Canada 6.6

Chile 0.3

China
3.3

6.3

Colombia 0.1

Cyprus

Czech Republic

Denmark
1.2
1.3

Egypt

Finland
0.1

0.8

France
13.7

6.7

Germany
8.3

6.3

Greece 0.1

Hong Kong
5.3

2.3

Hungary 0.1

India
1.6

2.2

Indonesia
0.7

0.6

Ireland 0.4

Israel
0.6
0.6

Italy
0.2

1.8

Japan
20.3

17.0

Malaysia
0.1

0.6

Mexico
0.1

0.8

Netherlands
3.0

2.3

New Zealand 0.2

Norway
0.1

0.5

Peru 0.1

Philippines 0.3

Poland 0.3

Portugal 0.1

Qatar 0.2

Russia 0.7

Singapore
1.0
0.9

South Africa
1.1

1.5

South Korea
3.1

3.7

Spain
1.4

2.3

Sweden
0.2

2.3

Switzerland
8.8

5.6

Taiwan
1.4

3.1

Thailand
0.1

0.6

Turkey 0.3

Ukraine

United Arab Emirates 0.2

United Kingdom
20.3

12.4

United States
3.0

Percent of Portfolio

International Equity MSCI ACWI ex US IMI

Index Rtns

(1.43%)

18.39%

4.79%

(6.37%)

0.48%

(2.28%)

9.26%

1.80%

-

9.75%

15.14%

2.27%

13.28%

9.54%

6.99%

34.11%

6.79%

18.88%

3.66%

6.52%

5.52%

6.18%

9.48%

5.41%

5.58%

7.36%

8.20%

11.70%

3.15%

7.08%

6.11%

13.46%

7.73%

(11.23%)

(9.87%)

4.88%

2.59%

9.75%

7.72%

9.13%

9.29%

7.74%

2.12%

18.88%

-

1.00%

5.13%

4.46%

Manager Total Return: 5.58%

Index Total Return: 5.85%

 69
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA EAFE
Period Ended June 30, 2017

Investment Philosophy
SSGA’s objective is to provide the most cost-effective implementation of passive investing with stringent risk control and
tracking requirements through a replication method. Returns prior to 6/30/2012 are linked to a composite history.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
SSgA EAFE’s portfolio posted a 6.30% return for the quarter
placing it in the 76 percentile of the CAI Non-US Developed
Core Equity group for the quarter and in the 65 percentile for
the last year.

SSgA EAFE’s portfolio outperformed the MSCI EAFE by
0.18% for the quarter and outperformed the MSCI EAFE for
the year by 0.43%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $9,862,013

Net New Investment $0

Investment Gains/(Losses) $621,321

Ending Market Value $10,483,335

Performance vs CAI Non-US Developed Core Equity (Gross)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years

(76)(80)

(65)(67)

(73)(82)

(76)(81) (82)(85)

10th Percentile 8.30 26.02 4.13 11.90 10.93
25th Percentile 7.50 23.55 3.55 10.92 10.14

Median 6.66 21.53 2.42 10.04 9.22
75th Percentile 6.32 19.30 1.49 9.05 8.53
90th Percentile 5.53 16.08 0.64 8.39 7.73

SSgA EAFE 6.30 20.69 1.50 8.96 8.18

MSCI EAFE 6.12 20.27 1.15 8.69 7.91

Relative Return vs MSCI EAFE

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(0.20%)

(0.15%)

(0.10%)

(0.05%)

0.00%

0.05%

0.10%

0.15%

0.20%

0.25%

10 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 17

SSgA EAFE

CAI Non-US Developed Core Equity (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

10 12 14 16 18 20 22
5%

6%

7%

8%

9%

10%

11%

12%

13%

14%

SSgA EAFE
MSCI EAFE

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 70
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA EAFE
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last chart illustrates the manager’s ranking
relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Non-US Developed Core Equity (Gross)

(30%)

(20%)

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

12/16- 6/17 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

(69)(80)

(43)(49) (74)(76)
(54)(57)

(64)(64)
(65)(68)

(55)(58)

(78)(81)

(52)(52)

10th Percentile 17.76 4.84 4.96 (1.58) 29.74 23.41 (5.98) 13.99 41.54
25th Percentile 15.76 2.97 2.84 (2.44) 27.80 21.76 (9.36) 11.64 36.81

Median 14.77 0.94 1.15 (4.45) 24.76 18.70 (11.49) 10.03 32.75
75th Percentile 13.98 (0.44) (0.68) (5.73) 21.69 16.85 (13.93) 8.17 26.54
90th Percentile 13.22 (2.25) (4.33) (8.54) 18.73 14.90 (15.95) 6.11 24.05

SSgA EAFE 14.13 1.37 (0.56) (4.55) 22.80 17.57 (11.91) 7.98 32.05

MSCI EAFE 13.81 1.00 (0.81) (4.90) 22.78 17.32 (12.14) 7.75 31.78

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs MSCI EAFE

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

SSgA EAFE CAI NonUS Dev Core Eq

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs MSCI EAFE
Rankings Against CAI Non-US Developed Core Equity (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

(1.0)

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

Alpha Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio

(84)
(78)

(1)

10th Percentile 2.58 0.73 1.32
25th Percentile 2.21 0.69 0.87

Median 1.43 0.63 0.53
75th Percentile 0.46 0.57 0.22
90th Percentile (0.17) 0.51 (0.05)

SSgA EAFE 0.29 0.56 1.64

 71
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA EAFE
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against CAI Non-US Developed Core Equity
as of June 30, 2017

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Price/Fore- Price/Book Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap casted Earnings Earnings Growth Yield Combined Z-Score

(29)(29)
(36)(36)

(50)(50)
(55)(55)

(14)(14)

(53)(53)

10th Percentile 45.86 16.61 2.13 16.01 3.06 0.29
25th Percentile 38.33 15.13 1.81 13.99 2.91 0.13

Median 30.67 13.81 1.66 12.41 2.71 0.00
75th Percentile 20.77 13.02 1.52 11.39 2.52 (0.18)
90th Percentile 14.47 12.13 1.39 9.93 2.41 (0.26)

SSgA EAFE 35.49 14.70 1.66 12.18 3.02 (0.01)

MSCI EAFE Index
(USD Net Div) 35.49 14.70 1.66 12.18 3.02 (0.01)

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. Diversification by number and concentration of holdings are also compared to the benchmark
and peer group. Issue Diversification represents by count, and Diversification Ratio by percent, the number of holdings that
account for half of the portfolio’s market value.

Sector Allocation
June 30, 2017

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Financials
21.3
21.3
21.2

Industrials
14.9
14.9
14.9

Consumer Discretionary
12.0
12.0
12.2

Consumer Staples
11.4

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

11.4
10.5

Health Care
10.7
10.7
11.2

Materials
7.4
7.4
7.8

Information Technology
6.0
6.0

7.6

Energy
4.7
4.7
5.1

Telecommunications
4.6
4.6
4.8

Real Estate
3.6
3.6

2.2

Utilities
3.4
3.4

2.4

SSgA EAFE MSCI EAFE Index (USD Net Div)

CAI NonUS Dev Core Eq

Sector Diversification
Manager 3.16 sectors

Index 3.16 sectors

Diversification
June 30, 2017

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Number of Issue
Securities Diversification

(3)

(4)

10th Percentile 377 73
25th Percentile 207 49

Median 83 28
75th Percentile 57 18
90th Percentile 46 16

SSgA EAFE 927 112

MSCI EAFE Index
(USD Net Div) 927 112

Diversification Ratio
Manager 12%

Index 12%

Style Median 32%

 72
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
SSgA EAFE
As of June 30, 2017

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various regional and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is segmented
quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight
fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market
capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays
the current portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style segment of the market. The
middle chart illustrates the total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total
growth, value, and "combined Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style
weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI NonUS Dev Core Eq
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

SSgA EAFE

MSCI EAFE

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

20.6% (136) 19.1% (125) 23.2% (196) 62.9% (457)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

12.7% (138) 11.8% (153) 12.6% (179) 37.1% (470)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

33.3% (274) 30.9% (278) 35.8% (375) 100.0% (927)

20.6% (136) 19.1% (125) 23.2% (196) 62.9% (457)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

12.7% (138) 11.8% (153) 12.6% (179) 37.1% (470)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

33.3% (274) 30.9% (278) 35.8% (375) 100.0% (927)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Total

Value Core Growth Total

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Value Core Growth

33.3%

(274)

33.3%

(274)

30.9%

(278)

30.9%

(278) 35.8%

(375)

35.8%

(375)

Bar #1=SSgA EAFE (Combined Z: -0.01 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.00)

Bar #2=MSCI EAFE (Combined Z: -0.01 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.00)

Europe/Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU PUBUTL RAWMAT REALES TECH

4.6 4.6

12.0 12.0 11.4 11.4

4.7 4.7

21.3 21.3

10.7 10.7

14.9 14.9

3.4 3.4

7.4 7.4

3.6 3.6
6.0 6.0

Bar #1=SSgA EAFE

Bar #2=MSCI EAFE

Value

Core

Growth

 73
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Country Allocation
SSgA EAFE VS MSCI EAFE Index (USD Net Div)

Country Allocation
The chart below contrasts the portfolio’s country allocation with that of the index as of June 30, 2017. This chart is useful
because large deviations in country allocation relative to the index are often good predictors of tracking error in the
subsequent quarter. To the extent that the portfolio allocation is similar to the index, the portfolio should experience more
"index-like" performance. In order to illustrate the performance effect on the portfolio and index of these country allocations,
the individual index country returns are also shown.

Country Weights as of June 30, 2017

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Australia
7.1

7.1

Austria
0.2

0.2

Belgium
1.1

1.1

Denmark
1.8

1.8

Finland
1.0

1.0

France
10.5

10.5

Germany
9.5

9.5

Hong Kong
3.5

3.5

Ireland
0.5

0.5

Israel
0.7

0.7

Italy
2.3

2.3

Japan
23.4

23.4

Netherlands
3.5

3.5

New Zealand
0.2

0.2

Norway
0.6

0.6

Portugal
0.1

0.1

Singapore
1.3

1.3

Spain
3.5

3.5

Sweden
2.9

2.9

Switzerland
8.5

8.5

United Kingdom
17.7

17.7

Percent of Portfolio

SSgA EAFE MSCI EAFE

Index Rtns

(1.87%)

21.84%

4.84%

15.31%

13.43%

9.11%

6.42%

7.19%

3.78%

6.48%

8.95%

5.19%

7.80%

8.05%

4.11%

3.09%

5.26%

7.89%

8.59%

8.96%

4.72%

Manager Total Return: 6.30%

Index Total Return: 6.12%

 74
Sacramento Regional Transit District



SSgA EAFE
Top 10 Portfolio Holdings Characteristics
as of June 30, 2017

10 Largest Holdings

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Nestle S A Shs Nom New Consumer Staples $206,004 2.0% 16.95% 271.19 22.90 2.76% 6.20%

Novartis Health Care $141,348 1.3% 12.18% 218.06 16.79 3.45% 6.10%

Hsbc Holdings (Gb) Financials $139,484 1.3% 14.90% 185.36 13.75 5.74% 8.00%

Roche Hldgs Ag Basel Div Rts Ctf Health Care $136,088 1.3% (0.22)% 179.15 15.29 3.36% 6.95%

Toyota Motor Corp Consumer Discretionary $103,998 1.0% (1.54)% 171.14 9.77 3.56% 7.00%

British American Tobacco Consumer Staples $96,284 0.9% 2.58% 126.76 17.56 3.24% 10.89%

Royal Dutch Shell A Shs Energy $88,930 0.8% 2.37% 119.53 13.10 7.19% 16.20%

Total Sa Act Energy $87,412 0.8% (1.33)% 123.46 11.36 5.68% 16.40%

Bp Plc Shs Energy $85,461 0.8% 4.10% 113.63 16.20 7.15% 61.59%

Sanofi Shs Health Care $84,384 0.8% 9.00% 120.41 14.20 3.53% 6.90%

10 Best Performers

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Qantas Airways Ltd Shs New Industrials $6,106 0.1% 48.41% 7.93 10.52 1.22% 20.00%

Lufthansa Industrials $8,093 0.1% 44.92% 10.67 7.19 2.51% (4.00)%

Nintendo Ltd Ord Information Technology $28,871 0.3% 44.91% 47.51 39.56 1.14% 82.91%

Easyjet Plc Ord Gbp0.2728571 Industrials $3,728 0.0% 37.59% 7.01 14.88 3.96% (0.70)%

Ipsen Shs Health Care $3,905 0.0% 37.29% 11.42 26.70 0.71% 20.00%

Shiseido Co Ltd Ord Consumer Staples $10,261 0.1% 35.52% 14.22 46.41 0.50% 17.80%

Omv Ag Energy $5,797 0.1% 34.76% 16.96 12.55 2.64% 11.48%

Electricite De France Edf Shs Utilities $4,505 0.0% 33.63% 31.23 14.42 8.75% (19.00)%

Flight Centre Limited Shs Consumer Discretionary $1,240 0.0% 33.34% 2.97 17.17 3.58% (1.15)%

Kering Sa Shs Consumer Discretionary $19,575 0.2% 32.59% 42.94 20.43 1.54% 18.69%

10 Worst Performers

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Petrofac Ltd Energy $1,131 0.0% (47.97)% 1.99 6.00 11.97% (6.45)%

Hikma Pharmaceuticals Health Care $2,088 0.0% (22.20)% 4.59 15.93 1.79% 20.10%

Santos Energy $3,310 0.0% (19.83)% 4.84 14.53 0.00% 91.47%

Saipem Spa San Donato Milane Ord Energy $1,700 0.0% (18.95)% 3.73 16.69 0.00% 2.70%

Idemitsu Kosan Co Ltd Shs Energy $1,898 0.0% (18.40)% 4.54 6.12 1.57% 21.89%

Dainippon Sumitomo Pharma Co Ord Health Care $1,650 0.0% (17.20)% 5.43 17.81 1.17% (14.69)%

Hisamitsu Pharmaceutical Health Care $2,250 0.0% (16.10)% 4.56 24.81 1.51% 0.85%

Schaeffler Consumer Discretionary $1,803 0.0% (15.59)% 2.39 7.42 3.96% 6.40%

Sp Telecom. Telecommunications $1,228 0.0% (15.31)% 4.04 14.29 2.72% 6.70%

Pandora A/S Consumer Discretionary $7,872 0.1% (14.92)% 10.48 9.73 5.93% 55.15%

 75
Sacramento Regional Transit District



AQR
Period Ended June 30, 2017

Investment Philosophy
Returns prior to 9/30/2016 are linked to a composite history.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
AQR’s portfolio posted a 7.86% return for the quarter placing
it in the 67 percentile of the CAI International Small Cap
group for the quarter and in the 63 percentile for the last
year.

AQR’s portfolio underperformed the MSCI EAFE Small Cap
by 0.24% for the quarter and underperformed the MSCI
EAFE Small Cap for the year by 2.03%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $12,813,469

Net New Investment $0

Investment Gains/(Losses) $974,860

Ending Market Value $13,788,329

Performance vs CAI International Small Cap (Gross)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Last Quarter Last 3/4 Year Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years
Year

(67)(59)

(67)
(52)

(63)

(52)

(41)
(56)

(55)
(70) (44)

(77)

10th Percentile 11.13 18.96 29.01 9.46 17.31 15.56
25th Percentile 9.49 16.08 26.02 7.59 15.46 14.36

Median 8.50 13.68 23.39 5.88 14.00 13.21
75th Percentile 7.65 11.13 18.59 4.71 12.77 11.51
90th Percentile 6.61 9.13 16.54 2.94 10.58 10.47

AQR 7.86 11.97 21.15 6.49 13.95 13.42

MSCI EAFE
Small Cap 8.10 13.39 23.18 5.60 12.94 11.40

Relative Return vs MSCI EAFE Small Cap

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

10 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 17

AQR

CAI International Small Cap (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

12 14 16 18 20 22 24
4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

22%

AQR

MSCI EAFE Small Cap

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 76
Sacramento Regional Transit District



AQR
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last chart illustrates the manager’s ranking
relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI International Small Cap (Gross)

(30%)

(20%)

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

12/16- 6/17 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

(75)(72)

(58)(34)

(24)
(56)

(55)(67)

(40)(67)
(59)(79)

(35)(80)

(26)
(79)

10th Percentile 21.41 7.72 16.29 (0.42) 37.19 28.18 (9.37) 31.36
25th Percentile 19.97 4.32 13.03 (1.85) 34.19 25.54 (11.52) 27.97

Median 18.20 0.14 10.09 (3.43) 31.13 23.55 (13.65) 24.29
75th Percentile 16.53 (2.47) 6.62 (6.43) 28.47 20.84 (15.71) 22.25
90th Percentile 15.48 (4.57) 3.40 (9.15) 23.74 15.92 (17.80) 19.96

AQR 16.52 (0.46) 13.24 (3.53) 32.06 23.01 (12.97) 27.77

MSCI EAFE Small Cap 16.72 2.18 9.59 (4.95) 29.30 20.00 (15.94) 22.04

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs MSCI EAFE Small Cap

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

AQR CAI Intl Small Cap

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs MSCI EAFE Small Cap
Rankings Against CAI International Small Cap (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

(2)

(1)

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Alpha Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio

(52)

(42)
(14)

10th Percentile 4.62 0.98 1.24
25th Percentile 3.36 0.92 0.90

Median 1.92 0.80 0.43
75th Percentile 0.75 0.70 0.03
90th Percentile (0.69) 0.62 (0.17)

AQR 1.89 0.82 1.15

 77
Sacramento Regional Transit District



AQR
Risk Analysis Summary

Risk Analysis
The graphs below analyze the risk or variation of a manager’s return pattern. The first scatter chart illustrates the
relationship, called Excess Return Ratio, between excess return and tracking error relative to the benchmark. The second
chart shows Up and Down Market Capture. The last two charts show the ranking of the manager’s risk statistics versus the
peer group.

Risk Analysis vs CAI International Small Cap (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
(6 )

(4 )

(2 )

0

2

4

6

8

10

AQR

Tracking Error

E
x
c
e

s
s
 R

e
tu

rn

Market Capture vs MSCI EAFE Small Cap Index (USD Net Div)
Rankings Against CAI International Small Cap (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

70%

80%

90%

100%

110%

120%

130%

Up Market Down
Capture Market Capture

(45)

(44)

10th Percentile 121.60 103.73
25th Percentile 116.43 98.51

Median 108.58 91.87
75th Percentile 95.00 85.94
90th Percentile 90.63 77.11

AQR 110.39 92.85

Risk Statistics Rankings vs MSCI EAFE Small Cap Index (USD Net Div)
Rankings Against CAI International Small Cap (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

0%
2%
4%
6%
8%

10%
12%
14%
16%
18%
20%

Standard Downside Tracking
Deviation Risk Error

(55)

(98)
(98)

10th Percentile 17.85 4.22 6.60
25th Percentile 16.87 3.58 5.36

Median 16.33 2.64 4.01
75th Percentile 15.36 1.66 3.14
90th Percentile 14.76 1.29 2.48

AQR 16.08 0.69 1.77

0.80

0.85

0.90

0.95

1.00

1.05

1.10

1.15

Beta R-Squared

(44) (2)

10th Percentile 1.09 0.98
25th Percentile 1.03 0.96

Median 0.98 0.94
75th Percentile 0.93 0.90
90th Percentile 0.88 0.85

AQR 1.00 0.99

 78
Sacramento Regional Transit District



AQR
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against CAI International Small Cap
as of June 30, 2017

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Price/Fore- Price/Book Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap casted Earnings Earnings Growth Yield Combined Z-Score

(76)

(53)

(72)

(43)

(72)(71)

(43)

(72)

(24)

(35)

(78)

(67)

10th Percentile 3.40 19.46 3.30 22.24 2.64 0.95
25th Percentile 2.83 17.72 2.62 18.02 2.32 0.56

Median 2.25 15.48 1.95 14.73 2.07 0.23
75th Percentile 1.74 13.53 1.45 13.04 1.71 (0.14)
90th Percentile 1.28 12.32 1.33 8.83 1.37 (0.36)

AQR 1.72 13.75 1.56 15.26 2.32 (0.15)

MSCI EAFE Small Cap
Index (USD Net Div) 2.19 16.39 1.60 13.34 2.25 (0.02)

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. Diversification by number and concentration of holdings are also compared to the benchmark
and peer group. Issue Diversification represents by count, and Diversification Ratio by percent, the number of holdings that
account for half of the portfolio’s market value.

Sector Allocation
June 30, 2017

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Industrials
23.8

22.3
23.4

Consumer Discretionary
17.3

16.0
17.7

Information Technology
15.5

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

11.2
13.6

Financials
9.9

11.3
11.4

Real Estate
9.9

10.6
5.5

Materials
8.7
9.1

8.7

Health Care
6.1

7.0
7.5

Consumer Staples
5.5

6.7
6.6

Utilities
1.5

2.1
1.6

Energy
1.1

2.4
2.7

Miscellaneous
0.6

0.8

Telecommunications
0.1

1.3
0.6

AQR MSCI EAFE Small Cap Index (USD Net Div)

CAI Intl Small Cap

Sector Diversification
Manager 2.57 sectors

Index 3.03 sectors

Diversification
June 30, 2017

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Number of Issue
Securities Diversification

(7)

(5)

10th Percentile 355 91
25th Percentile 194 56

Median 121 39
75th Percentile 85 27
90th Percentile 49 15

AQR 653 124

MSCI EAFE Small Cap
Index (USD Net Div) 2265 444

Diversification Ratio
Manager 19%

Index 20%

Style Median 32%

 79
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
AQR
As of June 30, 2017

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various regional and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is segmented
quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight
fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market
capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays
the current portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style segment of the market. The
middle chart illustrates the total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total
growth, value, and "combined Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style
weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Intl Small Cap
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

MSCI EAFE Small Cap

AQR

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

17.2% (113) 24.7% (120) 17.9% (90) 59.8% (323)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

16.4% (138) 14.4% (114) 9.4% (64) 40.2% (316)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

33.6% (251) 39.1% (234) 27.3% (154) 100.0% (639)

16.2% (310) 22.7% (393) 19.7% (330) 58.5% (1033)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

13.5% (429) 14.6% (436) 13.4% (355) 41.5% (1220)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

29.7% (739) 37.3% (829) 33.1% (685) 100.0% (2253)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Total

Value Core Growth Total

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Value Core Growth

33.6%

(251)

29.7%

(739)
39.1%

(234)

37.3%

(829)

27.3%

(154) 33.1%

(685)

Bar #1=AQR (Combined Z: -0.15 Growth Z: 0.02 Value Z: 0.17)

Bar #2=MSCI EAFE Small Cap (Combined Z: -0.02 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.01)

Europe/Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU PUBUTL RAWMAT REALES TECH

0.1
1.3

17.4
16.1

5.7 6.8

1.1
2.4

9.8
11.3

6.2 7.1

24.3
22.2

0.4
2.1

9.0 9.2 10.0 10.4

16.0

11.2

Bar #1=AQR

Bar #2=MSCI EAFE Small Cap

Value

Core

Growth

 80
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Historical Holdings Based Style Analysis
AQR
For Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

This page analyzes the historical investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
average actual exposures to various region and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the
eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the average
historical market capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure
matrix displays the average historical portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style
segment of the market. The next two style exposure charts illustrate the actual quarterly region/style and style only segment
exposures of the portfolio through history.

Average Style Map vs CAI Intl Small Cap
Holdings for Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

MSCI EAFE Small CapAQR

Average Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings for Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

13.9% (92) 20.9% (107) 19.6% (87) 54.4% (286)

2.1% (18) 3.0% (23) 2.7% (18) 7.7% (59)

11.1% (119) 14.3% (120) 12.3% (89) 37.7% (328)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (1) 0.1% (1) 0.1% (2)

27.2% (229) 38.1% (251) 34.7% (195) 100.0% (675)

15.4% (311) 21.7% (350) 20.7% (307) 57.9% (968)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

13.1% (425) 14.8% (426) 13.9% (357) 41.8% (1208)

0.1% (4) 0.1% (4) 0.1% (2) 0.3% (10)

28.7% (740) 36.7% (780) 34.7% (666) 100.0% (2186)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging

Total

Value Core Growth Total

AQR Historical Region/Style Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Emerging-Growth

Emerging-Core

Emerging-Value

Pacific-Growth

Pacific-Core

Pacific-Value

N. America-Growth

N. America-Core

N. America-Value

Europe/Mid East-Growth

Europe/Mid East-Core

Europe/Mid East-Value

AQR Historical Style Only Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Growth

Core

Value

 81
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Country Allocation
AQR VS MSCI EAFE Small Cap Index (USD Net Div)

Country Allocation
The chart below contrasts the portfolio’s country allocation with that of the index as of June 30, 2017. This chart is useful
because large deviations in country allocation relative to the index are often good predictors of tracking error in the
subsequent quarter. To the extent that the portfolio allocation is similar to the index, the portfolio should experience more
"index-like" performance. In order to illustrate the performance effect on the portfolio and index of these country allocations,
the individual index country returns are also shown.

Country Weights as of June 30, 2017

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40%

Australia
5.7

6.2

Austria
1.3

1.0

Belgium
2.3

1.9

Denmark
2.2

1.7

Finland
2.0

1.6

France
4.6

4.4

Germany
7.3

6.5

Hong Kong
2.8

2.3

Ireland
1.0

Israel
1.0

1.5

Italy
4.3

3.9

Japan
29.3

29.9

Netherlands
2.4

2.2

New Zealand
1.1

Norway
2.0

1.6

Portugal
0.4

Singapore
1.2

1.6

Spain
2.1

2.4

Sweden
5.7

5.4

Switzerland
5.4

4.9

United Kingdom
17.5

18.4

United States
1.1

Percent of Portfolio

AQR MSCI EAFE Small Cap

Index Rtns

1.58%

13.11%

4.60%

13.96%

12.58%

15.77%

12.19%

3.25%

10.40%

5.61%

11.07%

6.44%

12.22%

15.23%

0.91%

20.02%

3.08%

6.34%

11.07%

12.97%

7.71%

4.46%

Manager Total Return: 7.86%

Index Total Return: 8.10%

 82
Sacramento Regional Transit District



AQR
Top 10 Portfolio Holdings Characteristics
as of June 30, 2017

10 Largest Holdings

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Electrocomponent Plc Ord Information Technology $186,667 1.4% 28.18% 3.31 23.63 2.13% 18.78%

J M Ab Shs Consumer Discretionary $143,798 1.0% 14.94% 2.51 11.77 3.19% 16.33%

Seino Transportation Co Industrials $96,265 0.7% 19.84% 2.76 15.22 1.81% 9.42%

Ferrexpo Plc London Shs Materials $94,788 0.7% 30.14% 1.59 6.09 1.28% (25.86)%

Indivior Plc Ord Usd2 Health Care $94,750 0.7% 0.85% 2.93 12.49 0.00% (3.00)%

Scandic Hotels Group Consumer Discretionary $94,212 0.7% 26.84% 1.34 14.47 2.88% 16.60%

Be Semiconductor Inds NV Bes Shs Information Technology $90,299 0.7% 35.24% 2.13 15.37 3.72% 55.81%

Schouw & Co Shs Consumer Staples $83,439 0.6% 18.55% 2.73 17.55 1.72% 14.90%

Ence Energia Y Celulosa Sa Shs Materials $82,374 0.6% 34.15% 1.01 13.88 2.21% 36.35%

Trigano Consumer Discretionary $77,932 0.6% 23.38% 2.30 16.81 0.96% 29.60%

10 Best Performers

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Air France Klm Shs Industrials $32,534 0.2% 87.58% 4.28 6.85 0.00% 26.14%

Berendsen Plc Shs Industrials $17,349 0.1% 79.55% 2.76 20.36 2.68% (1.77)%

Sophos Group Information Technology $10,286 0.1% 69.59% 2.67 75.79 0.81% 58.50%

Penauille Polyservices Sa Act Industrials $14,898 0.1% 68.84% 1.38 17.66 0.27% (25.26)%

Evotec Ag Shs Health Care $15,163 0.1% 63.94% 2.35 72.42 0.00% 7.00%

Nbrown Group Plc Shs Consumer Discretionary $6,138 0.0% 53.53% 1.14 13.90 4.59% (4.24)%

Melco Intl Development Ltd Shs Consumer Discretionary $27,113 0.2% 51.80% 4.10 21.42 0.43% (43.05)%

Rhi Ag Wien Shs Materials $23,271 0.2% 47.94% 1.47 13.57 2.31% 24.00%

Fincantieri Industrials $59,696 0.4% 47.11% 1.88 19.53 0.00% -

Cr.Card Dna Security Sys Financials $1,454 0.0% 46.15% 0.40 - 3.86% -

10 Worst Performers

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Fone Zone Group Consumer Discretionary $5,225 0.0% (65.97)% 0.13 6.35 15.68% (7.24)%

Esprit Hldgs Ltd Shs Consumer Discretionary $9,848 0.1% (36.38)% 1.04 26.65 0.36% 197.79%

Tokmanni Group Corporation Consumer Discretionary $4,563 0.0% (25.32)% 0.49 11.95 7.00% -

Roland Dg Corp Hamamatsu Ord Information Technology $12,349 0.1% (23.44)% 0.29 13.55 2.34% 32.52%

Karoon Gas Australia Ltd Shs Energy $931 0.0% (21.52)% 0.24 (16.93) 0.00% 127.60%

Enquest Plc Energy $1,912 0.0% (21.47)% 0.48 5.62 0.00% 44.80%

Tullow Oil Plc Shs Energy $9,917 0.1% (21.44)% 2.71 15.43 0.00% (27.13)%

Webdojapan Information Technology $12,597 0.1% (21.43)% 0.31 20.85 0.56% 4.36%

Wowow Consumer Discretionary $12,868 0.1% (21.05)% 0.78 13.72 2.63% 17.74%

Liberbank Financials $25,835 0.2% (20.50)% 0.95 9.07 0.00% 18.10%

 83
Sacramento Regional Transit District



DFA Emerging Markets
Period Ended June 30, 2017

Investment Philosophy
Returns prior to 6/30/2013 are linked to a composite history.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
DFA Emerging Markets’s portfolio posted a 4.83% return for
the quarter placing it in the 80 percentile of the CAI
Emerging Markets Equity Mut Funds group for the quarter
and in the 67 percentile for the last year.

DFA Emerging Markets’s portfolio underperformed the MSCI
EM Gross by 1.55% for the quarter and underperformed the
MSCI EM Gross for the year by 1.55%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $14,757,549

Net New Investment $0

Investment Gains/(Losses) $690,798

Ending Market Value $15,448,346

Performance vs CAI Emerging Markets Equity Mut Funds (Gross)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 4 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years
Year

(80)
(58)

(67)
(57)

(64)(74)

(54)
(77) (54)(75) (69)(78)

10th Percentile 9.75 31.02 5.49 8.12 8.01 7.85
25th Percentile 7.98 27.55 3.95 7.41 7.04 6.81

Median 6.77 25.21 2.76 5.72 5.50 5.68
75th Percentile 5.63 21.62 1.32 4.78 4.35 4.63
90th Percentile 0.18 15.77 (2.24) 0.38 (0.10) 0.44

DFA Emerging
Markets 4.83 22.62 2.26 5.60 5.21 4.86

MSCI EM Gross 6.38 24.17 1.44 4.60 4.33 4.22

Relative Return vs MSCI EM Gross

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

10 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 17

DFA Emerging Markets

CAI Emerging Markets Equity Mut Funds (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

12 14 16 18 20 22 24 26
(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

DFA Emerging Markets

MSCI EM Gross

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 84
Sacramento Regional Transit District



DFA Emerging Markets
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last chart illustrates the manager’s ranking
relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Emerging Markets Equity Mut Funds (Gross)

(80%)
(60%)
(40%)
(20%)

0%
20%
40%
60%
80%

100%
120%

12/16- 6/17 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

7377 5569

6263
2541 6262

4459

6752

2271

2336

2846

10th Percentile 23.74 21.71 (7.46) 2.62 5.56 25.54 (11.40) 25.12 94.66 (46.12)
25th Percentile 22.70 18.35 (11.01) (0.31) 1.80 21.75 (15.89) 22.90 82.12 (49.72)

Median 20.73 13.39 (12.79) (2.75) (0.74) 19.70 (18.02) 20.15 77.86 (53.38)
75th Percentile 19.21 10.02 (15.45) (5.38) (3.90) 15.32 (21.39) 18.81 72.60 (55.10)
90th Percentile 14.54 6.00 (24.74) (8.77) (6.59) 12.21 (22.72) 17.32 69.59 (58.13)

DFA Emerging
Markets 19.35 12.99 (14.33) (0.28) (2.31) 20.49 (20.65) 23.62 83.58 (50.66)

MSCI EM Gross 18.60 11.60 (14.60) (1.82) (2.27) 18.63 (18.17) 19.20 79.02 (53.18)

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs MSCI EM Gross

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(8%)

(6%)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

DFA Emerging Markets CAI Emerging Equity MFs

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs MSCI EM Gross
Rankings Against CAI Emerging Markets Equity Mut Funds (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

(5)

(4)

(3)

(2)

(1)

0

1

2

3

4

5

Alpha Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio

(72) (72) (65)

10th Percentile 3.62 0.44 0.98
25th Percentile 2.63 0.37 0.66

Median 1.56 0.32 0.40
75th Percentile 0.36 0.25 0.12
90th Percentile (3.50) 0.02 (0.45)

DFA Emerging Markets 0.53 0.26 0.28

 85
Sacramento Regional Transit District



DFA Emerging Markets
Risk Analysis Summary

Risk Analysis
The graphs below analyze the risk or variation of a manager’s return pattern. The first scatter chart illustrates the
relationship, called Excess Return Ratio, between excess return and tracking error relative to the benchmark. The second
chart shows Up and Down Market Capture. The last two charts show the ranking of the manager’s risk statistics versus the
peer group.

Risk Analysis vs CAI Emerging Markets Equity Mut Funds (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
(8 )

(6 )

(4 )

(2 )

0

2

4

6

8

DFA Emerging Markets

Tracking Error

E
x
c
e

s
s
 R

e
tu

rn

Market Capture vs MSCI EM - Emerging Mkts (USD Gross Div)
Rankings Against CAI Emerging Markets Equity Mut Funds (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

80%

90%

100%

110%

120%

130%

140%

Up Market Down
Capture Market Capture

(65)
(43)

10th Percentile 132.47 118.55
25th Percentile 121.44 106.51

Median 111.22 98.43
75th Percentile 102.26 93.34
90th Percentile 86.73 87.02

DFA Emerging Markets 105.82 99.56

Risk Statistics Rankings vs MSCI EM - Emerging Mkts (USD Gross Div)
Rankings Against CAI Emerging Markets Equity Mut Funds (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Standard Downside Tracking
Deviation Risk Error

(41)

(94) (95)

10th Percentile 21.74 6.89 9.07
25th Percentile 18.73 2.71 4.45

Median 18.12 2.20 3.63
75th Percentile 17.34 1.73 3.04
90th Percentile 16.30 1.40 2.68

DFA Emerging
Markets 18.24 1.31 2.26

0.75
0.80
0.85
0.90
0.95
1.00
1.05
1.10
1.15
1.20

Beta R-Squared

(34)
(5)

10th Percentile 1.15 0.98
25th Percentile 1.06 0.97

Median 1.02 0.96
75th Percentile 0.98 0.94
90th Percentile 0.92 0.84

DFA Emerging
Markets 1.04 0.99

 86
Sacramento Regional Transit District



DFA Emerging Markets
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against CAI Emerging Markets Equity Mut Funds
as of June 30, 2017

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Price/Fore- Price/Book Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap casted Earnings Earnings Growth Yield Combined Z-Score

(93)

(39)

(58)

(71)

(80)

(67)

(78)

(63)

(37)

(29)

(80)

(71)

10th Percentile 33.42 17.53 2.70 20.04 3.02 0.73
25th Percentile 23.11 15.29 2.42 17.32 2.76 0.58

Median 16.44 13.12 1.99 15.79 2.22 0.20
75th Percentile 11.92 11.32 1.61 14.18 1.89 (0.06)
90th Percentile 6.24 10.78 1.38 11.22 1.67 (0.49)

DFA Emerging Markets 5.97 12.93 1.52 13.90 2.33 (0.20)

MSCI EM - Emerging
Mkts (USD Gross Div) 18.77 12.19 1.65 15.05 2.44 (0.04)

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. Diversification by number and concentration of holdings are also compared to the benchmark
and peer group. Issue Diversification represents by count, and Diversification Ratio by percent, the number of holdings that
account for half of the portfolio’s market value.

Sector Allocation
June 30, 2017

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Information Technology
21.7

25.6
28.6

Financials
19.3

24.3
26.3

Consumer Discretionary
11.7

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

9.7
12.0

Materials
10.5

7.4
5.0

Industrials
9.8

5.9
5.2

Consumer Staples
7.5

7.0
7.5

Energy
5.1

6.4
5.5

Telecommunications
4.1

5.9
4.4

Utilities
3.4

2.6
1.7

Health Care
3.4

2.4
2.0

Real Estate
3.3

2.8
1.7

Miscellaneous
0.2

DFA Emerging Markets

MSCI EM - Emerging Mkts (USD Gross Div)

CAI Emerging Equity MFs

Sector Diversification
Manager 2.77 sectors

Index 2.01 sectors

Diversification
June 30, 2017

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

Number of Issue
Securities Diversification

(1)

(2)

10th Percentile 528 44
25th Percentile 171 28

Median 91 21
75th Percentile 71 15
90th Percentile 50 11

DFA Emerging
Markets 4659 282

MSCI EM - Emerging
Mkts (USD Gross Div) 837 82

Diversification Ratio
Manager 6%

Index 10%

Style Median 21%

 87
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
DFA Emerging Markets
As of June 30, 2017

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various regional and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is segmented
quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight
fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market
capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays
the current portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style segment of the market. The
middle chart illustrates the total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total
growth, value, and "combined Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style
weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Emerging Equity MFs
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

DFA Emerging Markets

MSCI EM IMI

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

0.0% (0) 0.0% (1) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (1)

0.0% (2) 0.0% (8) 0.0% (0) 0.1% (10)

0.0% (19) 0.0% (24) 0.0% (14) 0.1% (57)

36.2% (1779) 32.8% (1525) 30.8% (1012) 99.8% (4316)

36.3% (1800) 32.9% (1558) 30.8% (1026) 100.0% (4384)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

33.5% (928) 29.9% (866) 36.6% (879) 100.0% (2673)

33.5% (928) 29.9% (866) 36.6% (879) 100.0% (2673)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging/

FM

Total

Value Core Growth Total

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Value Core Growth

36.3%

(1800)

33.5%

(928)

32.9%

(1558)

29.9%

(866)

30.8%

(1026) 36.6%

(879)

Bar #1=DFA Emerging Markets (Combined Z: -0.20 Growth Z: -0.07 Value Z: 0.12)

Bar #2=MSCI EM IMI (Combined Z: -0.04 Growth Z: -0.02 Value Z: 0.01)

Europe/Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging/FM

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of June 30, 2017

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU MISC PUBUTL RAWMAT REALES TECH

0.0 0.0

4.1 5.2

11.8 11.3

7.9 6.7
4.6

5.9

19.0
21.9

3.4 3.2

9.8
7.1

0.0 0.0

3.4 2.8

10.3
7.7

3.2 3.6

22.5
24.6

Bar #1=DFA Emerging Markets

Bar #2=MSCI EM IMI

Value

Core

Growth

 88
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Historical Holdings Based Style Analysis
DFA Emerging Markets
For Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

This page analyzes the historical investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
average actual exposures to various region and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the
eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the average
historical market capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure
matrix displays the average historical portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style
segment of the market. The next two style exposure charts illustrate the actual quarterly region/style and style only segment
exposures of the portfolio through history.

Average Style Map vs CAI Emerging Equity MFs
Holdings for Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

DFA Emerging Markets

MSCI EM IMI

Average Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings for Five Years Ended June 30, 2017

0.0% (1) 0.1% (3) 0.0% (0) 0.1% (4)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (1) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (1)

0.0% (12) 0.1% (18) 0.0% (6) 0.1% (36)

34.2% (1333) 35.2% (1443) 30.4% (854) 99.8% (3630)

34.3% (1346) 35.3% (1465) 30.5% (860) 100.0% (3671)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0) 0.0% (0)

0.0% (3) 0.0% (4) 0.0% (2) 0.1% (9)

31.6% (888) 32.6% (895) 35.8% (824) 99.9% (2607)

31.6% (891) 32.6% (899) 35.8% (826) 100.0% (2616)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging/

FM

Total

Value Core Growth Total

DFA Emerging Markets Historical Region/Style Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Emerging/FM-Growth

Emerging/FM-Core

Emerging/FM-Value

Pacific-Growth

Pacific-Core

Pacific-Value

N. America-Growth

N. America-Core

N. America-Value

Europe/Mid East-Growth

Europe/Mid East-Core

Europe/Mid East-Value

DFA Emerging Markets Historical Style Only Exposures

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Growth

Core

Value

 89
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Country Allocation
DFA Emerging Markets VS MSCI EM - Emerging Mkts (USD Gross Div)

Country Allocation
The chart below contrasts the portfolio’s country allocation with that of the index as of June 30, 2017. This chart is useful
because large deviations in country allocation relative to the index are often good predictors of tracking error in the
subsequent quarter. To the extent that the portfolio allocation is similar to the index, the portfolio should experience more
"index-like" performance. In order to illustrate the performance effect on the portfolio and index of these country allocations,
the individual index country returns are also shown.

Country Weights as of June 30, 2017

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Brazil
7.7

6.6

Chile
1.3
1.1

China
16.9

27.9

Colombia
0.4
0.4

Cyprus

Czech Republic
0.1
0.2

Egypt
0.1
0.1

Greece
0.3
0.4

Hong Kong
0.1

Hungary
0.4
0.3

India
13.0

8.8

Indonesia
3.0

2.5

Luxembourg

Malaysia
3.4

2.4

Mexico
3.9
3.7

Netherlands

Peru
0.1
0.4

Philippines
1.3
1.2

Poland
1.7

1.3

Qatar 0.7

Russia
1.1

3.2

South Africa
7.0

6.6

South Korea
17.5

15.6

Taiwan
16.0

12.5

Thailand
2.7

2.2

Turkey
1.6

1.2

Ukraine

United Arab Emirates 0.7

United Kingdom

United States
0.5

Percent of Portfolio

DFA Emerging Markets MSCI EM Gross

Index Rtns

(6.61%)

(1.51%)

10.66%

2.48%

-

10.89%

3.25%

34.01%

7.19%

19.37%

2.91%

8.75%

-

5.14%

7.31%

8.06%

7.21%

7.19%

13.81%

(10.88%)

(9.81%)

3.63%

10.26%

8.99%

2.53%

19.79%

-

1.33%

4.74%

4.46%

Manager Total Return: 4.83%

Index Total Return: 6.38%

 90
Sacramento Regional Transit District



DFA Emerging Markets
Top 10 Portfolio Holdings Characteristics
as of June 30, 2017

10 Largest Holdings

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Samsung Electronics Co Ltd Ord Information Technology $584,060 3.8% 13.16% 271.47 8.35 1.47% 27.46%

Tencent Holdings Limited Shs Par Hkd Information Technology $245,930 1.6% 25.04% 339.05 34.36 0.22% 29.63%

Taiwan Semicond Manufac Co L Shs Information Technology $185,841 1.2% 13.62% 177.73 14.67 3.36% 9.65%

Taiwan Semiconductor Mfg Co Ltd Spon Information Technology $176,474 1.1% 9.87% 177.73 14.67 3.36% 9.65%

Hon Hai Precision Inds Ltd Ord Information Technology $141,802 0.9% 28.24% 66.65 12.07 3.85% 6.36%

China Construction Bank Shs H Financials $124,110 0.8% 1.37% 186.32 5.38 5.18% 6.35%

Sk Hynix Inc Shs Information Technology $121,964 0.8% 0.00% 42.89 5.50 0.89% 16.40%

Alibaba Group Hldg Ltd Sponsored Ads Information Technology $94,072 0.6% 30.67% 360.87 28.70 0.00% 32.20%

Industrial and Comm Bk of Cn Hkd Shs Financials $82,714 0.5% 3.14% 58.59 5.72 5.01% 3.38%

Itau Unibanco Holding Sa Pfd Shs Financials $77,949 0.5% (6.93)% 35.83 9.53 4.86% 11.40%

10 Best Performers

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Monsanto India Materials $1,402 0.0% 828.88% 0.73 28.05 1.09% 20.63%

Manappuram General Fin. Financials $4,261 0.0% 396.62% 1.28 9.44 2.04% 10.18%

Abbott India Health Care $170 0.0% 333.72% 1.40 23.77 0.94% 16.15%

Elk Information Technology $349 0.0% 200.00% 0.09 (1.74) 0.00% -

Glaxosmithkline Consumer Consumer Staples $2,001 0.0% 182.62% 3.48 29.81 1.31% 10.02%

Indiabulls Securities Ltd Shs Financials $1,118 0.0% 178.95% 1.11 76.06 1.85% -

Dongyue Group Limited Shs Materials $2,187 0.0% 173.29% 1.02 25.37 2.66% (38.94)%

City Union Bank Financials $2,352 0.0% 155.92% 1.64 17.79 0.68% 3.60%

Zhong An Real Estate Hkd0.10 Real Estate $630 0.0% 155.19% 0.60 35.50 0.00% -

Future Enterprises Consumer Discretionary $476 0.0% 147.58% 0.21 - 0.31% -

10 Worst Performers

Stock Sector

Ending

Market

Value

Percent

of

Portfolio

Qtrly

Return

Market

Capital

Price/

Forecasted

Earnings

Ratio

Dividend

Yield

Forecasted

Growth in

Earnings

Suprajit Engineering Consumer Discretionary $180 0.0% (96.28)% 0.65 28.33 0.33% 22.93%

Tamilnadu News & Papers Materials $765 0.0% (87.51)% 0.33 6.22 2.41% 31.25%

Kpit Cummins Info Sys. Information Technology $2,125 0.0% (83.56)% 0.38 9.36 1.79% 2.99%

Shilpi Cable Technologies Ltd Industrials $85 0.0% (83.55)% 0.06 1.80 2.80% -

Sintex Inds. Consumer Discretionary $1,037 0.0% (83.38)% 0.21 1.71 0.50% (9.08)%

Ramco Industries Ltd. Materials $233 0.0% (82.86)% 0.32 29.36 0.21% 6.66%

Tata Sponge Iron Materials $320 0.0% (82.40)% 0.18 12.27 1.42% (11.84)%

H C L Infosystems Information Technology $569 0.0% (80.04)% 0.15 (13.80) 0.00% -

Videocon Industries Ltd Shs Demateri Consumer Discretionary $179 0.0% (79.85)% 0.11 - 9.48% -

Eqstra Holdings Ltd Shs Industrials $2 0.0% (70.54)% 0.00 0.00 0.00% -

 91
Sacramento Regional Transit District



D
o

m
e

s
tic

 F
ix

e
d

 In
c
o

m
e

Domestic Fixed Income



Metropolitan West
Period Ended June 30, 2017

Investment Philosophy
Metropolitan West Asset Management (MWAM) attempts to add value by limiting duration, managing the yield curve,
rotating among bond market sectors and using proprietary quantitative valuation techniques.

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Metropolitan West’s portfolio posted a 1.48% return for the
quarter placing it in the 88 percentile of the CAI Core Plus
Fixed Income group for the quarter and in the 90 percentile
for the last year.

Metropolitan West’s portfolio outperformed the Blmbg
Aggregate by 0.03% for the quarter and outperformed the
Blmbg Aggregate for the year by 1.01%.

Quarterly Asset Growth

Beginning Market Value $87,205,161

Net New Investment $0

Investment Gains/(Losses) $1,289,873

Ending Market Value $88,495,034

Performance vs CAI Core Plus Fixed Income (Gross)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

Last Quarter Last Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years Last 16 Years
Year

(88)(90)

(90)

(99)

(85)(93)

(82)

(100)

(76)

(100)

(26)

(97)

(57)

(97)

10th Percentile 2.12 3.72 3.68 4.44 5.75 6.84 6.56
25th Percentile 1.91 2.85 3.45 3.89 5.04 6.10 6.21

Median 1.79 2.29 2.98 3.48 4.63 5.55 5.84
75th Percentile 1.58 1.34 2.80 3.24 4.31 5.30 5.46
90th Percentile 1.45 0.71 2.56 2.87 4.05 4.94 5.27

Metropolitan West 1.48 0.69 2.66 3.11 4.29 6.03 5.73

Blmbg Aggregate 1.45 (0.31) 2.48 2.21 3.19 4.48 4.73

Relative Return vs Blmbg Aggregate

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

10 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 17

Metropolitan West

CAI Core Plus Fixed Income (Gross)
Annualized Seven Year Risk vs Return

2.0 2.5 3.0 3.5 4.0 4.5 5.0
2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

4.5%

5.0%

5.5%

6.0%

6.5%

Metropolitan West

Blmbg Aggregate

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 93
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Metropolitan West
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last chart illustrates the manager’s ranking
relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Core Plus Fixed Income (Gross)

(20%)

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

30%

12/16- 6/17 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

9798 97100 4238

3961

7496

28
100 7939

7

100

34

99

42

5

10th Percentile 3.77 6.64 1.05 7.34 1.10 11.56 8.25 11.79 24.21 4.01
25th Percentile 3.49 5.39 0.77 6.88 (0.13) 9.75 8.08 10.72 20.70 1.94

Median 3.05 4.66 0.34 6.23 (0.67) 8.66 7.62 9.26 17.42 (5.17)
75th Percentile 2.85 3.76 (0.36) 5.70 (1.07) 7.08 6.44 8.11 12.53 (9.34)
90th Percentile 2.61 3.22 (1.08) 5.36 (1.66) 6.13 5.54 7.60 11.04 (13.26)

Metropolitan
West 2.44 2.87 0.51 6.37 (1.03) 9.48 6.10 12.57 19.88 (3.11)

Blmbg Aggregate 2.27 2.65 0.55 5.97 (2.02) 4.21 7.84 6.54 5.93 5.24

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Blmbg Aggregate

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Metropolitan West CAI Core Plus FI

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Blmbg Aggregate
Rankings Against CAI Core Plus Fixed Income (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

Alpha Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio

(63)
(54)

(77)

10th Percentile 3.00 1.61 1.35
25th Percentile 2.51 1.48 1.13

Median 1.98 1.41 0.91
75th Percentile 1.45 1.33 0.68
90th Percentile 0.97 1.23 0.63

Metropolitan West 1.69 1.40 0.67

 94
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Metropolitan West
Risk Analysis Summary

Risk Analysis
The graphs below analyze the risk or variation of a manager’s return pattern. The first scatter chart illustrates the
relationship, called Excess Return Ratio, between excess return and tracking error relative to the benchmark. The second
chart shows tracking error patterns versus the benchmark over time. The last two charts show the ranking of the manager’s
risk statistics versus the peer group.

Risk Analysis vs CAI Core Plus Fixed Income (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

0.0 0.5 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.5 4.0 4.5 5.0
0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

Metropolitan West

Tracking Error

E
x
c
e

s
s
 R

e
tu

rn

Rolling 12 Quarter Tracking Error vs Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate

T
ra

c
k
in

g
 E

rr
o

r

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Metropolitan West

CAI Core Plus FI

Risk Statistics Rankings vs Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate
Rankings Against CAI Core Plus Fixed Income (Gross)
Seven Years Ended June 30, 2017

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

Standard Downside Tracking
Deviation Risk Error

(90)

(52)

(48)

10th Percentile 3.61 1.88 2.82
25th Percentile 3.33 1.45 2.24

Median 3.18 0.87 1.60
75th Percentile 3.05 0.57 1.19
90th Percentile 2.96 0.43 0.90

Metropolitan
West 2.95 0.86 1.64

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

0.80

0.90

1.00

1.10

Beta R-Squared

(67)

(54)

10th Percentile 0.97 0.92
25th Percentile 0.92 0.87

Median 0.86 0.77
75th Percentile 0.76 0.56
90th Percentile 0.68 0.41

Metropolitan West 0.80 0.74

 95
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Metropolitan West
Bond Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Fixed Income Portfolio Characteristics
Rankings Against CAI Core Plus Fixed Income
as of June 30, 2017

(2)

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Average Effective Coupon OA
Duration Life Yield Rate Convexity

(61)
(12)

(42)(40)

(92)(93)
(76)(84)

(85)(56)

10th Percentile 6.05 9.84 3.76 4.25 0.75
25th Percentile 5.89 8.79 3.50 3.94 0.39

Median 5.69 8.08 3.21 3.64 0.17
75th Percentile 5.38 7.65 2.94 3.29 0.07
90th Percentile 5.04 6.89 2.78 2.86 (0.07)

Metropolitan West 5.62 8.23 2.74 3.26 0.00

Blmbg Aggregate 6.01 8.27 2.55 3.06 0.16

Sector Allocation and Quality Ratings
The first graph compares the manager’s sector allocation with the average allocation across all the members of the
manager’s style. The second graph compares the manager’s weighted average quality rating with the range of quality ratings
for the style.

Sector Allocation
June 30, 2017

(20%) (10%) 0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

US Trsy
37.5

19.5
37.0

RMBS
26.9

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

22.5
28.2

Corp (incl 144A)
24.9

42.9
25.3

ABS
6.7
6.2

0.5

Non-Agency RMBS
5.1

0.6

CMBS
4.7

2.6
1.8

CMOs
1.8

Gov Related 2.9
7.2

Other 1.3
0.1

Cash
(7.5 )

1.5

Metropolitan West CAI Core Plus Fixed Income Blmbg Aggregate

Quality Ratings
vs CAI Core Plus Fixed Income

BBB+

A-

A

A+

AA-

AA

AA+

AAA

Trsy

Weighted Average
Quality Rating

(13)

(5)

10th Percentile AA
25th Percentile AA-

Median A+
75th Percentile A
90th Percentile A-

Metropolitan West AA

Blmbg Aggregate AA+

 96
Sacramento Regional Transit District



Metropolitan West
Portfolio Characteristics Summary
As of June 30, 2017

Portfolio Structure Comparison
The charts below compare the structure of the portfolio to that of the index from the three perspectives that have the greatest
influence on return. The first chart compares the two portfolios across sectors. The second chart compares the duration
distribution. The last chart compares the distribution across quality ratings.

Sector Distribution

(20%)

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

US
Trsy

37.5 37.0

RMBS

26.9 28.2

Corp
(incl

144A)

24.9 25.3

ABS

6.7

0.5

Non-Agency
RMBS

5.1

CMBS

4.7
1.8

CMOs

1.8

Other

0.1

Gov
Related

7.2

Cash

(7.5 )

P
e

rc
e

n
t 
o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

Metropolitan West

Blmbg Aggregate

Duration Distribution

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

<1

9.1

0.1

1-3

18.8
22.0

3-5

37.5

32.5

5-7

14.0

22.8

7-10

9.4 8.4

>10

11.2
14.1

Years Duration

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

P
o

rt
fo

lio

Weighted Average: Duration

Metropolitan West:

Blmbg Aggregate:

5.62
6.01

Quality Distribution

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

AAA

61.9

71.6

AA

11.8
4.2

A

10.0 10.6

BBB

12.2 13.6

BB

2.2

B

1.2

CCC

0.2

CC C D

0.5

Quality Rating

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

P
o

rt
fo

lio

Weighted Average: Quality

Metropolitan West:

Blmbg Aggregate:

AA
AA+

 97
Sacramento Regional Transit District



D
e

fin
itio

n
s

Definitions



Risk/Reward Statistics

The risk statistics used in this report examine performance characteristics of a manager or a portfolio relative to a benchmark

(market indicator) which assumes to represent overall movements in the asset class being considered. The main unit of

analysis is the excess return, which is the portfolio return minus the return on a risk free asset (3 month T-Bill).

Alpha measures a portfolio’s return in excess of the market return adjusted for risk.  It is a measure of the manager’s

contribution to performance with reference to security selection.  A positive alpha indicates that a portfolio was positively

rewarded for the residual risk which was taken for that level of market exposure.

Beta measures the sensitivity of rates of portfolio returns to movements in the market index.  A portfolio’s beta measures the

expected change in return per 1% change in the return on the market.  If a beta of a portfolio is 1.5, a 1 percent increase in

the return on the market will result, on average, in a 1.5 percent increase in the return on the portfolio.  The converse would

also be true.

Downside Risk stems from the desire to differentiate between "good risk" (upside volatility) and "bad risk" (downside

volatility). Whereas standard deviation punishes both upside and downside volatility, downside risk measures only the

standard deviation of returns below the target. Returns above the target are assigned a deviation of zero. Both the frequency

and magnitude of underperformance affect the amount of downside risk.

Excess Return Ratio is a measure of risk adjusted relative return.  This ratio captures the amount of active management

performance (value added relative to an index) per unit of active management risk (tracking error against the index.)  It is

calculated by dividing the manager’s annualized cumulative excess return relative to the index by the standard deviation of

the individual quarterly excess returns.  The Excess Return Ratio can be interpreted as the manager’s active risk/reward

tradeoff for diverging from the index when the index is mandated to be the "riskless" market position.

Information Ratio measures the manager’s market risk-adjusted excess return per unit of residual risk relative to a

benchmark.  It is computed by dividing alpha by the residual risk over a given time period.  Assuming all other factors being

equal, managers with lower residual risk achieve higher values in the information ratio.  Managers with higher information

ratios will add value relative to the benchmark more reliably and consistently.

R-Squared indicates the extent to which the variability of the portfolio returns are explained by market action.  It can also be

thought of as measuring the diversification relative to the appropriate benchmark.  An r-squared value of .75 indicates that

75% of the fluctuation in a portfolio return is explained by market action.  An r-squared of 1.0 indicates that a portfolio’s

returns are entirely related to the market and it is not influenced by other factors.  An r-squared of zero indicates that no

relationship exists between the portfolio’s return and the market.

Relative Standard Deviation is a simple measure of a manager’s risk (volatility) relative to a benchmark.  It is calculated by

dividing the manager’s standard deviation of returns by the benchmark’s standard deviation of returns.  A relative standard

deviation of 1.20, for example, means the manager has exhibited 20% more risk than the benchmark over that time period.

A ratio of .80 would imply 20% less risk.  This ratio is especially useful when analyzing the risk of investment grade

fixed-income products where actual historical durations are not available.  By using this relative risk measure over rolling

time periods one can illustrate the "implied" historical duration patterns of the portfolio versus the benchmark.

Residual Portfolio Risk is the unsystematic risk of a fund, the portion of the total risk unique to the fund (manager) itself and

not related to the overall market.  This reflects the "bets" which the manager places in that particular asset market.  These

bets may reflect emphasis in particular sectors, maturities (for bonds), or other issue specific factors which the manager

considers a good investment opportunity.  Diversification of the portfolio will reduce or eliminate the residual risk of that

portfolio.

 99



Risk/Reward Statistics

Sharpe Ratio is a commonly used measure of risk-adjusted return. It is calculated by subtracting the "risk-free" return

(usually 3 Month Treasury Bill) from the portfolio return and dividing the resulting "excess return" by the portfolio’s risk level

(standard deviation). The result is a measure of return gained per unit of risk taken.

Sortino Ratio is a downside risk-adjusted measure of value-added.  It measures excess return over a benchmark divided by

downside risk.  The natural appeal is that it identifies value-added per unit of truly bad risk.  The danger of interpretation,

however, lies in these two areas:  (1) the statistical significance of the denominator, and (2) its reliance on the persistence of

skewness in return distributions.

Standard Deviation is a statistical measure of portfolio risk.  It reflects the average deviation of the observations from their

sample mean.  Standard deviation is used as an estimate of risk since it measures how wide the range of returns typically is.

The wider the typical range of returns, the higher the standard deviation of returns, and the higher the portfolio risk.  If returns

are normally distributed (ie. has a bell shaped curve distribution) then approximately 2/3 of the returns would occur within

plus or minus one standard deviation from the sample mean.

Total Portfolio Risk is a measure of the volatility of the quarterly excess returns of an asset.  Total risk is composed of two

measures of risk:  market (non-diversifiable or systematic) risk and residual (diversifiable or unsystematic) risk.  The purpose

of portfolio diversification is to reduce the residual risk of the portfolio.

Tracking Error is a statistical measure of a portfolio’s risk relative to an index.  It reflects the standard deviation of a

portfolio’s individual quarterly or monthly returns from the index’s returns.  Typically, the lower the Tracking Error, the more

"index-like" the portfolio.

Treynor Ratio represents the portfolio’s average excess return over a specified period divided by the beta relative to its

benchmark over that same period.  This measure reflects the reward over the risk-free rate relative to the systematic risk

assumed.

Note: Alpha, Total Risk, and Residual Risk are annualized.

100



C
a

lla
n

 R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
/E

d
u

c
a

tio
n

Callan Research/Education



Ρεσεαρχη ανδ Εδυχατιοναλ Προγραmσ

Τηε Χαλλαν Ινστιτυτε προϖιδεσ βοτη ρεσεαρχη το υπδατε χλιεντσ ον τηε λατεστ ινδυστρψ τρενδσ ανδ χαρεφυλλψ στρυχτυρεδ εδυχατιοναλ προγραmσ 

το ενηανχε τηε κνοωλεδγε οφ ινδυστρψ προφεσσιοναλσ. ςισιτ ωωω.χαλλαν.χοm/λιβραρψ το σεε αλλ οφ ουρ πυβλιχατιονσ, ανδ ωωω.χαλλαν.χοm/βλογ 

το ϖιεω ουρ βλογ �Περσπεχτιϖεσ.� Φορ mορε ινφορmατιον χονταχτ Αννα Wεστ ατ 415.974.5060 / ινστιτυτε≅χαλλαν.χοm.

Νεω Ρεσεαρχη φροm Χαλλαν�σ Εξπερτσ

Τηε Ηεδγε Φυνδ Εδγε: Στιλλ Σηαρπ ορ Τοο 

Dυλλ? | Wηψ σηουλδ ινϖεστορσ βοτηερ ωιτη 

ηεδγε φυνδσ? Τηε οριγιναλ προποσιτιον βεηινδ 

τηεm ωασ τηειρ διφφερεντιατεδ περφορmανχε: 

βεττερ ρισκ−αδϕυστεδ ρετυρνσ ωιτη α λοωερ χορ−

ρελατιον το τραδιτιοναλ χαπιταλ mαρκετσ. Dο 

ηεδγε φυνδσ στιλλ ηαϖε τηειρ ινηερεντ αδϖαν−

ταγε? Τηισ ωηιτε παπερ λοοκσ ατ τηε κεψ τραιτσ ιν τηε DΝΑ οφ ηεδγε 

φυνδσ�ανδ ωηψ τηεψ στιλλ οφφερ αν αδϖανταγε φορ ινϖεστορσ.

Wηιτε Λαβελ Φυνδσ: Α Νο−Νονσενσε Dεσιγν Ηανδβοοκ | Ιν α 

παπερ πυβλισηεδ ιν Τηε ϑουρναλ οφ Ρετιρεmεντ, Χαλλαν�σ Ροδ Βαρε, 

ϑαψ Κλοεπφερ, Λορι Λυχασ, ανδ ϑιmmψ ςενερυσο οφφερ α γυιδε το πλαν 

σπονσορσ χονσιδερινγ αδδινγ τηεσε φυνδσ το τηειρ λινευπ.

Συρϖιϖορσηιπ Βιασ Πρεσεντατιον Συmmαρψ, 2017 Νατιοναλ 

Χονφερενχε | Ιν τηισ πρεσεντατιον, Γρεγ Αλλεν ανδ Βυτχη Χλιφφ δισ−

χυσσεδ αν αλγοριτηm τηεψ δεϖελοπεδ ωιτη Wαλτερ ϑ. Μεερσχηαερτ, 

Χαλλαν�σ mαναγερ οφ Ινφορmατιον Τεχηνολογψ, το mεασυρε ανδ χορ−

rect for survivorship bias, the logical law of looking only at the 
ρεσυλτσ φορ τηε συρϖιϖορσ ιν α υνιϖερσε, ρατηερ τηαν τηε ρεσυλτσ φορ 

αλλ mεmβερσ οφ τηε υνιϖερσε. Τηειρ αλγοριτηm, χαλλεδ ΣΥΒΙΧΟ (φορ 

ΣΥρϖιϖορσηιπ ΒΙασ ΧΟρρεχτιον), υσεσ αλλ οφ τηε υνδερλψινγ δατα φορ 

βοτη συρϖιϖινγ ανδ νον−συρϖιϖινγ mεmβερσ οφ τηε υνιϖερσε το χορρεχτ 

φορ συρϖιϖορσηιπ βιασ.

Νεξτ Γενερατιον ΘDΙΑσ, 2017 Νατιοναλ Χονφερενχε | Τηε ωορκ−

σηοπ �Τηε Φυτυρε οφ DΧ Ισ Ηερε: Τηε Νεξτ Γενερατιον οφ ΘDΙΑσ,� 

ηοστεδ βψ Βεν Ταψλορ, ϑαmεσ ςενερυσο, ανδ Βριαννε Wεψmουτη, 

discussed new approaches to qualiied default investment alter−
natives as they become the primary savings vehicle for deined 
χοντριβυτιον πλανσ.

ϑυνε 2017 Μοντηλψ Περιοδιχ Ταβλε οφ 

Ρετυρνσ | Α mοντηλψ υπδατε φορ Χαλλαν�σ 

Περιοδιχ Ταβλε οφ Ινϖεστmεντ Ρετυρνσ, 

χοϖερινγ τηε mαϕορ πυβλιχ εθυιτψ ασσετ 

χλασσεσ.

Περιοδιχαλσ

Πριϖατε Μαρκετσ Τρενδσ, Σπρινγ 2017 | Γαρψ Ροβερτσον ρεπορτσ 

τηατ τηε πριϖατε εθυιτψ mαρκετ ισ οφφ το α ροαρινγ σταρτ ιν 2017, ανδ 

νεω παρτνερσηιπ χοmmιτmεντσ mαψ εξχεεδ τηε λεϖελ οφ 2016.

Ηεδγε Φυνδ Μονιτορ, 2νδ Θυαρτερ 2017 | ϑιm ΜχΚεε λοοκσ ατ 

�φαλσε χηαργεσ,� ορ βεαρ mαρκετσ τηατ χοmε ανδ γο θυιχκλψ βυτ χαν 

leave unprepared investors at signiicant risk. 

DΧ Οβσερϖερ, 2νδ Θυαρτερ 2017 | Λορι Λυχασ δισχυσσεσ ηοω το 

mαναγε DΧ πλαν ρεχορδκεεπερσ, εξπλαινινγ τηατ ονε οφ τηε βεστ 

ωαψσ ισ το χονδυχτ περιοδιχ σεαρχηεσ.

Μαρκετ Πυλσε Φλιπβοοκ, 1στ Θυαρτερ 2017 | Α θυαρτερλψ mαρκετ 

ρεφερενχε γυιδε χοϖερινγ ινϖεστmεντ ανδ φυνδ σπονσορ τρενδσ ιν 

the U.S. economy, U.S. and non-U.S. equities and ixed income, 
alternatives, and deined contribution.

Χαπιταλ Μαρκετ Ρεϖιεω, 1στ Θυαρτερ 2017 | Α θυαρτερλψ mαχροεχο−

νοmιχ νεωσλεττερ προϖιδινγ τηουγητφυλ ινσιγητσ ον τηε εχονοmψ ανδ 

recent performance in equity, ixed income, alternatives, interna−

τιοναλ, ρεαλ εστατε, ανδ οτηερ χαπιταλ mαρκετσ.

ΧΑΛΛΑΝ  
ΙΝΣΤΙΤΥΤΕ

Εδυχατιον

2νδ Θυαρτερ 2017

2

Λεσσ  

Ρεγυλατεδ

Φεωερ Στρατεγψ 

Χονστραιντσ

Αλιγνεδ 

Ιντερεστ

Στρονγερ  

Χαπιταλ Βασε

Ηεδγε Φυνδ DΝΑ

Ιν νατυρε, DΝΑ ατ ιτσ χορε ηασ φουρ βυιλδινγ βλοχκσ1 τηατ mαπ 

ουτ τηε στρυχτυρε οφ εϖερψ λιϖινγ βεινγ. Ανδ ϕυστ λικε νατυρε, ωε 

οβσερϖε τηατ �ηεδγε φυνδ DΝΑ� ηασ φουρ διφφερεντιατινγ ελε−

mεντσ ωηιχη ενδοω τηεσε ινϖεστmεντ ϖεηιχλεσ ωιτη α χοm−

πετιτιϖε αδϖανταγε οϖερ οτηερ ινϖεστmεντ οπτιονσ. Τηε φουρ κεψ 

τραιτσ οφ ηεδγε φυνδ DΝΑ αρε:

1. Φεωερ ρεγυλατορψ λιmιτατιονσ

2. Λεσσ χονστραιντ ον στρατεγιεσ

3. Βεττερ αλιγνmεντ οφ ιντερεστσ

4. Στρονγερ χαπιταλ βασε

Αλονε, εαχη οφ τηεσε θυαλιτιεσ ισ αππεαλινγ, βυτ τογετηερ τηε 

προπερτιεσ οφ εαχη ιντερλοχκ ωιτη τηε οτηερσ το προϖιδε α χοm−

πελλινγ σολυτιον φορ ινϖεστορσ�ιφ mαναγεδ ωελλ ανδ πριχεδ 

αππροπριατελψ.

Βυτ τηε χοmβινατιον οφ τηεσε φουρ αττριβυτεσ χαν βε α δανγερ−

ουσ προποσιτιον. Τηινκ αβουτ ιτ. Γιϖινγ τηε αϖεραγε αδυλτ�λετ 

αλονε α τεεναγερ!�τηε ριγητ το δο ωηατεϖερ ηε ορ σηε ωαντσ 

ωιτη α ποολ οφ mονεψ ισ α στρατεγψ οφ ηοπε, λικελψ το λεαδ το 

δισαπποιντmεντ. Ιν φαχτ, στατιστιχαλ εϖιδενχε ινδιχατεσ τηατ τηε 

αϖεραγε ηεδγε φυνδ mαναγερ ηασ νοτ mετ εξπεχτατιονσ οϖερ 

τηε λαστ δεχαδε. Αφτερ αδϕυστινγ φορ εmβεδδεδ mαρκετ ρισκσ, 

νετ−οφ−φεε ρετυρνσ ηαϖε οφτεν βεεν λεσσ τηαν ζερο, παρτιχυλαρλψ 

ιν ρεχεντ ψεαρσ. 

Εϖεν ιν τηε ηανδσ οφ αν αβοϖε−αϖεραγε mαναγερ, τηε αττρι−

βυτεσ τηατ εναβλε ηεδγε φυνδσ το εξχελ αρε νοτ φορ αλλ ινϖεστορσ. 

Τηοσε τηατ πρεφερ mορε τρανσπαρενχψ, mορε λιθυιδιτψ, λοωερ−χοστ 

solutions, or more regulatory protection are a poor it for hedge 

φυνδσ. Φυρτηερmορε, τηε διφφερεντιατινγ θυαλιτιεσ τηατ γιϖε ηεδγε 

φυνδσ αν εδγε φορ γενερατινγ βεττερ περφορmανχε ιν mορε χοm−

πλεξ στρατεγιεσ αρε αλσο νοτ αππροπριατε φορ σιmπλερ στρατεγιεσ 

τηατ αρε ηιγηλψ χοmmοδιτιζεδ ορ οτηερωισε εασιλψ ιmπλεmεντεδ. 

Αν ινϖεστορ σηουλδ νοτ χονσιδερ α ηεδγε φυνδ το ιmπλεmεντ αν 

ινδεξ−λικε στρατεγψ.

1 The four nucleotide building blocks of  DNA are adenine, guanine, thymine, 

and cytosine. 

♥ 2017 Χαλλαν Ασσοχιατεσ Ινχ.Κνοωλεδγε. Εξπεριενχε. Ιντεγριτψ.

Χαλλαν Περιοδιχ Ταβλε οφ Ινϖεστmεντ Ρετυρνσ

Εθυιτψ

Λαργε Χαπ

2.11%

Εθυιτψ

Λαργε Χαπ

16.00%

Εθυιτψ

Λαργε Χαπ

32.39%

Εθυιτψ

Λαργε Χαπ

13.69%

Εθυιτψ

Λαργε Χαπ

1.38%

Εθυιτψ

Λαργε Χαπ

11.96%

Εθυιτψ

Λαργε Χαπ

1.90%

Εθυιτψ

Λαργε Χαπ

5.94%

Εθυιτψ

Λαργε Χαπ

0.12%

Εθυιτψ

Λαργε Χαπ

1.03%

Εθυιτψ

Λαργε Χαπ

1.41%

Εθυιτψ

Λαργε Χαπ

0.62%

Εθυιτψ

Λαργε Χαπ

9.34%

Εθυιτψ

Σmαλλ Χαπ

−4.18%

Εθυιτψ

Σmαλλ Χαπ

16.35%

Εθυιτψ

Σmαλλ Χαπ

38.82%

Εθυιτψ

Σmαλλ Χαπ

4.89%

Εθυιτψ

Σmαλλ Χαπ

−4.41%

Εθυιτψ

Σmαλλ Χαπ

21.31%

Εθυιτψ

Σmαλλ Χαπ

0.39%

Εθυιτψ

Σmαλλ Χαπ

2.33%

Εθυιτψ

Σmαλλ Χαπ

0.13%

Εθυιτψ

Σmαλλ Χαπ

1.10%

Εθυιτψ

Σmαλλ Χαπ

−2.03%

Εθυιτψ

Σmαλλ Χαπ

3.46%

Εθυιτψ

Σmαλλ Χαπ

4.99%

Εθυιτψ

Νον−Υ.Σ.

−12.21%

Εθυιτψ

Νον−Υ.Σ.

16.41%

Εθυιτψ

Νον−Υ.Σ.

21.02%

Εθυιτψ

Νον−Υ.Σ.

−4.32%

Εθυιτψ

Νον−Υ.Σ.

−3.04%

Εθυιτψ

Νον−Υ.Σ.

2.75%

Εθυιτψ

Νον−Υ.Σ.

2.98%

Εθυιτψ

Νον−Υ.Σ.

4.16%

Εθυιτψ

Νον−Υ.Σ.

2.54%

Εθυιτψ

Νον−Υ.Σ.

2.13%

Εθυιτψ

Νον−Υ.Σ.

3.33%

Εθυιτψ

Νον−Υ.Σ.

0.09%

Εθυιτψ

Νον−Υ.Σ.

12.82%

Ινχοmε

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ

7.84%

Ινχοmε

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ

4.21%

Ινχοmε

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ

−2.02%

Ινχοmε

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ

5.97%

Ινχοmε

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ

0.55%

Ινχοmε

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ

2.65%

Ινχοmε

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ

0.20%

Ινχοmε

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ

0.87%

Ινχοmε

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ

−0.05%

Ινχοmε

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ

0.77%

Ινχοmε

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ

0.77%

Ινχοmε

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ

−0.10%

Ινχοmε

Υ.Σ. Φιξεδ

2.27%

Μαρκετ Εθυιτψ

Εmεργινγ

−18.42%

Μαρκετ Εθυιτψ

Εmεργινγ

18.23%

Μαρκετ Εθυιτψ

Εmεργινγ

−2.60%

Μαρκετ Εθυιτψ

Εmεργινγ

−2.19%

Μαρκετ Εθυιτψ

Εmεργινγ

−14.92%

Μαρκετ Εθυιτψ

Εmεργινγ

11.19%

Μαρκετ Εθυιτψ

Εmεργινγ

5.47%

Μαρκετ Εθυιτψ

Εmεργινγ

8.70%

Μαρκετ Εθυιτψ

Εmεργινγ

2.52%

Μαρκετ Εθυιτψ

Εmεργινγ

2.19%

Μαρκετ Εθυιτψ

Εmεργινγ

2.96%

Μαρκετ Εθυιτψ

Εmεργινγ

1.01%

Μαρκετ Εθυιτψ

Εmεργινγ

18.43%

Ηιγη Ψιελδ

4.98%

Ηιγη Ψιελδ

15.81%

Ηιγη Ψιελδ

7.44%

Ηιγη Ψιελδ

2.45%

Ηιγη Ψιελδ

−4.47%

Ηιγη Ψιελδ

17.13%

Ηιγη Ψιελδ

1.45%

Ηιγη Ψιελδ

2.93%

Ηιγη Ψιελδ

−0.22%

Ηιγη Ψιελδ

1.15%

Ηιγη Ψιελδ

0.87%

Ηιγη Ψιελδ

0.14%

Ηιγη Ψιελδ

4.93%

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε

Νον−Υ.Σ.

4.36%

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε

Νον−Υ.Σ.

4.09%

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε

Νον−Υ.Σ.

−3.08%

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε

Νον−Υ.Σ.

−3.08%

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε

Νον−Υ.Σ.

−6.02%

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε

Νον−Υ.Σ.

1.49%

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε

Νον−Υ.Σ.

1.88%

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε

Νον−Υ.Σ.

2.17%

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε

Νον−Υ.Σ.

0.30%

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε

Νον−Υ.Σ.

1.42%

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε

Νον−Υ.Σ.

2.19%

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε

Νον−Υ.Σ.

−0.09%

Φιξεδ Ινχοmε

Νον−Υ.Σ.

6.12%

Ρεαλ Εστατε

−6.46%

Ρεαλ Εστατε

27.73%

Ρεαλ Εστατε

3.67%

Ρεαλ Εστατε

15.02%

Ρεαλ Εστατε

−0.79%

Ρεαλ Εστατε

4.06%

Ρεαλ Εστατε

0.54%

Ρεαλ Εστατε

3.67%

Ρεαλ Εστατε

−1.55%

Ρεαλ Εστατε

1.08%

Ρεαλ Εστατε

0.86%

Ρεαλ Εστατε

0.74%

Ρεαλ Εστατε

4.84%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 ϑαν 2017 Φεβ 2017 Μαρ 2017 Απρ 2017 Μαψ 2017 ϑυν 2017 ΨΤD 2017

Αννυαλ Ρετυρνσ Μοντηλψ Ρετυρνσ

Σουρχεσ: Ɣ Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Αγγρεγατε Ɣ Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Χορπ Ηιγη Ψιελδ Ɣ Βλοοmβεργ Βαρχλαψσ Γλοβαλ Αγγρεγατε εξ ΥΣ  

Ɣ ΕΠΡΑ/ΝΑΡΕΙΤ Dεϖελοπεδ Ɣ ΜΣΧΙ Wορλδ εξ ΥΣΑ Ɣ ΜΣΧΙ Εmεργινγ Μαρκετσ Ɣ Ρυσσελλ 2000  Ɣ Σ&Π 500



�Wε τηινκ τηε βεστ ωαψ το λεαρν σοmετηινγ ισ το τεαχη ιτ. 

Εντρυστινγ χλιεντ εδυχατιον το ουρ χονσυλταντσ ανδ σπεχιαλιστσ 

ενσυρεσ τηατ τηεψ ηαϖε α τοταλ χοmmανδ οφ τηειρ συβϕεχτ 

mαττερ. Τηισ ισ ονε ρεασον ωηψ εδυχατιον ανδ ρεσεαρχη ηαϖε 

been cornerstones of our irm for more than 40 years.” 

Ρον Πεψτον, Χηαιρmαν ανδ ΧΕΟ

 

 
Εϖεντσ

Μισσ ουτ ον α Χαλλαν χονφερενχε ορ ωορκσηοπ? Εϖεντ συmmα−

ριεσ ανδ σπεακερσ� πρεσεντατιονσ αρε αϖαιλαβλε ον ουρ ωεβσιτε:  

ωωω.χαλλαν.χοm/λιβραρψ/

Μαρκ ψουρ χαλενδαρσ φορ ουρ φαλλ Ρεγιοναλ Wορκσηοπ, Οχτοβερ 

24 ιν Νεω Ψορκ ανδ Οχτοβερ 26 ιν Χηιχαγο, ωηερε ωε�λλ χοϖερ 

ηιγηλιγητσ φροm ουρ σοον−το−βε πυβλισηεδ Ινϖεστmεντ Μαναγε−

mεντ Φεε Συρϖεψ ανδ χοϖερ οτηερ ασπεχτσ οφ φεεσ. Χαλλαν�σ Να−

τιοναλ Χονφερενχε ωιλλ βε ηελδ ϑανυαρψ 29�31, 2018, ατ τηε Παλαχε 

Ηοτελ ιν Σαν Φρανχισχο.

Φορ mορε ινφορmατιον αβουτ εϖεντσ, πλεασε χονταχτ Βαρβ 

Γερρατψ: 415.274.3093 / γερρατψ≅χαλλαν.χοm

Τηε Χεντερ φορ Ινϖεστmεντ Τραινινγ  
Εδυχατιοναλ Σεσσιονσ

Τηε Χεντερ φορ Ινϖεστmεντ Τραινινγ, βεττερ κνοων ασ τηε �Χαλλαν 

Χολλεγε,� προϖιδεσ α φουνδατιον οφ κνοωλεδγε φορ ινδυστρψ προφεσ−

σιοναλσ ωηο αρε ινϖολϖεδ ιν τηε ινϖεστmεντ δεχισιον−mακινγ προ−

χεσσ. Ιτ ωασ φουνδεδ ιν 1994 το προϖιδε χλιεντσ ανδ νον−χλιεντσ αλικε 

ωιτη βασιχ− το ιντερmεδιατε−λεϖελ ινστρυχτιον. Ουρ νεξτ σεσσιον ισ:

Ιντροδυχτιον το Ινϖεστmεντσ

Χηιχαγο, Οχτοβερ 24−25, 2017

Τηισ προγραm φαmιλιαριζεσ φυνδ σπονσορ τρυστεεσ, σταφφ, ανδ ασσετ 

mαναγεmεντ αδϖισερσ ωιτη βασιχ ινϖεστmεντ τηεορψ, τερmινολογψ, 

ανδ πραχτιχεσ. Ιτ λαστσ ονε−ανδ−α−ηαλφ δαψσ ανδ ισ δεσιγνεδ φορ ιν−

διϖιδυαλσ ωηο ηαϖε λεσσ τηαν τωο ψεαρσ οφ εξπεριενχε ωιτη ασσετ−

mαναγεmεντ οϖερσιγητ ανδ/ορ συππορτ ρεσπονσιβιλιτιεσ. Τυιτιον φορ 

τηε Ιντροδυχτορψ �Χαλλαν Χολλεγε� σεσσιον ισ ∃2,350 περ περσον. 

Τυιτιον ινχλυδεσ ινστρυχτιον, αλλ mατεριαλσ, βρεακφαστ ανδ λυνχη ον 

each day, and dinner on the irst evening with the instructors.

Χυστοmιζεδ Σεσσιονσ

Τηε �Χαλλαν Χολλεγε� ισ εθυιππεδ το χυστοmιζε α χυρριχυλυm το 

meet the training and educational needs of a speciic organization.
Τηεσε ταιλορεδ σεσσιονσ ρανγε φροm βασιχ το αδϖανχεδ ανδ χαν 

take place anywhere—even at your ofice.

Λεαρν mορε ατ ωωω.χαλλαν.χοm/εϖεντσ/χαλλαν−χολλεγε−ιντρο ορ 

χονταχτ Κατηλεεν Χυννιε: 415.274.3029 / χυννιε≅χαλλαν.χοm

Υνιθυε πιεχεσ οφ ρεσεαρχη τηε 

Ινστιτυτε γενερατεσ εαχη ψεαρ50+

Τοταλ αττενδεεσ οφ τηε �Χαλλαν 

Χολλεγε� σινχε 19943,500 Ψεαρ τηε Χαλλαν Ινστιτυτε  

ωασ φουνδεδ1980

Αττενδεεσ (ον αϖεραγε) οφ τηε 

Ινστιτυτε�σ αννυαλ Νατιοναλ Χονφερενχε525

Εδυχατιον: Βψ τηε Νυmβερσ

≅ΧαλλανΑσσοχ  Χαλλαν Ασσοχιατεσ



D
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s

Disclosures



 

List of Callan’s Investment Manager Clients 

Confidential – For Callan Client Use Only 
 
Callan takes its fiduciary and disclosure responsibilities to clients very seriously. We recognize that there are numerous potential conflicts of interest 
encountered in the investment consulting industry and that it is our responsibility to manage those conflicts effectively and in the best interest of our 
clients.  At Callan, we employ a robust process to identify, manage, monitor and disclose potential conflicts on an on-going basis.   
 
The list below is an important component of our conflicts management and disclosure process.  It identifies those investment managers that pay Callan 
fees for educational, consulting, software, database or reporting products and services.  We update the list quarterly because we believe that our fund 
sponsor clients should know the investment managers that do business with Callan, particularly those investment manager clients that the fund sponsor 
clients may be using or considering using. Callan is committed to ensuring that we do not consider an investment manager’s business relationship with 
Callan, or lack thereof, in performing evaluations for or making suggestions or recommendations to its other clients.  Please refer to Callan’s ADV Part 
2A for a more detailed description of the services and products that Callan makes available to investment manager clients through our Institutional 
Consulting Group, Independent Adviser Group and Fund Sponsor Consulting Group.  Due to the complex corporate and organizational ownership 
structures of many investment management firms, parent and affiliate firm relationships are not indicated on our list.  
 
Fund sponsor clients may request a copy of the most currently available list at any time. Fund sponsor clients may also request specific information 
regarding the fees paid to Callan by particular fund manager clients.  Per company policy, information requests regarding fees are handled exclusively 
by Callan’s Compliance Department. 
 

 

Quarterly List as of  

June 30, 2017

Knowledge. Experience. Integrity.  Page 1 of 3 

Manager Name 
1607 Capital Partners, LLC 
Aberdeen Asset Management PLC 
Acadian Asset Management LLC 
AEGON USA Investment Management 
AEW Capital Management 
Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. 
Alcentra 
AllianceBernstein 
Allianz Global Investors  
Allianz Life Insurance Company of North America 
American Century Investments 
Amundi Smith Breeden LLC 
Angelo, Gordon & Co. 
Apollo Global Management 
AQR Capital Management 
Ares Management LLC 
Ariel Investments, LLC 
Aristotle Capital Management, LLC 
Artisan Holdings 
Atlanta Capital Management Co., LLC 
Aviva Investors Americas 
AXA Investment Managers 
Baillie Gifford Overseas Limited  
Baird Advisors 
Bank of America 
Barings LLC 
Baron Capital Management, Inc. 
Barrow, Hanley, Mewhinney & Strauss, LLC 
Black Creek Investment Management Inc. 
BlackRock 
BMO Global Asset Management 
BNP Paribas Investment Partners 
BNY Mellon Asset Management 
Boston Partners  
Boyd Watterson Asset Management, LLC 
Brandes Investment Partners, L.P. 

Manager Name 
Brandywine Global Investment Management, LLC 
Brown Brothers Harriman & Company 
Brown Investment Advisory & Trust Company 
Cambiar Investors, LLC 
Capital Group 
CastleArk Management, LLC 
Causeway Capital Management 
Chartwell Investment Partners 
Chicago Equity Partners, LLC 
ClearBridge Investments, LLC  
Cohen & Steers Capital Management, Inc. 
Columbia Management Investment Advisers, LLC 
Columbus Circle Investors 
Cornerstone Capital Management 
Cramer Rosenthal McGlynn, LLC 
Credit Suisse Asset Management 
Crestline Investors, Inc. 
D.E. Shaw Investment Management, L.L.C. 
DePrince, Race & Zollo, Inc. 
Deutsche Asset  Management 
Diamond Hill Capital Management, Inc. 
Dimensional Fund Advisors LP 
Doubleline 
Duff & Phelps Investment Mgmt. Co. 
Eagle Asset Management, Inc. 
EARNEST Partners, LLC 
Eaton Vance Management 
Epoch Investment Partners, Inc. 
Fayez Sarofim & Company 
Federated Investors 
Fidelity Institutional Asset Management 
Fiera Capital Corporation 
First Eagle Investment Management, LLC 
First Hawaiian Bank Wealth Management Division 
Fisher Investments 
Franklin Templeton 



 

  
Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. June 30, 2017 Page 2 of 3 

Manager Name 

Franklin Templeton Institutional 

Fred Alger Management, Inc. 

Fuller & Thaler Asset Management, Inc. 

GAM (USA) Inc. 

Global Evolution USA 

GlobeFlex Capital, L.P. 

GMO 

Goldman Sachs Asset Management 

Gryphon International Investment Corporation 

Guggenheim Investments 

GW&K Investment Management 

Harbor Capital Group Trust 

Harding Loevner LP 

Hartford Funds 

Hartford Investment Management Co. 

Heitman LLC 

Henderson Global Investors 

Hotchkis & Wiley Capital Management, LLC 

HSBC Global Asset Management 

Income Research + Management, Inc. 

Insight Investment Management Limited 

INTECH Investment Management, LLC 

Invesco 

Investec Asset Management 

Ivy Investments 

Jacobs Levy Equity Management, Inc. 

Janus Capital Management, LLC 

Jensen Investment Management 

Jobs Peak Advisors  

J.P. Morgan Asset Management 

KeyCorp 

Lazard Asset Management 

Legal & General Investment Management America 

Lincoln National Corporation 

LMCG Investments, LLC 

Logan Circle Partners, L.P. 

Longfellow Investment Management Co. 

Longview Partners 

Loomis, Sayles & Company, L.P. 

Lord Abbett & Company 

Los Angeles Capital Management 

LSV Asset Management 

MacKay Shields LLC 

Macquarie Investment Management (formerly Delaware 
Investments) 

Man Investments Inc. 

Manulife Asset Management 

McKinley Capital Management, LLC 

MFS Investment Management 

MidFirst Bank 

Mondrian Investment Partners Limited 

Montag & Caldwell, LLC 

Morgan Stanley Investment Management 

Mountain Lake Investment Management LLC 

MUFG Union Bank, N.A. 

Neuberger Berman 

New York Life Investment Management LLC 

Newfleet Asset Management LLC 

Newton Investment Management (fka Newton Capital Mgmt) 

Nikko Asset Management Co., Ltd. 

Manager Name 

Northern Trust Asset Management 

Nuveen Investments, Inc. 

OFI Global Asset Management 

Old Mutual Asset Management 

O’Shaughnessy Asset Management, LLC 

Pacific Investment Management Company 

Peregrine Capital Management, Inc. 

PGIM 

PGIM Fixed Income 

PineBridge Investments 

Pioneer Investments 

PNC Capital Advisors, LLC 

PPM America 

Principal Global Investors  

Private Advisors, LLC 

Putnam Investments, LLC 

Pzena Investment Management, LLC 

QMA (Quantitative Management Associates) 

RBC Global Asset Management 

Record Currency Management Ltd. 

Regions Financial Corporation 

RidgeWorth Capital Management, Inc. 

Rockefeller & Co., Inc. 

Rothschild Asset Management, Inc. 

Russell Investments 

Santander Global Facilities 

Schroder Investment Management North America Inc. 

Smith, Graham & Co. Investment Advisors, L.P. 

Smith Group Asset Management 

South Texas Money Management, Ltd. 

Standard Life Investments Limited 

Standish 

State Street Global Advisors 

Stone Harbor Investment Partners, L.P. 

Strategic Global Advisors 

T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. 

Taplin, Canida & Habacht 

Teachers Insurance & Annuity Association of America 

The Boston Company Asset Management, LLC 

The Hartford 

The London Company 

The TCW Group, Inc. 

Thompson, Siegel & Walmsley LLC 

Thornburg Investment Management, Inc. 

Tri-Star Trust Bank 

UBS Asset Management 

Van Eck Global 

Versus Capital Group 

Victory Capital Management Inc. 

Vontobel Asset Management, Inc. 

Voya Financial 

Voya Investment Management (fka ING) 

Vulcan Value Partners, LLC 

Wasatch Advisors, Inc. 

WCM Investment Management 

WEDGE Capital Management 

Wedgewood Partners, Inc. 

Wellington Management Company, LLP 

Wells Capital Management 

Western Asset Management Company 



 

  
Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. June 30, 2017 Page 3 of 3 

Manager Name 

William Blair & Company 

Manager Name 

WisdomTree Asset Management 
 



Page 1 of 1

Pass

Date Run: 07/03/2017Limited Access

A5XB  SACRT - ATLANTA CAPITAL MGMT

Securities + Cash Net Assets

Account Compliance Summary

Production Date: 06/30/2017

Rule Name Limit Type Limit Value Result
Result
Status

24,756,059.32 24,786,908Base Currency USD

0Alerts:

Warnings: 0

Passes: 14

144A and Private Placement
Private Placements are prohibited. (143653)1 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%

MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Asset Measures
AssetMeasure: AssetMeasure_Funds_Preferred_Denominator (34662)2 24,756,059.32 Value Pass

Asset_Type
International equity securities which trade on U.S.-based exchanges, including
American Depository Receipts (ADRs), shall not exceed 5% of the portfolio at cost
(143658)

3 0.00 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Investments in commodities are  prohibited (143655)4 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Margin Securities are prohibited. (143651)5 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Ownership of shares/debt issued limit 5% ex null (143652)6 0.04 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund may not enter into short sales. (143654)7 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund may not hold any Options. (143657)8 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund may not hold more than 5% of the shares outstanding of any domestic equity
security (143659)

9 0.04 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Cash
No more than 10% of the Fund in cash and cash equivalents. (143656)10 3.43 % Maximum 10.00%

MAX = 10.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 10.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Exchange
Flag any non-US exchange traded futures (143670)11 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%

MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Industry
Industry Sector GICS - Max 25% at cost (143660)12 6.60 % Maximum 25.00%

MAX = 25.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 25.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund shall not invested in any security issued by a company in the Tobacco Sub-
Industry as defined by GICS (143650)

13 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Issuer
Investments in a single domestic equity issuer shall not exceed 5% at cost (143661)14 2.62 % Maximum 5.00%

MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
Attachment #3



Page 1 of 1

Pass

Date Run: 07/03/2017Limited Access

A5XD  SACRT - METWEST

Securities + Cash Net Assets

Account Compliance Summary

Production Date: 06/30/2017

Rule Name Limit Type Limit Value Result
Result
Status

98,479,183.26 88,489,676Base Currency USD

0Alerts:

Warnings: 0

Passes: 8

144A and Private Placement
The Fund is not permitted to hold any Private Placements excluding 144a (143666)1 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%

MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Asset Measures
AssetMeasure: AssetMeasure_Funds_Preferred_Denominator (34662)2 98,479,183.26 Value Pass

Asset_Type
A5XD: Flag all prohibited security types (143665)3 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%

MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Asset-Backed Commercial Paper - Minimum Quality of A2/P2 (157603)4 0 Num Bkts Maximum 0
MAX = 0
MIN =
WMAX = 0
WMIN =

Pass

Credit Quality
Minimum Quality must be at lesst 80% Baa or above (157604)5 93.61 % Minimum 80.00%

MAX =
MIN = 80.00%
WMAX =
WMIN = 80.00%

Pass

No Commercial Paper rated < A2/P2 at time of purchase (143662)6 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Weighted Average Credit Rating of the Fund must be A or better (143663)7 23.06 Rank Minimum 20
MAX =
MIN = 20
WMAX =
WMIN = 20

Pass

Industry
The Fund shall not invested in any security issued by a company in the Tobacco Sub-
Industry as defined by GICS (143650)

8 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass



Page 1 of 2

Pass

Date Run: 07/03/2017Limited Access

A5Z8  SACRT - ROBECO

Securities + Cash Net Assets

Account Compliance Summary

Production Date: 06/30/2017

Rule Name Limit Type Limit Value Result
Result
Status

45,865,828.88 45,850,964Base Currency USD

0Alerts:

Warnings: 0

Passes: 14

144A and Private Placement
Private Placements are prohibited. (143653)1 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%

MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Asset Measures
AssetMeasure: AssetMeasure_Funds_Preferred_Denominator (34662)2 45,865,828.88 Value Pass

Asset_Type
International equity securities which trade on U.S.-based exchanges, including
American Depository Receipts (ADRs), shall not exceed 5% of the portfolio at cost
(143658)

3 2.18 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Investments in commodities are  prohibited (143655)4 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Margin Securities are prohibited. (143651)5 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Ownership of shares/debt issued limit 5% ex null (143652)6 0.01 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund may not enter into short sales. (143654)7 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund may not hold any Options. (143657)8 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund may not hold more than 5% of the shares outstanding of any domestic equity
security (143659)

9 0.01 % Maximum 5.00%
MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Cash
No more than 10% of the Fund in cash and cash equivalents. (143656)10 2.80 % Maximum 10.00%

MAX = 10.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 10.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Exchange
Flag any non-US exchange traded futures (143670)11 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%

MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Industry
Industry Sector GICS - Max 25% at cost (143660)12 12.65 % Maximum 25.00%

MAX = 25.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 25.00%
WMIN =

Pass

The Fund shall not invested in any security issued by a company in the Tobacco Sub-
Industry as defined by GICS (143650)

13 0.00 % Maximum 0.00%
MAX = 0.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 0.00%
WMIN =

Pass

Issuer
Investments in a single domestic equity issuer shall not exceed 5% at cost (143661)14 2.82 % Maximum 5.00%

MAX = 5.00%
MIN =
WMAX = 5.00%
WMIN =

Pass



Page 2 of 2

Pass

Date Run: 07/03/2017Limited Access

A5Z8  SACRT - ROBECO

Securities + Cash Net Assets

Account Compliance Summary

Production Date: 06/30/2017

Rule Name Limit Type Limit Value Result
Result
Status

45,865,828.88 45,850,964Base Currency USD

Alerts:

Warnings:

Passes:

This report was prepared for you by State Street Bank and Trust Company (or its affiliates, “State Street”) utilizing scenarios, assumptions and reporting formats as mutually agreed 

between you and State Street.  While reasonable efforts have been made to ensure the accuracy of the information contained in this report, there is no guarantee, representation or 

warranty, express or implied, as to its accuracy or completeness.  This information is provided “as-is” and State Street disclaims any and all liability and makes no guarantee, 

representation, or warranty with respect to your use of or reliance upon this information in making any decisions or taking (or not taking) any actions.  State Street does not verify the 

accuracy or completeness of any data, including data provided by State Street for other purposes, or data provided by you or third parties.  You should independently review the report 

(including, without limitation, the assumptions, market data, securities prices, securities valuations, tests and calculations used in the report), and determine that the report is suitable for 

your purposes.  

State Street provides products and services to professional and institutional clients, which are not directed at retail clients.  This report is for informational purposes only and it does not 

constitute investment research or investment, legal or tax advice, and it is not an offer or solicitation to buy or sell any product, service, or securities or any financial instrument, and it 

does not transfer rights of any kind (except the limited use and redistribution rights described below) or constitute any binding contractual arrangement or commitment of any kind.  You 

may use this report for your internal business purposes and, if such report contains any data provided by third party data sources, including, but not limited to, market or index data, you 

may not redistribute this report, or an excerpted portion thereof, to any third party, including, without limitation, your investment managers, investment advisers, agents, clients, 

investors or participants, whether or not they have a relationship with you or have a reasonable interest in the report, without the prior written consent of each such third party data 

source.  You are solely responsible and liable for any and all use of this report.

This may contain information obtained from third parties, including ratings from credit ratings agencies such as S&P Global Ratings. Reproduction and distribution of third party content in 

any form is prohibited except with the prior written permission of the related third party. Third party content providers do not guarantee the accuracy, completeness, timeliness or 

availability of any information, including ratings, and are not responsible for any errors or omissions (negligent or otherwise), regardless of the cause, or for the results obtained from the 

use of such content. THIRD PARTY CONTENT PROVIDERS GIVE NO EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY 

OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE. THIRD PARTY CONTENT PROVIDERS SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, EXEMPLARY, 

COMPENSATORY, PUNITIVE, SPECIAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, COSTS, EXPENSES, LEGAL FEES, OR LOSSES (INCLUDING LOST INCOME OR PROFITS AND OPPORTUNITY COSTS 

OR LOSSES CAUSED BY NEGLIGENCE) IN CONNECTION WITH ANY USE OF THEIR CONTENT, INCLUDING RATINGS. Credit ratings are statements of opinions and are not statements of 

fact or recommendations to purchase, hold or sell securities. They do not address the suitability of securities or the suitability of securities for investment purposes, and should not be relied 

on as investment advice.

Copyright © 2016 State Street Corporation, All rights reserved.



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 1 
Agenda 
Item No. 

Board Meeting 
Date 

Open/Closed 
Session 

Information/Action 
Item 

Issue 
Date 

23 09/13/17 Retirement Information 8/16/17 

 

Subject: Update on Roles and Responsibilities Related to Pension Administration (ALL). (Bonnel) 

 

Approved:  Presented: 

Final 9/5/17   
Director, Human Resources  Director, Human Resources 
   

11491478.1 
13339689.1  

ISSUE 
 
Presentation regarding the roles and responsibilities of various District staff members and Legal 
Counsel related to administration of the Pension Plans (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
None associated with this matter. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

 
None associated with this matter. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
This presentation by Donna Bonnel, Pension Plan Administrator, and the attached documents are 
provided to ensure the Boards have a greater understanding of the various duties of RT staff and 
consultants (including the Retirement Boards’ Legal Counsel) as related to administration of the 
Pension Plans. 
 
Attachment A – Pension Administration Staff Roles and Responsibilities 
Attachment B – RT Staff Costs (Excluding the Pension and Retiree Services Administrator) 

Attributable (but Not Charged) to RT Pension Plans  
Attachment C – Summary of Legal Services Provided for the Quarter Ending June 30, 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  1 11286012.1 

 

 

Pension Administration 
Staff Roles and Responsibilities 

 

Plan Administration 
Customer Relations: 

Task Primary Responsibility Back Up Responsibility 

Retirement Meetings Director, Human Resources 
Pension and Retirement Services 

Administrator (PRSA) 

Research and address benefit 
discrepancies 

Pension and Retirement Services 
Administrator (PRSA) 

Pension Analyst 

Disability Retirements PRSA Director, HR 
Conduct Educational Sessions PRSA Pension Analyst 
Respond to all Employee and 
Retiree inquiries 

Pension Analyst PRSA 

Creation of Pension Estimates Pension Analyst PRSA 

Processing Employee and Retiree 
Deaths 

Pension Analyst PRSA 

Administration of Active and Term 
Vested (TV) Retirement Process, 
including: 
 

 Notifications 

 Lost Participant Process (TV) 

 Collection of all required 
documents 

 Legal/Compliance Review 

 Approval by General Manager 

Pension Analyst PRSA 

Converting Employees to Retirees 
in SAP 

Pension Analyst Sr. HR Analyst - HRIS 

Lost participant process for 
returned checks/stubs 

Pension Analyst PRSA 

48-Month Salary Calculations Pension Analyst Payroll Supervisor and PRSA 

Distribution of employee required 
contributions (per contract or 
PEPRA): 

 Send notification 

 Collect documentation 

 Lost participant process 

 Apply interest  

 Process check 

Pension Analyst PRSA 

Conduct Lost Participant Searches Pension Analyst PRSA 

Administer Retiree Medical Pension Analyst Sr. HR Analyst 

Managing Stale Dated and Lost 
Check Replacement 

Payroll Analyst and Senior 
Accountant 

Payroll Supervisor 

Copies of Retiree Pay Stubs and 
1099R’s 

Payroll Analyst Payroll Supervisor 

Printing, Stuffing, and Mailing Pay 
Stubs 

Payroll Analyst Payroll Supervisor 

Verification of Retiree Wages: 
gross pay, net wages, no pre-tax 

Administrative Technician (HR) 
and Payroll Analyst 

PRSA and/or Payroll Supervisor 

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
ATTACHMENT A



  2 11286012.1 

 

deductions, taxes 

 
 
Plan Documents: 
 

Task Primary Responsibility Back Up Responsibility 
Negotiation of Benefits, Provisions Director, Labor Relations To be determined 

Incorporate Negotiated 
Benefits/Provisions into Plan 
Documents 

Deputy Chief Counsel, RT Chief Counsel, RT 

Interpretation of Provisions Pension and Retiree Services 
Administrator (PRSA) and Deputy 

Chief Counsel, RT 
Chief Counsel, RT 

Guidance to Staff regarding legal 
changes that affect Plans 

Pension and Retiree Services 
Administrator (PRSA) and  
Deputy Chief Counsel, RT 

Chief Counsel, RT 

 
Vendor Administration: 
 

Task Primary Responsibility Back Up Responsibility 

Legal Services (Hanson Bridgett) 
Contract Procurement  

PRSA and Sr. Accountant 
Director, Human Resources and 

Director, Finance 

Actuarial Services (Cheiron) 
Contract Procurement 

PRSA and Sr. Accountant 
Director, Human Resources and 

Director, Finance 

Retirement Board Policy 
Development and Administration 

PRSA and Senior Accountant 
 

Hanson Bridgett and Cheiron 

Director, Human Resources or  
Director, Finance 

 
Hanson Bridgett and Cheiron 

 
Retirement Board Administration: 
 

Task Primary Responsibility Back Up Responsibility 
Creation of Agenda/IPs Staff Presenting Issue to Board n/a 

Creation and Distribution of 
Retirement Board Packages 

PRSA Director, Human Resources 

Management of Retirement Board 
Meetings 

Assistant Secretary to the 
Retirement Boards 

PRSA 

Training of Staff/Board Members PRSA Staff/Vendor SME 

New Retirement Board Member 
Training 

PRSA and/or Sr. Accountant Staff/Vendor SME 

 



  3 11286012.1 

 

 
Semi-Annual/Annual/Bi-Annual Administration: 
 

Task Primary Responsibility Back Up Responsibility 

Valuation Study PRSA and Senior Accountant 
Director, Finance and Director, 

Human Resources 

Experience Study PRSA and Senior Accountant 
Director, Finance and Director, 

Human Resources 

Fiduciary Liability Insurance PSRA Director, Human Resources 

OPEB Valuation Study 
 

PRSA and Senior Accountant 
Director, Finance and Director, 

Human Resources 

Responses to Public Records Act 
Requests 

Director, Human Resources PRSA 

Statement of Investment Objectives 
and Policy Guidelines management 

Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

 
 
Contract Administration: 
 

Task Primary Responsibility Back Up Responsibility 
Adherence to contract provisions 

PRSA and/or Sr. Accountant 
Director, Human Resources or 

Director, Finance 

Payment of Invoices Sr. Accountant or Director, Human 
Resources 

Director, Finance 

Contract Management, including 
RFP process 

PRSA and/or Sr. Accountant 
Director, Human Resources or 

Director, Finance 

 
Asset Management: 
 

Task Primary Responsibility Back Up Responsibility 
Asset Rebalancing Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

Account Reconciliations Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

Cash Transfers Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

Fund Accounting Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

Investment Management Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

Financial Statement Preparation Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

Annual Audit Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

State Controller’s Office Reporting Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

U.S. Census Bureau Reporting Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

Work with Contractors (Investment 
advisors (Callan), Custodian (State 
Street), Fund Managers, Auditors, 
and Actuary (Cheiron)) 

Sr. Accountant Director, Finance 

Review Monthly Asset Rebalancing Director, Finance CFO 

 
 



Pension administration costs charged to the Plans

Time Period: April 1, 2017 to June 30, 2017

Sum of Value TranCurr

WBS Element Source object name Period Total

SAXXXX.PENATU Finance And Treasury / Adelman, Jamie 10 196.20       

12 510.12       

Human Resources / Montung-Fuller, Mari 10 1,420.65    

11 1,420.65    

12 1,907.73    

Human Resources / Ung, Elaine 11 35.46          

Human Resources / Weekly, Valerie 10 2,758.00    

11 2,915.60    

12 2,521.60    

Legal / Sanchez, Olga 10 32.92          

SAXXXX.PENATU Total 13,718.93  

SAXXXX.PENIBEW Finance And Treasury / Adelman, Jamie 10 196.20       

12 431.64       

Human Resources / Montung-Fuller, Mari 10 690.03       

11 1,136.52    

12 1,055.34    

Human Resources / Weekly, Valerie 10 1,654.80    

11 1,576.00    

12 1,497.20    

Legal / Sanchez, Olga 11 32.92          

SAXXXX.PENIBEW Total 8,270.65    

SAXXXX.PENSALA Finance And Treasury / Mata, Jennifer 11 260.48       

Human Resources / Montung-Fuller, Mari 10 649.44       

11 1,014.75    

12 608.85       

Human Resources / Ung, Elaine 11 35.46          

Human Resources / Weekly, Valerie 10 2,442.80    

11 2,324.60    

12 2,088.20    

Legal / Sanchez, Olga 11 65.84          

SAXXXX.PENSALA Total 9,490.42    

SAXXXX.PENSION Board Support / Brooks, Cynthia 10 153.04       

Finance And Treasury / Adelman, Jamie 10 1,255.68    

11 1,765.80    

12 1,059.48    

Finance And Treasury / Gardner, Leona 10 423.45       

11 1,154.85    

12 365.72       

Finance And Treasury / Mata, Jennifer 10 1,209.93    

11 1,666.42    

Attachment B



SAXXXX.PENSION Finance And Treasury / Mata, Jennifer 12 1,557.67    

General Manager/CEO / Li, Bo 12 682.16       

Human Resources / Bonnel, Donna 10 2,065.98    

11 2,361.12    

12 2,164.36    

Human Resources / Humphrey, Isis 10 1,087.67    

11 2,269.92    

12 2,600.95    

Human Resources / Montung-Fuller, Mari 10 7,996.23    

11 7,306.20    

12 8,199.18    

Human Resources / Weekly, Valerie 10 2,600.40    

11 2,679.20    

12 3,309.60    

Legal / Sanchez, Olga 11 32.92          

VP, Finance/CFO / Bernegger, Brent 12 118.89       

SAXXXX.PENSION Total 56,086.82  

Grand Total 87,566.82  



                                                                                 

ATTACHMENT C  ATTACHM 

 
13725077.1  

HANSON BRIDGETT LLP & 
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT RETIREMENT BOARDS 

 
LEGAL SERVICES SUMMARY 

 
Set forth below is a broad summary report of significant legal matters addressed by 
Hanson Bridgett LLP for the Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Boards 
during the Quarter ended June 30, 2017. 

1. Weekly client conference calls and internal conferences on pending matters, 
upcoming Board meetings and follow-up from prior Board meetings. 

2. Preparation for and participation in Quarterly Board Meeting, including review 
and markup of agenda materials and related Board Chair conference calls. 

3. Assist with negotiations of side letter with new fund manager. 

4. Perform research for and assist with development of proposed Education & 
Travel policy; 

5. Provide counsel on issues including, but not limited to: 

a. Calculation of benefits under various scenarios; 

b. Survivor benefit provisions; 

c. Vesting rules and service credit; 

d. Default benefit options; 

e. Fiduciary duties and fiduciary liability insurance coverage; 

f. PEPRA compliance; 

g. Under- and Over-payments; 

h. Responding to fund manager annual questionnaire; and 

i. Reasonable expenses for reimbursement from pension system trust 
(Board member time, education costs, etc.). 

Respectfully Submitted, 

/s/   Shayna M. van Hoften 


	- SACRT 9.13.17 Quarterly Combined Agenda.pdf (p.1-3)
	#13 IBEW 6-14-17 Board Meeting Minutes.pdf (p.4-6)
	#14 IBEW 7-26-17 Special Minutes Combined.pdf (p.7-8)
	#15 Administrative Reports (IBEW).pdf (p.9-20)
	09-13-17 Administrative Reports - IBEW.pdf (p.1-4)
	09-13-17 Administrative Reports - IBEW Attachments #1-9.pdf (p.5-13)

	#16 IBEW Adopting 2018 Retirement Board Calendar.pdf (p.21-24)
	2018 IP Retirement Board Schedule - Resos.pdf (p.1-7)
	2018 Calendar Exhibit A.pdf (p.8)

	#20 Investment Performance Review by Atlanta Capital.pdf (p.25-40)
	09-13-17 Fund Manager Review - Atlanta Capital.pdf (p.1-2)
	09-13-17 Fund Manager Review - Atlanta Capital Attachment #1.pdf (p.3-17)

	#21 Investment Performance Review by Boston Partners.pdf (p.41-82)
	09-13-17 Fund Manager Review - Boston Partners.pdf (p.1-2)
	09-13-17 Fund Manager Review - Boston Partners Attachment #1.pdf (p.3-43)

	#22 Receive and File Investment Performance Rsults for ATU, IBEW, and Salaried.pdf (p.83-210)
	09-13-17 Investment Performance.pdf (p.1-2)
	09-13-17 Investment Performance Attachment #1.pdf (p.3-15)
	Sacramento Regional �Transit District
	Economic Commentary
	Asset Class Performance   
	U.S. Equity
	U.S. Equity Style Returns
	Non-U.S. Equity
	Fixed Income
	Sacramento Regional �Transit District
	RT Asset Allocation
	Total Fund
	Total Fund
	Total Fund
	Total Fund

	09-13-17 Investment Performance Attachment #2.pdf (p.16-124)
	09-13-17 Investment Performance Attachment #3.pdf (p.125-128)

	#23 Staff Roles and Responsibilities.pdf (p.211-217)
	9.13.17 Update from Staff on Pension Tasks.pdf (p.1)
	Attachment A -Pension Administration Chart 2017.pdf (p.2-4)
	Attachment B - 09-13-17 Pension Administration Detail.pdf (p.5-6)
	Attachment C - Sacramento Regional Transit Retirement Boards Legal Task Summary -Q2 2017.pdf (p.7)


